
 

1 

 

Agenda 
City Council Regular Meeting 
City Council Chambers | 50 Natoma Street, Folsom CA  95630 
June 09, 2020 
6:30 PM 

Welcome to Your City Council Meeting 

We welcome your interest and involvement in the city’s legislative process. This agenda includes 

information about topics coming before the City Council and the action recommended by city staff. You 

can read about each topic in the staff reports, which are available on the city website and in the Office 

of the City Clerk. The City Clerk is also available to answer any questions you have about City Council 

meeting procedures. 

Participation 

If you would like to provide comments to the City Council, please: 

 Fill out a blue speaker request form, located at the back table. 

 Submit the form to the City Clerk before the item begins. 

 When it’s your turn, the City Clerk will call your name and invite you to the podium. 

 Speakers have three minutes, unless the presiding officer (usually the mayor) changes that 

time. 

Reasonable Accommodations 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you are a person with a disability and you need 

a disability-related modification or accommodation to participate in this meeting, please contact the City 

Clerk’s Office at (916) 461-6035, (916) 355-7328 (fax) or cfreemantle@folsom.ca.us.  Requests must 

be made as early as possible and at least two full business days before the start of the meeting. 

How to Watch 

The City of Folsom provides three ways to watch a City Council meeting: 

In Person Online On TV 

 

  
City Council meetings take place at 

City Hall, 50 Natoma Street 
Watch the livestream and replay past 

meetings on the city website, 
www.folsom.ca.us 

Watch live and replays of meetings on 
Sac Metro Cable TV, Channel 14 

 
More information about City Council meetings is available at the end of this agenda 

 
 

 

Page 1

mailto:cfreemantle@folsom.ca.us
http://www.folsom.ca.us/


 

2 

 

 

 

City Council Regular Meeting 
 

Folsom City Council Chambers 
50 Natoma Street, Folsom, CA 

 

 www.folsom.ca.us   

Tuesday, June 09, 2020 6:30 PM 
 

Sarah Aquino, Mayor 

 

Ernie Sheldon, Vice Mayor Roger Gaylord, Council Member 
Kerri Howell, Council Member Mike Kozlowski, Council Member 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

Pursuant to Governor Newsom’s Executive Order N-29-20, members of the Folsom City Council and 
staff may participate in this meeting via teleconference.  

Due to the coronavirus (COVID-19) public health emergency, the City of Folsom is allowing for remote 
public input during City Council meetings.  Members of the public are encouraged to participate by 
emailing comments to CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us.  Emailed comments must be received no later 

than thirty minutes before the meeting and will be read aloud at the meeting during the agenda 
item.   Please make your comments brief. Written comments submitted and read into the public record 
must adhere to the principles of the three-minute speaking time permitted for in-person public comment 

at City Council meetings.  Members of the public wishing to participate in this meeting via 
teleconference may email CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us no later than thirty minutes before the meeting 
to obtain call-in information.  Each meeting may have different call-in information.  Verbal comments via 
teleconference must adhere to the principles of the three-minute speaking time permitted for in-person 

public comment at City Council meetings.   

 Members of the public may continue to participate in the meeting in person at 
Folsom City Hall, 50 Natoma Street, Folsom, CA while maintaining appropriate social distancing. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL: 

Council Members:     Kozlowski, Sheldon, Gaylord, Howell, Aquino 

The City Council has adopted a policy that no new item will begin after 10:30 p.m.  Therefore, if you are 
here for an item that has not been heard by 10:30 p.m., you may leave, as the item will be continued to 
a future Council Meeting. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

AGENDA UPDATE 

Page 2

http://www.folsom.ca.us/


 

3 

BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR: 

Members of the public are entitled to address the City Council concerning any item within the Folsom 
City Council's subject matter jurisdiction.  Public comments are limited to no more than three 
minutes.  Except for certain specific exceptions, the City Council is prohibited from discussing or taking 
action on any item not appearing on the posted agenda. 

CONSENT CALENDAR: 

Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and may be approved by one 
motion.  City Council Members may pull an item for discussion. 

1. Approval of the May 26, 2020 Regular Meeting Minutes 

2. Ordinance No. 1305 - An Uncodified Ordinance Levying Special Taxes for the Fiscal Year 2020-
21 and Following Fiscal Years Solely Within and Relating to the City of Folsom Community 
Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) (Second Reading and Adoption) 

3. Resolution No. 10431 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Purchase a 3.03 Acre 
Parcel (A.P.N. 071-0690-006) in the City of Folsom Made Available Through a Sacramento 
County Chapter 8 Auction Process  

4. Resolution No. 10460 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement 
with Tesco Controls for Consulting Services for the Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition 
(SCADA) System Upgrade and Maintenance Services for Water and Sewer 

5. Resolution No. 10461 - A Resolution Supporting Proposed Modifications to State Transportation 
Fund Allocation Framework Administered by the Sacramento Area Council of Governments 

6. Resolution No. 10462- A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Memorandum of 
Understanding with the County of Sacramento for Commercial and Industrial Stormwater 
Inspections and Enforcement Within Folsom to Comply with the City’s National Pollutant 
Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Permit 

7. Resolution No. 10463– A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement 
with Sacramento Housing and Redevelopment Agency for Continued Participation in the 
Community Development Block Program from January 1, 2021 to December 31, 2023 

8. Resolution No. 10464 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Seek Grant Funds from the 
United States Bureau of Reclamation for a WaterSMART Drought Response Program Drought 
Resiliency Project 

9. Resolution No. 10466 - A Resolution Electing the Population and Inflation Factors and 
Establishing the Fiscal Year 2020-21 Appropriations Limit 

10. Resolution No. 10467 – A Resolution Approving an Additional Appropriation in FY 2020-21 to be 
used for Park Renovation 

11. Resolution No. 10468 - A Resolution Approving an Acquisition and Shortfall Agreement for the 
Community Facilities District No. 23 Improvement Area No. 1 (Mangini Ranch Phase 2) 

12. Resolution No. 10469 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a 
Communications Site License Agreement with CCTM1, LLC for Mann Park 

13. Resolution No. 10471 – A Resolution Approving the Folsom Tree Care and Maintenance 
Standards and Folsom Master Tree List 

Page 3



 

4 

14. Receive and File the City of Folsom, the Folsom Redevelopment Successor Agency, the Folsom 
Public Financing Authority, the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority, and the South of 50 Parking 
Authority Monthly Investment Reports for the Month of March 2020 

NEW BUSINESS: 

15. Resolution No. 10465 - A Resolution Approving and Certifying Addendum No. 2 to the 
Environmental Impact Report for the Folsom South of U.S. 50 Specific Plan Project (State 
Clearinghouse # 2008092051) and Approving Transfer of up to 5,000 Acre-Feet of Water to 
State Water Contractors 

16. Resolution No. 10470 – A Resolution of the City Council Authorizing Deferral of Certain 
Development Impact Fees for the Parkway Apartment Project 

CITY MANAGER REPORTS: 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

NOTICE:  Members of the public are entitled to directly address the City Council concerning any item 

that is described in the notice of this meeting, before or during consideration of that item.  If you wish to 

address Council on an issue, which is on this agenda, please complete a blue speaker request card, and 

deliver it to a staff member at the table on the left side of the Council Chambers prior to discussion of the 

item.  When your name is called, stand to be recognized by the Mayor and then proceed to the podium.  If 

you wish to address the City Council on any other item of interest to the public, when the Mayor asks if 

there is any “Business from the Floor,” follow the same procedure described above.  Please limit your 

comments to three minutes or less. 

 

NOTICE REGARDING CHALLENGES TO DECISIONS:   Pursuant to all applicable laws and regulations, 

including without limitation, California Government Code Section 65009 and or California Public 

Resources Code Section 21177, if you wish to challenge in court any of the above decisions (regarding 

planning, zoning and/or environmental decisions), you may be limited to raising only those issues you or 

someone else raised at the public hearing(s) described in this notice/agenda, or in written 

correspondence delivered to the City at, or prior to, the public hearing. 

As presiding officer, the Mayor has the authority to preserve order at all City Council meetings, to remove 

or cause the removal of any person from any such meeting for disorderly conduct, or for making personal, 

impertinent, or slanderous remarks, using profanity, or becoming boisterous, threatening or personally 

abusive while addressing said Council, and to enforce the rules of the Council. 

PERSONS INTERESTED IN PROPOSING AN ITEM FOR THE CITY COUNCIL AGENDA SHOULD 

CONTACT A MEMBER OF THE CITY COUNCIL. 

The meeting of the Folsom City Council is being telecast on Metro Cable TV, Channel 14, the 

Government Affairs Channel, and will be shown in its entirety on the Friday and Saturday following the 

meeting, both at 9 a.m.  The City does not control scheduling of this telecast and persons interested in 

watching the televised meeting should confirm this schedule with Metro Cable TV, Channel 14. The City 

of Folsom provides live and archived webcasts of regular City Council meetings.  The webcasts can be 

found on the online services page of the City's website www.folsom.ca.us. 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you are a person with a disability and you need 

a disability-related modification or accommodation to participate in this meeting, please contact the City 

Clerk’s Office at (916) 461-6035, (916) 355-7328 (fax) or cfreemantle@folsom.ca.us.  Requests must be 

made as early as possible and at least two full business days before the start of the meeting. 

Page 4

http://www.folsom.ca.us/
mailto:cfreemantle@folsom.ca.us


Book 75 Page 162
Folsom City Council

May 26,2020

Gity Gouncil Regular Meeting

MINUTES

Tuesday, May 26,2020 6:30 PM

Pursuant to Governor Newsom's Executive Order N-29-20, members of the Folsom City
Council and staff may participate in this meeting via teleconference.

CALL TO ORDER

The regular City Council meeting was called to order at 6:30 p.m. in City Council Chambers, 50
Natoma Street, Folsom, California, with Mayor Sarah Aquino presiding.

ROLL GALL:

Council Members Present: Kerri Howell, Council Member
Mike Kozlowski, Council Member
Ernie Sheldon, Vice Mayor
Roger Gaylord, Council Member
Sarah Aquino, Mayor

Council Members Absent:

Participating Staff:

None

City Manager Elaine Andersen
City Attorney Steve Wang
City Clerk Christa Freemantle
Finance Director Stacey Tamagni
Parks and Recreation Director Lorraine Poggione
Fire Chief Felipe Rodriquez
Principal Planner Steve Banks

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited

AGENDA UPDATE

City Clerk Christa Freemantle advised that there were no updates to the agenda

BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR:

None

Draft * Not Official Until Approued fui the Citlt Council
Page 5

06/09/2020; Item No.1.



Book 75 Page 163
Folsom City Council

May 26,2020

SGHEDULED PRESENTATIONS:

1. City Manager's Financial Report for Fiscal Year 2019-20 Third Quarter Financial Report

Finance Director Stacey Tamagni made a presentation and responded to questions from the
City Council.

CONSENT GALENDAR:

2. Approval of the May 12,2020 Special and Regular Meeting Minutes

3. Resolution No. 10454 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute
Amendment No. 3 to the Agreement (Contract No. 173-21 16-035) with Murraysmith lnc.
for Design and Construction Administration Services for the Misc. Water System
Rehabilitation Project No. 1 and Folsom Zoo Sewer Line Project and Appropriation of
Funds

4. Resolution No. 10455 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a
Construction Agreement with Sierra National Construction, lnc. for the Prairie City at Blue
Ravine Lane Modification Project, Project No. PW2002

5. Resolution No. 10457- A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Approve
Amendment No, 2 to the Contract with Aquatic Design Group for Additional Design
Services for the Steve Miklos Aquatic Center Renovation Project (Contract No. 173-21
17-063) and Appropriation of Funds

Motion by Gouncil Member Kerri Howelln second by Gouncil Member Mike Kozlowski, to
approve the Consent Calendar. Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Council Member(s): Howell, Kozlowski, Sheldon, Gaylord, Aquino
Gouncil Member(s): None
Council Member(s): None
Council Member(s): None

NEW BUSINESS:

6. Resolution No. 10459 - A Resolution Authorizing the Automatic Extension of Zoning
Related Entitlements and Grading Permits for One Year

City Manager Elaine Andersen made a presentation and responded to questions from the City
Council.

Motion by Council Member Mike Kozlowski, second by Gouncil Member Kerri Howellto
approve Resolution No. 10459. Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AYES: Council Member(s): Howell, Kozlowski, Sheldon, Gaylord, Aquino
NOES: Council Member(s): None
ABSENT: Council Member(s): None
ABSTAIN: Council Member(s): None

Draft - Not Of;dal Until Approued fui the Citl Council
Page 6

06/09/2020; Item No.1.



Book 75 Page 164
Folsom City Council

May 26,2020

PUBLIC HEARING:

7. Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

a. Resolution No. 10435 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom to Form
a Community Facilities District, to Designate lmprovement Areas Within the District and
to Levy Special Taxes Therein

b. Resolution No. 10436 - A Resolution of the City of Folsom Deeming it Necessary to
lncur Bonded lndebtedness Within lmprovement Area No.1 of City of Folsom Community
Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

c. Resolution No. 10437 - A Resolution of the City of Folsom Deeming it Necessary to
lncur Bonded lndebtedness Within lmprovement Area No.2 of City of Folsom Community
Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

d. Resolution No. 10438 - A Resolution of the City of Folsom Deeming it Necessary to
lncur Bonded lndebtedness Within lmprovement Area No.3 of City of Folsom Community
Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

e. Resolution No. 10439 - A Resolution of the City of Folsom Deeming it Necessary to
lncur Bonded lndebtedness Within lmprovement Area No.4 of City of Folsom Community
Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

f. Resolution No. 10440- A Resolution of the City of Folsom Deeming it Necessary to
lncur Bonded lndebtedness Within lmprovement Area No.5 of City of Folsom Community
Facilities District No, 23 (Folsom Ranch)

g. Resolution No. 10441 - A Resolution of the City of Folsom Deeming it Necessary to
lncur Bonded lndebtedness Within lmprovement Area No.6 of City of Folsom Community
Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

h. Resolution No. 10442- A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Calling
Special Mailed-Ballot Election in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23
(Folsom Ranch) lmprovement Area No. 1

i. Resolution No. 1 0443- A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Calling
Special Mailed-Ballot Election in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23
(Folsom Ranch) lmprovement Area No.2

j. Resolution No.10444 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Calling
Special Mailed-Ballot Election in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23
(Folsom Ranch) lmprovement Area No.3

k. Resolution No. 10445 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Calling
Special Mailed-Ballot Election in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23
(Folsom Ranch) lmprovement Area No.4

l. Resolution No. 10446 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Calling
Special Mailed-Ballot Election in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23
(Folsom Ranch) lmprovement Area No.5

Draft - Not Offidal Until Approued fu the Citlt Coancil
Page 7

06/09/2020; Item No.1.



Book 75 Page 165
Folsom City Council

May 26,2020

m. Resolution No. 10447 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Calling
Special Mailed-Ballot Election in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No.23
(Folsom Ranch) lmprovement Area No.6

n. Resolution No. 10448 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom
Declaring Election Results in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23
(Folsom Ranch) lmprovement Area No. 1

o. Resolution No. 10449 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom
Declaring Election Results in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23
(Folsom Ranch) lmprovement Area No. 2

p. Resolution No. 10450 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom
Declaring Election Results in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23
(Folsom Ranch) lmprovement Area No. 3

q. Resolution No. 10451- A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom
Declaring Election Results in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23
(Folsom Ranch) lmprovement Area No. 4

r. Resolution No. 10452 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom
Declaring Election Results in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23
(Folsom Ranch) lmprovement Area No. 5

s. Resolution No. 10453 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom
Declaring Election Results in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23
(Folsom Ranch) lmprovement Area No. 6

t. Ordinance No. 10305 - An Uncodified Ordinance Levying Special Taxes for the Fiscal
Year 2020-21 and Following Fiscal Years Solely Within and Relating to the City of
Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) (lntroduction and First
Reading)

City Clerk Christa Freemantle advised that the ordinance number should be corrected to
Ordinance No. 1305 rather than Ordinance No. 10305.

Finance Director Stacey Tamagni made a presentation and responded to questions from the
City Council.

Mayor Sarah Aquino opened the public hearing, with City Clerk Christa Freemantle affirming
that notice of the public hearing was published as required by the Mello-Roos Community
Facilities Act.

Hearing no speakers, the public hearing was closed.

City Clerk Christa Freemantle confirmed that a majority protest did not exist.

Motion by Mike Kozlowski, second by Gouncil Member Kerri Howell, to approve
Resolution No. 10435. Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AYES: Council Member(s): Howell, Kozlowski, Sheldon, Gaylord, Aquino
NOES: Council Member(s): None
ABSENT: Council Member(s): None

Draft - Not OfidalUntil Approued fui the Ci4t Conncil
Page 8

06/09/2020; Item No.1.



Book 75 Page 166
Folsom City Council

May 26,2020

ABSTAIN: Council Member(s): None

Motion by Gouncil Member Kerri Howell, second by Gouncil Member Mike Kozlowskito
approve Resolution No's 10436 through 10441. Motion carried with the following roll call
vote:

Motion by Gouncil Member Kerri Howell, second by Gouncil Member Mike Kozlowskito
approve Resolution No's 10442 through 10447. Motion carried with the following roll call
vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Gouncil Member(s): Howell, Kozlowski, Sheldonn Gaylord, Aquino
Council Member(s): None
Council Member(s): None
Gouncil Member(s): None

Council Member(s): Howell, Kozlowski, Sheldon, Gaylord, Aquino
Council Member(s): None
Gouncil Member(s): None
Gouncil Member(s): None

Council Member(s): Howell, Kozlowski, Sheldon, Gaylord, Aquino
Council Member(s): None
Council Member(s): None
Council Member(s): None

Mayor Sarah Aquino opened the elections for the incurring of bonded indebtedness, the levy of
the applicable special tax, and the establishment of the appropriations limit for each
lmprovement Area and directed the City Clerk to conduct the elections. City Clerk Christa
Freemantle confirmed that all ballots in the elections have been submitted and declared the
elections closed. Following completion of the canvass, it was announced that for each
lmprovement Area, all eligible votes were cast in support of the applicable measure and zero
votes were cast in opposition to such measure. Therefore, for each lmprovement Area, the
applicable measure was approved with a 100o/o vote in favor.

Motion by Council Member Kerri Howell, second by Mayor Sarah Aquino to approve
Resolution No's 10448 through 10453. Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

Motion by Council Member Kerri Howell, second by Gouncil Member Mike Kozlowskito
introduce Ordinance No. 1305. Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AYES: Council Member(s): Howell, Kozlowski, Sheldon, Gaylord, Aquino
NOES: Gouncil Member(s): None
ABSENT: Gouncil Member(s): None
ABSTAIN: Gouncil Member(s): None

8. Resolution No. 10458 - A Resolution Determining that the Creekstone Phase 1

Subdivision Project is Exempt from CEQA and Approving a Small-Lot Vesting Tentative
Subdivision Map, Planned Development Permit, and the lnclusionary Housing Plan for
the Creekstone Phase 1 Subdivision Project

Draft- Not OffdalUntilApproued fut the Ciry Council
Page 9

06/09/2020; Item No.1.



Book 75 Page 167
Folsom City Council

May 26,2020

Principal Planner Steve Banks made a presentation and responded to questions from the City
Council. ln response to Council Member questions, Fire Chief Felipe Rodriquez addressed the
issue of street names.

Mayor Sarah Aquino opened the public hearing. Hearing no speakers, the public hearing was
closed.

Motion by Council Member Kerri Howell, second by Council Member Mike Kozlowskito
approve Resolution No. 10458. Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AYES: Council Member(s): Howell, Kozlowskin Sheldon, Gaylord, Aquino
NOES: Council Member(s): None
ABSENT: Gouncil Member(s): None
ABSTAIN: Council Member(s): None

g. Resolution No. 10456 - A Resolution Adopting the City Manager's Fiscal Year 2020-21
Operating and Capital Budgets for the City of Folsom, the Successor Agency, the Folsom
Public Financing Authority and the Folsom Ranch Public Financing Authority

Finance Director Stacey Tamagni made a presentation and responded to questions from the
City Council. Parks and Recreation Director Lorraine Poggione and Fire Chief Felipe Rodriquez
provided additional information. City Manager Elaine Andersen and City Attorney Steve Wang
also provided additional information.

The City Council Member discussed the proposed budget.

Mayor Sarah Aquino opened the public hearing. Hearing no speakers, the public hearing was
closed.

The City Council Member further discussed the proposed budget.

Motion by Gouncil Member Kerri Howell, second by Council Member Mike Kozlowskito
approve Resolution No. 10456. The City Council further directed that $0.5M of Quimby
Fees be appropriated for renovating existing parks as prioritized by the Parks and
Recreation Commission. Motion carried with the following roll callvote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Gouncil Member(s): Howell, Kozlowski, Sheldon, Gaylord, Aquino
Gouncil Member(s): None
Gouncil Member(s): None
Gouncil Member(s): None

GITY MANAGER REPORTS:

City Manager Elaine Andersen spoke of the recently updated public health order, reopening of
City facilities and warned residents about scams.

Draft - Not Oficial Until Approued fut the Ci4t Council
Page 10

06/09/2020; Item No.1.



Book 75 Page 168
Folsom City Council

May 26,2020

COUNGIL COMMENTS:

Council Member Mike Kozlowski spoke of recent SACOG meeting. He also spoke about the
recent distribution of facemasks at the library, and complimented Library Director Lori

Easterwood for all of her great work and library programs.

Council Member Kerri Howell also complimented the library's services, including online books
She encouraged everyone to drive carefully and thanked staff for their work.

Vice Mayor Ernie Sheldon spoke of upcoming fireworks.

Mayor Sarah Aquino congratulated recent high school graduates.

ADJ NMENT

There being no further business to come before the Folsom City Council, the meeting was
adjourned at 8:48 p.m.

PREPARED AND SUBMITTED BY:

Christa Freemantle, City Clerk
ATTEST:

Sarah Aquino, Mayor

Draft- Not OficialUntilApproued fu the Citlt Coanc'il Page 11

06/09/2020; Item No.1.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 12

06/09/2020; Item No.1.



Folsom City Council
Staff Re ort

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

It is recommended that the City Council conduct the second reading and move to adopt the
following ordinance:

Ordinance No. 1305 - An Uncodified Ordinance Levying Special Taxes for the Fiscal Year
2020-2I and Following Fiscal Years Solely within and Relating to the City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) (Second Reading and Adoption)

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan Public Facilities Financing Plan ("PFFP"), approved by
the City Council on January 28, 2014 via Resolution 9298, is an $877 million plan that
describes the backbone infrastructure and facility requirements, presents a comprehensive
financing strategy, and sets forth the estimated time horizon for the development of the Folsom
Plan Area ("FPA").

Landowners within the FPA requested to form the proposed City of Folsom Community
Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) ("CFD No. 23"), and designate six separate

Improvement Areas (each an "IA") therein (designated as Improvement Area No. 1 through
Improvement Area No. 6). Special tax revenues generated from each IA within CFD No. 23

will help fund all or a portion of the project's share of PFFP backbone infrastructure and

1

MEETING DATE: 61912020

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Ordinance No. 1305 - An Uncodified Ordinance Levying
Special Taxes for the Fiscal Year 2020-21 and Following Fiscal
Years Solely within and Relating to the City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) (Second

Reading and Adoption)

FROM: Finance Department

Page 13

06/09/2020; Item No.2.



facilities, including related environmental mitigation obligations. A detailed list of authorized
facilities can be found under Appendix A of Resolution No. 10414, approved by this City
Council on April 14,2020. A summary of the facilities authorized to be funded by CFD No.
23 include, but are not limited to:

o Transportation Improvements including all public roadway improvements designed to
meet the needs of development within CFD No. 23, including internal subdivision
streets and related underground utilities

o Water System Improvements
o Recycled Water System Improvements
o Drainage System Improvements
o Wastewater System Improvements
o Park, Parkway and Open Space Improvements
o Specific Plan Infrastructure Fee Improvements
o Payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure Fee Program Obligation
. Other Incidental Expenses and Bond Issuance Costs

In addition, the following project-specific services are anticipated to be funded by CFD No. 23

special taxes.
o Enhanced open space maintenance
o Landscape corridors and paseos

o Street light maintenance
o Medians, entries and entry monumentation
. Neighborhood park maintenance
. Community amenities
o Storm water management
o Other miscellaneous costs related to any of the items described above
o Anticipated future repairs or replacements costs

The proposed CFD No. 23 is located within the FPA and is generally bounded by U.S.
Highway 50 on the north, Placerville Road on the east, and White Rock Road on the south.
Each IA within CFD No. 23 includes several Assessor's Parcel Numbers, which are identified
in the CFD No. 23 boundary map, which is included in the CFD Public Hearing Report. The
proposed development plan for each IA within CFD No. 23 includes the following:

IA SF Units

SF High-
Density
Units

MF Low-
Density
Units

MF
Medium
Density
Acreage

MF High
Density
Acreage

Non-
Residential

Acreage
IAl 0 441 257 0.0 9.8 0.0

IA2 0 0 340 0.0 0.0 5.1

IA3 0 1,068 r57 0.0 0.0 0.0

IA4 100 266 25r 0.0 0.0 0.0

IA5 84 194 401 9.7 17.8 23.5

IA6 0 0 0 9.5 9.3 rt.4

2
Page 14

06/09/2020; Item No.2.



The CFD No. 23 funding stream will be a combination of bonded indebtedness and pay-as-

you-go ("PAYGO") funding, both secured by the levy of special taxes upon property within
the boundaries of CFD No. 23.

On April 14,2020, this City Council appointed consultants, approved a proposed boundary
map and declared the intention to form CFD No. 23 and to levy special taxes within CFD No.
23 by passage of Resolution No. I04I4. On that same date, this City Council declared the

necessity for incurring bonded indebtedness in and for CFD No. 23 and in and for each IA
designated therein by passage of Resolution No. 10415.

A Public Hearing and landowner election were conducted on May 26,2020. At that time, the

following resolutions were approved by the Council:

Resolution No. 10435, the Resolution of Formation, which formed CFD No. 23,

designated six separate IA's, and authorized the levying of taxes therein

Resolution Nos. 10436-1044I, which deemed it necessary to incur bonded

indebtedness within the six respective IA's within CFD No. 23

Resolution Nos. 10442 -10447 , which called for a special mailed-ballot election within
each respective IA
Resolution Nos. 10448 -10453, which declared the results of the elections within each

respective IA

The results of the landowner elections were as follows:

a

a

o

a

Improvement Area No. 1:

Improvement AreaNo. 2:
Improvement Area No. 3:

Improvement AreaNo. 4:
Improvement Area No. 5:

Improvement Area No. 6:

1 1 1 in favor of the ballot measure and zero opposed
50 in favor of the ballot measure and zero opposed
299 in favor of the ballot measure and zero opposed
167 in favor of the ballot measure and zero opposed
361 in favor of the ballot measure and zero opposed
22 infavor of the ballot measure and zero opposed

POLICY / RULE

Chapter 5 of the Folsom Plan Area Public Facilities Financing Plan authorizes the formation
of community facilities districts (each a "CFD") to finance the construction, acquisition, and

servicing of FPA backbone infrastructure and public facilities

Section 2.5.3 of the First Amended and Restated Tier 1 Development Agreement authorizes
the formation of infrastructure CFDs.

Resolution No. 9282 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Approving
Goals and Policies for Community Facilities Districts

Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982

J
Page 15

06/09/2020; Item No.2.



ANALYSIS

CFD No. 23 will be structured as an extended-term CFD and will provide the necessary funding
to help fund all or a portion of the project's share of PFFP backbone infrastructure and

facilities, including related environmental mitigation obligations. The PFFP backbone
infrastructure and facilities will be financed using both bond proceeds and PAYGO special tax
revenues. The extended-term CFD structure is proposed to help meet the challenge of high-
cost infrastructure and facilities while also aligning the timing of future funding availability
with the need for such funding.

The PFFP backbone facilities to be funded via CFD No. 23, and listed above, were originally
anticipated to be funded by either Community Facilities District No. 18 (Folsom Plan Area -
Area-Wide Improvements and Services) or funded as part ofproject specific CFDs established

for each development within the FPA.

The special tax revenue generated from taxable parcels within each IA of CFD No. 23 will be

comprised of a special tax to fund facilities and a special tax to fund services. The 202012I
maximum facilities special tax rates, set forth in each IA's Rate and Method of Apportionment,
for each land use category are provided in the table below:

The special tax for the authorized facilities within any IA shall not be levied after the earlier
of (i) Fiscal Year 2079180 or (ii) the hscal year occurring 50 years following (a) the fiscal year
in which the first building permit was issued or (b) the first series of bonds or other debt issued

for the respective IA. Each fiscal year, commencing with 2021122, the maximum facilities
special taxrute will be increased by 2% annually.

4

Land Use Category

Residential
Floor Area

(square footase)

2020121Maximum
Facilities Special

Tax Rate (All IAs) Per

Sinele-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning > 3"600 $3.886 Unit
Sinele-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning 3.200 - 3.s99 3.57t Unit
Single-Family Detached Properff - SF/SFHD Zoning 2.800 - 3.r99 3,559 Unit
Sinele-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning 2.400 - 2.799 3,293 Unit
Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning 2,000 - 2,399 3,000 Unit
Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning < 2,000 2,900 Unit
Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning > 3,600 3,886 Unit
Sinele-Familv Detached Property - MLD Zonins 3,200 - 3,599 3,571 Unit
Sinele-Family Detached Property - MLD Zonins 2,800 - 3,199 3,559 Unit
Sinele-Family Detached Property - MLD Zonins 2,400 - 2,799 3,293 Unit
Sinele-Family Detached Property - MLD Zonins 2,000 -2,399 3.000 Unit
Sinele-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning < 2.000 2.900 Unit
MMD Multi-Family Attached Property N/A 30,000 Acre
MHD Multi-Family Attached Property N/A 11,700 Acre
Non-Residential Property N/A 11,700 Acre

Page 16

06/09/2020; Item No.2.



The 2020121 maximum services special tax rates, set forth in each IA's Rate and Method of
Apportionment, for each land use category are provided in the table below:

Land Use Category IAl rA2 IA3* IA4 IA5 IA6 Per

Single-Family Detached
Property - SF/SFHD Zonins $210 $200 $17s $20s $16s $17s Unit

Single-Family Detached
Prooerty - MLD Zonins.

rs6 103 r25 r40 85 85 Unit

MMD Multi-Family
Attached Property

500 500 s00 500 s00 300 Acre

MHD Multi-Family
Attached Property

1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 300 Acre

Non-Residential Property 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 0 Acre
* For Active Adult Properly the maximum services special tax rate for SF/SFHD Zoning property is

$100 per unit and MLD zoning property is $40 per unit.

The CFD No. 23 services special tax canbe levied and collected in perpetuity. Each fiscal year,

commencing with 2021122, the maximum services special tax rate will be increased by the
June annualized percentage change of the Consumer Price Index for all Urban Consumers, for
the San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose area, not to exceed 4o/o.

As described above, CFD No. 23 will include an extended-term in order to provide the
financing to fund CFD No. 23 authorized facilities through multiple CFD bond issues and the
generation of PAYGO special tax revenue from the levy and collection of the special taxes.
The primary pledge of CFD No. 23 special tax revenues will be to service outstanding CFD
No. 23 debt. Special tax revenues in excess of the annual debt service and administrative
expenses will be used on a PAYGO basis. 100% of the PAYGO revenue is intended to be

available to the landowners to fund eligible facilities for the first 20 years, beginning the Fiscal
Year following the earlier of the first building permit being issued or the first series of bonds
or other debt issued for the respective IA. After that, any PAYGO revenues may be used at the
City's discretion to continue to fund or acquire eligible facilities, or the City may elect to
reduce the special tax levy amount to eliminate PAYGO revenues.

Ordinance No. 1305 authorizes the applicable special tax to be levied within each IA for FY
2020121 and following fiscal years. The Ordinance was introduced for the first reading on
May 26,2020. No changes have been made to the ordinance since the first reading.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

There is no direct General Fund impact on the City of Folsom. The CFD No. 23 formation,
bonded indebtedness, and expenses are solely the responsibility of CFD No. 23.

5
Page 17

06/09/2020; Item No.2.



ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

An Initial Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration prepared for the Folsom Plan Area
Backbone Infrastructure Project were previously prepared for, and adopted by the City Council
on February 24,2015, in accordance with the requirements of the California Environmental

Quality Act. Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines section 15378(c), the term "project" does not mean

each separate govemmental approval for an approved activity which may be subject to several

discretionary approvals by governmental agencies. Additionally, the creation of government
funding mechanisms which do not involve any commitment to any specific project which may
result in a potentially significant physical impact on the environment is not defined as a
"project" under CEQA. CEQA Guidelines Section 15378(bX4) and 15061(bX3).

ATTACHMENTS

1. Ordinance No. 1305 - An Uncodified Ordinance Levying Special Taxes for the Fiscal
Year 2020-21 and Following Fiscal Years Solely within and Relating to the City of
Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) (Second Reading and
Adoption)

Submitted,

Tamagni
Finance Director

6
Page 18

06/09/2020; Item No.2.



I

ORDINANCE NO. 1305

AN UNCODIFIED ORDINANCE LEVYING SPECIAL TAXES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2O2O-2I AND FOLLOWING FISCAL YEARS

SOLELY WITHIN AND RELATING TO THE CITY OF FOLSOM
COMMUNITY F'ACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23

ooLSoM RANCH)

The City Council of the City of Folsom hereby ordains as follows:

SECTION 1 PURPOSE

The City Council of the City of Folsom hereby finds, determines and declares based on the

record before it that:

The City is authorized to establish a community facilities district pursuant to the terms of
the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, Chapter 2.5 of Division 2 of Title 5 of
the California Government Code, commencing with Section 53311 (the "Act"); and

Pursuant to Section 53350 of the Act, the City is authorized to designate improvement areas

within the community facilities district; and

On May 26,2020, the City Council adopted its Resolution No. 10435 (the "Resolution of
Formation") establishing the City of Folsom Community Facilities DistrictNo.23 (Folsom

Ranch) (the "District") and designating Improvement Area No. 1, Improvement Area No.
2, Improvement Area No. 3, Improvement Area No. 4, Improvement Area No. 5 and

Improvement Area No. 6 (each an "Improvement Area") therein pursuant to the Act; and

In accordance with the Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax relating to each

Improvement Area, the Resolution of Formation approved the annual levy, subject to voter
approval, of a special tax in connection with each Improvement Area (each a "Special

Tax"); and

The Resolution of Formation proposed the establishment of an appropriations limit for each

Improvement Area (each an'oAppropriations Limit"); and

On May 26, 2020, the City Clerk, as elections official, conducted an election of the

landowners of each Improvement Area (each an "Election"); and

On May 26,2020, the City Council adopted its Resolution No. 10448 certifring that, atthe
Election, the landowners of the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 1 ('olmprovement Area No. 1") approved the

Special Tax and the Appropriations Limit relating to Improvement AreaNo. 1; and

On May 26,2020,the City Council adopted its Resolution No. 10449 certiffing that, at the

Election, the landowners of the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 2 ("Improvement Area No. 2") approved the

Special Tax and the Appropriations Limit relating to Improvement Area No. 2; and

Ordinance No. 1305
Page I of4

2.

J

4

5

6

7

8

Page 19

06/09/2020; Item No.2.



9 On May 26,2020,the City Council adopted its ResolutionNo. 10450 certifuing that, atthe
Election, the landowners of the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 3 ('olmprovement Area No. 3") approved the

Special Tax and the Appropriations Limit relating to Improvement Area No. 3; and

On May 26,2020, the City Council adopted its Resolution No. 10451 certiffing that, at the

Election, the landowners of the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 4 ("Improvement Area No. 4") approved the

Special Tax and the Appropriations Limit relating to Improvement Area No. 4; and

10

11 On May 26,2020,the City Council adopted its Resolution No. 10452 certiffing that, at the
Election, the landowners of the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 5 ("Improvement Area No. 5") approved the
Special Tax and the Appropriations Limit relating to Improvement AreaNo. 5; and

t2. On May 26,2020, the City Council adopted its Resolution No. 10453 certifuing that, at the

Election, the landowners of the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 6 ("Improvement Area No. 6" and, together with
Improvement Area No. I, Improvement Area No. 2, Improvement Area No. 3,

Improvement Area No. 4 and Improvement Area No. 5, each an oolmprovement Area")
approved the Special Tax and the Appropriations Limit relating to Improvement Area No.
6; and

13. The City Council desires to levy and impose the Special Tax and to take other related
actions.

SECTION 2

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM
RESOLVES:

The recitals set forth in Section 1 are true and correct.

A special tax is hereby levied on all Taxable Property (as defined in Exhibit D-l of the

Resolution of Formation) within Improvement Area No. 1 for the 2020-2I fiscal year and
for all subsequent fiscal years in the amount of the maximum authorized tax, provided that
this amount may be adjusted annually, subject to the maximum authorized special tax limit,
by resolution of the City Council.

A special tax is hereby levied on all Taxable Property (as defined in Exhibit D-2 of the
Resolution of Formation) within Improvement Area No. 2 for the 2020-21 fiscal year and

for all subsequent fiscal years in the amount of the maximum authorized tax, provided that
this amount may be adjusted annually, subject to the maximum authorized special tax limit,
by resolution of the City Council.

A special tax is hereby levied on all Taxable Property (as defined in Exhibit D-3 of the
Resolution of Formation) within Improvement Area No. 3 for the 2020-2I fiscal year and
for all subsequent fiscal years in the amount of the maximum authorized tax, provided that

Ordinance No. 1305
Page2 of 4

1

2

J

4

Page 20

06/09/2020; Item No.2.



5

6.

7

8

this amount may be adjusted annually, subject to the maximum authorized special tax limit,
by resolution of the City Council.

A special tax is hereby levied on all Taxable Property (as defined in Exhibit D-4 of the

Resolution of Formation) within Improvement Area No. 4 for the 2020-21 fiscal year and

for all subsequent fiscal years in the amount of the maximum authorized tax, provided that
this amount may be adjusted annually, subject to the maximum authorized special tax limit,
by resolution of the City Council.

A special tax is hereby levied on all Taxable Property (as defined in Exhibit D-5 of the
Resolution of Formation) within Improvement Area No. 5 for the 2020-21 fiscal year and

for all subsequent fiscal years in the amount of the maximum authorized tax, provided that
this amount may be adjusted annually, subject to the maximum authorized special tax limit,
by resolution of the City Council.

A special tax is hereby levied on all Taxable Property (as defined in Exhibit D-6 of the
Resolution of Formation) within Improvement Area No. 6 for the 2020-2I fiscal year and
for all subsequent fiscal years in the amount of the maximum authorized tax, provided that
this amount may be adjusted annually, subject to the maximum authorized special tax limit,
by resolution of the City Council.

The Finance Director of the City of Folsom or designee thereof (the "CFD Administrator")
is authorized and directed, to determine each year, without further action of the City
Council, each Special Tax, to prepare the annual Special Tax roll in the amount of each

Special Tax in accordance with the related exhibit and, without further action of the City
Council, to provide all necessary and appropriate information to the Sacramento County
Auditor-Controller's Office (the "County") in proper form, and in proper time, necessary
to effect the correct and timely billing and collection of each Special Tax on the secured
property tax roll of the County; provided, that as provided in the Resolution of Formation
and Section 53340 of the California Government Code, the City has reserved the right to
utilize any method of collecting each Special Tax which it shall, from time to time,
determine to be in the best interests of the City of Folsom (the "City"), including but not
limited to, direct billing by the City to the property owners and supplemental billing.

The appropriate officers and agents of the City are authorized to make adjustments to the
Special Tax roll prior to the final posting of each Special Tax to the County tax roll each
fiscal year, as may be necessary to achieve a correct match of each Special Tax levy with
the assessor's parcel numbers finally utilized by the County in sending out property tax
bills.

The City agrees that, in the event the Special Tax for an Improvement Area is collected on
the secured tax roll of the County, the County may deduct its reasonable and agreed charges
for collecting such Special Tax from the amounts collected, prior to remitting such Special
Tax collections to the City.

Taxpayers who have requested changes or corrections of the applicable Special Tax
pursuant to Section I of the Rate and Method of Apportionment of the related Special Tax

9

10

11

Ordinance No. 1305

Page 3 of4
Page 21

06/09/2020; Item No.2.



and who are not satisfied with the decision of the CFD Administrator (whether the CFD
Administrator disagrees with the taxpayer or concludes that the City is not authorized to
consider the change requested), may appeal to the City Council. The appeal must be in
writing, fully explain the grounds of appeal and must be based solely on the correction of
mistakes in the levy based upon the status of the property, and no other appeals will be

allowed. The CFD Administrator shall schedule the appeal for consideration within a

reasonable time at aCity Council meeting.

SECTION 3 SEVERABILITY

If for any cause any portion of this ordinance is found to be invalid, or if the applicable
Special Tax is found inapplicable to any particular parcel by a court of competent jurisdiction, the
balance of this ordinance, and the application of such Special Tax to the remaining parcels, shall
not be affected.

SECTION 4 ET'FECTIVE DATE

This ordinance shall take effect and be in force as a tax measure thirty (30) days following
its second reading and adoption at a meeting of the City Council; and before the expiration of
twenty (20) days after its passage the same shall be published, with the names of the members
voting for and against the same, at least once in a newspaper of general circulation published and
circulated in the District.

This ordinance was introduced and the title thereof read at the regular meeting of the City
Council on May 26, 2020, and the second reading is to occur at the regular meeting of the City
Council on June 9,2020.

On a motion by Council Member seconded by Council
Member the foregoing ordinance was passed and adopted by the City
Council of the City of Folsom, State of California, this 9th day of June, 2020 by the following roll-
call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

ATTEST:

Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):

Sarah Aquino, MAYOR

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Ordinance No. 1305
Page 4 of4

Page 22

06/09/2020; Item No.2.



Folsom City Council
Staff Re ort

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

Staff recommends the City Council Approve Resolution No. 10431 - A Resolution
Authorizing the City Manager to Purchase a 3.03-Acre Parcel (A.P.N. 071-0690-006) in the
City of Folsom made available through a Sacramento County Chapter 8 Auction Process.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

This 3.O3-acre parcel is located within the City of Folsom and identified by Sacramento
County as A.P.N. 071-0690-006 (Attachment2). The 2015 Parks and Recreation Master
Plan identifies this parcel as part of the overall plans for development of Lembi Community
Park (Attachment 3).

POLICY / RULE

California Government Code Section3735l provides that: "The legislative body may
purchase, lease, exchange, or receive such personal property and real estate situated inside or
outside the city limits as is necessary or proper for municipal purposes. It may control,
dispose of, and convey such property for the benefit of the city."

ANALYSIS

This 3.O3-acre parcel is bounded on all sides by City-owned property: Lembi Community
Park, the Steve Miklos Aquatic Center, City of Folsom Fire Station #35, and City of Folsom

1

MEETING DATE: 61912020

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10431 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Purchase a 3.O3-Acre Parcel (A.P.N. 071-0690-006)
in the City of Folsom Made Available Through a Sacramento
County Chapter 8 Auction Process

FROM: Parks and Recreation Department

Page 23

06/09/2020; Item No.3.



open space. It is vacant, wooded, landlocked and has no utilities on it. The Sacramento
County designation for the site is recreational. The City's General Plan designation is Open

Space andZoning is Open Space Conservation.

The 2015 Parks and Recreation Master Plan identified this parcel as part of the overall plans
to develop a .5-mile walking trailthatwould provide connectivity between Lembi
Community Park and the Folsom Heights community to the south. It is the City's
understanding that this parcel was always intended to be deeded to the City; however, that
did not occur and had been sold via auction to a private party.

In January of 2020, the City received its annual list of 'Notice of Proposed Public Auctions
for Tax Defaulted Properties" within Sacramento County. Upon review of over 200
properties on the list, staff noticed that this particular parcel was included in the auction
notice. On January 30,2020, the City sent a request to Sacramento County of the City's
interest to purchase the property. On January 28,2020, the City Manager received approval
from the City Council in closed session to proceed with the purchase.

The purchase price of the property is based on uncollected taxes due on the parcel which is
approximately $20,325 for a sale date of October 29,2020. The price includes property
taxes, delinquent taxes, and the cost of sale. If the sale date is extended further, it could
affect the sales price by approximately $100 per month.

As part of this process, the Planning Commission must make a finding of General Plan
consistency in accordance with Govemment Code 65402(a). The item was considered at the
June 3, 2020Plamring Commission meeting and staff will report on the status of the
Commission's action on June 9th.

The timeline to maintain the current purchase price is as follows
. City Council Resolution Jvne9,2020
o County Board of Supervisor Hearing approval on July 14,2020
. Sacramento County approval on August 28,2020
o Parties of Interest notified on September 11,2020
o Mandated publications on October 8,2020
o Tentative date of sale on October 29,2020
o Payment from City of Folsom due onNovember 19,2020

FINANCIAL IMPACT

The fund to purchase this property would come from the City's General Fund (Fund 010) and
available fund balance. The addition of this 3.03-acre parcel would complete the anticipated
acreage for build-out of Lembi Community Park.

2
Page 24

06/09/2020; Item No.3.



ENVIRO AI, REVIF],W

This purchase is exempt from CEQA pursuant to 15061(b)(3)-The activity is covered by the
common sense exemption that CEQA applies only to projects which have the potential for
causing a significant effect on the environment. Where it can be seen with certainty that there
is no possibility that the activity in question may have a significant effect on the

environment, the activity is not subject to CEQA.

ATTACHMENTS

l. Resolution No. 10431 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Purchase a 3.03-
Acre Parcel (A.P.N. 071-0690-006) in the City of Folsom made available through a

Sacramento County Chapter 8 Auction Process
2. County of Sacramento Assessor Parcel Map
3. City of Folsom-20l5 Parks and Recreation Master Plan-Lembi Park

Submitted,

Lorraine Poggione,
Parks and Recreation Director

J
Page 25

06/09/2020; Item No.3.



RE,SOLUTION NO. IO43I

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO PURCHASE A 3.03.
ACRE PARCEL (A.P.N. 071-0690-006) IN THE CITY OF FOLSOM MADE

AVAILABLE THROUGH A SACRAMENTO COUNTY CHAPTER 8 AUCTION
PROCESS

WHEREAS, on January 24,2015, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 9511

approving the Parks and Recreation Master Plan - 2015 Plan Update; and

WHEREAS, the 2015 Parks and Recreation Master Plan Update identified the Lembi
Community Park improvements to include atrail on said parcel (071-0690-006); and

WHEREAS, in January 2020, the City of Folsom received a'Notice of Proposed Public
Auction" on February 24,2020; and

WHEREAS, on June 3,2020, the City of Folsom Planning Commission made a finding
of General Plan consistency in accordance with Government Code 65402 (a); and

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom desires to purchase said property; and

WHEREAS, sufficient funds are available in the General Fund (Fund 010) reserves in
the amount of $20,325, if purchased by October 29,2020.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom
authorizes the City Manager to purchase a 3.03-aue parcel (A.P.N. 071-0690-006) in the City of
Folsom made available through a Sacramento County Chapter 8 Auction Process.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this th day of June 2020,by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):

Sarah Aquino, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 1043 I
Page I of I

Page 26

06/09/2020; Item No.3.



ATTACHIVIENT 2

1'=2W 
\

-*\N

inEEF'end*nli'erilroglDf,otell ieiaolfilainicofi?htn^rrppr,ldudrnouir{hFobisinerJbyany,userthEr*o, TheCorrptyof Sicr$mentecr,u"5
r'Ot \ta'rafll lnc- ,C{{,rSC,. a,r anrlplFtenFc,6 ol this r..sJ: F\rodrjfl .rrd lhertfcr* rJr5,6lerry.t ali tr9;,;1i1, tCt ris fihq;l gf uFe,

*
lI
a.

,r

l. ,",i . li, \ \., I 1.,'l', r

Frrrrt d-rlt- t.:r ll:{:,1

APNI: 0?106900C60000

l

:. ,,

l:
i

/ .. '''-

ROJECT SITE F
'I

I

I
t.tl

! t

{,

$,t
t..

r. '{

Page 27

06/09/2020; Item No.3.



ATTACHMENT 3

Lembl Park

Lembi Park is situated at 1302 Riley Street near the Folsom Aquatic Center and
surrounded by residential housing. Existing recreationalelements include a baseball
field, softballfields, a basketball court, a volleyball court, tennis courts and soccer fields.
Other recreational elements already developed include the nearby Aquatic Center,
benches, walking paths, gftrss areas, benches, picnic tables, a picnic pavilion, BBQ
grills, and restrooms. There is also a large parking lot adjacent to the park.

lncluded in the program developmentis Vz mile's length of trails in the park and a trail
boardwalk.

Exlstlng Recreatlonal Elements

Programmlng remaining to be developed

ffi

il t /o P

7

Page 28

06/09/2020; Item No.3.



Programmed Facilities from the 2002
Master Plan lmplementatlon Plan Update

Developed Facilities
2003 - 2013

2014 Master Plan
Recommendation

Cost

Aquatic Center Classroom, water features,
etc.1

OS Trails (.5 Mile)' $ 125,000

Trailboardwalk' $ 75,000

sub Total $ 200,000

Design, PM & Cont. (28.5o/o) $ 57,ooo

Tota $ 257,000

Lembi Gommunity Park

1. Development of the Folsom Aquatic Center is on a separate summary exhibit.

2. OS added in 2011wi new trail and wetland crossing planned.
Note: Where programming is listed but no cost is shown, indicates prior Commission direction to eliminate the
program element to reduce the scope and total cost of the park.

8

Page 29

06/09/2020; Item No.3.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 30

06/09/2020; Item No.3.



Folsom City Council
Staff Re rt

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Environmental and Water Resources Department recommends the City Council pass and
adopt Resolution No. 10460 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an
Agreement with Tesco Controls, Inc for Consulting Services for the Supervisory Control and
Data Acquisition (SCADA) System Upgrade and Maintenance Services for Water and Sewer.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The Environmental and Water Resources Department currently uses a Supervisory Control and
Data Acquisition (SCADA) system to control and communicate with remote water and
wastewater facilities throughout the City. The SCADA system transmits data from remote
locations via radio and cellular signals to receivers located at the City's Corporation Yard and
Water Treatment Plant. SCADA allows operators to monitor and control the operations of the
water and sewer systems from remote locations and collects data from remote monitoring
stations. The SCADA system also reduces the labor-hours required to operate the system,
increasing the overall efficiency of department staffing.

Additionally, the data collection monitoring and alarms within the SCADA system allow the
City to comply with regulatory requirements of both the Regional Water Quality Control Board
(RWQCB) for sewer and the State Water Resources Control Board-Division of Drinking Water

1

MEETING DATE: 61912020

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10460 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute an Agreement with Tesco Controls for
Consulting Services for the Supervisory Control and Data
Acquisition (SCADA) System Upgrade and Maintenance
Services for Water and Sewer

FROM: Environmental and Water Resources Department

Page 31

06/09/2020; Item No.4.



(DDW) for water. SCADA allows the City to increase efficiency and reduce the overall
operational costs by remotely monitoring and operating the department's facilities.

Currently, the City has two separate Wonderware Intouch Applications: one for the Water
System and one for the Sewer system. The City intends to replace the two (2) existing
Wonderware Intouch applications with one (1) unified application for both the water and sewer
systems at a single location. This will allow the City to upgrade the system hardware, improve
redundancy and security, and upgrade the system software to the latest version.

The City issued a Request for Proposals for SCADA system upgrade and maintenance and
because of their knowledge of SCADA systems and the programming requirements ofthe City,
Tesco Controls, Inc. has proven to be uniquely qualified in having the technical expertise to
provide these services. City staff recommends authorizing the City Manager to execute an

agreement with Tesco Controls, Inc. for consulting services for the SCADA system upgrade
and maintenance services for water and sewer.

POLICY / RULE

In accordance with Chapter 236 of the Folsom Municipal Code" supplies, equipment, services,
and construction with a value of $62,014 or greater shall be awarded by City Council.

ANALYSIS

As with any equipment or operations system, the City's overall SCADA system needs to be

maintained and upgraded to be compatible with the water and sewer facilities system
improvements, technology upgrades and general operational requirements. SCADA system
maintenance and upgrades will include the following services:

a Integrate new and upgraded facilities into the existing SCADA system

Purchase and install new virtualized hardware and software for the SCADA system

o

o

Program, configure and upgrade software for both water and sewer systems

Interface with Environmental and Water Resources Department engineers and
operations staff to plan, design and upgrade the new hardware and software
upgrades to have operational functionality, cyber-security and full back up
capabilities

Interface with Environmental and Water Resources Department engineers and
operations staff to coordinate and develop SCADA information to be included into
regulatory reports

a

a Provide training to Environmental and Water Resources Department staff on
SCADA equipment and software

2
Page 32

06/09/2020; Item No.4.



The water and sewer divisions operate complex treatment, pump station, tank, and monitoring
systems. These systems have complex software and components that require upgrades and
modifications periodically. These upgrades and modifications require specially trained
personnel to perform these functions. The City issued a Request for Proposals for SCADA
system upgrade and Maintenance and received 5 proposals from qualified firms. After review
of the proposals, the City proposes to utilize Tesco Controls, Inc. for these services for a not-
to-exceed amount of $315,000.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

Sufficient funds have been budgeted in the Sewer Operating Fund (530) and Water Operating
Fund (520), for FY 2019-20 for these services.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

This project is exempt from environmental review under the California Environmental Quality
Act, Section 15301 "Existing Facilities".

ATTACHMENT

Resolution No. 10460 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement
with Tesco Controls, Inc. for Consulting Services for the Supervisory Control and Data
Acquisition (SCADA) System Upgrade and Maintenance Services for Water and Sewer.

Submitted,

Marcus Yasutake, Director
ENVIRONMENTAL AND WATER RESOURCES DEPARTMENT

J
Page 33

06/09/2020; Item No.4.



RESOLUTION NO. 10460

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN
AGREEMENT WITH TESCO CONTROLS,INC. FOR CONSULTING SERVICES FOR

THE SUPERVISORY CONTROL AND DATA ACQUISITION (SCADA) SYSTEM
UPGRADE AND MAINTENANCE SERVICES FOR WATER AND SEWER

WHEREAS, the Environmental and Water Resources Department currently utilizes
Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) system to control and communicate with
remote water and wastewater facilities; and

WHEREAS, the City is required to meet specific Regional Water Quality Control Board
(RWQCB) and State Water Resources Control Board - Department of Drinking Water (DDW)
compliance requirements; and

WHEREAS, the City's overall SCADA system needs to be maintained and upgraded to be

compatible with the water and sewer facilities system improvements, technology upgrades and
general operational requirements; and

WHEREAS, Tesco Controls, Inc., by reason of their past experience and abilities for
performing these types of services, is uniquely qualified and recommended to continue to perform
the required services; and

WHEREAS, funds have been budgeted in Sewer Operating Fund (530) and Water Operating
Fund (520), for FY 2019-20; and

WHEREAS, the agreement will be in a form acceptable to the City Attorney:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom
authorizes the City Manager to execute an agreement in the amount of $315,000 with Tesco
Controls, Inc. for consulting services for the Supervisory Control And Data Acquisition (SCADA)
system upgrade and maintenance for water and sewer for a not to exceed total fee of $315,000.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 9th day of June,2020,by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

ATTEST:

Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):

Sarah Aquino, MAYOR

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10460
Page I of 1

Page 34

06/09/2020; Item No.4.



Folsom City Council
Staff rt

Staff recommends the City Council adopt Resolution No. 10461 - A Resolution Supporting
Proposed Modifications to State Transportation Fund Allocation Framework Administered by
the Sacramento Arsa Council of Govemments; authorizing and directing the City Manager or
designee to work with SACOG on its regional funding process to provide a more steamlined,
predictable and equitable approach that can be used for development of the five-year Capital
Improvement Program.

BACKGROUNI} / ISSUE

The City of Folsom is a member agency of the Sacramento Area Council of Govemments
(SACOG), which is the designated Mehopolitan Planning Organization (MPO) for the six-
county Sacramento region and is the Regional Transportation Planning Agency for Sacrarnento
County responsible for developing and implementing the long-range transportation plan. The
six-county region includes the counties of El Dorado, Placer, Sacramento, Suttel, Yolo, and
Yuba and those agencies within.

The long-range transportation plan that links land use, air quality, and transportation needs is
the Metropolitan Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategy (MTP/SCS). The
2020MTP|SCS was recently adopted by SACOG and is updated every four years.

MEETING DATE: 6/9/2020

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10461 - A Resolution Supporting Proposed
Modifications to State Transportation Fund Allocation
Framework Administered by the Sacramento Area Council of
Governments

FROM: Public Works Department

Page 35

06/09/2020; Item No.5.



SACOG develops and implements the MTP/SCS by coordinating transportation planning and
long-range land use planning efforts among the local jurisdictions and by programming
funding for transportation infrastructure in the region, These transportation funds are allocated
to the MPO generally based on population or a similar formula that uses 75% population and
25o/oroadway mileage. The federal and state funds allocated to SACOG for programing are as

follows:

o Regional Surface Transportation Program (RSTP) (by population)
r Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ) @y population)
r State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) (by 75% population/Z\Yo mileage)
o Active Transportation Program (ATP) (by population)

El Dorado and Placer counties each have a Regional Transportation Planning Agency (RTPA)
which progmms their fair share of RSTP, CMAQ, and STIP funding. Typically, these RTPAs
program most of these funds formulaically except for some select regional projects.

When SACOC was initially formed, all six counties in the SACOG region received 100 percent
of these funds on the aforementioned formulaic basis. At that time, each member agency
submitted their individual transportation plans and priorities, which did not result in a truly
regional approach to transportation planning. Further, many smaller agencies did not receive
adequate funding for larger, more costly transportation improvements. As a result, in2003 a
sub-region made up of Sacramento, Sutter, Yolo, and Yuba Counties agreed to pool their
SACOG-allocated federal and state transportation funds and agreed to have SACOG allocate
those funds through a competitive four-county process, which occurs on average every two
years. The intent of this change was to create a funding pool for larger, regionally significant
transportation projects in the MTP/SCS. It was also intended that the allocation of these funds
would balance itself out over time, so that no member agency would overly benefit to the
detriment of one or more other member agencies. This has not worked as intended to date, and
there is conoem that the competitive funding process has become inequitable and
disadvantageous to some member agencies.

The next funding round is planned for the summer or fall of 2020 and is estimated to include
$2O0million in funding. Public Works staff from several member agencies have developed a
proposal to modiff the SACOG funding approach by streamlining the application process,
providing more focus on local transportation priorities, and allocating some portion of the
transportation funds on a formulaic basis.

POLICY / RULE

The City Council has sole authority to direct the City Manager and staff to work with
external public agencies.

2

Page 36

06/09/2020; Item No.5.



ANALYSIS

Staff has worked with SACOG for a number of years to deliver federal and state-funded
transportation projects programmed through this 100% competitive process, which over time
has grown more and more complex. I'his complexity increases the demand on limited
resources, such as staff time.

As an example, in 2018 the City retained a consulting firm to prepare a grant application for
the Oak Avenue Parkway Improvement Project, which consisted of the widening of Oak
Avenue Parkway from two to four lanes between Folsom-Auburn Road and Baldwin Dam
Road, including ffaffic conhol and intersection improvements at both ends of the project, and
a separated bicycle path along the length of the project. The proposal was only for the receival
offunding for environmental clearance and design, but the project did not score high enough
in the competitive process and was therefore rejected. This was the second time that a grant
application was submitted for this project and was rejected.

The SACOG process also results in the following issues:

o Does not provide any long-term funding certainty, which makes it difficult to create
funding plans for large projects, such as the Empire Ranch Road interchange, and to
develop five-year capital improvement programs. For instance, the City may receive
partial funding for a certain project and may need to recompete for the same project
two years later, Staff has also had to break larger projects into smaller segments to
ensure they are funded, resulting in less effective project delivery, increased costs, and
the delayed completion of projects for years. The best example of this is the Folsom
segment of the Capital Southeast Connector project. The City partnered with the
Connector JPA to seek $lSmillion in SACOG grant funds in the 2015 funding round
but was only awarded $7.Smillion. I'he project received additional funding through the
SB-t gas tax, but project costs also increased, so some elements of the original design
had to be adjusted or deferred until additional funding could be identified.

o To ensure competitiveness, cities and counties must set aside local dollars as apossible
match for SACOG funding that may not materializn if a project is not selected for
funding.

Recommendations on which projeots should be funded are made by SACOG reviewer
stakeholders that may have specific a^reas of interest but no familiarity with the area,

the project, or the priorities of the oommunity being affected.

The competitive nature of the SACOG process creates division between local agencies
instead of promoting regional cooperation and collaboration to leverage SACOG and
SBI funds for larger regional projects.

o

e

3

Page 37

06/09/2020; Item No.5.



In October of 2019, Public Works staff from Sacramento County and the cities within the
County met to discuss the SACOG process and possible solutions that could be proposed.
Consensus was reached quickly, and a draft proposal was developed.

Each agency then received support from its respective city and county leadership. The proposal
was then shared with Sutter, Yolo, and Yuba Counties and the cities within those counties to
gain a broad consensus across the four-county region. While a consensus could not be reached,
a number of agencies voiced support including Yuba County, Sutter County, and the City of
Winters. During this process, local agency staff also met with SACOG staff in December 2019
and again in February 2020 to discuss local concerns and possible solutions.

As a result of these meetings and the input received, a proposal was provided to SACOG staff
at the end of April and is included as Attachment 2 to this staff report. This proposal would
shift the SACOG process from 100% competitive to 25Yo competitive/7SYo allocation. This
allocation would be based on the same formulas used for allocating these funds to SACOG.
As noted in the attachment, this would provide more certainty to local agencies, and provide
funding for regional projects while still meeting SACOG's regional goals including
compliance with the MTP/SCS and Air Quality standards.

This proposal along with other items related to the 2020 funding round were brought to the
SACOG Policy & Innovation Committee, Transportation Commiffee, and the Land lJse &
Natural Resources Committee in May. The result of these committee meetings was to push
SACOG board action from June to August. This creates the opportunity for additional
committee consideration in June and further discussion with agencies interested in this
proposal.

The City Council could elect to not authorize the resolution, and direct staff to work with
SACOG regarding streamlining regional funding and providing a more predictable and
equitable funding that can be used for development of the five-year Capital Improvement
Program. This alternative is not recornmended as it would maintain the status quo and create a
variety of challenges in planning and programing transportation projects in the Capital
Improvement Program.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

There is no direct fiscal impact associated with this action. Should these efforts prove
successful, there is the potential for more efficient programming and delivery of Capital
Projects in the Capital Improvement Program, There is also the potential for more direct control
of federal and state funds for local priorities and greater potential to leverage other federal,
state, and local funding sources.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

This project has been deemed categorically exempt from environmental review.

4

Page 38

06/09/2020; Item No.5.



ATTACHMENTS

1. Resolution No. 10461 - A Resolution Supporting Proposed Modifications to State
Transportation Fund Allocation Framework Administered by the Sacramento Area
Council of Governments

2. April 29, 2020 Proposal to Streamline and Maximize Efficiency of Federal and State

Funds Managed by SACOG

Submitted,

Dave Nugen, Public Director

5

Page 39

06/09/2020; Item No.5.



Attachment 1

Resolution No. 10461

Page 40

06/09/2020; Item No.5.



RESOLUTION NO. 10461

A RESOLUTION SUPPORTING PROPOSED MODIFICATIONS TO STATE
TRANSPORTATION FUND ALLOCATION FRAME\ryORKADMINISTERED BY THE

SACRAMENTO AREA COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom is a member agency of the Sacramento Area Council of
Governments (SACOG); and

WHEREAS, SACOG is the designated Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) for
the six-county Sacramento region and is the transportation planning agency responsible for
developing and implementing the long-range transportation plan; and

WHEREAS, the long-range transportation plan linking land use, air quality, and
transportation needs is the Metropolitan Transportation PlarlSustainable Communities Strategy
(MTP/SCS); and

WHEREAS, SACOG develops and implements the MTP/SCS by coordinating
transportation planning and long-range land use planning efforts among the local jurisdictions,
and by programming funding for transportation infrastructure in the region; and

WHEREAS, transportation funds are allocated to SACOG based on population or a

similar formula that uses 7SYo populalion and 25Yo roadway mileage; and

WHEREAS, SACOG currently programs federal and state transportation funds for
Sacramentoo Sutter, Yolo, and Yuba Counties through competitive four-county funding rounds,
which occur on average every two years; and

WHEREAS, the regional funding round competition has developed over time, and the
application process has become more complex creating additional costs to compete for federal
and state funds; and

WHEREAS, the regional funding round competition has created a lack of long-term
certainty over the Crty's Capital Improvement Program; and

WHEREAS, staff from agencies within Sacramento County have developed a proposal
for SACOG that streamlines the application process and incorporates the concept of 75Yo of the
funds being formulaically distributed and leaving25% for a competitive round.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom
hereby authorizes and directs the City Manager or designee to work with SACOG on the
regional funding process to provide a more streamlined, predictable and equitable approach that
can be used for development of the Capital lmprovement Program.

Resolution No. 10461
Page I of2

Page 41

06/09/2020; Item No.5.



PASSED AI\ID ADOPTED this 96 day of June,2020, by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):

Sarah Aquino, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

ResotutionNo. 10461
Page2 of2

Page 42

06/09/2020; Item No.5.



Attachment 2

April 29,2020 Proposal to Streamline and
Maximize Efficiency of Federal and State Funds

Managed by SACOG

Page 43

06/09/2020; Item No.5.



FOUR COUNTV SACOG MEMBER AGENCY PNOPOSAL

SA0RAM ENTO COU NTY AG ENCI ES REVISIONS (4/ 29/20)

Proposalto Streamline and Maximize Efficiency of
Federaland State Funds Managed by SACOG

SACOG, as the designated Metropolitan Planning Organization for the six counties, is required to
program the federal and state transportation funding that is allocated to each county based

primarily on population. After 18 years, most member agencies believe it is time to re-evaluate

the process that is used to distribute funding to four of the six counties (Sacramento, Yolo, Yuba,

and Sutter Counties). Before and after 2002, El Dorado and Placer Counties in the SACOG

MTP/SCS Region are given their county share of federal and state funding and allocate most of

the funding to their agencies by formula. Many COGs throughout the state and nation continue

to use this model.

Given limited local and outside transportation funds and substantialtransportation system needs

throughout the region, most agencies recognize that the time, cost, and unpredictability of a

competitive program for four of the six counties is not the most effective way to achieve MTP/SCS

goals and meet regional and local transportataon needs. Given current conditions, including air
quality conformity in lockdown and declines in local funding, the regionaltransportation funding
program managed through SACOG is an opportunity to provide economic stimulus and address

local agency funding shortfalls. A revised approach is recommended to more efficiently and

effectively program regional transportation funding, both for 2020 and for future rounds.

Goals:

Use the region's limited state, federal, and local transportation dollars as efficiently as

possible to maximize achievement of MTP/SCS goals through local agency project and

program delivery. Specifically, focus on projects that achieve the following goals:

o Achieve VMT reductions and LOS improvements by adding facilities and services

to support mode shift, shorten trips, and relieve congestion.

o Promote reduction in GHG through mode shift and new technologies while

allowing local agencies to address their unique needs

o Maintain a state of good repair
o For the upcoming 2020 funding round, fund projects that can be achieved under

air quality conformity lockdown and that help provide stimulus to local agencies

with reduced localtransportation funding and support regional economic

recovery.

Provide predictability and agility in funding, to allow for longer term planning of needed

facilities, greater leveraging of other funds, and ability to respond to changed conditions

and opportunities

1_

I

o

Page 44

06/09/2020; Item No.5.



o Regional leadership in establishing priorities for regional projects to ensure consistency

with air quality conformity and SCS goals and coordinating solutions for regional

tra nspo rtation projects and f u nd ing strategies

Local leadership in establishing priorities for local projects while ensuring consistency

with air quality conformity and SCS goals.

Maximize dollars to the region through management of federal and state funds

o Make application process for regionalfunds less costly and time-consuming

Existing Challenges:

r Lack of predictability in funding, creating uncertainty in planning and delivery of projects

beyond two to three years out

lnability to take advantage of SACOG-managed federal funds to leverage other funding

programs (e.g., SB1 programs)

Piecemealing of projects into segments, resulting in less effective project delivery,

increasing costs and delaying completion of projects for years

Maintenance and upgrading of existing infrastructure is falling further behind,

exponentially increasing future regional transportation costs for the next generation

Decisions on which local projects are funded are not made by those with the greatest

understanding of the individual projects and community being affected; instead, they

are made by other individuals with specific topical expertise but that may have no

specific familiarity with the area, project, or the needs of the community being affected

o lndividual agency's lower priority projects can be funded while its higher priority

projects go unfunded.

There are no feasible funding strategies for regional and large projects.

Much of available local transportation dollars are used for SACOG application

preparation and overmatching and adding design enhancements to projects, resulting in

difficulty for local agencies to pursue other grants, scope new projects, and to locally

fund smaller or local priority projects

Limited flexibility to adjust funding on projects to reflect new opportunities or to
address uncontrollable delays (e.g., environmental and ROW issues)

a

a

a

a

a

I

o

a

2

Page 45

06/09/2020; Item No.5.



Proposal

I Streamline the process for allocating state and federal dollars for all six counties in a

manner similar to what is already being successfully used by El Dorado and Placer

Counties in the SACOG MTP/SCS Region. Allocate funding (STlP, RSTP, CMAQ) by county

based on statewide and federal allocations to each of the six counties (adding

Sacramento, Yolo, Yuba, Sutter to existing process for Placer and El Dorado Counties).

SACOG will work with jurisdictions to establish funding priorities based on MTP/SCS

needs to guide these allocations while supporting individualjurisdictional needs.

ln each county, each local agency and special district (transit agency, Caltrans, air

district) will receive an allocation to program in the MTIP based on a formula

determined at the countywide level, which would consider at a minimum what the

agencies have historically received.

Based on a short SACOG application (two to three pages), each agency will submit its
planned projects, costs, and delivery schedule to SACOG for review for consistency with

the MTP/SCS and its overall guidelines/funding priorities, and to program for
fund/delivery year management (e.9., adjust delivery year based on financial

constraints). Applications will be reviewed bytechnical review committees and by

advisory committees to answer questions and provide feedback on potential issues and

improvements.

Strategies for smaller agencies can include swapping out federal funding for local with
larger agencies or getting larger allocations in less frequent intervals in order to make

delivery easier and more effective

Based on the MTP/SCS priorities, SACOG would define specific high-priority regional

projects by county and work with agencies on funding strategies to deliver large and

regional projects. The focus of regional projects will be to leverage outside funding (e.g.,

SB1 programs) and assist in multi-agency efforts,

SACOG would manage competitive programs for the four- or six-county region as

required by the state, for pilot programs, or to achieve special outcofnes that would not
be achieved through local programming decisions. As an overall starting assumption,

about 75o/o of regional four-county funding would be allocated by formula to all the local

agencies and special districts (e,g., transit agencies) and the remaining 25% (such as

ATP) would be competitive programs. Placer and El Dorado Counties would continue to
only have to compete for ATP and would continue receiving the rest of their funding by

formula.

I

a

t

a

3

Page 46

06/09/2020; Item No.5.



I For the 2020 round, the desire is to place 50%of the overall funding into a stimulus

program by formula; the remaining 50% of funding would be within SACOG

Consolidated Programs, with half by formula and half by competitive application to
achieve an overall rate of 75%bV formula as summarized below:

o 50% of funds for Stimulus Program by formula;

o 25o/o of funds for SACOG Consolidated Program by formula;

o 25% of funds for SACOG Consolidated Program by competition

SACOG would consolidate competitive funding programs and streamline the application

process.

SACOG would continue to manage project delivery schedules to maximize regional

spending to take advantage of August redistributions. ln addition, it would review the

types and locations of projects being constructed throughout the region and make

recommendations on adjustments needed for all six counties to better support MTP/SCS

goals

I

a

4

Page 47

06/09/2020; Item No.5.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 48

06/09/2020; Item No.5.



Folsom City Council
Staff rt

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Public Works Department recommends that the City Council pass and adopt Resolution
No. 10462 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Memorandum of
Understanding with the County of Sacramento for Commercial and Industrial Stormwater
Inspections and Enforcement Within Folsom to Comply with the Crty's National Pollutarit
Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Permit.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The City of Folsom is a member of the Sacramento Stormwater Quality Partrrership, along
with the County of Sacramento and the Cities of Sacramento, Citrus Heights, Galt, Itancho
Cordova and Elk Grove (oollectively referred to as Permittees). The parbrership exists to
develop programs and policies for compliance with waste discharge requirements (National
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System INPDES] Permit No. CAS085324 hereinafter refened
to as "Permit") issued jointly to all the Permittees by the California Regional Water Quality
Control Board (RWQCB) for municipal stormwater discharges.

City Council passed Resolution No. 7271 on February 24,2004, authorizing the City to enter
into its first S-year Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with Sacramento County
Environmental Management Division (County EMD) to provide inspection and enforcement

1

MEETING DATE: 619/2A20

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10462- A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute a Memorandum of Understanding with the
County of Sacramento for Commercial and Industrial
Stormwater Inspections and Enforcement Within Folsom to
Comply with the City's National Pollutant Discharge
Elimination System (NPDES) Permit

FROM: Public Works Department

Page 49

06/09/2020; Item No.6.



services to meet the requirements of the permit. The MOll details the responsibilities for the
inspection program, enforcement, industry notifioation, record keeping and complaint
response. All Permittees executed separate S-year agreements with County EMD to provide
the same basic service. The 2004 MOU was first renewed in 2010 and again in 2015 by
Resolution 9625. The current 2015 MOU agreement expires on June 30,2020. The Permittees
have collectively developed a new 5-year agreement (Attachment 2). County EMD and the
Permittees would like to continue its partnership by adopting the new MOU.

POLICY / RULE

City Council authorization is required to enter into an inter-agency Agreement.

ANALYSIS

Attachment K - Prescriptive Requirements of the NPDES Permit No. CAS085324 (Permit)
requires the City to inspect and ensure certain commercial/industrial facilities for compliance
with the Stormwater Ordinance. The current MOU between the City and the County EMD for
these services expires on June 30,202A. In order to avoid disruption to the program and
noncompliance with the City's Stormwater permit, it is requested that the new MOU be

adopted. The County of Sacramento will execute a new MOU with each agency under separate
agreements to authorize the same terms of agreement.

The Memorandum of lJnderstanding with the County of Sacramento for implementing the
Commercial and Industrial Stormwater Compliance Program required under the National
Pollutant Discharge Eliminate System O{PDES) Permit No. CAS085324 has been reviewed
and approved by the City Attorney, and a copy is included as Attachment 2.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

The MOU for the County program is entirely fee based and, other than continued City staff
time for coordination and oversight, it will have no financial impact to the City. The County
charges the private businesses within our jurisdiction an annual inspection fee to be in the
inspection program.

If the MOU is not approved, the City would have to spend significant additional staff time
conducting the inspections and enforcement actions, or else hire a consultant to perform the
activities.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

The MOU is required to comply with the provisions of the Municipal Stormwater Permit.
Failure to execute the MOU may subject the City of Folsom to regulatory action.

2

Page 50

06/09/2020; Item No.6.



The MOU does not call for the implementation of specific projects and requires only an

inspection program assigning roles and responsibilities. Thereforeo the MOU is not subject to
environmental review.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Resolution No. 10462 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a
Memorandum of Understanding with the County of Sacramento for Commercial
and Industrial Stormwater Inspections and Enforcement Within Folsom to Comply
with the City's National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Permit

2. Memorandum of Understanding with the County of Sacramento for Commercial
and Industrial Stormwater Inspections and Enforcement within Folsom to Comply
with the City's National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Permit

Submitted,

Dave Nugen, LIC DIRECTOR

3

Page 51

06/09/2020; Item No.6.



Attachment 1

Resolution No. 10462

Page 52

06/09/2020; Item No.6.



RESOLUTION NO. 10462

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A
MEMORANDUM OT UNDERSTANDING WITH TIIE COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO FOR

COMMERCIAL AND INDUSTRIAL STORMWATER INSPECTIONS AI\D
ENFORCEMENT WITHIN FOLSOM TO COMPLY WITH THE CITY'S NATIONAL

POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM (NPDES) PERMIT

WHEREAS, On August I l, 2015, the County and the City entered into a S-year agreement

for enforcement of regulatory compliance with National Pollutant Discharge System Permit
(hereinafter referred to as the "Agreement"); and

WHEREAS, as stated therein, the Agreement expires June 30, 2020; and

WHEREAS, The County and the City developed a new Agreement with terms and provisions

intended to update those sot fonh in the present Agreement; and

WHEREAS, Attachment K - Prescriptive Requirements of the National Pollutant Discharge

Elimination System (NPDES) Permit No. CAS085324 (Permit) requires the City to inspectand ensure

certain commercial/industrial facilities for compliance with the Stormwater Ordinance; and

WHEREAS, to provide a consistent program across the county, lessen the burden to local

businesses affected, and reduce administrative costs, Sacramento County agrees to implement the

required compliance program for all permitted agencies; and

WIIEREAS, the agreement will be in a form acceptable to the City Attomey:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom

authorizes the City Manager to ex€cute a Memorandum of Understanding with the County of
Sacramento for Commeroial and Industrial Stormwater Inspections and Enforcement within Folsom to
comply with the City's National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Permit.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 9th day of June 2020,by the following roll-callvote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

ATTEST:

Council Membe(s):
Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):

Sarah Aquino, MAYOR

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10462
Page I of 1

Page 53

06/09/2020; Item No.6.



Attachment2

Memorandum of Understanding with the County
of Sacramento for Commercial and Industrial

Stormwater Inspections and Enforcement within
Folsom to Comply with the City's National
Pollutant Discharge Elimination Systems

(NPDES) Permit

Page 54

06/09/2020; Item No.6.



COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO AGREEMENT NO. #

AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into as of this 

- 
day of

2020, bEIWCCN thE COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT
DEPARTMENT, a political subdivision of the State of California (hereinafter referred to as
"COUNTY"), and the CITY OF FOLSOM, a charter municipal corporation (hereinafter
referred to as "C!TY").

RECITALS

WHEREAS, in 1987 Congress amended Section 402 of the Federal Clean Water
Act to require the United States Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA") to promulgate
regulations for permits for stormwater discharges; and

WHEREAS, the regulations are designed to control pollutants associated with
stormwater discharges through the use of the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination
System ("NPDES) permit system which allows the lawful discharge of stormwater into the
waters of the United States; and

WHEREAS, the EPA has delegated to the State of Galifornia the authority to issue
NPDES permits; and

WHEREAS, the California Regional Water Quality Control Board, Central Valley
Region ("Regional Board") has been charged by the California State Water Resources
Control Board with the responsibility to issue NPDES permits within the Central Valley
Region; and

WHEREAS, on June 23,2016, the Regional Board adopted a NPDES stormwater
permit No. CAS0085324, Order No. R5-2016-0040, (hereinafter referred to as "Permit"),
and the County of Sacramento and the Cities of Citrus Heights, Elk Grove, Folsom, Galt,
Rancho Cordova and Sacramento (PERMITTEES) obtained coverage under the Permit
on November 23,2016 through receipt of the Notice of Applicability ; and

WHEREAS, references in this AGREEMENT to the Permit shall be construed as
including applicable sections of the Stormwater Quality lmprovement Plan, (SQIP), and
any other valid order or instrument issued by the Regional Board regarding
implementation of the Permit; and

WHEREAS, PERMITTEES must comply with the Permit, its successor Permit, and
other stormwater cornpliance documents subject to modification by the Regional Board;
and

WHEREAS, CITY is responsible for overseeing regulatory compliance with the
Permit for areas within its jurisdiction; and

WHEREAS, CITY has adopted a Stormwater Ordinance set forth in Chapter 8.70
of the Folsom Municipal Code ("Stormwater Ordinance") to prohibit the discharge of
pollutants to CITY's municipal stormwater conveyance system; and

Page I of14

Page 55

06/09/2020; Item No.6.



WHEREAS, the Regional Commercial/lndustrial Program section of the SQIP
includes the requirement to track, inspect and ensure compliance with the Stormwater
Ordinance at industrial and commercialfacilities; and

WHEREAS, COUNTY, as both the State designated Certified Unified Program
Agency (CUPA) and Environmental Health Agency for Sacramento County, is currently
tracking, conducting inspections and othenrise regulating, pursuant to Division 20,
Chapter 6.1 1, and Division 104, Part 7 of the Health and Safety Code, the majority of the
commercial and industrial facilities that are subject to compliance with the Stormwater
Ordinance; and

WHEREAS, CITY has determined that the cost to track, inspect and ensure
stormwater compliance at commercial and industrial facilities is such that it would be more
economical, feasible, and appropriate to utilize the services of COUNTY to fulfill the
commercial/industrial stormwater program requirements of the Permit; and

WHEREAS, Article 11, section 8, of the Califomia Constitution provides that a
county may agree with a city within its borders to perform specified municipalfunctions, if
provided by their respective charters, and the City and County Charters allow the Gity
Council and the Board of Supervisors, respectively, to enter into agreements for the
performance of municipal functions by COUNTY; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Folsom Municipal Code Chapter 8.70, STORMWATER
MANAGEMENT AND DISCHARGE CONTROL, Section 8.70.320, Commercial and
lndustrial facility inspections, and Section 8.70.400, Enforcement, CITY may enter into
agreements with COUNTY and its authorized officials and employees to administer and
enforce the CITY Stormwater Ordinance with respect to commercial and industrialfacilities
in the CITY by including these facilities in COUNTY's commercial and industrial
compliance program; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Folsom Municipal Code Section 8.70.400 (C), if CITY and
COUNTY enter into such an agreement, any administrative or civil enforcement by
COUNTY of the CITY Stormwater Ordinance with respect to such commercial and
industrial facilities shall be governed by and conducted pursuant to the COUNTY's own
stormwater ordinance; and

WHEREAS, COUNW and CITY desire to enter into the terms and conditions set
forth herein,

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises hereinafter set forth,
the parties hereto agree as follows:

r. scoPE oF sERvtcEs

COUNTY shall provide services in the amount, type, and manner described in
Exhibit'4", which is attached hereto and incorporated herein.

CITY shall provide services in the amount, type, and manner described in Exhibit
"8", which is attached hereto and incorporated herein.

II. GOST SHARE

Page 2 of 14

Page 56

06/09/2020; Item No.6.



Each party shall be responsible for the costs of implementing their respective
services as described in Exhibits "A" and "B."

III. TERM

This Agreement shall be effeclive and commence as of the date first written above
and shall end on June 30, 2025, unless soonerterminated as provided herein.

IV. NOTICE

Any notice, demand, request, consent, or approval that either party hereto may or
is required to give the other pursuant to this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be
either personally delivered or sent by certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed
as follows:

TO COUNTY TO CITY

Marie Woodin, Director
Sacramento of County
Environmental Management Department
10590 Armstrong Avenue
Sacramento, CA 95655

Dave Nugen, Director
Department of Public Works
City of Folsom
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA 95630

Either party may change the address to which subsequent notice and/or other
communications can be sent by giving written notice designating a change of address to
the other party, which shall be effective upon receipt. Notice shall be deemed effective on
the date of receipt.

V. COTUPLIANCE WITH LAWS

CITY and COUNTY and their respective officers and employees shall observe and
comply with all applicable Federal, State, County and City laws, regulations and
ordinances, including but not limited to laws, regulations and ordinances governing conflict
of interest.

VI. EMPLOYMENT STATUS OF PERSONNEL

1. Any persons employed by COUNTY for the performance of services pursuant
to this Agreement shall remain employees of COUNTY, shall at all times be
under the direction and control of COUNTY, and. shall not be considered
employees of CITY. All persons employed by COUNTY to perform services
pursuant to this Agreement shall be entitled solely to the rights and privileges
afforded to COUNTY employees and shall not be entitled, as a result of
providing services hereunder, to any additional rights or privileges that may be
afforded to CITY employees.

2. For the purpose of performing the services provided for in this Agreement, and
for the purpose of giving official status to the performance thereof where
necessary, every COUNW officer and employee engaged in the performance
of any service hereunder shall be deemed to be an agent of the CITY while
performing such services for CITY, provided that such services are within the
scope of this Agreement, are purely municipal functions and are performed as

Page 3 of14

Page 57

06/09/2020; Item No.6.



authorized by the Folsom Municipal Code. Notwithstanding the agency
relationship established by this subsection, the CITY shall not be liable for any
act or omission of any COUNTY officer or employee.

3. CITY shall not be liable for the payment of any salaries, wages, compensation
or other benefits to any COUNTY employee performing services pursuant to
this Agreement, or for cornpensation or indemnity to any COUNTY employee
for injury or sickness arising out of his or her employment with the COUNTY
and providing services pursuant to this Agreement.

4. COUNTY hereby indemnifies and holds CITY harmless from any and all claims
that may be made against CITY based on any contention by any third party
that an employer-employee relationship exists by reason of this Agreement.

VII. SHARE OF LIABILITIES

Notwithstanding any provision hereof to the contrary, if the Regional Board or other
regulatory agency imposes penalties on the CITY, or any third party files a lawsuit against
the CITY, based on any violation of the Permit by CITY, and such violation is related to
any activities performed by either party under this Agreement, each party shall be
responsible for the costs of such penalties or third party lawsuits to the extent that such
penalties or lawsuits arise from activities performed or required to be performed by that
party, its otficers, directors, agents, employees, and volunteers, underthisAgreement.

VIII. INDEMNIFICATION

CITY shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless COUNTY, its Board of
Supervisors, offi@rs, directors, agents, employees and volunteers from and against all
demands, claims, actions, liabilities, losses, damages, and costs, including reasonable
attorney's fees, arising out of or resulting from the performance of the Agreement, caused
in whole or in part by the negligent or intentional acts or omissions of CITY officers,
directors, agents, and employees (including its volunteers and students).

COUNTY shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless CITY, its City Council,
officers, directors, agents, employees, and volunteers from and against all demands,
claims, actions, liabilities, losses, damages and costs, including reasonable attorneys'
fees, arising out of or resulting from the performance of the Agreement, caused in whole
or in part by the negligent or intentional acts or omissions of COUNTY's Board of
Supervisors, officers, directors, agents, and employees (including its volunteers and
students).

It is the intention of COUNTY and CITY that the provisions of this SECTION be
interpreted to impose on each party responsibility to the other for the acls and omissions
of their respective officers, directors, agents, employees, volunteers and students,
COUNTY's Board of Supervisors, and CITY's City Council. lt is also the intention of
COUNTY and CITY that, where comparative fault is determined to have been contributory,
principles of comparative fault will be followed and each party shall bear the proportionate
cost of any damage attributable to the fault of that party, its officers, directors, agents,
employees, volunteers and students, COUNTYS Board of Supervisors and CITY's City
Council.

IX. SUBCONTRACTS AND ASSIGNMENT

Page 4 of l4

Page 58

06/09/2020; Item No.6.



1, Any subcontracting will be subject to all applicable provisions of this Agreement.
Subcontracting services delivered under this Agreement shall not in any way
relieve COUNTY of any duty or responsibility under this Agreement and
COUNTY shall remain primarily obligated for the performance of all services,

2. This Agreement is not assignable by COUNTY in whole or in part, without the
prior written consent of CITY.

X. AMENDMENT AND WAIVER

Except as provided herein, no alteration, amendment, variation, or waiver of the
terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing and signed by both parties.
Waiver by either party of any default, breach or condition precedent shall not be construed
as a waiver of any other default, breach or condition precedent, or any other right
hereunder.

XI. INTERPRETATION

This Agreement shall be deemed to have been prepared equally by both of the
parties, and the Agreement and its individual provisions shall not be construed or
interpreted more favorably for one party on the basis that the other party prepared it.

XII. TERMINATION

Either party may terminate this Agreement upon one hundred and eighty (180)
days written notice to the other party. Notice shall be deemed served on the date of
mailing.

XIII. PRIOR AGREEMENTS

This Agreement constitutes the entire contract between COUNTY and CITY
regarding the subject matter of this Agreement. Any prior agreements, whether oral or
written, between COUNTY and CITY regarding the subject matter of this Agreement are
hereby terminated effective immediately upon full execution of this Agreement.

XIV. DUPLICATECOUNTERPARTS

This Agreement may be executed in duplicate counterparts. The Agreement shall
be deemed executed when it has been signed by both parties.

Page 5 of l4

Page 59

06/09/2020; Item No.6.



lN WTNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be duly
executed as of the day and year first written above.

COUNTY OF SACRAIUIENTO, a politlcal subdivislon of the State of Callfornla

By:

Date

Marie Woodin, Director
Environmental Management Department

Reviewed and approved by County Counsel:

Deputy County Counsel

COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO AGREEMENT

Page 6 of 14

Page 60

06/09/2020; Item No.6.



GITY OF FOLSOIUI

a charter municipalcorporation of the 9trte of California

By:

Elaine Andersen, City Manager

Attest:

Date

Date

Christa Freemantle, City Clerk

Approved as to form:

Steven Wang, City Attorney

Page 7 of 14

Page 61

06/09/2020; Item No.6.



EXHIBIT A to Agreement
between the COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO,
hereafter referred to as "GOUNTY," and

the CITY OF FOLSOM, hereafter referred to as "CITY'

l. scoPE oF sERvtcEs

COUNTY DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES

COUNTY will work within a cooperative relationship with CITY and provide the following
services:

1. Administer and enforce CITY's Stormwater Ordinance with respect to
commercial and industrial facilities within the GITY.

A. COUNTY will administer and enforce CITY's Stormwater Ordinance with
respect to commercial and industrialfacilities within the incorporated CITY
area, to the extent that COUNTY administration and enforcement is
authorized by the Stormwater Ordinance or any amendments thereto adopted
by the Folsom City Council.

2. Provide inspections at commercial and industrialfacilities within the
incorporated CITY area as requircd by the Permit and the current California
RegionalWater Quality Control Board Order in effect during the contract period
consistent with applicable provisions of the Stormwater Ordinance.

A. COUNTY will complete a stormwater compliance inspection at each
eligible commercial and industrial facility at least once every three
years.

B. As necessary to comply with provisions of the Permit, categories
may be proposed by the City for addition to or deletion from the
Commercial and lndustrial Stormwater Compliance Program
(crscP).

C. COUNTY will, in coordination with CITY, maintain and update
inspection form(s) to be used by COUNTY personnel.

D. COUNTY will maintain and update the required area survey activities
to ensure that new facilities are incorporated into the stormwater
inspection and enforcement program and willprovide, at a minimum,
annual updates of database.

E. COUNTY will distribute at the time of inspection any educational
materials provided by CITY for such distribution.

F, As necessary to comply with provisions of the permit, at the request
of CITY, COUNTY will incorporate procedures to evaluate mitigation
measures for target pollutant and/or priority water quality constituent

Page I of 14

Page 62

06/09/2020; Item No.6.



sources at commercial and industrial facilities that are identified by
ClTY. lnspection procedures willbe designed to provide reasonable
assurance that pollutant sources and their associated mitigation
measures are adequately managed to reduce pollutant discharge,
while making efforts to minimize the amount of additional time and
resources needed to do so, by coordinating such procedures with
existing inspection procedures.

3. Provide follow-up inspection and enforcement actions consistent with the
requirements of the Permit and applicable provisions of the Stormwater
Ordinance.

A. ln coordination with CITY, COUNTY will update follow-up inspection protocols
and a progressive enforcement policy document for submittalto the Regional
Board as part of the Stormwater Quality lmprovernent Plan (SOIP).

B. COUNTY will provide enforcement assistance, as requested, by the Regional
Board.

4. Provide a funding mechanism for commercialand industrial facility stormwater
compliance lnspection prog ram.

A. COUNTY will quantify necessary COUNTY resources required to achieve
compliance with the Permit as it applies to inspection, enforcement, and other
related activities for commercial and industrial facilities, as agreed to in this
Agreement.

B. COUNTY will develop and present to the COUNTY Board of Supervisors a
proposed ordinance that authorizes COUNTY to recover program costs
resulting from the expenditure of resources required for program
implementation. Such an ordinance will include a fee schedule detailing
annualfees for allfacilities included in the commercial and industrial
stormwater compliance program.

5. Provide support for presentations before the Folsom City Gounciland other
groups or lndividuals.

lf requested, COUNTY will assist in the presentation of stormwater related issues
before the City Council and any other groups or individuals.

6. Provide Adequate lndustry Notification.

COUNTY, along with CITY, will conduct workshops and other outreach efforts to
inform the regulated community of pending fee changes, significant compliance
issues, and changes to program.

Page 9 of 14

Page 63

06/09/2020; Item No.6.



7. Provide for additional staff and training.

A. COUNTY will review current level of staffing and will develop a work plan
documenting additional staff required for the commercial and industrial
stormwater compliance program implementation.

B. COUNTY will arrange for and secure staff training as needed or as requested
by CITY.

8. Maintain adequate record-keeping and notification system.

A. COUNTY will review and update recordkeeping and notification requirements
required by the Permit and incorporate these requirements into its existing
record keeping and outside agency reporting protocols and shall provide such
records upon request to CITY.

B. COUNTY will make additions and/or adjustments to its existing database to
comply with data management requirements contained in Permit.

C. County will maintain CISCP records for a minimum of five (5) years

9. Appointment of a Senior Level Manager as liaison to GITY for coordination with
the commercial and industrial stormwater compliance program.

COUNTY will designate a senior level position to oversee all stormwater program
activities immediately upon signing of the Agreement who shall act as the
primary liaison with CITY. CITY shall be immediately notified of this contact
person.

10. Provide for complaint response.

A. COUNTY will maintain and update as needed the methodology that outlines
how complaints should be categorized and the appropriate level of response.
required as to complaints for those industries within COUNTY's inspection
jurisdiction.

B. COUNTY, along with CITY, willwork directly with the Regional Board to
develop and modify this proposed methodology, to ensure Permit
compliance.

C. Respond to complaints received regarding facilities not currently
inventoried as a CISCP facility, but for which there is credible
information indicating a reasonable likelihood that it is a CISCP facility.
Based on its investigation of the facility, COUNTY will determine
whether or not it is a CISCP facility, COUNTY will be responsible for
investigation and enforcement of complaints at facilities it determines
to be CISCP facilities, and will refer complaints regarding non-CISCP
facilities to CITY. Referrals to CITY of non-CISCP facility discharges
will be provided within one business day to the extent practicable.

Page l0 of14

Page 64

06/09/2020; Item No.6.



11. Provide for reporting and documentation.

Not later than August 31 of each year, COUNTY will provide CITY any inspection,
enforcement, complaint data or documentation needed by CITY to achieve
compliance with reporting requirements contained in the Permit. This will include
at a minimum:

. Number of businesses/facilities inspected;

. Number of enforcement actions taken, including the amount of fines or
monies assessed and collected;

. Number of complaints referred to COUNTY by the Regional Board;

. Total number of complaint responses by COUNTY;

. Enforcement assistance provided to the Regional Board;

. lnspection or complaint response records for specific facilities requested by
CITY on an as-needed basis.

. Program effectiveness evaluation data,

12. Provide for progress evaluation.

A. COUNTY and CITY shall meet on a quarterly basis for program updates and
coordination purposes. COUNTY and CITY will meet semi-annually to
evaluate program effectiveness.

B. COUNTY and CITY will develop methodology for conducting CISCP program
effectiveness evaluations to be completed by the COUNTY and reported as a
part of item 11 above.

C. As with its other regulatory programs, COUNW will prepare required records
or documentation relating to the stormwater program for the purpose of a
financial review or analysis by CITY and COUNW Auditor(s).

13. Mitigation of Pollutant Sources

A. lf COUNTY discovers during an inspection or in response to a complaint
that pollutants from a CISCP facility pose an imminent threat of entering
the City's storm drain system or natural surface water, and causing an

exceedance of a receiving water limitation, COUNTY will take reasonable
action to ensure that timely measures are taken to mitigate the pollutant

source. COUNTY will either:

i. Ensure that the responsible party has acted to effectively mitigate
the pollutant source; or

Page l1 of l4

Page 65

06/09/2020; Item No.6.



ii. Promptly notify the appropriate agencies that have the authorlty
to abate the discharge in lieu of the responsible party.

B. COUNTY willestabligh, maintain, and provide its staffwith proper
procedures and a current list of contacts for rnaking appropriate
notifications to other agencies for timely pollutant mitigation.

C. COUNTY will not be financially responsible for pollutant mitigation.

Page 12 of 14

Page 66

06/09/2020; Item No.6.



EXHIBIT B to Agreement
between the COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO,
hereafter referred to as "GOUNTY," and

the CITY OF FOLSOM, hereafter referred to as "GlTy'

I. CITY DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES

Consistent with applicable provisions of the Folsom City Charter and Municipal Code,
CITY will work within a cooperative relationship with COUNTY and provide the following
services:

1. Assist in the specification of the commercial and industrial facilities to be
inspected, as defined by Permit.

CITY will work with COUNTY to continue to maintain and update an inclusive
inventory of commercial and industrial facilities that are subject to inspections,
enforcement, and other associated activities, as defined by the permit.

2. Provide support for presentations before COUNTY Board of Supervisors and
other groups or individuals.

lf requested by COUNTY, CITY will assist in the presentation of stormwater related
issues before COUNTY Board of Superuisors and any other groups or individuals.

3. Modification of Local Stormwater Ordinance.

lf necessary, clrY staff will amend or modify and present to the city council
proposed amendments to CITY's existing Stormwater Ordinance to ensure ongoing
authorization is provided to COUNTY to implement the stormwater compliance
prog ram for com mercial and industrial facilities consistently County-wide.

4. Provide Adequate lndustry Notification.

CITY will continue to maintain and update industry notification and educational
materials and, when requested by the couNTY, will participate with couNTy in
workshops and other outreach efforts to inform the regulated community of pending
fees and significant compliance issues and changes to the compliance program.

5. Assist in staff training.

lf requested by COUNTY, CITY will provide assistance in developing staff training
modules and materials. CITY will also assisi, if requested, in the development of a
work plan documenting additional staff required for the implementation of the
commercial and industrial stormwater compliance program.

Page 13 of14

Page 67

06/09/2020; Item No.6.



6. Appointment of a Senior Level Manager, or a Senior Level Manager's
designated representatlve, as llalson to GOUNTY for coordination with the
commercial and industrial stormwater compliance progtem.

CITY will appoint a senior level manager or identify a senior level manager designee
to oversee the commercial and industrialfacility stormwater program activities and to
act as the primary liaison with COUNTY.

7. Provide for complaint response.

CITY will be responsible for complaint response for those industries in the CITY that
are not specified by the Permit or the Regional Board to be included in the
com mercial and industrial inspection program.

8. Reporting and documentation requirements.

CITY willwork with COUNTY to develop specific report format(s) including data
elements needed to comply with reporting requirements contained in the Permit.

9. Other Additional Services.

CITY may develop and provide to COUNW educational outreach materials to be
distributed during commercial and industrial inspections.

Page 14 of14

Page 68

06/09/2020; Item No.6.



_b'&Lg$I+r
o tti 4t

orlrraatr'.! ai rll!at

Folsom City Council
Staff Re ft

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

Move to Adopt Resolution No. 10463 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to
Execute an Agreement with Sacramento Housing and Redevelopment Agency for Continued
Participation in the Community Development Block Program from January 1,2021to
December 31,2023.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The City of Folsom currently has a Community Development Block Grant (CDBG)
cooperation agreement with the Sacramento Housing and Redevelopment Agency (SHRA).
This agreement authorizes SHRA to assist the City of Folsom with essential community
development and housing assistance activities and to approve eligible programs and/or
projects. In addition, this agreement allows the City of Folsom to participate in the HOME
Investment Partnership Program (HOME) and Emergency Solutions Grant Program (ESG).
Currently, the City of Folsom uses CDBG funds for the Seniors Helping Seniors Home
Repair Program and for the City's proportional contribution to the regional Renter's Helpline
contract.

The current cooperation agreement will expire December 31,2020. As such, continued
participation in the SHRA administered CDBG, HOME and ESG funds requires the City to

1

MEETING DATE: 61912020

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10463 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute an Agreement with Sacramento Housing
and Redevelopment Agency for Continued Participation in the
Community Development Block Program from January 1,2021
to December 31,2023

FROM: Community Development Department

Page 69

06/09/2020; Item No.7.



renew the Cooperation Agreement for years202l,2022 and2023. Renewal of this
Agreement will provide approximately $165,000 per year of CDBG funds for the City's
Seniors Helping Seniors Home Repair Program, the Renter's Helpline contract and other
eligible programs and/or projects.

POLICY / RULE

Participation in the Sacramento Housing and Redevelopment Agency's cooperation
agreement requires City Council authorization.

ANALYSIS

In1987, the City of Folsom, as a subrecipient of SHRA, applied for CDBG funds to be used
for affordable housing rehabilitation loan programs and ADA upgrades. Through the years
these funds have enabled the City to provide ADA upgrades and to provide over 200
rehabilitation loans to low-income residents. In addition, since 2012 the City has used
CDBG funds for the Seniors Helping Seniors Program. The City of Folsom Seniors Helping
Seniors Program provides Minor Repair Grants (up to $2,500.00 per year) and Housing
Rehabilitation Major Repair Grants (up to $7,500.00 per recipient) to repair a limited number
of serious health and safety hazards in owner-occupied senior housing units. Since July of
2012, approximately $1,200,000 of CDBG funds have been utilized to assist over 243 senior
households. There is no cost to the City to continue its agreement with SHRA.

F'INANCIAL IMPACT

Financial support for the Seniors Helping Seniors Home Repair Program is funded with
Community Development Block Grant funds and the City's Housing Trust Fund. This
program's associated activities do not impact the General Fund and will not impact the City's
financial forecast.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

The project is categorically exempt from environmental review under Section 15061(b)(3) of
the CEQA Guidelines (Review for Exemption)

ATTACHMENTS

Resolution No. 10463 - A Resolution Authorizingthe City Manager to Execute an
Agreement with Sacramento Housing and Redevelopment Agency for Continued
Participation in the Community Development Block Program from January 1,2021to
December 3I,2023.

2Page 70

06/09/2020; Item No.7.



Submitted,

Pam Johns, Community Development Director

aJ
Page 71

06/09/2020; Item No.7.



RESOLUTION NO. 10463

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT
WITH SACRAMENTO HOUSING AND REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY FOR CONTINUED
PARTICIPATION IN THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM

FROM JANUARY 1,2021TO DECEMBER 3102023

WHEREAS' the City of Folsom remains committed to ensuring adequate and affordable
housing for households in the City of Folsom; and

WHEREAS, there is a need in the City of Folsom to continue to provide financial assistance for
home repairs to low-income seniors; and

WHEREAS, execution of the cooperation agreement between the City and the Sacramento
Housing and Redevelopment Agency will provide financial assistance to low-income seniors in the City
of Folsom and allow participation in other eligible projects and programs (such as the Renter's Helpline)
with no fiscal impact to the City; and

WHEREAS, cooperation with the Sacramento Housing and Redevelopment Agency on the
CDBG Program contributes to the City of Folsom2014-2021 Housing Element goal of providing a
range of housing services for Folsom residents with special needs, including seniors and persons with
disabilities;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom that the
City Manager is authorized to execute an agreement with Sacramento Housing and Redevelopment
Agency, in a form approved by the City Attorney, for continued participation in the Community
Development Block Grant Program from January 1,2021 to December 3 1, 2023.

PASSED AND ADOPTED on this 9th day of June 2020, by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN

Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):

Sarah Aquino, MAYOR
ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10463
Page I of I

Page 72

06/09/2020; Item No.7.



Folsom City Council
Staff Re ort

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Environmental and Water Resources Department recommends the City Council pass and
adopt Resolution No. 10464 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Seek Grant Funds
from the United States Bureau of Reclamation for a WateTSMART Drought Response Program
Drought Resiliency Proj ect.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The United States Department of the Interior's WateTSMART (Sustain and Manage America's
Resources for Tomorrow) Programprovides a framework for Federal leadership and assistance
to stretch and secure water supplies for future generations in support of the Department's
priorities. Through WaterSMART, the Bureau of Reclamation (Reclamation) leverages
Federal and non-Federal funding to work cooperatively with states, tribes, and local entities as

they plan for and implement actions to increase water supply reliability through investments
in existing infrastructure and attention to local water conflicts. Reclamation issued Funding
Opportunity Announcement (FOA) No. BOR-DO-20-F002 to make funding available for
drought resiliency proj ects.

The WateTSMART Drought Response Program supports a proactive approach to drought by
providing financial assistance to water managers to develop and update comprehensive drought
plans (Drought Contingency Planning) and implement projects that will build long-term
resilience to drought (Drought Resiliency Projects). This FOA supports Drought Resiliency

I

MEETING DATE: 61912020

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10464 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Seek Grant Funds from the United States Bureau of
Reclamation for a WateTSMART Drought Response Program
Drought Resiliency Proj ect

FROM: Environmental and Water Resources Department

Page 73

06/09/2020; Item No.8.



Projects that will build long-term resilience to drought and reduce the need for emergency

response actions. The objective of this FOA is to invite states, tribes, irrigation districts, water
districts, and other organizations with water or power delivery authority to leverage their
money and resources by cost sharing with Reclamation on Drought Resiliency Projects that
will increase the reliability of water supplies; improve water management; and provide benefits
for fish, wildlife, and the environment to mitigate impacts caused by drought.

POLICY / RULE

The City of Folsom's financial policy requires that the City Council approve grant applications
that require an ongoing commitment of resources or staff. The proposed projects would require
ongoing operations and maintenance currently provided by existing staffing resources. No
additional staff or financial resources are required for the projects included within the grant
application.

ANALYSIS

During the2013-2016 drought, the City collaborated with Regional Water Purveyors through
the Regional Water Authority (RWA) to develop a Regional Water Reliability Plan (RWRP)
and a Regional Drought Contingency Plan (RDCP). The RDCP was a regional planning effort
partially funded by Reclamation through its WateTSMART Drought Response Program. The
City of Folsom was one of five partner agencies that helped develop the RDCP. Included in
the analysis are water supply vulnerabilities (low reservoir storage and Central Valley Project
allocation shortages) and potential mitigation actions (interties, wells, and conjunctive use).

Reclamation will provide funding for projects that build long-term resilience to drought and
reduce the need for emergency response actions through this Drought Resiliency Projects
Grants FOA. Drought resiliency can be defined as the capacity of a community to cope with
and respond to drought. Under this FOA, Reclamation will prioritize projects supported by an

existing drought planning effort and fund projects that will build resiliency to drought by:
o Increasing the reliability of water supplies.
o Improving water management.
o Providing benefits for fish and wildlife and the environment.

Under the FOA, there are existing and proposed Capital Improvement Projects (CIP) within
the Environmental and Water Resources Department that improve the City's resiliency to
future drought conditions. One project is included in the Fiscal Year 2019-20 CIP budget, one
project is included in the Fiscal Year 2020-2I CIP budget and one project would need to be

appropriated. Each project is described in more detail below.

Ashland Water Rehabilitation Proiect No. l, Fiscal Year 2019-20

This project involves rehabilitating 1,800 lineal feet of existing 18-inch and 2l-inch waterline
through a combination of both open-cut and trenchless technologies. This section of pipe also
serves as an intertie between the City and San Juan Water District. In addition, this project also

2Page 74

06/09/2020; Item No.8.



includes SCADA upgrades to the existing Rainbow Bridge pressure reducing station, as well
as upgrades to other water facilities such as valves, blow-offs and air relief valves. This project
meets Reclamation's criteria of increasing the reliability of water supplies through
infrastructure improvements.

I4/ater Treatment Plant Backwash and Recycled Water Capacity Project, Fiscal Year
2020-2 I

This project involves the replacement and upsizing of the City's water treatment plant (WTP)
reclaimed backwash water pumps and pipeline. The Environmental Protection Agency allows
water agencies to reuse up to 10% of the water used for backwashing based on the WTP design
capacity (50 million gallons per day). Backwashing is the process used to clean the filters at
the WTP. Currently, the City can only reuse 4o/o of backwash water capacity due to the existing
pumps and piping, which have limited capacity. Only being able to reuse 4%o of the water limits
the City's ability to backwashing efficiently. Additionally, increasing the recycled water
capacily greatly reduces the City's risk for the potential to overflow the recycled backwash
pond, which would flow into the local storm drain system. This project meets Reclamation's
criteria of increasing the reliability of water supplies through infrastructure improvements.

Empire Ranch Non-Potable Water Well

One option to address these shortages is through the development of a supplemental
groundwater resource either within the City or elsewhere. The City received Prop 84 Local
Groundwater Assistance Fund Grant in April 2014 from the Department of Water Resources.
The purpose of this study was to implement some recommendations from earlier groundwater
studies and expand the understanding and available data for the groundwater resource located
in northeastern Folsom. The City has continued to increase the understanding of their
groundwater resource that could be a valuable supplemental supply in the City's overall
integrated water supply system. The groundwater resource could provide non-potable water to
augment the treated surface water consumed by the City of Folsom's non-potable/recycled
water "purple pipe."

The City developed the Humbug Well in August 2015, across the street from the Empire Ranch
Golf Course. Typically, during the months of April through September in a given calendar
year, the Empire Ranch Golf Course will receive treated water for golf course inigation
purposes. In the last ten years, this amount has averaged 90 acre-feet per year. The remaining
water supply for the golf course is provided by private wells located on golf course property.
In an effort to supplement the need for treated water to irrigate the golf course, the installation
of a new well and the associated piping could provide groundwater in lieu of surface water.

Approximately 1,100 lineal feet of six or eight inch pipe would convey the groundwater from
the pump to the existing non-potable purple pipe or to the non-potable pipeline connected to
the golf course. This project could potentially be Phase 1 of a two-phase project. A second
location, the East Natoma well, will be monitored to see if there are any water level impacts to
this proposed well location. If there are not any water levels impacts due to the installation and

JPage 75

06/09/2020; Item No.8.



operation of the Humbug Well, the City could proceed to a phase 2 artd the installation of a
well at this location, which is right behind Mexquite on East Natoma. This project meets
Reclamation's criteria of constructing wells to provide back-up water supplies during times of
drought.

F'ISCAL IMPACT

To fund the proposed projects, is estimated at an overall cost of $2,270,000, the City desires
to apply for a grant for up to $750,000 from Reclamation. The remaining project costs

$1,520,000, will be funded from the Water Impact Fund (Fund 456) and the Water Operating
Fund (Fund 520). The expected award date for the grant is late 2020 or early 202I based on
the information provided in the FOA and projects should be completed by September 2023.
Proposed project costs are included in the Fiscal Year 2019-20 Capital Improvement Plan
budget and in the Fiscal Year 2020-21 Capital Improvement Plan budget. The FOA requires
an applicant cost share ofat least 50 percent ofthe total project costs.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

The Ashland Rehabilitation Project No. 1 and the Water Treatment Plant Backwash and
Recycled Water Capacity Project are considered rehabilitation projects of existing
infrastructure; and therefore, are categorically exempt from environmental review under the
California Environmental Quality Act as noted in Title 14 - California Code of Regulations,
Chapter 3 - Guidelines for Implementation of the California Environmental Quality Act,
Article 19 - Categorical Exemptions, Section 15302 - Replacement or Reconstruction.

The Empire Ranch well installation project will include its own environmental analysis under
CEQA and will be brought back to City Council at a future date.

ATTACHMENTS

Resolution No. 10464 - A Resolution Authorizingthe City Manager to Seek Grant Funds from
the United States Bureau of Reclamation for a WateTSMART Drought Response Program
Drought Resiliency Project

Submitted,

Marcus Yasutake, Director
ENVIRONMENTAL AND WATER RESOURCES DEPARTMENT

4Page 76

06/09/2020; Item No.8.



RESOLUTION NO. 10464

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO SEEK GRANT FUNDS
FROM THE UNITED STATED BUREAU OF'RECLAMATION FOR A WATERSMART

DROUGHT RESPONSE PROGRAM DROUGHT RESILIENCY PROJECT

WHEREAS, the City is eligible to receive up to $750,000 in federal grant funds
through the U.S. Department of the Interior, Bureau of Reclamation WateTSMART Drought
Response Program: Drought Resiliency Project for Fiscal Year 202I; and

WHEREAS, the City identifies projects that are critical to ensuring the delivery of
adequate and high-quality water supply to all residents and businesses; and

WHEREAS, the City collaborated with four other water agencies and the Regional
Water Authority to develop a Regional Drought Contingency Plan; and

WHEREAS, the City desires to apply for $750,000 from Reclamation to improve water
supply reliability and drought resiliency; and

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom will comply with federal statutes, regulations, policies,
guidelines and requirements for application, acceptance and use of federal funds for these
federally assisted projects; and

NOW' THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom
authorizes the City Manager to seek grant funds from the United States Bureau of Reclamation
for a WateTSMART Drought Response Program Drought Resiliency Project.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 9th day of June 2020,by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):

Sarah Aquino, MAYOR
ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10464
Page 1 of 1 Page 77

06/09/2020; Item No.8.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 78

06/09/2020; Item No.8.



Folsom City Council
Staff

MEETING DATE: 61912020

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10466 - A Resolution Electing the Population
and Inflation Factors and Establishing the Fiscal Year 2020-21
Appropriations Limit

FROM: Finance Department

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

It is recommended that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 10466 - A Resolution Electing
the Population and Inflation Factors and Establishing the FY 2020-21Appropriations Limit.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The Gann Spending Limitation Initiative (Article XIII B of the State Constitution) adopted as

Proposition 4 in June 1979 (and subsequently modified by Proposition 111 in June 1990),
requires the City to annually adopt a resolution setting an appropriations limit for the upcoming
fiscal year. The Gann Spending Limitation was intended to provide citizen control of
government spending and taxation.

The City Manager's Fiscal Year 2020-21 Operuting Budget and Capital Improvement Plan
(CP) was adopted by the City Council on May 26,2020.

POLICY / RULE

California Government Code. Section 7910 (a) "each year the governing body of each local
jurisdiction shall, by resolution, establish its appropriations limit and make other necessary
determinations for the following fiscal year pursuant to Article XIII B of the California
Constitution at a regularly scheduled meeting or noticed special meeting. ..."

California Constitution. Article XIIIB" Sec. 1. "The total annual appropriations subject to
limitation of the State and of each local government shall not exceed the appropriations limit

1

Page 79

06/09/2020; Item No.9.



of the entity of government for the prior year adjusted for the change in the cost of living and

the change in population, except as otherwise provided in this article.

Folsom Municipal Code. Section 3.02.030. Budget
"An Annual Budget shall be prepared by the City Manager, with the assistance of the Finance

Director. . . . (G) The City Council shall adopt the annual budget by Resolution by fund and
program by affirmative vote of at least three members, on or before the last working day of the
last month of the current fiscal year. If the City Council fails to adopt the budget by the last

working day of the current fiscal year, the budget as presented by the City Manager shall be

deemed adopted."

ANALYSIS

Information from the California Department of Finance regarding population and per capita
personal income has now been received and the calculation for the Gann Spending Limitation
is attached. The establishment of the 2020-21 Appropriations Limit ("Gann Limit") is

necessary to comply with Article XIIIB of the State Constitution. The Gann Limit limits the
amount of revenue classified as proceeds of taxes that can be appropriated in any fiscal year
by a government entity. Certain exclusions are allowed including transfers, capital outlay and
payments for debt service. The maximum allowable appropriation of revenues subject to
limitations for Fiscal Year 2020-21 is $103,659,868, and the FY 2020-21 Budget with the

exclusions, referenced above, is within this limit. This maximum amount increases or
decreases each year depending on the percentage change in the per capita personal income
(3.73%) and the percentage change in population (3.05%). The California Department of
Finance has estimated the total population for the City of Folsom as of January I,2020 as

8 I ,6 1 0, and after deducting prison population the estimated population is 76,065. The formula
for calculating the limits was based on the Fiscal Year 1978-79 "base year" revenues. For
Fiscal Year 2020-21the budgeted revenues subject to limitation total $65,729,381, which is
$37,930,487 less than the maximum allowed.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Resolution No. 10466 - A Resolution Electing the Population and Inflation Factors and
Establishing the FY 2020 -21 Appropriations Limit

2. Gann Appropriations Limit for FY 2020-21

Submitted,

Tamagni, Finance Director

2
Page 80

06/09/2020; Item No.9.



ATTACHMENT 1

Page 81

06/09/2020; Item No.9.



RESOLUTION NO. 10466

A RESOLUTION ELECTING THE POPULATION AND INF'LATION F'ACTORS AND
ESTABLISHING THE FISCAL YEAR 2O2O.2O2I APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT

WHEREAS, Section 3.02.030 of the Folsom Municipal Code states "An Annual Budget shall be
prepared by the City Manager, with the assistance of the Finance Director . . ."; and

WHEREAS, the City Council is required by Government code 7910Io establish its appropriations
limit by resolution and approve the appropriate inflation and population factors used in the calculation of
the limit, and;

WHEREAS, on the 26th day of May 2020,the City Council approved the City Manager's Fiscal
Year 2020-21 Operating Budget and Capital Improvement Plan, and;

WHEREAS, the Budget sets forth the "Proposition 4 Appropriations Limitation Schedule",
computed using the City population growth factor of 315% and the California Per Capita personal income
change factor of 3.73% as determined by the State of California, Department of Finance, for the Fiscal
Year 2020-21 of the City of Folsom; and

WHEREAS, the documentation used in the determination of the appropriations limit has been

available to the public in the City Clerk's Office for fifteen days prior to the meeting; and

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom's appropriations limit for the fiscal year 2020-21 shall be

$103,659,868.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom that the
Gann Appropriations Limit is approved.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 9th day of June 2020, by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN
ABSENT:

Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):

Sarah Aquino, MAYOR
ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10466
Page I of I

Page 82

06/09/2020; Item No.9.



ATTACHMENT 2

Page 83

06/09/2020; Item No.9.



RESOURCES

PROCEEDS OF TAXES
Property Taxes
Sales Taxes
SpecialTaxes
State Sublentions
Franchise Taxes
Business Licenses

TOTAL PROCEEDS OF T$GS

lnterest lncome

TOTAL SUBJECTTO LIMITATIONS $ 65,729,381

APPROPRIATIONS

SUBJECT TO LIMITATIONS

$ 65,560,973

168,408

$ 65,729,381

NOT SUBJECT TO LIMITATIONS:

$ 29,884,989
22,784,063
2,950,000
8,325,005

826,000
790,916

$ 65,560,973

168,408

NON-PROCEEDS OF TA)GS

$ 16,240,783

12,044,170
10,938,101
46,420,394
22,516,693
18,604,968

TOTAL NON-PROCEEDS OF ALL
TruGS 126,765,109 126,765,109

TOTAL ALL RESOURCES $ 192,494,490 $192,494,490

Maximum allowable appropriation subject to limitations 2020-2021fisca| year
Less: Total appropriation subject to limitation for 2020-2021fisca| year

BALANCE UNDER ARTICLE XIIB LIMIT:

General Fund not financed
with proceeds of taxes
Special Rerenue Funds
Capital Project Funds
Enterprise Funds
lntemal Service Funds
Trust Funds
Miscellaneous General Funds

$103,659,868
(65,729,381)

37,930,487$

Page 84

06/09/2020; Item No.9.



Folsom City Council
Staff rt

RECOMMENDATION / COUNCIL ACTION

It is recommended the City Council adopt Resolution No. 10467 approving an additional
appropriation in FY 2020-21to be used for Park Renovation.

BACKGRO IND / ISSIIE

On May 26,2020 the City Council adopted the FY 2020-21Operating Budget and Capital

Improvement Plan. During the discussion the City Council requested $500,000 of current
fund balance in the Park Dedication Fund (Fund 240)be used for renovations in city parks

POLICY / RULE

Folsom Municipal Code. Section 5.05 Budgeting and Accounting
Section 5.05 of the Folsom Municipal Code paragraph H, states in part "Supplemental
Appropriations ... Any such supplemental appropriation shall be made for the fiscal year by
resolution up to the amount of any excess".

ANALYSIS

The Park Dedication Fund (Fund 240) rcceives revenue from development in order to be used

for the development of new or rehabilitation of existing neighborhood or community parks or
recreation facilities within the City. The collection of and use of these funds is govemed by

California Government Code, Section 66477 and is commonly referred to as the "Quimby
Act".

1

MEETING DATE: 61912020

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10467 - A Resolution Approving an Additional
Appropriation in FY 2020-2I to be used for Park Renovation

FROM: Finance Department

Page 85

06/09/2020; Item No.10.



FINANCIAL IMPACT

As of May 28,2020,the Park Dedication Fund has a cash balance of $2.54 million and in FY
2020-21there is $198,783 currently appropriated, the majority of which is for the payment of
the current lease for turf at Kemp Park. There is also an additional $ 1 .17 million cunently
approved in the Capital Improvement Plan for Davies Park and the Sports Complex. In FY
2020-2I there would be approximately $1.17 million of the cash balance available to be

appropriated. At the May 26,2020 City Council meeting, the City Council requested an

additional $500,000 be appropriated to be used for Park Renovations. This resolution would
approve this additional appropriation to be included in the Park Dedication Fund (Fund 240)

in the 2020-21Fiscal Year.

ATTACHMENTS

Resolution No. 10467 - A Resolution Approving the Additional Appropriation in FY 2020-
2l to be used for Park Renovation.

Submitted,

I

Tamagni, Finance Director

2
Page 86

06/09/2020; Item No.10.



RESOLUTION NO. 10467

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN ADDITIONAL APPROPRIATION IN FY 2020.21
TO BE USED FOR PARK RENOVATION

WHEREAS' staff has identified projects in various parks in the City in need of
renovation; and

WHEREAS, funds received from development as park dedication and commonly
refereed to as "Quimby" funds are available to be used for park renovation; and

WHEREAS, on May 26, 2020, the City Council requested $500,000 be used for park
renovation; and

WHEREAS, in order to begin the renovations an additional appropriation will be

required; and

WHEREAS, there are sufficient funds available in the Park Deduction Fund (Fund 240)

for this appropriation.

NOW' THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom

authorizes the Finance Director to appropriate an additional $500,000 to the Park Dedication
Fund (Fund 240) inFY 2020-21 to be used for park renovation.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 9th day of June,2020, by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):

Sarah Aquino, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10467
Page I of I Page 87

06/09/2020; Item No.10.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 88

06/09/2020; Item No.10.



l. ' {.,} l.lJ ,{_} i\:L
! Jlr.illrI a t lITr tC

Folsom City Council
Staff Re ort

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

Staff recommends that the City Council move to adopt Resolution No. 10468 - A Resolution
Approving an Acquisition and Shortfall Agreement for Community Facilities District No. 23

Improvement Area No. 1 (Mangini Ranch Phase 2)

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

On January 28,2014, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 9298 approving the Folsom
Plan Area Specific Plan (FPASP) Public Facilities Financing Plan (PFFP). The PFFP is an

$877 million plan that includes the necessary backbone infrastructure and public facility
requirements, presents a comprehensive financing strategy and sets forth the estimated time
horizon for the future development of the Folsom Plan Area (FPA).

The Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map for the Mangini Ranch Phase 2 subdivision in the
FPA was approved by the City Council on February I3,20I8. The Mangini Ranch Phase 2

subdivision is included in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan (FPASP) and is planned for
545 single family residential units in eight (8) separate villages, 356 multi-family residential
units on three (3) separate parcels, an elementary school site, two (2) park sites and various
open space parcels. The Mangini Ranch Phase 2 subdivision is generally located on the east

side of East Bidwell Street, west of Placerville Road, south of US HWY 50 and north of the
Mangini Ranch Phase 1 Subdivision in the FPASP (See below). The Mangini Ranch Phase 2
subdivision is required to construct various on-site and off-site roadway and utility
infrastructure and other public improvements necessary to serve the proposed development.

1

MEETING DATE: 61912020

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10468 - A Resolution Approving an Acquisition
and Shortfall Agreement for the Community Facilities District No.
23 Improvement Area No. 1 (Mangini Ranch Phase 2)

FROM: Community Development Department

Page 89

06/09/2020; Item No.11.



- -a-.:. -t' - -------: ,l .-.L -',r-lr'

4'1;+ ;Firi.,{t 4-19
I

I'

ti

ii
I.

t;
ii

ii

il
:l

ii

i:

tr,

:i

.i
*

- l- i

;1.:. .-{+ r +r .IL..L ; l+-l

-r-.:-,a..-.'
+:,; ,P

ALDER CREEK PKWY

Itr'

-'--11 
--.= 

'l

&a
ao
o
7
h
ih
t'l

,---.=:-"-=r::

u4: r4r '.s

l.i
l--'- _ "'"_
t)

i::::--: 
=l-::.------ It:.--,--.-"i

'j:'1j..j.:....:=j:1

r .:.:- :.. . . .,-...1

:- ir-i:,:-:::i.l:::+. .: . :': I
Ii::--,-, I

ir'-tt:t --Il:::::::-.-l
| : :::-:-:--: :i:-'.: I
l-: r' I

l--...1 J

-..:=
-..t11'

I lt..rl
€<a
tr
Fr
e
7a
o
E.a
a

( , :.t-

uuo8

irl

*
\XAI.L LOT

\FSn\(i Tilr4n\f {tt tirr{il1\ \lll

-Wei4i
Ranch Phase 2
Fr!ltl

On May 26,2020, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 10435, a resolution approving
the formation of Community Facilities District No. 23 (CFD No. 23), providing for the levy
of special taxes therein, and adopted Resolution No. 10436, a resolution deeming it necessary

to incur bond indebtedness in and for the City of Folsom CFD No. 23 Improvement Area No.
1. Special tax revenues generated from CFD No. 23 Improvement Area No. 1 will fund a

portion of or in some cases all of the Mangini Ranch Phase 2 subdivision's share of the

backbone infrastructure and public facilities and improvements, related environmental
mitigation obligations and design and engineering costs.

Grading and construction of the first phase of the infrastructure and other various public
improvements necessary to serve the Mangini Ranch Phase 2 subdivision commenced in the

Spring of 2019. The roadway and utility infrastructure and other public improvements for the

Mangini Ranch Phase 2 subdivision includes the construction of portions of Old Ranch Way,
Westwood Drive, Savannah Parkway and Alder Creek Parkway, various subdivision village
infrastructure (i.e. Mangini Ranch Phase 2,Ylllage Nos. 4, 7 &, 8) and an on-site storm
drainage system and a detentiorVwater quality/hydro-modification basin. The East Carpenter

Improvement Company,LLC, (developer) intends on completing the necessary roadway and

utility infrastructure and other various public improvements to serve the first phase of
development of the Mangini Ranch Phase 2 subdivision in the Spring of 2021.

2
Page 90

06/09/2020; Item No.11.



POLICY / RULE

Chapter 5 of the Folsom Plan Area (FPA) Public Facilities Financing Plan authorizes the
formation of CFD's to finance the construction, acquisition and servicing of backbone
infrastructure and other public improvements

Section 2.5.3 of the First Amended and restated Tier I Development Agreement authorizes
the formation of infrastructure CFD's

Resolution No. 9282 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Approving
Goals and Policies for Community Facilities Districts

Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982

ANALYSIS

Approval of an Acquisition and Shortfall Agreement (Agreement) by the City Council is
required in order to obtain reimbursement from proceeds from the sale of bonds for CFD No
23 Improvement Area No. 1 for eligible roadway and utility infrastructure and public
improvements. It is anticipated that the first bond sale for CFD No. 23 Improvement Area
No. 1 to generate bond proceeds for reimbursement will occtlr in the Summer/Fall of 2020.
The developer and the City are currently working together to achieve this goal.

The Agreement establishes the process required for the City to acquire the roadway and
utility infrastructure and other various public improvements and the developer's
responsibility for funding any construction cost shortfall. A summary of the roadway and
utility infrastructure and various public improvements and facilities to be funded and
acquired by the City is shown in Exhibit A of the attached Acquisition and Shortfall
Agreement (See Attachment2). The roadway and utility infrastructure and other public
improvements authorized to be acquired with CFD No. 23 Improvement Area No. 1 bond
proceeds include roadway and transportation improvements (Old Ranch Way, Westwood
Drive, Savannah Parkway and Alder Creek Parkway), various subdivision in-tract
improvements (Villages 1 through 8), various water (potable and non-potable), sanitary
sewer, and storm drainage mains as well as a detention and water quality/hydro-modification
basin and landscaping and pedestrian/bike trail improvements. The Agreement requires the
developer to complete the required roadway and utility infrastructure and other public
improvements to the satisfaction of the City and meet specified thresholds in accordance with
the Agreement prior to any reimbursement by the City.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

There is no direct financial impact on the City of Folsom. The CFD No. 23 Improvement
Area No. 1 bonded indebtedness and expenses are solely the responsibility of CFD No. 23

Improvement Area No 1.

JPage 91

06/09/2020; Item No.11.



ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

This action is exempt from environmental review pursuant to Section 15061 (bX3) of the
CEQA Guidelines. Environmental review for the backbone infrastructure subject to this
Acquisition and Shortfall Agreement was completed in the FPASP EIR dated June 14, 2011

ATTACHMENTS

1. Resolution No. 10468 - A Resolution of the City Council Approving an Acquisition and

Shortfall Agreement for Community Facilities District No. 23 Improvement AreaNo. I
(Mangini Ranch Phase 2)

2. Acquisition and Shortfall Agreement

Submitted,

Pam Johns, Community Development Director

4
Page 92

06/09/2020; Item No.11.



ATTACHMENT 1

RESOLUTION

Page 93

06/09/2020; Item No.11.



RESOLUTION NO. 10468

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN ACQUISITION AND SHORTFALL AGREEMENT
FOR COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23 IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 1

(MANGINI RANCH PHASE 2)

WHEREAS, the City Council has adopted Resolution No. 10435 declaring its intention
to establish a community facilities district and to levy a special tax to pay for certain public
improvements and public services in and for such community facilities district; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has adopted Resolution No. 10436 declaring the

necessity to incur a bonded indebtedness to finance certain public improvements in and for the City
of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 Improvement AreaNo. I (Mangini Ranch Phase

2); and

WHEREAS, staff has prepared the attached Acquisition and Shortfall Agreement for
the proposed eligible public improvements of Community Facilities District No. 23 Improvement

Area No. 1 (Mangini Ranch Phase 2),

NOW, THEREFORE' BE IT RESOLVED that the Acquisition and Shortfall
Agreement for Community Facilities District No. 23 Improvement Area No. 1 (Mangini Ranch

Phase 2) is hereby approved, and the City Manager is authorized to execute said Agreement in a
form approved by the City Attorney.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 9th day of June 2020, by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Council Member(s)

Council Member(s)

Council Member(s)

Council Member(s)

Sarah Aquino, MAYOR
ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10468

Page I of I Page 94

06/09/2020; Item No.11.



ATTACHMENT 2

ACQUISITION & SHORTFALL AGREEMENT

Page 95

06/09/2020; Item No.11.



COMMUNITY F'ACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23

(FOLSOM RANCH) IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 1

ACQUISITION AND SHORTFALL AGREEMENT

BY AND BETWEEN

THE CITY OF FOLSOM

AND

EAST CARPENTER IMPROVEMENT COMPANY, LLC,

a California Limited Liability Company,

Dated as of _,2020

Page 96

06/09/2020; Item No.11.



A e_auis,rTIpN ANp SHORTIA L

City of Folsorn Community l'acilities Distriet No. 23

(Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. I

Becitals

A. The parties to this Acquisition and Shortfall Agreement (the "Agreentent") are the

CiTY OF FOLSOM, (the "City"), and EAST CARPENTEI{ IMPROVEMENT COMPANY,
LLC, h California limited liability company, ("Developer")'

B. The effective date o1'this Agreement is 2020 ("Efl-ective D ate")

C. The Developer intends to construct certain toad, water, sewer and other public

capital imprgvements, as more particularly described in mx!riki*,,A altached hereto (collectively,

the "Acqgisition hnprovements") to serve the development of real property owned by Developer

within tlie Folsorn Plan Area and within the boundzuies of the District described below. Thc

public capital improvements are to be owncd and operated by the City, and the financing is to be

accomplishecl, in part, rvith funding to be provided by the District under ancl pursuant to the

Mello-Roos Cornmunity F'acilities Act of 1982 - California Goverrunent Code Sections 53311

and fbllowing (the ooActo').

D. On May 26, 202A, the City adopted ltesolution No. 

- 

to f<rrm City of
Folsom Comrnupity Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) lmprovement Area No' I (the

"l)istrigt" or "CFD 23") within the Folsom Plan r\lea to finance, among other authorized

facilities, the Acquisition Improvements ancl, on the same date, a landowner election was

colductecl in which all of the votes were cast unanimously in favor of forming the District'

E. 'I'he District intends to levy special taxes ancl cause the Authority to issue CI]D 23

Boncls to func1, among other things, a pofiion of the costs of the Acquisition Improvemetrts. 'fhe

proceeds of the District special taxes and CI]D 23 Bonds, together with interest earned thereon,

are ref'errecl to helein as the "Available CFD 23 Proceeds." 'fhe Available CFD 23 l'roceeds

shall ilclude the amount of (i) special taxes, if auy, collected lbr a period of twenty (20) years

beginning with the Fiscal Year lbllowing the Fiscal Year jn wl-rich: (a) the frrst building permit is

is.zued in Improvement Area No. 1, or (b) the first series ol'bonds or other debt is issued in

Improvemeni A.ea No. 1, whichever occurs first, available to flnd the direct payrnent for the

acquisition and/ol construction of Acquisition Improventents and not related to or required t<;

tbrid debt service or Aclministrative lixpenses, as defined in and detennined in accordance with

the Ilate and ivlethod of Apportionment for the District (the "Available Pay-Go Proceeds"), and

(ii) tire net acquisition proceeds generated by all CtlD 23, Itnprovement Area No.1 Bond sale(s)

issuecl by the Authority and secured by CI;D 23, Itnprovement Alea No. 1 special taxes.

li. Attached hereto as k,xhihi.t 4 is a description of tlie Acquisitiott lmpl'ovements

ancl attacheci hereto as ltrxhibit li is a ctescription oi certain artthorized discrete and usable

portiols of ilre Acquisition Improverleuts thar mily be accluired fiorn Ifeveloper pursuant to

Scction 53313,51 of the Act. It is understoocl that the Available CFD 23 Proceeds may not be

C:iijss6\rkair\De:klo$firai Fie:i . AaqJisili0ri Agrsercni ' lA l'lo-1 ' 2 c06

Page 97

06/09/2020; Item No.11.



slltftcient to reimbuse the l)cvelopcr fbr all of the costs and expenses of the Acquisition

Improvements contemplatecl hereundrr, or othelwise finance said improvements. Accordingly,

Developer uri<Jerstalds and acknorvledges that any shortfall in the Available Arnount tou'ard the

colsh:uction and completion of the Acquisition lmprovements is the Developer's sole

responsibility, ancl that the Acquisition Price will be paicl solely from the Available CFD 23

proceecls, or tr.om any proceerls that nlay become available for such payment through the SPIF

program (as de{ilecl heiein) fior an Acquisition lmprovement included in the SPIF' Program.

G. 'fhe par.ties anticipate that, upon completion of the Accluisition Improvements and

subject to the termj and conditions of this Agreement and final acceptance hy the City Engineer

in writing, the City will acquire the completed Acquisition Imptovements,

IL Any apd all monetary obligations olithe City arising out of this Agreernent are the

special and limitei obligations of ilie City payable only h'om the Available CFD 23 Proceeds,

and no other funds whatsoever of the f)istrict, the Authorityo or the City shall be obligated

therefor under any circutnstances under this Agreement'

I. Attached to this Agreement are Exhisit A (the Acquisition Improvements),

Ilxhibif" ll (Eligible Portions of Acquisition Improvements. including related Design Costs),

tl-hjbtt{ (form of llecluisition), ancl Extriliit 0 (Insurance Requirements), all of which are

incoqporated inlo this Agreement for all purposes.

Arcesss!

ARTICLE I

DE}IINITIONS; COMMUNITY FACII,ITIES DISTRICT FORMATION
AND FINANCING PLAN

Section 1.01 . Qelir.dtiorrr. As used herein, the tollowing capitaliz-,ed terms shall have the

meanings ascribed to them below:

.,Acceptable Ti1le" moans tiee and clear of all monetary liens, encuntbrauces,

assesslxents, whether any such item is recorde<l or untecorded, and taxes, except those iterns

which are r:easonably cletenninetl by the City Engineer, upon oonsultation rvith the City Attorney,

n't lo inlerfere with the intencled use ancl therefcre are not required to be clea|ed l'rom the title.

.,Acquisition and C<lnstruction F'und" means the "Clotnmunity Facilities District No. 23

lnprovement Area No. I Acquisition and Construction Fund" establisherl by the District tbr the

puipos* of paying the Acquisition Prices of'the Acquisition Improvements'

.'Accl"risition Improvernellts" mealls the Acquisition hnprovenlents describsd in ltrfhihit

A liereto.

"Acquisition Pl'ice" nreatls the total arnount eligible to be p*id to the I)er.'eloper upon

acquisition of tlie Acquisition Improvemetrts as provided irl Section 2.03, including any

aclciitional Available Cin Zl Proceecis collecred thercalter that ale eligible to be paid to

1C:iuse isb{raintiDes|ilop\filaiFiilal Acqli3;iicn A.jresmd lA Nt.'i ' 2 cct

Page 98

06/09/2020; Item No.11.



f)eveloper, but not to exceed the Actual Cost olthe Acquisition Inrprovelnent, togethcr with the

CCI ad.justment thereon until paid in ftrll as provided herein'

',Actual C'ost" means the total cost of the Acquisition lmproventents, or Eligible Portions

there6{ as <locumeltecl by the Developer to the satisfaction of the City atrd as certified by the

City Hngineer in an Actual Cost Cerlificate including, witltottt limitation, (a) the Developer's

cosi c.,f 

*constructing 
the Acquisition Improvements includirrg grading, labor, material and

equipment costs, (b) the Developer's cost of designing and engineering the Acquisition

inpiovements, prepaling the plans and specifications and bid docrunents for the Acquisititln

lmprovements, alcl the costs of inspection, materials testing and constrttction staking for the

Acquisition Improvements, (c) the Developer's ctlst of any pertbrmance, payrnent and

maintenance bonds and insurance, including title insurance, required hereby fbr the Acquisition

Improvements, (d) the Developer's cost of arry real property or interest thelein that is either

,r*."*.ury fbr the colstruction of ilre Acquisition Improvements (e.g., temporary oonstruction

"u***.ni*, 
haul roacls, etc.), or is required to be conveyed with such AccFrisition lmprovetnent in

order to convey Acceptable litle thireto to the City or its designee, (e) the Developer's cost of
environmental evaluation or mitigation reqr,rired for the Acquisition Improvements, {f) the

amount of any f'ees actually paicl by the Developer to the City and any other governmental

agencies in oicler to obtain plrmits, licenses or other necessal'y govemmental approvals and

rJviews for the Acquisition lmprovements, (g) the Developer's cost for construction and projeot

mallagement, aclninistration and supervision services fbr the Accluisition Improvements, (h) the

Devetper's cost for professional services related to the Accluisiticxr Improvements, including

engineering, accountirig, legal, financial, appraisal and similar prot.essional services, and (i) the

costs of construction financing inounecl by the Developer r.vith respect to the Acquisition

lmprovements.

,,Actuatl Cost Certificateo' means a certificate prcpared by the Developer detailing the

Actgal Ciost of thc Acquisition Improvemsnts, or Eligible Pottions thereof, to be acquired

hereunder, as may be revisecl by the City Engineer pursuant to Section 2,03'

"Agreement" means this Acquisition Agreement, dated as of

"Authority" ille&ns the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority'

',Available Clrlf 23 Proceeds" shall have the meanirrg nssigned to the term in Recittrl E'

,,r\vailable Pay-Go Froceeds" shali have the meaniug assigned to the term in Recital li.

,,CCI" means the construction cost inclex reported by the Engineeriug News Record useil

by the City to adjust construction costs, currently based on the average of the cl,ange in the San

Fiancisco'Construction Cost Index and the change in thc 2O-city Construction Cost lndex ibr the

12-rnonth periocl encling in May, or comparable irrdex of annual constructiotl costs fbt public

capital itnprovements used by the City'

"CFD Adrnilistrator" means the adrninistrator of the District appointccl by the Cit"v'

,,CF-I) 23 lJoncls" rncans bonds or olher indebtedncss issued by the Authority that are to

be repaid with District Special Jlaxes'

,2020

3C:iujslllcireinlogsklop\iir;l Fi,lal - Acq*isi'Jor igiesnert' lA IJJ 1 - 2 'Jnt

Page 99

06/09/2020; Item No.11.



"City" means City of Folsom.

,,City Elgineef' mcans the City Engineer: of the City or his/her designee who will be

responsitrle Ibr administering the acquisition of the Acquisition Improvements heteuttder.

o,code" mears the Government Code of the state of califbrnia.

..Construction Lencler" means Gooclfellow Btos., lttc., a Washington cotporation, its

successols and assigns.

"I)eveloperoo means EAST' CARPENTER IMPROVEMEN'| COMPANY, LLCI, a

California lin:ited liability con1pany, their successors and assigns'

.,I)irector" means the Director of the City's Cotnmunity Development Depaftment or

his/her designee.

.'f)isbursenre6t Request Forrn" means a requisition fclr paynrent of funds fiom the

Acquisition an<1 Construction Fund for an Acquisition Improvsnlent, or an Eligible Portion

thereof, in substantially the forn: contained in Exhi.bit C hereto'

,.1)istrict" shall have the meaning assigned to the telm in Recital D'

.,Eligible Portionso' il]eans the eligible, discrete and usable portions of the Acquisition

Improycmeits available tor acquisition ancl payrnent ol' Installment Payments listed and

described in Exhibit B hereto.

.,Installment Payment" means an amount approvecl by the City Engineel' as partial

payment roward the Agtual Cost of an Eligible Portion as shown in Exhibit B-Description of

Eli gible Portions of Acquisition Improvements.

'.Project" means the f)eveloper's development of the property in the District, including

the desigl aird cgnstruction oil the Acquisition lrnprovernents and the other public and private

improvetlents to be constructed by the Developer within the District.

,,Special 'l'.lxes'o peans annual special taxes, anci prepayments thereof, authorized by and

to be levied by the District.

,,I'itle Documents" nleans, tbr the Acquisition Improventenls acquired herertnder, a grant

deecl or similar instr:ument necessary to transf-sr title to any real property or interests therein

(inclutling casements), or an irrevocable oft'er o{'dedication ol'such real property with interests

therein ,.,*""rsary to ihr operation, maintenance, rehabilitation and improvement by the City o1'

tire r\cquisitiop Impr6vements (including, if necessary, easements for ingress and egress) and a

bill of sale or similar instrument evidencing transfer of title to the Accptisition Itnprovements

(other.than saici real property interests) to the City, where applicable.

Section 'l .02. listablishrlcrrt __ef (]enrlrur]it]' iruciliti-e-.1 -Dblug-t. 
'l'l-re Corltnunity

Faoilities Distr.ict rvaslstablished by the City on Ma,v 26, 202A, and through the successful

lanclorryner election helcJ that sanre day, the District is authorized to levy the Special J'axes aud to

/1arjrlus€is\:lral3!Di1t;ilop\ital Final. Acilni:iij.rll A';!etmrnt' lA iio 1 - 2.(?t

Page 100

06/09/2020; Item No.11.



issue the CFD 23 Bonds to tlnance the Accluisition Prices for the Accluisition ln:provements.

I)eveloper ancl the City agree to reas<inably cooperate with one auother and with the llistrict in

the completion of the financing til'ough the issuancc by the Authority of'the CI'D 23 Boncls in
one or nrore .series ancllor the collection of Special Taxes to generate Available Pay-Go Proceeds.

Seclion 1 .03. Pgp{r$it t'lrd {.1$s Prooeeds'

(a) llgyplr:p.$r llny:(ir: ll'ncccd"t. Available Pay-Go Proceeds collectecl by the

District shall be deposited in the Acquisition and Constnrction F'und established by the District,
ancl nay be disbursed to pay the Accluisition Pric,e antl lnstallment Payments of Acquisition
Improvements in accordance with Article lI of this:\greenrent. All funds in the Acquisition and

Construction Fund shall be considered a portion of the Available C|'D 23 Proceeds.

(b) CIt) ?3, llonil S.er:i*s. Upon the delivery of each issue or issues of CFD 23

I3oncls, the net proceeds thercof shall be deposited into the Acquisition and Construction Fund

for thc purpose oi:holding all fun<ls for the Acquisition lniprovements. All ea.rnings on amounts

in the Acquisition and Construction Fund shall remain in the Acquisition and Construction Fund

for use as provided helein. Money in the Acquisition and Constntction Fund shall be available

to respon{ to delivery of a Disbursement Request Form and to be paid to the Developer or its
designee to pay the Acquisition Price and Instalhncnt Paytnents of thc Acquisition
hnprovements. or portions thereol, as specified in Article II heretlf.

ic) Pr.it;ritv [j;sc ol'Aynilal:le CFD 23 Proceecls, lhe Available CFD 23\-/
Proceeds r,vill be usecl primarily to fr.rncl the costs of the Acquisition lmprovements, and then to

fund the costs of any other developer improvements advanced and/or constructed by a developer

within the Plan Area that are authorized for accluisition by the District. The Available CFD 23

Proceeds shall be used first to firnd any of the Acquisition lmprovetttents, in any order, as and

when each Acquisition Improvement or Eligible Portion is completed and payment of the

Acrluisition Prioe or Instalhnent Payment can be paid tr: Deveiopel as provided herein. upon
completion of all o1'tlre Acquisition Inrprovements hereunder and payment of the Acquisition
Prices therelbr, any remaining f'unds in the Acquisition and Clonstruction Fund (less any amount

determined by the District as necessary to reserve for clnirns against the accottttt) shall be (i)
appliecl or reserved for application to pay the costs of alty o11,*. authorized developer

improvements zurd, to the extent not so used, (ii) shall be applied by the District to call lloncls or

to reduce Special'l'axes as the Distr:ict shall deterrnine.

Section 1.04 Pa If ancl to the extent any of
the Acquisition Improvements are also iircludecl fbr firrancing within thc Specilic Plan

Inflastructure Fee Program (the "SPIF Program"), any payments hereunclcr fi'om Available CFD

23 Proceecls 1o Developer"fbr such Acquisition lmprovetnents shall not allcct or lirnit
I)eveloper's ability to obtain and apply fee credits agaitrst and/or lbe rcimbursentenls frorn the

SPIF' F'ee Program in consideration of its conslruction ollthe Acqr"risition Improvements that are

inclu{ecl for llnanciug in the SPIF l'}rogram. Devcloper's right to any such fee creclits arrd/or fee

reimbuseurents from the SPIF Progranr woulci bc sub.iect to and contingent upon l)eveloper's

entering into and complying rvith the rccluirenrents of a separate SPIF Fee Reimbursement

Agreement to be entered into bctr.veen tirc City and Developer tbr the Accluisilion Agreetnents

tltat are incJndcd tbr financing in the SPIF'Prograrn'

C:iij!€rsisk6ir,':t*skloplihJ Fiial'tr!:cui:iiicr Alteeinerl ' iA llo.i - 2 {oc )

Page 101

06/09/2020; Item No.11.



Section 1.05 ()t'

AHreenrcuts, In no event shall any actual or alleged act by the District ol the City or any actual

or alleged omission, negligence, or failure to act by the Districl or the City with respect to the

perlbrmalce ol its obligations hereuncler suhject the District or the City to any liability therolbr.

whether monetary or otherwise (except only as to pay any amounts available and payable

hereunder frorn Available CF'D 23 Proccecls). Ftuther, nothing in this Agreenrent shall be

construed as alTecting the Developer's or the City's duty to perform their respective obligations

under any other agreements betrveen the parties hereto, or the City's enforcement of applicable

laws, orclinallces, rules, policies and rcgulations pertaining to public irnproventent standards

andlor specihcations, as well as land use and subdivision requiremettts relatecl to 1he Ploject, all

of which are and shall remain independent of ths Developer's and the City's rights and

obligations under this Agreement.

AKITCLE II

DESIGN, CONSTI{UCIION AN D A CQU I SITION OF ACQ UIST|ION IMPROVEM EN'I'S

Section 2.01, Lertjng nnd.AtlLlrinistcr:ips, ppsign Corrtr'{cts. The Developer has awardecl

ancl acfuninistered, or will award and administero or through the Clity has advanced ti.rnds for the

engineering clesign contracts fbr the Accluisition Implovements to be accluired from l)eveloper.

All eligible expenditures of the Developer fbr design engineering and related costs in connection

with the Acquisition Improvements (whether as an advance to the City or: directly to the design

colsultant) irrcrurecl prior to the Elfeotive f)ate, as identilied on CIxhihit l3 attached hereto. shall

be reirnbursed at the time gf the first lJond salc, and, thereafler, all additional, eligible design

engineering and related costs shall be reimtrursed at the time of acquisition of the Acquisition
imprgvements. The Developel shall be entitled to reimbursement for any design costs af the

Acquisitiorr Improvcments only out of'the Acquisition Price as provided in Seotion 2'03 and

shafl not be entitled to any payment fbr design costs independent of the acquisition of
Acquisition lmprovements.

Section 2.02. Let:tir1g and 4\d$inistration 0l Cgnstluct,inri Contracls: lrl.dpntni.fisalitltt'
Developer agrees to comply with City requirements r.vith respect to contracting for the

construction oflthe Acquisition Inrprovetnents. The Developer agl'ees that all the c<lntracts shall

cali fbr compliance rvith all provisions of the prevailing wage law for "public wol'ks" as required

by the L,abr:r Code of the State of California and shall require all wor:tri to be perlorrned by

iilensccl general contractors" 'Ihe Developer's indemnification obligation set forth in Section

3.01 of this Agreenrent shall also apply to any allcgcd Iailure to comply with the reclttirements of
this Section, ancllor applicabte State larvs regarding public contlacting and prevailing wage laws

applicable to public rvorks,

(a) tlLrs ancl lipecii1gdful4 'lhe Developer lepresents and covenants that it
has obtlilc{ or will obtain approval of the plans and specificatiotts for the Acquisition
Improyements finm all appropriate departmerrts of the City atrd Ji"onr any other public entity or

publir utility fi'om which such approvarl must be obtajned, prior to conslruction. l'he Developer

further: covenants that the Acquisition lrnprovenrents rvill bc constructed in firll corlpliance with

snch apprgr,ed plans ariil spccifications and any change orders tlrereto. as approved in the same

6Cr\U:eGtslrafn'\Cesltlopitinei Filll - Acilu;li,iou A$ri3Ieri lA Nc 1 2 doi

Page 102

06/09/2020; Item No.11.



rnar net', and the adopted City Standard Construc,tion Specilications ancl lmproveilrent Standards.

The Dcveloper shail suburit copies of all plarrs and speciiications to the Director or his/her'

ciesignee.

(b) CI{QA. The Developer covenilnts that i1 has cornplied or will conrply with
the Califbrnia Environmental Qualit), Act in conjunction with the construotion of the Acquisition
Improvements and their conveyance plrrsuaut 1o the terms set forth herein.

(c) lrispcction. The Developer coverlants that the City, and other public

entities or public utilities to lvhom any of the Acquisition Improvements r.vill be conveyed, will
be permitted to inspect the Acquisition Improvements using the same standatds which would be

applied to a public r.vorks projcct.

(d) hslrtitggg. With respect to the construction of thc Acquisition
Inprclvements, the Developer shall furnish to City a certiiicate or certiticales of insurance, with
an irlsur:ance earrier aoceptable to City and in a fbrm satisfactory to the City Attorney, evidencing

insurance coverage consistent with Srhibit D attached hereto.

(e) Perfnrmnnr:e iiiid. IJayrrlq4l Bornls. Except as otherwise provided herein,

the Developer covenarlts to comply rvith all applicable performance, labor ancl materials rind

completion bond requirements of the City with respcct to the construction of the Acquisition
Improvenrents, To the extent bonds are required, Developer further covenants and agrees to

execute and deliver or otherwise cause tcl be providecl to City, prior to construction ancl jn l'orms

acceptable to the City Attorney, a faithful Performarce Bond in the amount of 100% of the

estimated cost of the Acquisition hnprovenrents and a Labor and Materials Bond in the amount

of i00% of the estimated cost of the Acquisition Impror,'etneltt$, fiom a bonding company with
an A.M. Best rating of at lsast "A-" or its equivalent, Such bonds shall only be released upon

fgll completion of the Acquisition Improvements, the City's written acceptance of ths

Acquisition lmprovements, and payment of allpersons furnishing labor and materials.

Section 2.03, Sale ql.'Acrruisition hnplg!j9ggg!$. The Developff agrees to seil to the

City each o1'the Acquisition Improvements to be constructsd by Developer (including any rights-
of-way or other easernents necessary tbr the Acquisition Improvements, to the extent not already

owned by the City), when each of the Acquisition Improvements is completed to the satist'action

of the City and acceplecl by the City Engineer in lvriting fbr an amount not to exceed thc lesser of
(i) the Available CFD 23 Proceeds and (ii) the Actual Cost of the Acquisition Improvement(s),

increassd from and after the cornpletion of tire Acquisition Improvenrents until paid in lirllbased
o1 the alngal increase, if any, in the CCI from such completion to ciate of payment (the

"Acquisition Price"). Noiwithstanding any pr:ovision to tlie contrary, the Developer uudet'stands

that the Available CFD 23 Proceeds fbr the accluisition ol'the Acquisition Improvcments ntay not

be sutficient to reimburse the Developcr lbr all of the costs and expenses constrr"rctitig the

Acquisition Improvements, or otherrvise fitrance said impx:vements. i\ccordingly, Developer

acknor,r,ledges and agrees that any shortlhll in the amount ol'Available CIFD 23 Proceeds for the

construction and completion of the Acquisition Improvements is the l)eveloper's sole

responsibility. arid that the Acquisition Price to be paid pursuant to this Agreement will be paid

solely fiorn the Available CFD 23 Proceeds, or ['rom any proccccls that may bccr:me available for

lClus€rj':i(rit*\i-re!italli:ila: i:iril - Acquisifni AlrteiFnl !l f]c 1 - 2.doa

Page 103

06/09/2020; Item No.11.



such payment thr<rr"rgh the SPIF Program lbr an Acquisition luprovement irtcluded in the SPIF

Prograrn.

lirhibit 4, attachecl heret<l and incorporaled herein, contains a list of the Acquisitiort
Inrprovements. Portions of the Acquisition lmprovements eligible for Installment Paymcnts

prior to completion of the entire Acquisition Improvements are describerj as eligible, discrete and

usable portions in ltxhiltil Il (each, an "Eligiblc Portion"). At the time o1'completion of each

Acquisition Improvement, or Eligible Portion thereol, the Developer shall deliver to the City

Engineer a written lequest for accluisition, accompanied by an Actual Cost Certificaie, and by

executed Title Documents fbr the transtbr of t.he Acquisition Improvement where necessary. In
the event that the City Iingineer finds that the supporting paperwork submitterl by the Developer

fails to demonstrate the recluired rclationship between the subject Actual Cost and eligible wotk,
the City Engineer shall advise the Developer that the determinErtion of the Actual Cost (or the

ineligible portion thereof) has been clisallowed and shall request f'urther docurnentation from the

Developer. If the further documentation is still not adequate, the City Engineer may update the

Actual Cost Certifrcate to revise or delete any disallowcd items and the determination shall be

subject to appeal to the f)irector, whose determination shall be final.

Certail soft costs fbr the Acquisition Trnprovetnents. such as civil engineering, may have

been incurrecl pursuant to single contracts lhat include work relating also to tlte private portions

of the irtoject or to multiple Acquisilion Improvements. In those instances, the total costs under

such contracts will be allocated to each Accluisition Improvement as approved by the City
Engineer" Where a specific contract has been awar:ded for design or engineering work relating

solely to an Accluisition Improvement, one hundred percent (100%) ofl the costs under the

contract will be allocated to that Accluisition Improvement. Sofl costs will be allocated to each

Acquisition Improvement as approved by the City lingineer. The costs of environmental
pritigation required to rnitigate the impacts of the public anri privale portions ollthe Project will
be allocated to each Aceluisition Improvement as approved by the City Engineer. Pursuant to

Section 2.01, all eligible expenditures of'soft costs in corutection with the Acquisition

Improvements (wirether as an advance to the City or directly to the design consultant) inctnrcd
prior to the Effeotive Date, as identified in Llxlribit tl attached hereto, shall be reirnbursecl at the

time of iirst Bond sale, and, thereafter, all additional, eligible soft costs shall be leimbursed at the

time of acquisition of the Acquisition Improvements'

Scction 2.04" Payment to the

Developer or its designee of.the Acquisilion Pr{ce fbr each Accluisition Improvement shall in
every case be conclitioned first upon the determination of the City Engineer that the Acquisition
Improvement satisfies all City oonstruction standards and specifications, tules, policies,

regulzrtions ancl ordinances ancl shall be firrther conditiorred upon satisfaction ol the fbllorving

additionai conditi ons precedent:

(a) Lier Rclczises. 'fhe Developer shall have provicled the City with lien

releases or other similar documentation satisfactory to the City Engineer as evidence that none of
the property (inolucling any riglrts-of:r,vay or other easements llece$sary fbr the operation ancl

rnaintegance of the Aoquisition Improvetnento to tire exteut not already orvned by thc City)
comprising the Accluisition Improvernent, and the property wirich is strb.iect to tire speciill taxes

IC;\tjs€rsi3i\rrlxitDesklopifin;i Fioal - Acclisiliofl A'lreenltnl ' 1A ilo.l - 2 i.j*

Page 104

06/09/2020; Item No.11.



oll the Community Faoilities District, is subjcct to any prospective rnechanics lien clairn
respecting the Acquisition Improvements.

(b) P4vmerrt of la.Ies. The Developer shall be current in the payment of all
due and payable general property taxes, and all special taxes of the Community Facilities
f)istrict, on property owned by the f)eveloper or under option to thc l)eveloper ivithin the

Community b'acil ities District.

(c) CerLiLicnt,i$tNrr L.p;ur_Dstq!_[, The Developer shall certify that it is not in
default with respect to any loan secured by any interest in the Project.

(d) ifitl* Docum*nts. The Developer sliall have provided the City with Title
Documents needed to provide the Cily with Acceptable 'l'itle to the site, right-of-way, or
easement upon which the subject Acquisition Improverncnts are situated. All such Title
I)ocuments shall be in a form aoceptable to the City Attorney and shall convey Acceptable Title.
The Developer shall provide a policy of title insurance as of the date of transfer in a fbrm
acceptable to the City Attorney insuring the City as to the interests acquired in corutection with
the acquisition of any interest ftrr which such a policy of title insurance is not required by another
agreement betr+'een the City and the Developer, Each title insurance policy required hereunder
shall be in the amount equal to the Acquisition Price. 'l'he atnount paid to the l)evcloper or its
designee upon satisfaction of the tbregoing conditions precedent .shall be the Acquisition Price
less all Installment Payments paid previously with respect to the Accluisition lmprovement.

(e) I{elqntign lor i)urrch l,ist Worh.. In the case of a completed Acquisition
Improvement suitable for public use, but fbr which cefiain punch list wo* temains to be

cornpleted prior to formal acceptance by the City, the City shall retain from the payment of any

Acquisition Pri{re for such Acquisition Improvement the amount of one hundred and fiffy perceflt
(150%) of the value of punch list work not conrpleted. Upcln payment ancl acceptance of the
Acquisition Price, less the retention for any punch list work, for ea.ch completecl Acquisition
Improvement or porlion thereofl Developcr shall have rto furlher clairn for payment liorn the
City with respect to the retentions until completion of ihe punch list work. 'I'he City shall hold
the retention amount on all Acquisition Improvements accluired until the punch list work is

completed and accepted by the City. Providecl, however, in any event, the City rvill rrot pay tbr
the acquisition of any completed Acquisition Agreement or porlion thereol'unless and until the
street, drainage or other utility rights of way whcre they are located have been irrevocably
offered to the City fbr dedication ancl the remaining conditions precedent to payment under this
Section 2.04 are satisfied.

(0 Wtutanly lJoncl. The Developer shall provide to Ciqu a warranty trond
equal to l{la/o of the Actual Cost o1'the Acquisition Improvenrent. Comrnencement of the one-
ycar waffanty period shali start at the time of City's fonnal acceptanse of the Acquisition
Improvements in r.vriting.

Section 2.05. lay:rp:rl-!lU-glrgr!dg[01!-rli1g. The Developer may subtnit an Actual Cost
Certiflcate to the City lingineer with respect to any Eligible Portion. Payment to the Developer
or its designee fi'om the Acquisition ancl Construclion l;'unc'l and/or Sl'}lit Sct-Asidc Fund of an

InslalJrnent lrayment with respect tc such Eiigible Portion strall in every case be conditionecl first

qC:'lusers\skGhriilegilrirlf:rn3l Firrl - /\cqi,irilin0 ilgreeteil ^ ii\ ilc i ' 2.40r

Page 105

06/09/2020; Item No.11.



upon the determination of the City Engineer, that the Eligible Por:tion has becn completed in

acoordance with all applicable plans and City construction standards and spccilications, rules,

policies, regulations and orclinances and is otherwise complete and, rvhere appropriate, is ready

Ibr. acceptance by the City, and shall be lurther conditioned upon satisfaction of the follor.ving

additi onal conditions precedent:

(a) The Developer shail have provided the Cily with lien releases or othet'

similar clocumentation satisllactory to thc City Engineer as evidence tirat the property (including

any rights-of-way or other eascments necessary fbr the operation and maintenance of the Eligible

Portion, to the extcnt not aheady owned by the City) comprising the Eligible Porfion is trot

subject to any prospective mechanics lien claim respccting the Eligible Portiorr.

(b) The f)eveloper shall be current in the payment of all due and payable

general property taxes, and all special taxes of the Community Facilities District, ou propedy

owned by the Developer or under option to the Developer within the Community Facilities

District.

(c) T'he Developer shall have provided the City with Title Docurnents needed

to pr6vide the City with Acceptable Title to the site, right-of-rvay, or easement upon which the

sr-rbject Eiigible Portion is situated. All such Title Docurnents shall be in a fbrm acceptable to the

City Attorney ancl shall be sufficient, upoll completion oi the Accluisition Improvements of
which the Eligible Portion is a pafi, to convey Acceptable Title to the Eligible Portion. The

Developer shall provide a policy of title insurance as of the date of transfer in a form acceptable

to the City Attorney insuring the City as to the interests acquired in connection with the

acquisition of any interest fcrr which such a policy of title insurauce is not required by another

agreernent betrveen the City ancl the Developer. Each title insurance policy required hereitncler

sliall be in the amount equal to tire Installment Payment tbr thc Eligible Portion.

(d) Payrnent and performance bonds, from a bonding compally with an A.M,
Best rating of at least "A-" or its equivalent, applying to plans, stsndards and specifications ftlr
the Acquisition lrnprovemcnts approved by the City Engineer, shall be in place tcl secure

completion of the Aceluisition Improvements of- which thc l3ligible Portion is a part. As an

alternative thereto, Developer may ask the City to retain and reserve the amount of {irnds in the

Acquisition ancl Con.stmction lrund equal to the estimatecl cost to complete such Acquisition

lnrprcrvenrents in the matlner described in Section 2.02(e) above.

(e) J'he arnount paid to the Developer or its designee upon satis{action of the

foregoing conditions precedent shall be the "lnstaliment Payment" with respect to the Eligible

Porlion.

Section 2.06. llubliSetlqnlll*-cUnr1_[UU, Upon a determination by thc City L]ngineer

to pay the Acquisitiotr Price ol an Accprisition Intprovemcnt pursuattt to Scction 2.04 or to pay an

Instailmcut Payment lbr an Eligible Podion thet'eof pursuant to Section 2.05, the City Engineer

shall cause a I)isbursement l{ecprest Fonn substantially in lhe f<lrm attac}recl hereto as l'lxhibil (l
to be slbmitted to the UFD Administrator lbr payment {rorn the Acquisition i'rnd Construction

Iir.rnd. up to lhe Acquisititxr Price or Installment Payment atrount, and the CIFD Adrninistrator

shali autholize sush payment clilectly to the Developer or its designee of the authorizecl amount.

C:\rjlers$k!al!i:ie5kiii,iiinal Fir?l - rltquiiiiior Agl€?iri3it ' iA l'L1.1 - 2 dct 10

Page 106

06/09/2020; Item No.11.



In the event that the Actual Clost of'the Acquisition lmprovements or the Installmerrt

Payment fbr an tlligible Potii:n is in excess of the a.mounts therr available in the Acquisition and

ConstructionFuncl, sr.rbject to any retention of funds as security fbrthework pursuantto Section

2.02(c) and/or for punch lisl work pursuant to Section 2.04(e), the CFD Adrnirristrator and/or: the

City shall withdrarv all f'unds then available in the Acquisition and Construction Fund and shall

transf'er those amounts to thc l)eveloper or its designce. The unpaid portion of the Actual Cost,

as adiusted by the CCI, shall be paid llom ll.rnds that may subsequently be deposited in ancllor

become available tbr payment fiom the Acquisition and Construction Fur:rd. Developer

understands that the Available CFD 23 Proceeds fol the acquisition of the Acquisition
Improvements may not be sutlcient to reimburse the Developer for all of the costs and expenses

constructing the Acquisition lmprovements, or otherwise finance said improvements.

Accordingly, I)eveloper acknowledges and agrees that any shortfall in the Available CFD 23

Proceeds toward the construr:tion and completion of the Acquisition Improvements is the

I)eveloper's sole responsibility, and that the Acquisition Price will be paid solely f'rom the

Available CFD 23 Proceecls. or Jrom any proceeds that may become available for such payment

through the SPIF Program lbr an Acquisition hnprovement includecl in the SPIF Program.

Section 2.07. Pqyrnel!_-ilrl:ull$ius1i*tl,l* ' Developer

hereby designates the Construction Lender as l)eveloper's designee fbr all payments of the

Acquisition Price or an Installment Payment hereunder. Accordingly, notwithstandirrg anything

to the contrary herein. all references to payments from the Acquisition and Construction Fund

being made to "Developel'" or to "I)eveloper or its designee" (or its equivalent) shall instead

require such payments to be paid directly to Construction Lender at the address for Cclnstruction
Lender provided herein. Only if' and when City receives written instructions signed by

Developer and Construction Lender expressly telminating Developer's designation of the

Construction Lender for direct payments l}om the Acquisition and Construction Fund to

Construction Lender will the City thereafter pay any payments hereuncier directly to Developer

or arly other Developer designee.

Thc address fbr 1:ayments to the Construction Lender shall be as lbllows (which may be

revised in writing liom tinie to time by Construction Lender by written notice to City ancl

Developer):

Goodfellorv Bros,, Inc.
P.O. tsox 598
Wenatchee, WA 98{107

Attn: Scott Blaine

'l'he provisions of this Section 2.07 are explessly for the benefit olthe Construction
l,ender ancl rnay not be amended or ternrinated in any way without the prior rvritten consent ol'
the Con.struction Lcncler.

Scrction 2.08, Limitation crn Obligations Notwithstarrding any provision to the contrarl,
in no event shail the Dislrict, the Authotity or rhe City be requirecl to pay the Developer or its
designee more than the arnounts held in the Acquisition and Construction Fund Ibr the

Acquisition Improvenrents uttder this Agreement.

C:luserslsLiahn',3ts'(tcp\Finil final -Acluis:lion Agr€er,'ert. lA ilo i - 2 d€ 11

Page 107

06/09/2020; Item No.11.



Section 2.09. ll*u::uf:fcs;-*Md"r:lg:ALUg. Developer lff.lrrants the Acquisition
lmprovements as to materials ancl workmanship and should any 1'ailure due to faulty design or
materials of the Acquisition Improvernents or any parts thereof occur within a period of one (1)

year after formal acceptance o1'the completed Acquisition Lnprovements by the City in utiting,
Developer shall promptly cause the needed repairs to be made at its sclle cost ancl expcllse,

without any expense or cost to City and rvithout furthel reimbursement from the City. I)eveloper
shall provide to City, at the time of submittal of each paymellt rcqllcst, a wan'anty bond equal to

l0% of the value of each Acquisition Improvement.

City is hereby authorized to make repairs if Developer fails to make, or undertake with
due diligence, the aforesaid repairs within twenty (20) calendar days after it is given witten
notice of such f'ailure, In case of emergency where delay would cause serious hazard to the
public, the necessary repairs may be made by Cily without prior notice to Developer. In all cases

of failure of the Acquisition Improvenients within the wananty period where the City has taken

action in accordance with this palagraph, Developer: shall reimburse City for any and all costs or
expenses, ciireot and indirect, incurred by the City within lhirty (30) calendar days of receiving

invoice fi'om the City. If the Developer fails to timely pay such reimbtrsement, the City may

recover such costs or expenses frorn any and all Available CFD 23 Proceeds in the Acquisition
and Construction F'und, in addition to any and all remedies at law or in equity.

Any warranties, guarantees or other evidence of continuing obligations of third persons

with respect to any Acquisition Improvement to be acquired by the City shall be delivered to the

Director as pafi of the conveyance of the Acquisition Improvcment. No later than the time fbr
such conveyance, the Devel<lper shall verify and confinn exi$tence of a fi.rnding mechanism
acceptable to City for the ongoing maintenance of the Acquisition Imptovements in accorclance

with applicabie City stanclards, policies and ordinances and for such periods as &rc required by

applicable City standards, policies and ordinances.

ARllCI,h III

MISCEI,I,ANEOUS

Section 3.01. hUlernniJrcgrljq! Qrtlt-L]old*Uiffi,ls'$$. l.he Developer hereby assumes the

defense of, and inclemnifies and saves liarmless the City, the Authority, tlre District, and their

respective officers, directors, ernployees and ageuts (collectively, the "Indemnitees"), froln and

against all actions, damages, clairns. losses ol' expenses of every type and description including
but nor limited to personal injury, or bodily injury including dcath, as well as litlrn claims lor
praperly damage rvltich may arise li'orn the operations of the Developer or its c<xtractots,

subcontractors, agcnts, or crnployees, to which the Indernnitees rnay be subiected ol put, by

reason of, or resulting f}orn ol alleged to have resulted fi'orn the acts or omissions of the

Devcloper or its contraclors, subcontractors, agents or enrployees arising ortt of- any contract for
the design, engineering and construction of the Acquisition Improvemetlts cntered into by or for
the Dcveloper, ol arising out of any alleged rnisstatements oI fhct or alleged omission of a

material fact matle by the Devclopcr, its officers, directors, employees or agents to the District's
rundcrrvriter" ilnarrcial advisor, appraiser, district engiueer or lrond counsel or regarcling the

I)eveloper, its proposed developments, its property oi,vnership and its contractual at.rangements

C:\Users\st!afiiDesklorlijiiJ iiiral ",tillisiii$ A5,p,rn nl, lF. fk' i 2 ln t2

Page 108

06/09/2020; Item No.11.



contained in the official statenlent relating to the l)istrict financing (Developer hereby

acknowleclges that it has been tirnished a copy of the otl*rcial statenrent fclr the District and has

ngt gbjectcd thercto). Ncthing in this Section 3.01 shall limit in any mernnor the City's riglits

againsi a1y gl'the Developer's architects, engineers, contractors or other consultants. Except as

sJt forth in this Sectiol 3.01, no provision of this Agreement shali in any way limit the extent of
the responsibility of the Developer forpayment of damages resulting from the operations of the

Developer, its ;gents and empioyees. Nothing in this Section 3.01 shall be understood or

construed lo mean that the Developer agrees to inclemnify the lndernnitees for any wrongful acts'

witlful misconduct, active negligence or omissions to act of the Indemnitees. It is understood

that the duty of Developer" to inclernnify and hold harmless includes the duty to defend as set

l.o1rh in Section 2778 of tlie California Civil Code. Acceptance by City of any insurance

certif'rcates or endorsements does not relieve l)eveloper from liability under this iildemnification

and hold hannless clause. This indemnification and hold harmless clause shall apply to any

damages or claims lor clamages whether or not such insurance policies shall have been

determined to apply. By execution ol'this Agreement, Developer acknowledges and agrees to

the provisionr #thir Section ancl that it is a material element of consideration. The firregoing

ilclemlity obligation of the Developer shall survive the termination or expiration of this

Agreement.

Sectiol3.02. Apdit. The City shall have the right, during nor:nal business hours aucl

upon the giving oflten days' written notice to the Developer, to review all books and records of
the Developer pertaining to costs and expetlsss incurred by the l)eveloper (for which the

Developer seeks reimbuisernent pursuant t<l this Agreement) ilr constructing the Acquisition

lmprovements.

Section 3.03. egggg1g1i!,q. 'fhe City and the Developer agree to cooperate with respect

to the completion of the filancing of the Acquisition Improvements by the Distriot through the

levy of thaSpecial Taxes and issuance of Bonds. The City and the Developer agree to meet in

goua taitn to resolve any clitTerences on f'u1ure matters which are not specilically coveted by this

Agreenrent.

Section 3.04. Ccnerai- Stanclarcl uli llcasottQblettes't. Any provision of this Agreement

wfuiclr requires thc consent, approval or acceptance of either parly heretc) or any of their

respectir.,e employees, gfficers or agents shall be deemed to require that the consettt, approval or

acceptance not be unreasonably withheld or cleiayed, unless the provision expressly iucolporates

a different slandard. The foregoing provision sirall not apply to provisions in the Agreement

which provide for decisions to be in the sole discretion of the party malcing the decision.

Section 3.05. "Ihinl Pgty lleneLtgljggi!. It is expressly agreed that there are no third

par:ty benefrciaries of this Agreement. including without limitation any owners of Bonds, any of
ihr i:jty'*, I)istricl's or Developer"s contractors tbr the Acquisition Improvements and any o{'the

City's, District's or the Developer's agents and enlployees'

Section 3.06. egulic-1,- rgfur__Q_tb9,|j_$g1'ctrm$rrt$. Nothing contained herein shall be

construcd as releasing the Developer or llte City t}om any condition of devclopment or

requirement imposed by un;, other agreemcnt betrveen the City and the Developer, alxi, in the

Clue€rsisirahnioesllcililirai Flrril ' Acqrisiiion Ag.eelE!d ' lA I'i0 1 - , toc 13

Page 109

06/09/2020; Item No.11.



event of'a conflicting provision, thc other agreement shall prevail unless thc conflicting provision

is specificnlly waived or moditred in r,vriting by the City and the Developer.

Section 3.07. Ngtice$. All inr.'oices fbr paymeut, reports, other communicatiou and

notices relating to this Agreement shall be mailecl or e-mailed to:

l'l'ts the C.lity

Chief Firrancial Officer
City of Folsom
50 Natoma Street
F'olsom, CA 95630
E-rnail : stalxngnii{t [ols{ltt.qq.us

With a copy to:

City Attomey
City o1'Folsom
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA 95630
E-mail : srvansiriifb !$!ltx,{l:3,}l$

IJ trulx-DelglCIpEs:

East Carperrter lmprovemenl Cornpany, [,LC
4370 Town Center BIvd., Suite 100

El Doraclo Hills, CA 95762
Attention: William B. Bunge

E-nrail : bbuneciijll}vcsl I urrtlclt. gUIl

With a copy to:

Helirer Law
2150 River Plaza Drive, Ste. 450

Sacramento, CA 95833
Attention: Timothy f). Taron
E - m ai I : t t iu gli &il.llLu t li*,rng.:$l

Either party may change its address by giving notice in writing to the other party'

Sectiol3.O8. gqyqratrlli{r,- Ifi any part of this Agreemenl is held to be illegal or

unenforceable by u ro"ii"of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this Agreement shall be

given effect to the fullest extcnt reasonably possible.

Sectiol3.09. (iirvq1t11tg-kly. 'I'his Agreement and any dispute arising hereunder shall

be govemed by anc! interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State oll Calitbrnia. Any action

broirght relating tg this Agreernent shall be lreld exclusively in a statc court in the County of
Sactamento.

Section 3.10, W_4tygi. Failure by a party to insist upon the strict perftl:mance of any of
the proyisiotrs of this Agreement by the other pafiy, or the failure by aparty to exercise its rights

upon the defnglt of the other party. shail not constitute a rvaiver of such patly's right to insist and

demancl strict co:npliance by the other party r.vith the terms of this Agreetnent.

Sectiol3.11. $insul$t:-utt1-ll1gl:!L][iglrd$I:. As used herein, the singular of any word

include.s the ph.rral. and terms in the mascr"rline gencler shall inclucle the i'eminine.

Section 3.12. !SUtI_qlrU-1,:. This Agreenent nlay be executcd in coturterpafis, each of
which shall be cleemed ati or:iginal'

Ci\Ug€rs\skreiil.l€slillpiFilal Filil ' Ac0lisi',iof, t\gteem€0i' lA No l ' 2 iioc t4

Page 110

06/09/2020; Item No.11.



Section 3.13. Suc*ee.sors irrlcl As$igns. This Agreement is binding upon the heirs,

assigls and sur:cessors-in-interest of the parties hereto, The Developer may not assign its rigirts

or gbligations hereunder, except to strccessors-in-interesl to the property rvithin the District,

withouitle prior written consent of the City, which consent shall not be unreasonably rvithheld.

Section3.l4. Ig,gnredies i* $,enstrtl. It is acknorvledged by the parties that lhe City

woulcl not have enterecl into this Agreement if it were to be liable in damages under or with

respect to this Agreement or the application thereof, and therefore the Developer hereby waives

any and all claims for clamages against the City and its ofTicers, agents and employees lbr breach

of this Agreement. This waiver of damages by Developel' shall not preclude any action by

Developer:to specifically enforce thc obligations of the City hereunder ttl review and approve for

accepturce un,t acquisition the Accluisition Improvements constructed by Developer in

a6oi.d*re wittr the terms hercof and to process applications for payment with the CFD

Administrator for payment to l)eveloper ftnm the Acquisition and Construction Fund of the

approved Acquisition Price fbr each of the Acquisition Improvements completed by Developer'

The parties fuither acknowleclge that damages are not a remedy under this Agreement,

ald thus, while in general each ol'the parties hereto may purslle any remedy at law or equity

available tor the bleach of any provision of this Agreement, the City shall not be liable in
damages to the Developer, or to any assignee or transferee o['the Developer. The Developer

nt*y, *ithuut any claim for damages of any kind, in addition to other rights or remedies, institute

an action to cure, correct, specifically enforce or remedy any def.ault in the processing of the

payments to the Developer specified in this Agreement. Subject to the foregoing, the l)eveloper

covenants not to sue for or claim any damages for any alleged breach of, or dispute which arises

out of, this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WFIEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the day and

year written above.

DEVELOPER

East Carpenter Improvement Company, LLC,
a California limited liability company

BY; HBT ECIC,LLC,
a Califcrmia limited liability company

Its: Managing Member

By
Name: William B. Bnnce
Its: Manager

C:'lusers$kriliriD3skl0piiina: i-iftal . Acii$silicn Agleenttri ' lA l'10.1 ' 2 iiOc l5

Page 111

06/09/2020; Item No.11.



CITY OIr tsOLSOM, A Municipal Corporation:

Date

ATTEST:

Elaine Anderson, City Manager

FUNDINC AVAILABLE:

Christa Freemantle, City Clerk Stacey Tamagni, Chief Financial Officer

ORIGINAL APPROVED AS'tO CONTENT: ORTGINAL APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Pam Johns, Director
Communi ty l)evelopment Department

Steven Warg, City Attorney

C:luserssk$hniDesiil0F\Filil F{i€l - Acqilieilioc Agleanenl ' :A No'i ' z.dm 16

Page 112

06/09/2020; Item No.11.



CBRTI!'ICATE OF ACKNO\VLHDGMtrNI'pursuant to Civil Code, Section 1189, must

be provided.

A certificate of acklorvledgment in accordance with the provisions of Calitbrnia Clivil Code

section 1 I 89 rnust be attachecl for each person executing this agrcement on behalf o1l Developer

This section provides, at part (b): "Any cerlificate of acknowledgment taken in another place

shnll be sufficient in. tliis stat* if it is taken in accordance with the lar,vs of the place where tlie

acknclwledgment is made,"

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate vcrifies only the ideniity of the individurl rvho

signed tirj document to which this certificnte is attached, and not the truthfulness' accllracy, or validity of
that docuntent.

S'|ATE OF CALIFORNIA

COUNI'Y OF SACRAKIENTO

)
)"t
)

On
personally appeared wlro prcved to me on the basis of satisfactory

eviderrce to be the person(s) whose name(s)

to me that he/she/they executed tlre same in

signature(s) on the instnttnent tlre person(s),

executed the instrument.

I certify uncler PENALTY OF PtiR.ftJRY under the laws o1'the State of Calif<rrnia that the fbregoing

paragraph is true atrd eorrect. WI'INESS my hand and official seal.

Signature (Seal)

before ffie, -*-' , NotarY Ptrblic,

is/are subscribcd to the withirr instrument and acknowledged

hislher/their authorized capacitl,(ies), and that by his/her/their
or the entity upon behalf of which the pcrson(s) acted,

C iJ:rrlisl.iahr'!0{jsklcp\fif;?ll Finai ' A|{!is;lion Aireercnl t'! Nc 1 ' : do. t7

Page 113

06/09/2020; Item No.11.



ACOUISITION IMIIIIOYENTJIII.]:S* ES I]IMA'T'ED AMOTNT$.

l. lloitihytl: Iinproy.cmcnts

(a) East lSidwell Street

(b) Alder Creek Pmkrvay - from East Bidwell Street to Placerville
Road.

(c) Savannah Parkway -:from East Ilidwell Street to Grand Prairie
Drive

NOTE: Mangini Phuse 2 is required to build imltrovements at
Wkite R<tck Road, vvltich may be included in the eligible

,fucilities,

(d) Westwood l)rive * fi'om Placerville Road to Phase I terminus

(.e) -llaf'fic Signals - at selected intersections:

r Alder Creek ParkwaylE Bidwell (Spfii Irrtersection #5)
. Alder Creek Parkway/Westwood Dr (SPIF Intersection

#6)
r Savannah Parkway/E Bidwell (SPIF Intersection #11)
. Savannah Palkway/Westwood Dr (SPIF Intersection

#t?)

(f) Internal subdivision streets and related undergtound utilities.

(g) Other public roadw'ay improvements designed to meet the
needs of development within CFD 23.

$ 6,500,000

$ 8,500,000

$ 8,500,000

$ 5,000,000

$ 2,500,000

$ 15,000,000

2, Xater Svstem Imprg-vp{nents

All r.vater iacilities desigr:ed to meet the needs of developrnent
within Cll,D 23, including:

(a) water storage, treattnent and distribution facilities inclrrding
warterlines and appurtenances, gale valrres, pressure reducing

BXIIIBIT;\ TO THR ACQUISITION AGITEEMIiNT

DESCRIPTTON OF ACQI J I SlrlON IMPROVEMEN',I S AND ES'ftMA'l'AD AMOIINTS

A-1

$ 6,000,000

Page 114

06/09/2020; Item No.11.



stations, flow meters, fire hydrants, and other improvements

related thelelo such as site clearing, gr:adiltg and paving; curbs

and gutters;

(b) booster pump stalions;

(c) stand-by generator:s;

(d) site liglrting, drainage, sanitaty sewer, and water service;

(e) lzrnclscaping and irrigation;

(0 access gates, and tbncing; and striping and signage'

N1,A

Incl. above
Incl. above

Incl. above

3. Itecvcl*tl lVntlcr: liyft,em lnrrrrovo{renffi

Any and all recycled tvater system facilities designed to meet the

needs of development within CFD 23, including:

(a) treatment and distribution {hcilities including pipelines and

appurtenances, gate valves, fk:w meters, booster pump

pressurization system, and other improvements related thereto -

such as site clearirig, grading and paving; curbs and gutters;

(b) booster pump stations;

(c) sttrnd-by generators;

(d) site lighting, drainage, sanitaty sewer, and water service;

(e) landscaping and inigation; and

access gates, and fencing; ancl sttiping and signage.

N/A

N/A
N/A

N/A
Incl. above

N/A

4.,llrniqllue liysttnt Intnrtlveiltents

Any and all drainage and storm drain improvemsnts designed tcr

meet the needs of development within CFD 23, including:

(a) excavation and grading, pipelines and appurlen.lnces, outfalls

and water qualily measures, detention/retention basins,

drainage pretreatment facilities, drainage rvays/cirannels, pump

statious, landscaping and inigation; and

access roads, gates, ancl llncing; ancl striping and signage and olher
improvements relatecl thereto.

$7,500,000

.$ 1,250,000

5. Wastewater Systcrm Improvements

z\ny and all lvastewater lacilities designed to meet the needs of

A-2

Page 115

06/09/2020; Item No.11.



development within CFD 23, including:

(a) pipelines and all appuftenances thereto;

(b) manholes;

(c) tie-in to existing main line;

(d) force mains;

(e) lift stations:

(t) odor-control fhcilities; and

(g) permifting related thereto; and related sewer systcm
improvements.

(h)

$ I ,ooo,ooo
Incl. above

Incl. above

CFD l8 improvenrent
CfD 18 improvement
N/A

Incl. above

6. Park, Parkrvay and Open Space Improvements

Any ald all improvements to patks, parkways and open space

required fcrr development within CFD 23, including:

(a) glading, turt, shrubs and trees,landscaping irigation, site

lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer and watet serviceo pedestrian

and bicycle fiails, protective fencing (including soundwalls).
pedestrian/bicycle bridges, storm drain crossings, wetland
mitigation, harvk mitigation for authorized facilities herein,

access gates and fencing and related open space improvenents;
and

(b) acquisition of any and all parkland as well as open spacelbike
trail/public access easements required for development within
cl.D 23.

$ 2,500,000

NiA

7. Specific Plan Inf'rastructure Fee Infrastructure

Any and all improvetncnts that are included in the Specific Plan

Infrastructure Fee Program adopted by the Cifv Council on

September 8,2015, including any future amenclmenls thereto.

By way of example. Developer may include fbe advances lbr Set

Aside I,ees, Roadways ot'Water System lmprovements'

$ 10,000,000

A-3

Page 116

06/09/2020; Item No.11.



* (NOTE: For this Agreement, Atquisition hnprovemenls Ltmited ta Authorizecl Facilities
described in Resolutktn of Formation for CFD 23, and Componenls lhereof

A-4

Page 117

06/09/2020; Item No.11.



EXHIBIT B TO THE ACQUISITION AGREEMENT

DESCIUPTION OF ELIGIBLE PORTIONS
or ACQUISITION IMPROVnMENTS,

INCLUDING RT,LATAD DESIGN COSTS

[None]

B-1

Page 118

06/09/2020; Item No.11.



trxHttsrT c To THE ACQUTSITION AGREEMENT

DISBURSEMENT REQUEST FORM
(Acquisitinn Improvement or Eligible Portion)

'fo: F'olsom Ranch Financing Authority LIFD Adrninistrator (Cornmunity lracilities
I)istrict No. 23) Itnprovement Area No. I
Attention
B-mail:
Phone:

Re Cornmunity F'acilities District No. 23, Improvement Area No. 1

I)isbursemcnt

Tlhe undersigned, a duly authorized otficer of'the Developer, hereby requests a

withdrawal from the City of Folsom Community l.acilities District No. 23 Acquisition and

Construction Fund, as follows:

Request Date: [Insert Date of l{equest]

Withdrawal Amount: finsert Accluisition Price/Installment Payment]

Acquisition Imprnvements : flnsert Description o.f Acquisition Improvernent(s)/Eligible
Porlion(s) from Exhibit A.l

Paynent lnstructions: linsert Wire Instr:uctions or Payment Addless for
Construction Lencler, or Developer or other Developer
designee provided by the Developer after tennination of
direct payments to Construction Lender per Section 2.07]

The undersigned hereby certi{ies as follows:

The Withdrawal is being made in accordance with a pelmitted use of the monies pursuant

to the Acquisition Agreement and the Withdrawai is not being made for the purpose of
reirvestmenl.

None of the items for which paynrent is requcsted ltave been reimbursed previously fiom
the Acquisition and Construction l;urcl.

If the Withdrawal Amounl is greater than the funds held in the u\cquisition and

Construction Fund, the CFD Administrator is ar:thorized to pay the amount of such funds
(excluding any amounts being retained therein as directed by the City in lieu of Performance and

Payment Bonds and/or for punch list work) and to pay renairiing amoturt(s) as funds are

subsequently depositecl in and/or beoorne availablc for paymcnt iltin tlie Accluisition and

Clonstructiort Fund, shoitld that occur,

c-1

Page 119

06/09/2020; Item No.11.



I)eveloper:

[Name of Developerl

Authorized Representative

Approvecl By:

City of Folsom

City Engineel

c-2

Page 120

06/09/2020; Item No.11.



EXHIBIT D TO THN ACQUISITION AGREEM&NT

INSUI{ANCE REQUIREN/IENTS

NO'I'E: The word "Consultanf in this llxhibit refers to either "Clonsultant", o'l)eveloper" or

'oContractor" as the term is used in the Agreement/Contract to which this Exhibit is

attached.

A, During the term of this Agreement, Consultant shall maintain in full fcrrce and elfecl at

all times during the term of the contract, at its sole cost and expense, policies of
insurancs as set forth herein:

l. Ge*srq!.Lisbilttx:

&. General liability insurance including, but not lirnited to, protection for claims

of b<ldily injury and properly damage liability, personal and advertising injury
liability and product and completed operations liability.

b. Coverage shall be at least as broad as Insurance Services Office Comnrercial

General Liability covetage fonn CG 0001 (occurrence)'

, c. Claims-made ooverage is not acceptable'

d. The limits of liability shall not be less than:
Each occurrence: One Million Dollars ($1,000,000)

Products & Completed Operations: One Million Dollars ($1,000,000)

Personal & Advertising Injury: One Million Dollars ($1,000,000)

e. If a general aggregate limit of liability is used, the minimr;m general aggregate

shall be twice the 'each occufrence' limit or the policy shall contain an

endorssmenl stating that the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to

the project thal is the subject o1'the contract,

f: If a products and completecl operations aggregate limit of liability is usecl, the

rninimum ploducts and completed operation aggregate shall be twice the 'each

oocgrrerlce' lirnit or the policy shall contain an endol'sement stating that tlre
products and completed operations aggregate limit shall apply separately lo the

project which is the subjeot of the contract.

g. If the Consultant nraintains higher limits than the minimums shora,'n above, the

City requires ancl shall be entitled to coverage .[br the higher lintits maintained

by the Consultant. Any available insurance proceecls in excess of the specified

minirnum limits of insurance and coverage shall be available to the City.

2. Aulo$ubr-!q-Lur-bd:-tv":

a. AutomoLrile liabiiity irrsurance providing protection against slaims of boclily

injury and properl_v damage arising out of ownership, opertrtion. maintenance,

or use of owtted, hired, ancl non-or.vned autornobiles.

b. Coverage shall be at least as broad as Insurance Services Office Automobile
l,iability ooverage tbnn CA 0001, synrbol 1 (any auto).

D-l

Page 121

06/09/2020; Item No.11.



c. l'he limits of liability per acciclent shall not be loss than:

Combined Single Limit One Millir:n Dollars ($1,000,000)

d. If Autornobile Liability coverage, as required abovc, is providcd by the

Commercial General Liability fbrm, the General l.iability policy shall inclucle

an enclorsement providing automobile liability as rcquired above.

3. Wort.ers' -flenurens{titrn
a. Workers' Compensation Insurance, with coverage as required by the State of

California (unless the Consultant is a qualitled self-insurer with the State of
Cali fornia), and Employer' s Liability coverage,

b. Employer:'s Liability Coverage with a limit not less than $1,000,000 per

accident for bodily injury and disease.

0. Consultant shall sign and file with the City department responsible for this
AgreementlContruct the Worker's Compensation Certificate contained in the

Project Manual,

4. hisilrarrog R$quile{t iil tlre $.upplpnrsnter.v Ce$diti0nq: Consultant shall be required

to comply with all conditions as stipulated in the Standard Constructjon
Specifications, any supplernenteuy conditions and any special provisions as

applicable.

5. 1}:oii:gsigwl Liabilit_y lnsr!f$$clq.: lf requirecl, errors ar:rd otnissions, malpractice or
professional liability insurance with coverage of not less t}lan $1,000,000 per

occuilence.

6. Other ln.surance Ptovistens:

a. The Consultant's General Liability and Automobile Liability policies shall

contain, or be enclorseci to coutain, the fbllowing provisions:

i. The City, its officials, employees, agents and volunteers shall be covered
and specifically named as additional insureds on a separate endorsement

as respects liability arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of
the Consultant, products and completcd operations of the Consultant,
premises owned, occupied, or used by the Consultant, ot' automobiles

owncd, leased, hired, or borrowed by the Consultanl in a fonn acceptable

to the City Attorney.

ii, The Endorsement requirement may be satisfied u,ith exprcss provisions in
the insurance policy(ies) which iclenti{ies any person or cntity required to
be inclucled as ar1 insured under the polioy. A copy of the declarations
page identifying the policy number, and pertinent provisions in the policy
providing additional insured coverage shall be provided to the City.

iii. 'lhe policy shall cr:ntain no special limitations on the scope of coverage

alforded trl tlre City. its otflcials, employees, agents or volunteers.

b. For any claims related to the pro.iect, the Consultant's General l,iability and

Autornobile insurance coverage shall be prirnary insurance in their c,ol'erage of
the City and its otficers, cllficials, employees, agents. or voiunteers, and atry

insrrarce or sell'-insurance nrainlainec'l by the City, its olficers, officials,
employees. agents or volunteers shirll be excess of the Consultant's insurance

and shall not contribute r.vith it.

D-2

Page 122

06/09/2020; Item No.11.



c, Any failure to comply with reporting or other provisions of the policies on the
part of the Consultant. including breaches ol' warranties, shall not al'fect
coverage provided to the City, its officers, officials, empk:yees, agents or
volunteers.

d. 'fhe Consultant's Workers Compensation ancl Employer's Liability policies
shall contain an endorsement that r.vaives any rights ol'subrogalion against the
City, its officers, officials, employees, agcnts, and volunteers.

e. Each insurance policy shall state thett coverage shall not be suspended, voided,
canceled by eithel party, reduced in coverage or in lirnits, non-renewed, or
materially changed except after"30 days prior rvritten notice by oertified rnail
has been given to the City. 'fen days prior written notice by certified mail shall
be given to the City in the event of canceliation due to nonpayment of
premium,

7.@Insuranceistobep1acedwithinsulerswithaBcsts'
rating of no less than A:YIL

8. The Consultant shall furnish the City with Certificates of Insurance and
en.dorsements or insurance binders, signed by a person authorized by the insuer to
bind coverage on its behalf, evidencing the coverage requirecl by this seclion, the
Standard Specifications, Special Provisions and/or any Supplementary Conditions,
llli* (brlsultrrnt shall fitrnish ctnrnlcts.,,,,ssr.{itis,r1 , cpDics of all requircd
iil$,ilr$n*CI nillicies. iriSlucliriq or:irrirlal fqtlpl:s*rirsnt. speeifically req$ir:cd

t Rfpir nil rr if requ e.rted.

9, The Consultant shail rcport, by telephone to the Project Manager within 24 hours,
and also repofi in writing to the City within 48 hours, after Consultant or any
Subcontraotors ol agents have knowledge ofl any accident or occulrence involving
death 0f 0r serious injory to any person or persons, or damage in excess of 'I'en

Thousand Dollars ($i0,000) to property of the Clty or others. arising out of any
work done by or'on behalf oflthe Consultant as part of the contract.

10. Such report shall contain:

a. the date and time of the occurlence,

b. the names and aclclresses of all persons involved, and

c. a clescription of the accident or occuuenoe and the nature and extent of the
injury or damage.

1 L The City, at its discretioll, rllay increase the amounts and types o{ insurance
coverage rcquircd hereunder at any time during the term of the contract by giving
30 clays written notice.

12. If the Consuitant l'ails to procule or maintain insurance as required by this sectiott,
the Standard Specifications, and any Supplemelltal'y Conditions, or f-ails to furnish
the Clity tvith proof'of such insurance. the City, at its discretion, rnay procure any or
all such insurance. I'remiums fbl such insuratrce procured by the Clity shall be
declucted ancl r"etainecl tlorn any snms due the Consr"rltanl under the contract.

13. F'ailure ol'the City to obtain such insurarrce shall in tro way relieve the Clonsultant
f}orn any o{'its responsibilities under t}re contract,

D-j

Page 123

06/09/2020; Item No.11.



14. The rnaking of progless paymerlts to the Consultant shall not be construed as

relieving the Consultant or its Subcontractors of responsibility tbr loss or direct
physical loss, damage, or destruction occurring prior to final acceptance by the

City.

15. The failure of the City to enfbrce in a timely manner any of the provisions o1 this
section shall not act as a waiver to enforcement of any of these provisions at any
time during the term ol'tlre ctlntract,

16. In the event Consultant carries Excess t,iability Coverage, the Excess Liability
Coverage shall apply to any and all slaims related to the project on a primary and

non-contributory basis, and the City's insurance or self-insurancs coverage shall be

excess to the Consultant's Excess Liability Coverage.

D-4

Page 124

06/09/2020; Item No.11.



Folsom City Council
Staff Re rt

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

Move to approve Resolution No. 10469 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to
Execute a Communications Site License Agreement with CCTM1 LLC at Mann Park Site.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

ht 1995, Pacific Bell Mobile Services entered into a Communications Site Lease Agreement
for the site at Mann Park. In 1996 Amendment No. 1 made minor revisions to the
descriptions of the property and premises. Pacific Bell Mobile Services, through a series of
merges and transfers eventually became T-Mobile and in 2012through an Assignment and
Assumption Agreement, CCTM1, a subsidiary of Crown Castle, took over the
Communications Site Lease Agreement. The existing agreement had an initial term that
commenced on December 13, 1995 and expired on December 12,2000. The existing
agreement provides for five extensions of five years each and the first four have been
exercised. The final extension is set to expire December 12,2025.

In2019, the City consented to additional modifications of the site resulting in Verrzon co-
locating their equipment at the existing site in the future. The 1995 agreement did not
provide for additional rent to the City as a result of adding an additional provider to co-locate
on our site.

MEETING DATE: 61912020

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10469 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute a Communications Site License Agreement
with CCTM1 LLC at Mann Park

FROM: Parks and Recreation Department

1

Page 125

06/09/2020; Item No.12.



POLICY / RULE

In accordance with Chapter 2.36 of the Folsom Municipal Code, supplies, equipment,
services, and construction with a value of $62,014 or greater shall be awarded by City
Council.

ANALYSIS

Crown Castle is the largest wireless infrastructure provider in the US. As current manager of
the cell tower site at Mann Park, they reached out to the City to initiate a new agreement.
The final extension of the existing agreement expires on December 12,2025 andwill remain
in place. There is a desire by both the City and CCTMI to have a concurrent new agreement
in place to update the terms and conditions to address the addition of co-location, new fees

and to also extend the term of the License.

The rent under the existing agreement is $9,655 annually for the remaining five years (2020 -
2025) of the agreement. If the new agreement is authorized, the first year's rent will add an

additional $28,345 per year of new revenue, for a total annual rent of $38,000. Rental
agreement will include a3o/o annual increase.

The proposed terms for the Communications Site License Agreement at Mann Park include
the following:

1. The existing agreement will remain in effect until it expires in2025.
2. The new Communications Site License Agreement will commence concurrently with

the existing agreement. The first l0-year term of the new agreement will expire on
December 13,2030, with four automatic extensions of five years each for a total of
30 years, which could bring this agreement through 2050.

3. The new agreement adds additional rent for the first five years over the existing
contract bringing the total rent to $38,000 beginning in2020 with a 3 oh arrnual
increase.

4. The new agreement includes co-location fees equal to 50o/o of the revenue received
from the additional providers who are co-locating. In the case of Verizon, co-location
fees will start at $13,500 in2020 with a 2.75% annual increase.

5. The new agreement includes a one-time conditional signing bonus of $25,000 within
60 days of full execution of this agreement.

6. The new agreement will be in a form acceptable to the City Attorney's office.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

The new agreement adds an additional $1,759,591 of revenue to the City if all extensions are

exercised through 2050 along with a $25,000 conditional signing bonus to be received in
2020. The co-location revenue for Verizon would be an additional $616,877 through 2050.
The table below reflects the revenues over the next ten years ifthere are no other changes:

2
Page 126

06/09/2020; Item No.12.



2020
2021

2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030

Existing Agreement

$ 9,655.00

$ 9,655.00

$ 9,655.00

$ 9,655.00

$ e,655.00

New Agreement

$ 28,345.00
$ 29,485.00
$ 30,659.20
$ 31,868.63
$ 33,114.34

$ 44,052.42

$ 45,373.99
$ 46,735.21

$ 48,137.27

$ 49,581.39
$ 51,068.83

Co-Location Fees

$ 13,500.00

$ 13,871.25

$ 14,252.71

$ 14,644.66

$ 15,047.39

$ 15,461.19

$ 15,886.37

$ 16,323.25

$ 16,772.14

$ 17,233.37

$ 17,70729

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

Environmental review is not required pursuant to section 15301 of the CEQA Guidelines
(related to Existing Facilities) and section 15303 of the CEQA Guidelines (related to new
construction or conversion of small structures). Based on staff s analysis, none of the
exceptions in Section 15300.2 of the CEQA Guidelines apply to the use of the categorical
exemptions in this case.

ATTACHMENT

Resolution No. 10469 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a
Communications Site License Agreement with CCTMI, LLC at Mann Park

Submitted,

Lorraine Poggione, Parks & Recreation Director

a
J

Page 127

06/09/2020; Item No.12.



RESOLUTION NO. 10469

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A
COMMUNICATIONS SITE LICENSE AGREEMENT WITH CCTM1,LLC

AT MANN PARK

WHEREAS' Pacific Bell Mobile Services entered into a Communications Site License
Agreement in December 1995 for development of a wireless communications facility at Mann
Park; and

WHEREAS' Amendment No. 1 made minor revisions to the descriptions of the property
and premises; and

WHEREAS' the existing agreement had an initial term that commenced on December
13,1995 and expired on December 12,2000; and

WHEREAS' the existing agreement provided for five extensions of five years each for a
total of 30 years; and

WHEREAS' the first four extensions were exercised by the Original Licensee; and

WHEREAS' the final extension of the existing agreement will expire on December 12,

2025; and

WHEREAS, through a series of merges and transfers Pacific Bell Services became T-
Mobile; and

WHEREAS, through an assignment and assumption agreement in 2012 CCTMI, a
subsidiary of Crown Castle International Corporation, took over the Communications Site
License Agreement; and

WHEREAS, both CCTM1 and the City of Folsom desire to update the terms and
conditions and extend the term of the License; and

WHEREAS, the new Communications Site License Agreement will commence
concurrently with the existing agreement and continue after the existing agreement expires in
2025; and

WHEREAS, the new Communications Site License Agreement will expire on December
13,2030 with four automatic extensions of five years each for a total of 30 years; and

WHEREAS, the annual rent for the new Communications Site License Agreement starts
at $28,345 and when combined with the existing annual rent of $9,655 brings the annual rent to
$38,000 with a 3Yo anrual increase; and

Resolution No. 10469
Page 1 of2

Page 128

06/09/2020; Item No.12.



WHEREAS, the co-location fee will be 50Yo of their rental fees received from
Additional Providers resulting in an additional annual co-location fee of $13,500 with a 2.75%
annual increase; and

WHEREAS' CCTM1 will pay a one-time conditional signing bonus of $25,000 within
60 days of full execution of this agreement; and

WHEREAS, the agreement will be in a form acceptable to the City Attorney;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom
authorizes the City Manager to execute a Communications Site License Agreement with
CCTMI, LLC at Mann Park.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 9th day of June 2020, by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):

Sarah Aquino, MAYOR

ATTEST

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10469
Page2 of2

Page 129

06/09/2020; Item No.12.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 130

06/09/2020; Item No.12.



Folsom City Council
Staff ort

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

Staff respectfully requests that the City Council approve Resolution No. 10471 - A
Resolution Approving the Folsom Tree Care and Maintenance Standards and the Folsom
Master Tree List.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

Trees provide an essential contribution to the general welfare, economic vitality, and overall
beauty and character of Folsom. In 1995, the City Council adopted a Tree Preservation
Ordinance (Folsom Municipal Code Chapter 12.16) primarily to establish and maintain tree
cover and promote conservation of tree resources. In the 25 years since that time, staff has
relied on guidance from standards for tree management published by the American National
Standards Institute (ANSD and a master tree list created and maintained by the City Arborist
to enforce the purpose and provisions of the Tree Preservation Ordinance.

1. Throughout the course of the original Tree Preservation Ordinance, several
challenges were identified by city staff and stakeholders (residents, developers,
arborists) with interpreting/implementing the code as written. As such, city staff
launched a planned approach for updating the Tree Preservation Ordinance in April of
2019 in a focused effort to solve problems and give us more tools in our toolbelts to
better protect and preserve trees. Through the initial outreach efforts with residents
and stakeholders, staff garnered voiced feedback reflecting the following focal

I

MEETING DATE: 61912020

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10471 - A Resolution Approving the Folsom
Tree Care and Maintenance Standards and Folsom Master Tree
List

FROM: Community Development Department

Page 131

06/09/2020; Item No.13.



problems with the old ordinance: Lack of clear and common understanding/definition
of regulated activities.

2. Ambiguities regarding prohibited activities.

3. Lack of reference to or incorporation of best management practices and standards for
tree preservation.

In response to these identified issues, staff incorporated references to ANSI A300 Standards

for Tree Care Operations - Tree, Shrub, and Other Woody Plant Management as well as the
International Society of Arboriculture's (ISA) Best Management Practices companion series

into the updated Tree Preservation Ordinance. To go a step further, staff also introduced into
the new ordinance, the concept of a set of standards for the care and maintenance of
protected trees that would be specific to the City of Folsom.

On January 28,2020, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 1299 - An Ordinance
Repealing and Replacing the Tree Preservation Ordinance as Set Forth in Chapter 12.16 of
the Folsom Municipal Code, which incorporates the approved tree species and tree

management practices outlined in the Folsom Master Tree List and the Folsom Tree Care and

Maintenance Standards.

POLICY / RULE

ANSI 4300 Standards are nationally recognized standards for tree management published by
Tree Care Industry Association, Inc. The ISA Best Management Practices are companion
publications to ANSI ,A300 and supply easily digestible guidance and context to the
standards. Although ANSI A300 Standards and ISA best management practices are the
driving forces for tree work standards among the certified arborist community, they are not
documents that are easily accessible to the general public. Therefore, a set of standards have

been developed by staff to provide guidance on proper tree management practices to Folsom
residents.

The Folsom Tree Care and Maintenance Standards fuses the ideals and practices of these

documents with the rules and policies outlined in the Folsom Municipal Code and the City's
Design Guidelines to provide guidance to the user on the topics of tree planting, tree pruning,

tree management during construction, and landscaping activities near trees. The document
also delineates required practices when working on protected trees and thresholds and
processes for Tree Permits.

The Folsom Master Tree List, though never formally adopted by City Council, has been a

heavily relied upon document by staff and stakeholders alike over the past several years.

Maintained by the city arborist, the Master Tree List establishes those tree species that are

best suited to be planted as street trees and parking lot shading trees. The List also provides
helpful information to the user regarding mature size, water needs, and minimum required
distances from hardscape per species. The attached Folsom Master Tree List has been

2
Page 132

06/09/2020; Item No.13.



updated to provide the necessary information in a simpler, more streamlined fashion. A new
component has also been added to the list, which delineates those species that are not eligible
for "Heritage" status. Unless planted as a street tree or parking lot shading tree, these specific
tree species cannot obtain protected status by simple virtue of reaching the threshold size of a
"Heritage Tree" as defined in Folsom Municipal Code 12.16.020.

Both the Master Tree List and Tree Care and Maintenance Standards are anticipated to
receive minor updates from time to time as knowledge is gained on existing tree species, new
varieties are cultivated, and as the national standards and best management practices evolve.
However, any future changes to the list of species not eligible for Heritage status shall be
subject to approval by City Council.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

On January 14,2020, City Council approved and certified an Addendum to the2035 General
Plan Final Program Environmental Impact Report (FPEIR) for the Folsom Tree Preservation
Ordinance Update (TPOU). These implementation documents were anticipated as part of that
analysis and no further environmental review is required.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Resolution No. 10471 - A Resolution Approving the Folsom Tree Care and Maintenance
Standards and the Folsom Master Tree List

2. City of Folsom Tree Care and Maintenance Standards
3. Folsom Master Tree List

Submitted,

PAM JOHNS
Community Development Director

aJ
Page 133

06/09/2020; Item No.13.



ATTACHMENT 1

RESOLUTION

4
Page 134

06/09/2020; Item No.13.



RESOLUTION NO. IO47I

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE
F'OLSOM TREE CARE AND MAINTENANCE STANDARDS

AND FOLSOM MASTER TREE LIST

WHEREAS, trees provide an essential contribution to the general welfare, economic vitality,
environmental quality, and overall beauty and character of Folsom; and

WHEREAS, on January 28,2020,the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 1299 - An
Ordinance Repealing and Replacing the Tree Preservation Ordinance as Set Forth in Chapter 12.16

of the Folsom Municipal Code, which emphasizes tree protection and preservation; and

WHEREAS, the Tree Preservation Ordinance incorporates the approved tree species and tree

management practices outlined in the Folsom Master Tree List and the Folsom Tree Care and

Maintenance Standards; and

WHEREAS, the Folsom Tree Care and Maintenance Standards establish a set of local
standards to provide guidance on proper tree management practices (e.g., tree planting, pruning,
management during construction, landscape activities near trees) utilizing industry standards and best

practices accessible to Folsom residents; and

WHEREAS, the Folsom Master Tree List establishes those tree species that are best suited

to be planted as street trees and parking lot shading trees, list of trees not eligible for ooHeritage"

status, along with helpful information regarding mature size, water needs, and minimum required
spacing requirements per species; and

WHEREAS, both the Master Tree List and Tree Care and Maintenance Standards are

anticipated to receive minor updates from time to time as knowledge is gained on existing tree

species, new varieties are cultivated, and as the national standards and best management practices

evolve. However, any future changes to the list of species not eligible for Heritage status shall be

subject to approval by City Council; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED thatthe City Council of the City of Folsom

approves the Folsom Tree Care and Maintenance Standards and Folsom Master Tree List as shown in
Exhibits I and2.

PASSED AND ADOPTED on this 9rh day of June 2020,by the following roll-call vote

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Council Member(s)
Council Member(s)
Council Member(s)
Council Member(s)

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10471

Page I of I

Sarah Aquino, MAYOR

Page 135

06/09/2020; Item No.13.



ATTACHMENT 2

CITY OF FOLSOM TREE CARE AND MAINTENANCE STANDARDS

5
Page 136

06/09/2020; Item No.13.



Ctry or FttLsotvt
Ctt rrt lt ux lr Y []E \iELc]p]t ENT

IrAY 2{}2{r

tr
.-. --t

t',1 ,.i , '; irir:l I

.'i4.

TnEE Cnnu AND MnITTENANCE STnUDARDS

Page 137

06/09/2020; Item No.13.



TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION A: TREE PLANTING ............9

A-1.0
A-2.0

A-3.0
A-4.0
A-5.0
A-6.0

c-1.0
c-2.0
c-3.0
c-4.0
c-5.0

..20

..20

..2r

..22

..24

Tnrr Srlecrtoru

PREPARING THE PLANTING AREA

lrusrnLLtrrtc rHE TREE

MULcHTNG,.....

Srnrrruc

lnRrcnrroru......

9

SECTION B: TREE PRUNING

10

11

t2
t2
L2

L4

t4
14

t4
74

L5
16
L6
L7
17
17
18

L8
18
18

1"9

T9

19

20

20

B-1.0 Tnre PERMTT REeurRED..............

B-2.0 PRoJEcTARBoRIST REQUIRED,.,.,.

B-3.0 Pnururruc OBJEcrvEs......

B-3. 7 I mproving Structu re..........
B-3.2 Risk Mitigation
B-3.3 Cleorance.............
B-3.4 Tree Hea|th...................
B-3.5 Reduce Density.............
B-3.6 Restorotion...................
B-3.7 Size Monogement.........

8.4.0 TYPES oF PRUNING CurS ,.,,.,..

B-4.1 Branch Removal Cut.....
B-4.2 Reduction Cut...............
B-4.3 Heoding Cut .................
B-4.4 Sheoring Cut.................

B-5.0 WHENTo PRUNE

8-6.0 How MucH ro PRurur ..........
B-7.0 PRoHrBrrro Acrrvrrrrs...........

SECTION C: TREE PROTECTION DURING CONSTRUCTION

TREE PERMIT REQUIRED.,......

Pnojrcr ARSonIST REQUIRED

ARBoRtsr RrpoRrs..........

TREE PRorEcloN AND MrrGATroN PLANS......

STANDARDS FoR TREE PRorEcloN ZoNEs.......

D-1.0 STANDARDS FoR Lnnoscnpr INSTALLAT|ON NEAR ExrsrtNG TREES

D-L.L Landscaping Neor Protected Trees Other Thon Notive Ook Trees........

D-L.2 Londscaping Neor Notive Oak Trees.............

APPENDIX A: EXCERPTS FROM FOLSOM DESIGN STANDARDS 2020 - PARKING LOT SHADE.

20,4 PARKING LOr SHnor

20.1.1 PLATE 2O-ATnee SHnoIruc DIAGRAM

.......27
,..,.'' 27

',.,'., 27

29

..29

..32

Page 138

06/09/2020; Item No.13.



APPENDIX B: APPLICABLE CITY OF FOLSOM STANDARD LANDSCAPE DETAILS........ ...........33

LS-01

LS-02

LS-03

LS-06

LS-07

LS-08

TREE PLANTING

TRrr Pnrurrruc oN S1oPE........

Box TREE PLANTING.......,

Corucnrre/AseHnlr/Erucr rurrneo Frr-r- ovrR TnEr Roors.

TRe e Roor BARRrER..........

BORING WITHIN THE TREE PRoTEcTIoN ZoNE ..,.,.,.,....,.,

CRncAL Roor Zorue (CRZ) .................
CRZ or HrnrrncE TREEs ..........
DTAMETER Ar SrAruoano Hrre Hr (DSH) .

DRrp Lnrr Rnorus (DLR)

Ltotrt's-Tntrtruc

TopprrrrG

TREE PRorEcnoru Zonr (TPZ) .......
TREE PLANTNG HoLE ...................
TnrE Srnrrruc

Tnee Pnururruc

BnnrucH Rrvovnl Cur .. . .. ,.... ..... .

REDUCIoN Cur .......................-.
Henorrue Cur.....,........
SrcuRtruc rHe TREE PRorEcror\ Zorur ...........
SoI PnorecrroN FoR CoNsrRucroN AccESs wrrnrru rne TPz.........,

33

34
35

35

37

38

APPENDIX C: RESOURCES AND REFERENCES .......... .................39

FIGURES AND TABLES

FIGURES

FIGURE 1-
FIGURE 2 -

FIGURE 3 -

FIGURE 4 -

FIGURE 5 -

FIGURE 6 -

FIGURE 7 -

FIGURE 8 -

FIGURE 9 -

FIGURE ].0 -

FIGURE ].1 -

Frcune L2 -

FIGURE 13 -

FIGURE ].4 -

FIGURE ].5 -

,'''2
.... 3

.3

.4

.4

.8
,8
tt
13

15

18

18

19

25

26

TABLES:

Tnslr 1- NnrrvE Onr TRErs

TABLE 2 - CoNDtloNs rHAT TNCREASE LTKELTHooD oF FATLURE AND cAN BE MIIGATED THRoUGH pRUNTNG.

TABLE 3 - Coruorrror'rs rHAT TNCREASE LTKELIHooD oF TRUNK oR Roor FATLURE ...

TnaLE 4 - TREE RATING SYSTEM ....,...,.

5

T6

16

22

ll

Page 139

06/09/2020; Item No.13.



PURPOSE AND INTENT

Trees are both community and environmental assets, unique in their ability to provide a multitude of

benefits that appreciate over time. The purpose of this document is to support the provisions outlined in

the City of Folsom's Tree Preservation Ordinance (Folsom Municipal Code 12.16)with the goalof

fostering a vibrant, healthy urban forest, Although the requirements outlined herein apply only to

Protected Trees within the City of Folsom, this document may also serve as guidance to users in the

proper management of Protected and non-protected trees alike,

The following provisions are based upon the most current version of ANSI 4300 Standards, the

lnternational Society of Arboriculture's Best Management Practices series, and all applicable City

standards and policies. ln the event of a conflict with other related City of Folsom standards or

guidelines with regard to Protected Trees, this document shall control.

APPLICABILITY

These standards shall apply when undertaking any regulated activity affecting a Protected Tree in the

City of Folsom. Trees that are not protected are not subject to the provisions of these standards;

however, this document may be used as an educational source for the proper management of all trees

within the City of Folsom.

DEFINITIONS

ANSlA300 (American Nationalstandards lnstitute A300 standard)- ln the United States, industry-

developed, national consensus standards of practice for tree care.

ANSI 2133.1 (American National Standards lnstitute ZL33.L standard) - ln the United States, industry-

developed, national consensus standards of practice for tree care safety.

arboriculture - Practice and study of the care of trees and otherwoody plants in the landscape.

arborist - Professional who possesses the technical competency gained through experience and related

training to provide for or supervise tree pruning, tree removal or the construction management of trees

and other woody plants. For the purposes of this document, an arborist shall be defined as someone

who possesses the above-mentioned knowledge and also holds current certification with the

I nternational society of Arboricu ltu re (lSA).

arborist report -A report prepared by an Arborist containing specific information on location, condition,

potential impacts of development, recommended actions and mitigation measures relating to 1 or more

trees on an individual lot or project site

best management practices - Best available, industry-recognized course of action, in consideration of

the benefits and limitations, based on scientific research and current knowledge.

branch - A stem arising from a larger-stem; a subdominant stem; the pith in true branches has no

connection to the parent stem.

branch bark ridge - Raised strip of bark at the top of a branch union, where the growth and expansion of

the trunk or parent stem and adjoining branch push the bark into a ridge.

I

Page 140

06/09/2020; Item No.13.



branch collar - Area where a branch joins another branch or trunk that is created by the overlapping

vascular tissues from both the branch and the trunk. Typically enlarged at the base of the branch.

branch protection zone - Chemically and physically modified tissue within the trunk or parent branch at

the base of a smaller, subordinate branch that retards the spread of discoloration and decayfrom the

subordinate stem into the trunk or parent branch.

certificate of compliance - A written statement from an Arborist verifying that the conditions associated

with a Tree Permit have been satisfied.

city arborist - The City Arborist of Folsom or a duly designated representative.

cleaning - Selective pruning to remove dead, diseased, cracked, and broken branches and foreign

objects.

climbing spurs - Sharp devices strapped to a climber's lower legs to assist in climbing poles or trees

being removed. Also called spikes , gaffs, irons, hooks, or climbers, Climbing spurs are strictly prohibited

from use on trees other than for trees to be removed.

closure - The process in a woody plant by which wound wood grows over a pruning cut or injury.

codominant stem - Forked branches nearly the same diameter (diameter ratios greater than 80%),

arising from a common junction and lacking a normal branch union.

compartmentalization - Natural defense process in trees by which chemical and physical boundaries are

created that act to limit the spread of disease and decay organisms.

Critical Root Zone (CRZ). The area of soil extending from the tree trunk where roots required for future
tree health and survival are located. This Critical Root Zone area for all trees except Heritage Trees is a

circle with a minimum radius of 1 foot for every 1 inch in trunk diameter at DSH. Refer to Figure L.

Figure 1

9,. cgdiBaat
lcno,-*- (Lh,,

\</\

I
I

2 ,r:dirrr
trip! rtiryrr.eler nF tr

heighl (DSH) i
{

\l1|'4itv*elc'

'l l' rntlr.rt
'DSH 

I

2

Page 141

06/09/2020; Item No.13.



For Heritage Trees, the Critical Root Zone area shall be a circle with a minimum radius of 1-.5 feet for every

1 inch in trunk diameter at DSH, unless reduced by the City Arborist. Refer to Figure 2.

Figure 2

a@

J.Sb
lor,

lree - 
critictl Rootzo^

,rg/^
.t --at4a,

ta
\
\I

1.5 x
21" trunk

height
- 31.5" radius

crown - Upper part of a tree, measured from the lowest branch, including all the branches and foliage.

decay- (noun) An area of wood that is undergoing decomposition. (2) (verb) decomposition of organic

tissues by fungi or bacteria.

diameter at standard height (DSH). The diameter of a tree measured at four and one-half (4.5) feet above

the ground while standing on the high side of the tree. For a tree other than a Multi-trunked Tree that
branches at or below four and one-half feet, DSH shall mean the diameter at the narrowest point between

the grade and the lowest branching point. The diameter shall be

calculated by use of the following formula: Figure 3

d ia meter = ci rcu mfere nce /3.L42

For Multi-trunked Trees, the DSH shall be the diameter of each stem

measured at four and one-half feet above the ground while standing on

the high side of the tree added together in total. Refer to Figure 3.

Extrapolated Diameter at Standard Height (DSH). This shall be used for
purposes of calculating the mitigation for a Multi-trunked Tree. lt is

derived from adding the cross-sectional area of each stem measured at

r l_t12

four and one-half (4.5) feet above grade to determine a value for the DSH. ln a Multi-trunked Tree, this

is calculated by taking the square root of the sum of each individual stem's DSH squared. The

Extrapolated DSH value is used for determining mitigation and may be calculated using an alternative

method acceptable to the City Arborist.

dominant leader/trunk/stem - The stem that grows much larger than all other stems and branches.

I
I
\
\\

3

Page 142

06/09/2020; Item No.13.



dripline radius (DLR). A perfect circle around the tree with the
radius being equal to the longest branch ofthe tree. See Figure 4.

espalier - The combination of pruning, supporting, and training
branches to orient a plant in one plane.

good structure/architecture/form - Branch and trunk architecture

resulting in a canopy form that resists failure.

hanger - Loose, dangling or unsecured limb in the canopy of a

tree.

heading - Cutting a shoot back to a bud, or cutting a branch back

to a bud, stub or lateral branch not large enough to assume the
terminal role. Cutting an older branch or stem back to a stub or

i nternode.

Figure 4

.._.,F RrJtljiji,.,1
.^{,t.- fr-+,r.r? ar'

| :.....',
I ,-"r,'::,.\ .," '- t

\.r-. " r j

\:;:
r.'..'.j'

\ -l-'

't:,

: fN€ :i.rq+i1
I br''ja. r:i !l;': rr.,,

Heritage Tree - Except for trees listed as "Not Eligible for Heritage Status" on the City's Master Tree List,

a tree on the City's Master Tree List over 30 inches in DSH or a multi-trunked tree on the Master Tree List

having a combined DSH of 50 inches or more.

included bark- Bark that becomes embedded in a crotch (union) between branch and trunk or between

codominant stems. Causes weak structure.

internode - The area between lateral branches or buds.

ISA Best Management Practices - Recommended methods for the planting, care, maintenance, pruning

of trees prepared by the lnternational Society of Arboriculture.

Landmark Tree - A tree or group of trees determined by the City Council to confer a significant community

benefit to the general public due to its size, age, location, historic association or ecological value.

lateral - A branch arising from a large stem or branch.

leader - Primary terminal shoot or trunk of a tree. Large, usually upright stem. A stem that dominates a

portion of the crown by suppressing lateral branches. 
Figure 5

lion's-tailing - Poor pruning practice in which an excessive

number of live branches are thinned from the inside and

lower part of specific limbs or a tree crown, leaving mostly

terminal foliage. Results in poor branch taper, poor wind

load distribution, and a high risk of branch failure. See

Figure 5.

major pruning - The cutting of any individual branch or root $tr$re ^t{i 
i'':n'; ?3irin!i

with a diameter of two inches or greater or a circumference

of more than six and one-quarter inches at the location of the cut on such branch or root. lt shall also

include the cutting of a cumulative amount of more than ten percent of the Root System, the Tree Crown,

or a combination of both within a l"2-month period.

4

Page 143

06/09/2020; Item No.13.



Master Tree List - A list prepared by the City, as amended from time to time, identifying the species of
trees that may be planted as replacement trees, as Parking Lot Shading Trees, or as Street Trees as well
as trees that are not-recommended or excluded from protection.

mature tree - Trees that have reached at least 75 percent of their typical final height and spread.

minor Pruning - The cutting of any individual branch or root of less than two inches in diameter at the
point of the cut on such branch or root. The cumulative amount of cutting shall not be more than ten
percent of the Root System, the Tree Crown, or a combination of both within a 12-month period. Pruning
that substantially reduces the overall size or density of the tree or destroys the existing symmetry or
natural shape of the tree is not considered Minor Pruning.

MWELO {Model Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance) - Sections 490-495, Chapter 2.7, Division 2, Title
23 in the California Code of Regulations establishes design principals and procedures to promote water
efficiency for new and rehabilitated landscapes.

Native Oak Tree - One of the following indigenous species of tree or hybrids of any of the trees listed
below, with a minimum diameter as shown in Table L:

Table 1

Native Oak Trees

Common Name BotanicalName Trunk {DSH)

Multi-trunked
Combined (DSH)*

Valley Oak Quercus lobata 20"

Blue Oak Quercus douglasii 6" 20"

lnterior Live Oak Quercus wislizenii b 20"

Coast Live Oak Quercus agrifolia b 20'

*A Native Multi-trunked Tree listed above with a single stem 6 inches or greater
shall be considered a Native Oak Tree.

parent branch or stem - A tree trunk or branch from which other branches or shoots grow.

Parking Lot Shading Tree - Any tree planted in a parking lot in order to meet shade coverage requirements
and as identified in the Zoning Code.

parts to be removed - The location in the crown of a tree where pruning work will be performed. This

can be specified as all of the crown or justthe section(s) of the crown to be pruned.

permanent branches (permanent limbs)- ln structural pruning of young trees, branches that will be left
in place, often forming the initial scaffold framework of a tree.

photosynthesis - Process in green plants (and in algae and some bacteria) by which light energy is used

to form glucose (chemical energy) from water and carbon dioxide.

5

Page 144

06/09/2020; Item No.13.



phytotoxic - Term to describe a compound that is poisonous to plants.

pollarding - Specialty pruning technique in which a tree is kept relatively short. Starting on a young tree,
internodal cuts are made at a chosen height, resulting in the development of callus knobs at the cut
height. Requires regular (usually annual) removal of the sprouts arising from the cuts,

Protected Tree - Trees protected under this Chapter include Native Oak Trees, Heritage Trees, Landmark

Trees, and Regulated Trees, as defined herein.

pruning - To cut off or cut back parts a tree to enhance health and structure. Pruning refers to both above

surface and underground cutting. See also "Major Pruning" and "Minor Pruning".

protected tree - Trees protected under Folsom Municipal Code 12.16 -Tree Preservation Protected

trees include Native OakTrees, HeritageTrees, LandmarkTrees, and Regulated Trees, as defined herein.

raising - Selective pruning to provide vertical clearance; also known as lifting.

reaction zone - Natural boundary formed chemically within a tree to separate damaged wood from

existing, healthy wood. lmportant in the process of compartmentalization.

reducing - Pruning to decrease height or spread on entire tree or one section; also referred lo as

reduction or reduction pruning,

reduction cut (drop-crotch cut, lateral cut) -A pruning cut that reduces the length of a branch or stem

back to a lateral branch large enough to assume the terminal role (at least one third the diameter of the

cut stem).

regulated activity - Activities involving Major Pruning of a Protected Tree, activities such as grading,

trenching, paving or soil disturbance undertaken within the Tree Protection Zone of a Protected Tree,

removal of a Protected Tree, cabling and/or bracing of a Protected Tree, or other activities that may

impact the long-term health and survivability of a Protected Tree as may be determined by the City

Arborist.

Regulated Tree - Trees required by the City's Zoning Code, (such as Parking Lot Shading Trees and Street

Trees), or required as conditions of development project approval (such as landscape buffer orscreening

trees), or required by this Chapter as mitigation for the removal of a Protected Tree(s).

removal (tree removal) - Removal of most of the above ground portion of a tree by cutting to a stump

or to a point on the main trunk where no side branches remain. May also includes stump removal.

removal cut (thinning cut) - Cut that removes a branch at its point of origin. Collar cut.

Replacement Tree - A tree required to be planted as mitigation for removal of a Protected Tree in
accordance with the requirements of this Chapter.

root system - This configuration of the underground parts or appendages of a tree, providing several

functions including anchoring and providing water and nutrients to the tree.

restoration - The process of pruning to improve the structure , f orm, and appearance of trees that have

been improperly trimmed, vandalized, or damaged.

6

Page 145

06/09/2020; Item No.13.



routine maintenance - lncludes the following activities: Minor Pruning; dead branch removal; irrigation;

mulch application; mowing or trimming grass or other ground cover close to a tree; application of
fertilizer, insecticides, or herbicides in accordance with their label; or any other similar activities that
promote the life, growth, or health of trees. Any procedure, technique, or practice that is considered

unacceptable or prohibited under the City's Tree Care and Maintenance Standards or by this Chapter is

not Routine Maintenance.

scaffold limb - A limb or branch that is among the largest diameter on the tree and will remain on the

tree perhaps to maturity.

shall - As used in this standard, denotes a mandatory requirement,

shearing - Cutting back exterior growth using internodal heading cuts in one to two-year-old wood

resulting in a defined edge with thick outer growth. Outer growth is regularly shaved to maintain the

shape and outer density,

shoot - New stem or branch growth on a plant.

should - As used in this standard, denotes an advisory recommendation.

specifications - Detailed plans, requirements, and statements of particular procedures and/or standards

used to define and guide work.

stem - Woody structure bearing foliage and buds that gives rise to other stems (branches).

Street Tree - A tree of an approved species in accordance with the Folsom Master Tree List located within
I2.5' of a street or sidewalk, measured from the back of the sidewalk or back of curb if no sidewalk exists.

Street Trees can be either privately or publicly owned.

structural pruning- Pruning to establish a strong arrangement or system of scaffold branches.

stub - Portion of a branch remaining after a stub (heading) cut, branch breakage, or branch death.

subordination - Pruning to reduce the size and ensuing growth of a branch in relation to other branches

or leaders.

terminal leader. This is the vertical stem(s) at the top of the trunk of a tree.

thinning - ln pruning, the selective removal of live branches to provide light or air penetration through

the tree or to lighten the weight of the remaining branches.

l

Page 146

06/09/2020; Item No.13.



topping - A type of pruning that is not Routine Maintenance and involves the removal of tops of trees, or

large branches ortrunks from tops oftrees, usually at internodes, leaving large stubs or lateral branches

that are too small to assume the role of a Terminal Leader. Topping is strictly prohibited. See Figure 6.

Figure 6

nnf {){dl' ^FTirF A[:l{:14

tree - A large woody perennial plant having a single, usually elongated stem, generally with few or no

limbs on its lower part; or any of the species listed in the Master Tree List including all their cultivars,

varieties and hybrids.

tree crown - This is the top part of the tree, which featu res bra nches, foliage, flowers, and seeds that grow

out from the main trunk and support the various leaves used for photosynthesis.

tree permit - A permit issued by the City covering any Regulated Activity affecting a Protected Tree, which

may be a Tree Work Permit or a Tree Removal Permit or both.

Tree Protection and Mitigation Plan (TPMP) - A report

and/or plan submitted for review and approval before

the start of any Regulated Activity.

Figure 7

1 foot
Tree Protection Zone (TPZ) - The circumference of the

outermost edge of a tree's Critical Root Zone or Dripline

Radius, whichever is greater, plus one foot. When

depicted on a map, the Tree Protection Zone will appear

as a perfect circle, or group of overlapping circles for
multiple trees. Refer to Figure 7.

trunk - Stem of a tree

trunk flare- (l) The area at the base of the plant's trunk
where it broadens to form roots. ( 2) The area of
transition between the root system and trunk.

union (crotch) - The junction between a stem and

branch or between stems.

vista/view prune - Pruning to enhance a specific view without jeopardizing the health of the tree

8

I

Critical Root

I
f
I

I

t
i

Page 147

06/09/2020; Item No.13.



wound - An opening that is created when the bark of a live branch or stem is cut, penetrated, damaged,
or removed.

wound dressing - A compound applied to tree wounds or pruning cuts. Thus far, no studies have shown
wound dressing techniques to be effective in assisting trees with compartmentalization of wounds.

WUCOLS - "Water Use Classification of Landscape Species" is a publication by the University of
California Division of Agriculture and Natural Resources that classifies the irrigation needs of most
common landscape plants.

SECTION A: TREE PLANTING

The following standards apply to the planting of any protected tree. Additional visual references can be

found in the planting details in Appendix B.

A-1.0 Tree Selection

A-1.1 Consideration shall be given to tree species with regard to the planned planting
location and observable site constraints

A-L.2 Plant selection forwildland urban interfaces and parcels adjacentto open space shall
be in accordance with the Folsom Plant List for Defensible Space.

A-1.3 When establishing the placement of a tree, the following minimum distances shall be

required whenever feasible:

A-1.3.1 Four feet from utility installations including, but not limited to sewers, gas,

water lines, meter vaults, catch basins, etc.

A-L.3.2 Five feet from sidewalks and other hardscape areas or the distance specified

in the Folsom Master Tree List per species (whichever is greater).

A-1.3.2.1 Where the minimum required distance from infrastructure cannot
be met, installation of City approved root barrier is required.

A-1.3.2.2 As part of the City's review of plans and permit applications, the City
retains the right to prohibit usage of inappropriate species for
landscape areas too small to accommodate the mature tree size.

A-1.3.3 Ten feet from hydrants

A-L.3.4 Ten feet from stop signs

A-1.3.5 Twenty feet from light standards

9

Page 148

06/09/2020; Item No.13.



A-L.4 Except for projects utilizing a City approved tree mitigation plan, all tree installation
projects shall maintain the following diversity requirements:

A-1.4-L Projects that entail the installation of less than 20 trees should attempt,

whenever possible, to provide a diverse variety of trees with a mixture of
genera, species, and cultivars.

A-L.4.2 Projects that entail the installation of more than 20 trees, but less than 50

trees shall not have more than:

A-t.4.2.L 35% of any one genus;

A-L.4.2.2 30% of any one species; and

A-L.4.2.3 25% of any one cultivar

A-1.4.3 Projects that entail the installation of 60 or more trees shall not have more

tha n:

A-1.4.3.1 35% of any one genus;

A-t.4.3.2 30% of any one species; and

A-1.4.3.3 25% of any one cultivar

A-1.5 All trees shall be true to name as ordered or shown on planting plans

A-1.6 All trees shall comply with federal and state laws and regulations requiring inspection

for plant disease, pests, and weeds

A-2.0 Preparing the Planting Area

A-2.t The planting hole shall be dug to a depth L"-2" less than the depth of the root ball.

When placed in the hole, the root crown of the tree shall be L-2" above finished grade.

A-2.2 The planting hole shall be dug to a minimum of two times the diameter of the root

ba ll.

A-2.3 Hard, smooth edges within the planting hold shall be avoided. A shovel or other hand

tool shall be used to score the edges of the planting hole to loosen the native soil. This

loose soil along the edges of the planting hole will promote rapid root growth and

quick establishment.

10

Page 149

06/09/2020; Item No.13.



A-3.0 lnstalling the Tree

A-3.L Soil on the top of the root all shall be removed as necessary to expose the root collar.

A-3.2 Girdling roots or roots growing over the root collar shall be removed as necessary

A-3.3 When possible, orient the tree so that it faces the same compass direction as it did

when it was growing in the nursery. lf the tree cannot be oriented as before, it may be

necessary to protect the trunk of thin-barked trees from sunscald.

A-3.4 Remove or cut away the root ball container (usually plastic or wood containers) before
placing the root ball in the planting hole. Ropes and burlap shall be cut away from the
root ball prior to backfilling.

A-3.5 Any circling roots within the root ball should be loosened or cut as necessary. Avoid

excessive root removal.

A-3.5 Unless otherwise recommended by a soils report backfill material should be native

soil.

A-3.7 Minimize air pockets by packing gently and applying water. Build a berm 3-4" tall

around the root ball to direct water percolation into the root ball.

Figure 8 - Tree Planting Hole

Organic mulch applied over planting

aree and away fronr tr-unl
Roat lmwn 1-2" above axirting gratle

Backfill with nativ* soil from hole Eurlap, rope, rnd vsirr eut away from
the visible root bdll

Dernr for watrt re,tention

-h.-
{-

Fxiltilrg grad*

Scote edges of hole
Rootbali sitting on
irndistuihed soil

Slope sidecl hale is 2-3 lirnes ,r.,irier tharr th* -#-
dinnrelar oi the root ball

L1.

Page 150

06/09/2020; Item No.13.



A-4.0 Mulching - A layer of organic mulch, such as leaf litter, shredded bark, or wood chips helps

conserve moisture in the soil and improve oil quality over time.

A-4.t Apply a layer mulch at a depth of 3 to 4 inches around the newly planted tree

A-4.1.L For trees planted from a 15-gallon container or smaller, spread the mulch

layer out to a radius of approximately 30" from the base of the tree.

A-4.L.2 For trees larger than a 15-gallon, spread the mulch layer out to a minimum
radius of 48" from the base of the tree.

A-4.2 Mulch shall not directly contact the trunk of the tree

5.0 Staking - When installed properly, stakes can assist young trees in developing erect, central leaders

and allow the roots to take anchor. Figure 9 on the following page illustrates a properly staked tree.
The following shall be applied when taking young protected trees:

A-5.1 Wires or other rigid materials that could potentially cause trunk girdling shall not be

used as stake ties.

A-5.2 Stakes shall be driven into the ground outside the root ball

A-5.3 Ties shall be loose enough to allow the trunk some movement from wind. Trees tied

too tightly will develop weak trunks.

6.0 lrrigation

A-6.1 Trees shall be deeply watered immediately following installation

A-6.2 lrrigation systems should be designed to prevent direct contact of water on trunks of
newly planted trees.

4-6.3 lrrigation systems shall be designed to comply with the most current version of the
state's Model Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance (MWELO).

A-6.4 For new landscape installations, trees shall be irrigated on a separate valve from
shrubs, groundcovers, and lawns.

A-5.5 For rehabilitated landscape installations, trees shall be irrigated on a separate valve

from shrubs, groundcovers, and lawns wherever feasible.

lrrigation systems shall be designed so that separate remote-control valves are used to
irrigate trees with differing water needs in accordance with WUCOLS

A-5.5

12

Page 151

06/09/2020; Item No.13.



Trees irrigated on the same hydrozone shall have similar WUCOLS ratings. Where trees

with adjacent WUCOLS ratings are irrigated on the same valve, the highest WUCOLS

rating shall be used to determine the Plant Factor for that hydrozone for the purposes

of calculating Estimated Total Water Use (ETWU),

A-6.8 Planting trees in lawn areas should be avoided wherever possible.

Figure9-Treestaking

Snrh tier" tJre rubber qr
i riffill* fiaxlble rflrierlil

Fernove flursary

A-6.7

2" dlamet*r lodg*gol*
ltakes inrtalted autside

Ef rost ball

S" mulch layef

{Jndisturbed

$akr* 2" rboue hlphest
fir ta pr*innt inte#*ren*s

ryith the cans,Flt

Railed rin! of s6ilts
dif€ft $ratcr ints the

rodt bell

Irdsnd tres rtakes rt lsart
6" int* undlEturbad soil

13

Page 152

06/09/2020; Item No.13.



SECTION B: TREE PRUNING

When executed properly, pruning can provide a multitude of benefits for tree health, public safety, and

general welfare. The opposite is true for improper pruning: when poorly performed, pruning can be

injurious to trees and have negative impacts on aesthetics and safety.

Pruning live branches reduces a tree's ability to photosynthesize and produce sugars. Pruning also

creates wounds the tree must expend energy to close and defend. Therefore, the costs and benefits of
pruning live limbs should be weighed when establishing pruning objectives.

These pruning standards are intended to guide the user in proper pruning practices and highlight

important factors to consider when developing pruning goals.

B-1.0 Tree Permit Required - Where the scope of the intended pruning activities on a protected tree

entails cuts greater lhan 2" in diameter on live limbs or the removal of more than 10% of the

tree's canopy, a Tree Work Permit application shall be submitted to the City's Community

Development Department for review and approval. A submitted Tree Work Permit application

shall contain the following:

B-1.1 Filled out application form supplied by the City;

B-L.z ISA certification number of the project arborist to perform the work; and

B-1.3 A description of the pruning specifications proposed for the permit application. The

pruning specifications should outline the pruning objective, and the number, size, and

types of cuts required to achieve the pruning objective.

The Community Development Department may approve, modify, approve with conditions, or deny the

permit application in accordance with Folsom MunicipalCode 12.16.

B-2.0 Project Arborist Required - Where the scope of the intended pruning activities requires a Tree

Permit per the criteria above, an ISA certified arborist shall perform or supervise the tree work.

B-3.0 Pruning Objectives - When a Tree Permit is required, no tree shall be pruned without a clearly

defined objective. Appropriate objectives to consider may include:

B-3.1 lmproving Structure - This objective consists of selective cuts to improve the stem and

branching architecture primarily in young and medium aged trees. ln addition to
developing strong architecture, structural pruning can promote or discourage branch

growth in a certain direction (directional pruning). This can help minimize future

interference with people, traffic, buildings, utilities, and lighting.

B-3.1.1 Dominant leader(s) should be selected for development as appropriate

B-3.1.2 ldentify the intended lowest branch of the permanent canopy

L4

Page 153

06/09/2020; Item No.13.



B-3.1.3 Strong, properly spaced scaffold branch structure should be selected and

maintained by reducing or removing other branches

8-3.1.4 Temporary branches should be retained or reduced as appropriate

B-3.1.5 lnterfering, overextended, defective, weak and/or poorly attached branches

should be removed or reduced

Figure 10 - Tree Pruning

Risk Mitigation - Pruning to reduce the risk of branch, stem, or whole tree failure. This

is often a primary concern for mature trees. Conditions and defects to considerfor risk

mitigation pruning are outlined in Table 2 and Table 3 below.

Before pruning

Problem - This young to
medium-aged tree has three
developing codominant stems

(a, b, and c). These will likely
grow into competing leaders,

which will reduce the
structural strength of the tree.

Maturing trees tend to
perform better and longer

when they grow with a single

main trunk. Structural pruning

would help this tree develop a

single, strong central leader.

After light to moderate

pruning

After heavy pruning

Solution - Reducing the length

of leaders 'a' and 'c' with
reduction cuts will slow their
growth and allow more

sunlight to reach leader'b',
which will encourage it to
grow into the dominant
trunk. Where possible on

larger, mature trees, this

technique should be applied

to limbs in the lower 15-20

feet of a tree to keep them

smaller than half the trunk
diameter.

Solution - With young trees or

trees that may not be pruned

again for several years, a

more aggressive approach

may be considered. ln this

scenario, larger reduction

cuts are made to create

larger gaps in the canopy.

Youngertrees are much more

likely to tolerate this level of
pruning. Up to about 25% of
foliage could be removed in
young trees, if necessary.

B-3.2

15

Page 154

06/09/2020; Item No.13.



Table 2 - Conditions that increase the likelihood of branch failure and can be mitigated
through pruning:

'dead branches ' limbs with cracks

' branches with cavities ' broken or detached limbs

'hangers ' excessivelV long branches

' overlv large branches ' Limbs with weak attachments

Table 3 - Conditions that increase the likelihood of trunk or root failure:

' buried root collar ' excessive soil moisture

' cavities and decay in the trunk ' girdling roots

' excessive lean ' root decav

' cut roots from construction activity ' codominant stems with included bark

The best way to prevent a high likelihood of failure in mature trees is to perform routine

structural pruning on trees while they are young or middle aged in orderto develop strong

form and architecture. As trees mature, pruning to correct structural defects can prove

injurious to trees due to the increased size of the cuts required to mitigate the risk.

B-3.3 Clearance- ln orderto maintain publicsafety, it is often necessaryto prune trees to
accommodate surrounding site conditions. The following standards apply to owners of
Protected Trees:

B-3.3.1 Trees shall be pruned as needed to maintain a minimum vertical clearance

of L4.5' over a street.

B-3.3.2 Trees shall be pruned as needed to maintain a minimum vertical clearance

of 8' over bike paths.

B-3.3.3 Trees shall be pruned as needed to maintain a minimum vertical clearance

of 7' over sidewalks.

B-3.3.4 Trees shall be pruned as needed to maintain a minimum distance of 1"0'

from chimneys.

B-3.3.5 Trees should be pruned as needed to maintain a minimum distance of 5'

over roofs.

B-3.4 Tree Health -Also referred to as "sanitation pruning" or "cleaning", pruning to improve

tree health entails the removal or reduction of dead branches or limbs infested by pests

and disease.

Location and parts to be removed shall be specified prior to commencement

of work.
B-3.4.1

L6

Page 155

06/09/2020; Item No.13.



B-3.4.2 Pruning equipment shall be properly sanitized as appropriate between cuts

to prevent the spread of disease-causing pathogens.

B-3.5 Reduce Density - This objective aims to lessen branch and foliage density within the

crown of a tree. This practice is also referred to as "thinning" and may be performed to

increase wind or light penetration.

B-3.5.1 Thinning should result in an even distribution of live branches on individual

branches throughout the crown.

B-3.5.2 Lion's-tailing is a poor pruning practice and shall not occurwhen pruning

live branches for the purposes of thinning.

B-3.5.3 Location and parts to be removed shall be specified priorto commencement

of work.

B-3.6 Restoration - Corrective pruning may be necessary when trees have been damaged by

high winds or incurred poor pruning, vandalism, or other mechanical injuries. Pruning

performed for the purposes of correcting mechanical damage to reinstate tree structure

is called "Restoration" pruning, Crown restoration is usually accomplished over several

pruning cycles.

B-3.6.1 Location and parts to be removed shall be specified prior to commencement

of work.

B-3.7 Size Management - When proper pruning practices are employed, the overall size or

spread of a tree can be appropriately managed. This type of pruning is done to minimize

risk of failure and to reduce height or spread.

B-3.7.1 Not all trees can be reduced, Therefore, the species and plant health shall

be considered prior to commencement of work.

B-3.7.2 Crown reduction shall be accomplished using reduction and removalcuts.

The tree's form, branch structure, health and structural integrity shall be

considered in determining the appropriate amount of reduction to meet the

objective.

8-3.7.3 Topping shall not be used as a pruning technique to reduce tree size

Location of parts to be removed or clearance requirements shall be

specified prior to commencement of work.
B-3.7.4

17

Page 156

06/09/2020; Item No.13.



B-4.0 Types of Pruning Cuts

8.4.L

B-4.2

Branch Removal Cut - Also known as thinning or removal

cuts, a branch removal cut removes the smaller of two
branches at a union with the parent stem (see Figure L1).

Figure 11 - Branch Removal Cut

8rs<h <olfar

PrufllFl| rul

A

R#nove this

When making a branch removal cut, it is important to retain

the branch collar and branch bark ridge. "Flush cuts" shall be

avoided. Making a flush cut is the act of removing a limb at a

union, including the branch collar and branch bark ridge.

Flush cuts are difficult for trees to compartmentalize and

create avenues for decay organisms to enter the tree.
&rarrh batk rld**

Reduction Cut -Also known as "cutting to a lateral", a reduction cut removes the larger

of two or more branches or stems to a live lateral branch or stem (see Figure 12), When

possible, the limb to be retained should be at least one-third the diameter of the limb or

stem being removed in order to assume the terminal role.

Trees may not be able to close pruning wounds from reduction cuts as well as branch

removalcuts. Reduction cuts greaterthan 4 inches in diametershould be avoided

whenever possible. The smaller the cut, the better able a tree will be able to close the
wound.

Figure 12 - Reduction Cut

Rsduction cut
i

B-4.3

Sfan€h,barlq rldg€

s

K*ep thls

Heading Cut - This type of cut removes a branch between nodes to a bud, or to a

branch less than one-third the diameter of the branch or stem being removed. Except

for specific circumstances, this type of cut is rarely appropriate for medium aged and

mature trees. Circumstances that may warrant a heading cut include: to start a pollard,

to remove old flowers or fruit, for structural development in young trees, and to avoid

removalof a large limbthatwould otherwise require a cut atthetrunk ora scaffold limb

(See Figure 13 on the following page).

18

Page 157

06/09/2020; Item No.13.



Figure L3 - Heading Cut

Branch shartend ts s
polnt between lateral
branchEt or budt

B-4.4 Shearing Cut - This type of cut involves the removal of leaves, twigs, and small branches

to a desired plane orshape. Shearing is a common pruning practice used forshaping
topiaries and hedges and often results in a dense outer canopy and sparse inner canopy.

When to Prune - The timing of when to prune a tree depends entirely on the objectives being

employed. Risk mitigation pruning, for example, should be performed as soon as possible to
ensure public safety. Additionally, limbs identified as diseased should be removed in a timely
manner to prevent the issue from spreading. Removal of dead, diseased, and broken branches

can take place at any time with little negative impact to the tree.

lnsects are less active during the winter months and wound closure is generally fastest during
the spring, making these the ideal seasons for routine pruning to improve structure, provide

clearance, and promote tree health.

Tree growth rate can be reduced by waiting until early summer (after the initial spring growth

flush) to prune. ln some cases, reduced growth rate may be the goal. However, removing live

branches from stressed trees or trees in decline during this time of year, may worsen the tree's
condition by further reducing energy reserves.

How Much to Prune - The amount of canopy that should be removed from a tree depends on

the pruning objectives. Generally, the extent of the pruning scope should be as minor as

possible to achieve the established pruning goals. Pruning more than 1-0% of a Protected Tree's

canopy requires a Tree Permit.

B-6.1 Pruning Young Trees - Young trees are more vigorous than their mature counterparts
and, therefore, are more tolerant of a pruning scope that may otherwise be considered

aggressive. Establishing strong architecture should be a primary pruning goal with young

trees to develop a strong central leader and select properly spaced scaffold branches.

This may sometimes mean removal of 25% or more of the tree's canopy.

f {

B-5.0

B-5.0

19

Page 158

06/09/2020; Item No.13.



8-6.2 Pruning Mature Trees - The extent of branch removal in mature trees should be as

minimal as possible to achieve the pruning objective. When pruning mature trees:

8.6.2.1 The smallest cuts possible shall be performed in order to achieve the
pruning goals.

8-6.2.2 Removal of multiple small branches shall be selected over the removal of a

single large branch wherever possible.

8-6.2.3 Poor pruning practices such as lions-tailing shall be avoided

B-7.0 Prohibited Pruning Practices - The following actions shall be prohibited on Protected Trees

B-7.1 The use of climbing spurs (also known as climbing gaffs or climbing hooks)while
performing pru ning activities.

B-7.2 The excessive removal of live interior and lower lateral branches (known as lion's-

tailing).

B-7.3 Topping.

B-7.4 Performing pruning activities outside the scope of an issued Tree Permit.

SECTION C: TREE PROTECTION DURING CONSTRUCTION

Site disturbance from grading and construction activities can have significant negative impacts on the

health and longevity of trees. lt is for this reason the following standards have been established. The

items and actions delineated in this section shall be executed where construction activity encroaches

into the Tree Protection Zone (TPZ) of any protected tree.

c-1.0 Tree Permit Required - A Tree Permit is required for any regulated activities undertaken within
the TPZ of a protected tree. Prior to any site disturbance, the applicant shall supply a tree
permit application package to the Community Development Department, which shall include

the following:

C-1.1 Application form supplied by the Community Development Department;

C-L.2 Arborist Report prepared by an ISA certified arborist; and

C-L.3 Tree Protection and Mitigation Plan

The Community Development Department may approve, modify, approve with conditions, or deny the
permit application in accordance with Folsom MunicipalCode 12.16.

20

Page 159

06/09/2020; Item No.13.



c-2.0 Project Arborist Required - Where regulated activity encroaches into the fPZ of a protected
tree, an applicant shall retain the services of an ISA certified arborist (to be known as the
project arborist) to perform the following duties:

C-z.L Prepare an Arborist Report in accordance with C-3.0 of this document and FMC

12.16.140(B).

C-2.2 Assist the applicant in the preparation of a Tree Protection and Mitigation Plan in

accordance with Section C:4.0 of this document and FMC 12.1.6.140.

C-2.3 lmplement the recommendations for tree preservation as outlined in the City-approved
Tree Protection and Mitigation Plan.

C-2.4 Monitor the health of all protected trees potentially impacted by the construction
activities throughout the duration of the development project.

C-2.5 Monitor the health of all trees planted as mitigation throughout the duration of the
monitoring period as approved by the City Arborist.

C-2.6 Supervise and direct all regulated activity within the TPZ of protected trees.

C-2.7 Assist the applicant in the execution of all prescribed recommendations by the project
arborist to lessen impacts and promote tree health.

C-2.8 Prepare a certificate of compliance at the conclusion of the project, attesting
compliance with the standards outlined herein and the conditions of the tree permit.

The City may request a copy of the executed contract between the applicant and project arborist prior
to issuance of a Tree Permit.

C-3.0 Arborist Reports - The project arborist shall prepare a document containing the following and

any other information determined to be necessary by the City Arborist:

C-3.1 The date of the report, address of the project, property owner information, and the
project arborist's contact information

C-3.2 A statement of qualifications of the project arborist and any other individuals who
assisted in the preparation of the arborist report and Tree Protection and Mitigation
Pla n

C-3.3 A survey of all trees potentially impacted by the proposed regulated activities. The

survey shall include the following information for each tree:

C-3.3.1 Tag number identification

2L

Page 160

06/09/2020; Item No.13.



C-3.3.2 Botanical name

C-3.3.3 Common name

c-3.3.4 DSH

C-3.3.4.1 ln the case of multi-stemmed trees, the diameter of each stem shall

be listed.

C-3.3.5 Dripline radius

C-3.3.6 TPZ radius

c-3.3.7 Field notes on health, structure, defects, site conditions, and any other
information the project arborist deems relevant

c-3.3.8 Tree condition rating based on health and structure, The tree condition
rating shall be determined on a scale of 0-5 (See Table 4).

Table4-TreeRati

c-3.3.9 Development impact assessment shall be based on the most recent

development plans. The impact assessment shall consider grading activity,

excavation, necessary clearance pruning, anticipated soil com paction,

construction and vehicular access, and any other site disturbance the
project arborist deems relevant.

c-3.3.10 Management, preservation, and protection actions to be executed for each

tree, based upon the development impact assessment to minimize impacts

and ensure long term tree health. This section shall address the TPZ fencing
perimeter, necessary pruning, soil protection, trunk protection, irrigation,

mulching, and any other actions the project arborist deems necessary.

Rating Rating Rating Description
Excellent 5 Tree appears near perfect. Excellent structure and vigor

Good structure and vigor. Anv problems are correctable.Good 4

Fa ir 3 Minor to moderate problems are present but can be

managed.

Poor 2 Major structural or health problems. Retention is

questionable.

Haza rdous/uncorrectable 1. Problems are extreme. Likelihood of failure is hieh
DeadDead 0

22

Page 161

06/09/2020; Item No.13.



c-4.0 Tree Protection and Mitigation Plans - The Tree Protection and Mitigation Plan (TPMP) shall

be prepared by an arborist or other licensed professional, as approved by the approving

authority, and contain the following information:

C-4.t Existing and proposed characteristics including

C-4.t.1 Property lines

c-4.L.2 Streets, access easements and/or public or private driveways and other
paved areas.

C-4.1.3 Buildings, structures, and setbacks

C-4.L.4 Existing utilities above and below ground

C-4.1.5 Parking and other paved areas.

C-4.1.6 Land uses on the parcel (existing and proposed).

C-4.t.7 Proposed grading and construction, including utilities,

c-4.1.8 Any other information determined to be necessary by the Approving

Authority.

C-4.2 Existing tree information, including:

c-4.2.t The exact TPZ as described in the arborist report. Trees on neighboring
properties with TPZs that overlap into the property shall be included.

C-4.2.2 The exact location, both vertically and horizontally, of the base of each tree.

C-4.2.3 The physical tag number for each tree, consistent with the arborist report

C-4.2.4 Trees proposed for removal

C-4.2.5 Trees proposed for preservation

C-4.2.6 The contact information of the project arborist

c-4.2.7 Tree preservation notes outlining actions to be executed for the purposes of
minimizing construction impacts to trees planned for retention.

23

Page 162

06/09/2020; Item No.13.



c-s.0

C-4.3 Replacementtree information, including:

c-4.3.1 A planting plan showing the size, species, and locations of trees to be

planted as mitigation for the removal of protected trees.

c-4.3.2 lrrigation design plan showing the methods and scheduling for irrigating the
replacement trees.

c-4.3.3 Timeline and schedule for the proposed monitoring and maintenance plan

of the replacement trees by the project arborist.

C-4.3.4 The contact information of the project arborist.

Standards for Tree Protection Zones - The following standards apply to all permitted site

disturbance activities within the TPZ of protected trees.

C-5.1 The following actions shall take place prior to any site disturbance:

c-5.1.1 High-visibility exclusionary fencing shall be installed to protect the TPZ of all

protected trees in proximity to the regulated activity. Unless otherwise

approved by the City, the exclusionary fencing shall encompass the entire

TPZ (See Figure L4 on the following page).

c-5.t.2 Weatherproof warning signs shall be affixed to the TPZ fencing. The signs

shall be a minimum dimension of t1-" x 17", posted on all sides of fences

and spaced a maximum of 50' apart. The signs shall state that enclosed

tree(s) are to be preserved and the penalty for damage to, or removal of,

the protected tree(s).

c-5.1.3 Any pruning for construction clearance at the recommendation of and

under the supervision of the project arborist.

C-5.L.4 Any soil or trunk protection prescribed by the project arborist

C-5.L.5 Any other pre-construction measures prescribed by the project arborist.

24

Page 163

06/09/2020; Item No.13.



Wratherproo{ lt"x 17"

v*rblage per templstes
suplied by the City

Figure 14 - Securing the Tree Protection Zone

Unless otherwise
atthe edge of the Tre* P*rtect{on lone

NO?f,SI
1 See tity issued pernrit anri approved
Tr€e protecltsil Plan{TPPI {or addilJonal
tr€e protection requirernents.

?. See City issr"rsd permit and approved
TPF for permitted nrttvites withln the Trae
Prctection Zone {TFZ}.

3. All aclvites within the TpZ shall l* per-
lornred under the dlrect supervtsisfi on
the proJect arbor*st.

4. Nc equipment shall operate inside lhe
fenced area,

High density polyetlrylene fencing with
3.S"x 1-5" openlngs; Color-orange

?"x 6' rnetal pcsts or approved
equal; installed 1S' o,r"

Malcb as prescribed by the project
arborlst. Existing grade withln the
irrced area *hall not be allered unless
otherwlse approved by the City.

o

C-5.2 The following actions shalltake place during site disturbance and construction activities

c-5.2.L All work to be performed inside the TPZ of trees to be preserved shall be

supervised by the project arborist.

c-s.2.2 Removal of tree stumps within the TPZ of trees to be preserved shall be

performed via grinding using a stump router or left in place.

C-5.2.2.! Removal of tree stumps within the TPZ of trees to be preserved via

excavation equipment such as tractors or backhoes is strictly
prohibited.

c-5.2.3 Any approved trenching inside the TPZ oftrees to be preserved shall be

performed by hand, by hydraulic air spade, placing pipes underneath roots,

or by boring deeper underneath the roots.

C-5.2.3.L Refer to Appendix B, LS-08 for specifications on boring underneath
tree roots.

?Rr€
pfio?fctr0r{

ARE.A

25

Page 164

06/09/2020; Item No.13.



c-5.2.4

c-s.2.5

c-5.2.6

Any necessary root severance shall be performed with sharp, sterile hand

tools. Roots that have been ripped, torn, or crushed shall be traced back to
undamaged tissue and cut cleanly, resulting in a flat surface with the

adjacent bark firmly attached.

Roots exposed from grade cuts shall not be allowed to dry out. Cut faces

shall be moistened and covered until backfilled.

Where construction access through the TPZ is necessary, the soil shall be

protected via the installation ofan access path, The access path shall be

comprised minimally of 1" minimum thickness plyboards laid over a 4" layer

of mulch (See Figure 15).

, - ..?Pl f€.utng

fly*o* bE*dl far
r'*i:;ci* *teerl palfr

1* Rtrli*:urn lhic& n€13

f r6ai;t re.ufih, haid-,
'tc;4,99 q*rg$ p.r*{crr*d

26

Page 165

06/09/2020; Item No.13.



C-5.3 The following actions are prohibited within the TPZ of protected trees at all times

c-5.3.1 Parking of vehicles, equipment, or storage of material within the TPZ, unless

otherwise approved by the City.

C-5.3.2 Breaking roots with a backhoe or crushing them with a grader

c-s.3.3 Wounding or breaking tree trunks or branches through contact with
vehicles or heavy equipment.

C-5.3.4 Contamination of soil by washing out equipment or vehicle maintenance

c-s.3.5 Performing any regulated activity without a City issued Tree Permit or

performing regulated activities outside the scope of a City issued Tree

Permit.

C-5.4 The following actions shall take place at the conclusion of permitted activities:

c-5.4.1 The applicant shall supply a Certificate of Compliance from the project

arborist to the City attesting compliance with the conditions of the tree

permit and all prescribed recommendations in the City-approved arborist

report.

SECTION D: LANDSCAPI NEAR EXISTING TREES

Trees can be easily damaged or killed from the impacts of trenching for irrigation lines and incompatible

irrigation applications. The following standards apply to landscape installation within the TPZ of existing

protected trees.

D-1.0 Standards for landscape installation near existing protected trees

D-1.1 Landscaping near Protected Trees other than Native Oak Trees

D-1".1.L Unless otherwise included within the scope of a City issued Tree Permit and

City approved Tree Protection Plan, trenching for the installation of

underground irrigation lines within the TPZ is prohibited.

D-1.L.2 Plant material such as shrubs and groundcover installed within the TPZ of a

non-native oak shall have the same or adjacent WUCOLS rating of the

subject tree.

Planting holes for the installation of shrubs and groundcover within the TPZ

of protected trees shall be dug by hand. Cutting tree roots l-" and larger for

the purposes of installing plant material within the TPZ shall be avoided.

27

D-1.1.3

Page 166

06/09/2020; Item No.13.



D-1.1.4 lrrigation systems shall be designed to prevent direct water contact to tree
trunks.

D-t.z Landscaping near Native Oak Trees

Unless otherwise included within the scope of a City issued Tree Permit and

City approved Tree Protection and Mitigation Plan, trenching for the
installation of underground irrigation lines within the TPZ is prohibited.

Plant material shall be planted no closer than 6' of native oaks with a DSH of
up to 18" and no closer than L0' of native oaks with a DSH of 18" and

greater.

D-L.2.3 All plant material within the TPZ shall have a WUCOLS rating of either low or
very low.

D-L.2.4 Planting holes for the installation of shrubs and groundcover within the TPZ

of protected trees shall be dug by hand. Cutting tree roots 1"" and larger for
the purposes of installing plant material within the TPZ shall be avoided.

D-1-.2.5 Unless otherwise included within the scope of a City issued Tree Permit and

City approved Tree Protection Plan, all irrigation methods within the TPZ

shall be via above-ground means only.

D-1.2.6 lrrigation systems shall be designed to prevent direct water contact to any

part of the trunk of the tree.

D-L.2.7 lnstallation of turf or lawn within the TPZ is expressly prohibited

D-1.2.L

D-t.2.2

28

Page 167

06/09/2020; Item No.13.



APPENDIX A: EXCERPTS FROM FOLSOM DESIGN STANDARDS 2O2O - PARKING LOT SHADE

2O.4 PARKING LOT SHADE

A. Tree Shading:

Trees shall be planted, monitored, and maintained throughout the surface parking lot to

ensure that, within L5 years after establishment of the parking lot, at least 40 percent of the

parking area will be shaded. This should be calculated by using the City's diameter of the

tree crown at 15 years. Each planting area shall be of adequate size for the landscaping

approved and shall have adequate irrigation for that landscaping.

Note: Planter dimensions exclude curbing. Planter shall contain eafth and living ground

cover. Bark mulch is not allowed in planter areas adjacent to public right-of-way, wood chip

mulch is acceptable (hardwood chip mulch is preferred).

B. Parking Lot Shade (40% wilh L5 years)

All surfacing on which a vehicle can drive is subject to shade calculation.

Parking stalls

All drives within property line (regardless of length)

All maneuvering (regardless of depth)

Exceptions

. Truck loading in front of overhead doors

. Truck maneuvering and parking areas unconnected to and exclusive of any
vehicle parking

. Surfaced areas not to be used for vehicle parking, driving or maneuvering,
provided they are made inaccessible to vehicles by a barrier such as bollards or
fencing

. Automobile dealerships, display/sales/service/vehicle storage (required parking

for automobile dealerships is still subject to shading)

lf a site has two or more unconnected parking areas, shade is calculated separately for each

area. lf they are connected by a joining drive, they are calculated as one lot.

1) Shade is determined by using the appropriate percentage of the crown as

indicated on the approved shade tree list (see Plate 20-A).

2) Trees must be planted at a distance one half of the required plantersize behind
curb. Refer to the Folsom Master Tree List and Folsom Tree Care and Maintenance
Standards for information on minimum required planter size per species. Where a
walk falls adjacent to a curb, any 35-foot diameter tree within 10 feet of the curb
face receives 50% shade credit. lt is necessary for the tree to be planted at a

distance one half of the required planter size behind walk for this to apply.

3) Twofeet of vehicle overhang into planterarea is allowed, provided the planteris a

minimum 6 feet wide. Vehicle overhang is not allowed into required setback areas.

29

Page 168

06/09/2020; Item No.13.



4l ldentify any existing tree species on-site for consideration in shade credit
calculations. New trees planted for mitigation shall not count for shade or "street
tree" requirements.

5) Overlapping shade does not count twice.

6) Parking lot lighting shall not conflict with required shade tree locations or growth.

No new trees to be planted within 20' of a light standard.

7) Provide shade calculations to the Community Development Department-
Engineering Division for review and approval. The planting plan may be used as the
shade plan, provided the trees are drawn to scale at the size indicated on the
approved shade list, To calculate shade, indicate: surface area, shade area, shade
provided, and mark each tree with the credit accorded it (F or 1-00 percent, TQ or
75 percent, H or 50 percent, Q or 25 percent, OT or 33.3 percent, TT or 66.5
percent). Each tree with different shade credit shall be listed separately. This

method allows easy follow-up and coordination when a discrepancy is found in the
plan check process. See Plate 15-A for examples of tree placement.

8) The shade trees shall be inspected by the Project Arborist to confirm compliance

with the proposed shade target with a report to the City Arborist,

Shade lnspections and monitoring report shall be submitted to the City by December L't

with all corrections made within 90 days.

1) L-year after acceptance

21 5-year after acceptance to be 25% coverage

3) 1O-year after acceptance to be 50% coverage

4) L5-year after acceptance to be I0O% coverage.

C. General Requirements

All projects submitted for building permits must include site grading, landscape planting and

irrigation with irrigation calculations. All plans that include parking must also include a shade

plan. The planting plan may be used as the shade plan provided the trees are drawn to scale

at the size indicated on the approved shade list and shade calculations are included. Plans

will not be accepted into the building permit plan check process unless these items are

present.

All landscape, irrigation and shade plans shall be approved by the Planning Department. This

approval occurs as part of the development application review process.

D. Trees for Parking Lot Shading

Selection of the trees listed is based on adaptability to parking lot conditions. The following

tree conditions and characteristics are informational to help select a good shade tree:

1) Minimum planter width (clear inside soil width)

30

Page 169

06/09/2020; Item No.13.



2)

3)

4)

s)

6)

Approximate tree height

Growth rate

Root growth and depth

Suggested soil type

Soil Moisture Needs (per "Water Use Classification of Landscape Species

(wucoLs)")

VL= Very Low

L= Low

M = Moderate

H = High

7) Remarks - deciduous or evergreen, miscellaneous information

The species listed are not foolproof for allsituations. Consultation with a nurseryman

or landscape architect is desirable before any selections are made. Professional

guidance is recommended to assure that optimal design is achieved to meet the needs

of each development. Proper planting procedures, optimal spacing distance, soil,

water requirements and maintenance programs should be ascertained at the start of

the landscape project. lt is important to note that proper planting procedure may

include digging past the hardpan layer to assure deep rooting and proper growth.

Refer to the "Folsom Master Tree List" and "Folsom Tree Care and Maintenance

Standards" for canopy diameters and appropriate planter sizes of Parking lot Shading

Trees.

31

Page 170

06/09/2020; Item No.13.



2O,TT PLATES

A. Plate 20-A Tree Shading Diagram

ns2trft.
," lrr,S ar{onA$ i5 rtrrmlliam f0 n€FLEcT A

ir4$N€ft tN wtc,l slrtr ts'ffF,sFvm uAl9tr
{Aqfal|s e?Nptfte4s {r {s {t6f i# f{,t-
us|ft*l't1v tr 4n cawftA&,

2. m€t$ r{f ft€Cnttf' rfi J,tf, fr*. 685, 75'' CIfr tM
*/rs5 dFES/T A9 910*tr.

J Si,iJ4&{ 0ftrr?i.,4.e rS tdoi ffiJ#$P ll#'tff,
1. #tAOf IArf,S 'td'{f ,$#T frOl}t*T dS lJt;?6]4nnff ffi AS -r5rffif.r }Xff,s'"

TR€E SIHAFIHG SIAG*A.M
Fr.A?fi S0-A

* 41(

l$t Ar*tEtEF
oifi.r

g5g

32

Page 171

06/09/2020; Item No.13.



APPENDIX B: APPLICABLE CITY OF FOLSOM STANDARD LANDSCAPE DETAILS

l-i{[[ FLAFtTir"tff

s

pt$ow rfi.#s#r

2'g os zw?tr-'efi,8lrf

{'s{lt{, s{/tffi # &**{
frnfi. ftdlryrrf,3,t

ilw&tl

ni&i

b b

d
b {

I

${les lH( ltr4iCftf:t}-
C'f l?iE *&t'|U:t&fi

NfiTI:ftff Sr{tl(f5 Snn&
E-trIIlYSAtt$ttfiU*ff6"
,#m {Jfiffislu88fp 5#t,

?1t0 #mfttrr ?gs ffirrffilGf {S{JiI'

fijt Sff m l**3* ,qgdid
Irrdugsr tif

F{.&trr ffi$f *-J' Afr{w
GPdflF

IvO IilF $fi$, SE FLSiVrtr
*rI*1W ffi tff.d
cs8 r"*f" wa.E €j*lt NUL:ctt
t{J/ l" 3t" t}*a? Fg6$g6D

AW,? F*,&t f*Ut$t

ll{.t ,tr.gA# fr@r Fr# }$t}{* t#InJnr # 5flL
Awu{xffrf Aw ExeAVAlt
sdt {rs saf $#.
*#$Bt/IltE 

'.AffirLL 
Sfi1.LL

r#{L{ff €&ANU[/'a
rgpfiJ€* n*Glg,.'l. #t(Fg

t$CiUATg# S{Xt ,{f d #Alg
{5 ffi'ffr?f:F ril fHf 5pf04[
ffifl'{JHpis,

ij$rsprffmE,G&/'foffi of'FLJ"irw/6 fiaL{

{0

q
tr

b

{f'
JS

wlv gr f0Fjtl#*
I
l
t . ... ... ......-...-

tr
t.."

v,vffs'il1Atr? 5&

cffr or rol$0ffi

Sflrll,Sr S0llt
o*?& rusn$a*Y e0e0

33

L b_UI

Page 172

06/09/2020; Item No.13.



,E

It0sTCId ,{0 ,r$I}

ldOls r{0 sfrttFtsld lSHt

s.aoa nflYnssfrd q,iln
ex{tt ;8IY$scu""b r

'rrwxwt t-r f *rcls tlnsgj

't05 fi'gsfts*d? Jg
tlrr$ fi?# "rp elJifj*
"w Tl'fiYE}

ilt& 6txut *tziutxzt
fv'!-vvr,|{, xfl{ry /*rE

l
lrd rn6lr{v1d -# ,*}.t0* eiw "*

5}ffi rcJSS
,# ?i{elffi{ gt+L,Wrll eldl!6
.dr *.s* $r $ItH, Ltlr{J
tpt' J#l

gPrryJ.$ &ISa ??f*f{il#
HrluJ I0f{ ffi

,g

tml Sitit9t'ld rq SJgdJ

3#1s rixJffi 0rftr

td3*ilyv /* .{lc# }lvrll 16dff0 o.ij Jl#?d
'w8 $eJ 

'16dr.f-e 
w&069 # &r
s0ds sflFtr-td

uTlE sYsr /$rI ilt 0w ,Q8w

nF&{66S

!il Jsiltfr t10*v.e-, $a tN

tgvnffil tr{, $i
ssesr r4fif i*a.$ .*g n AY* 9t#r7 ?rt frj ?d?Hlvd

€J.gI tlv/t l{S{ ,{ il nwlt 95Y} v.l*f Jgll if S

u{w .l gu rufr wwLwd at ${*iKlts3j,v,,t

'sl8{*k &il w* }f@ rp f0ai€8 sf,
*r*ru r*ur,rwv -9*t d'9.{, #vrt '#n w*,8*t

tl,,d xw ,(lr? 5lt8v #itxYH if IrflsFE aavt -,

s,ssirlg,taji$? t{vt? trr sJril5
.*dlrfitrf Jdsrffi 3gI t6€ ,tt & g*

i?t0t dgo$*l(d? *F
ssr ,{ffi;t;6firr#
l{3r:d fi Str tsss

, rus*dr
&{il

,xd/t{r

}|:TXtr"tr

a
sp{rJf
-lrr4etrt

Page 173

06/09/2020; Item No.13.



ctTv 0F rots0til

il*X{f lfii:f
{tF" on satrA?tfi}

tsLt rll,
r* f8* *

i
I

t

80iff fifs ru dr fiflf
aJeBfiF #*g{ tffi

sr Jftffi#!f,,? f,fi*ar
l*2'

ffi ,{r6ta$r rf
ffmffif 5fir"

4"*f " $&a4
tco &tr

t:

N[* WATER gts# * ,{*d
r/{af}f 0Hr8 n#$Ar ff*ff
lit PLANnNf Atras S4, l{

FLATE Stdtt{ #'', ffi f'
xl{n t€ frffilti ff 7n€

ffi,r" r*SJn4l H{MI SAEI tRtlf
,{ #lfr&?€ Sf .S-t

*trg}mufrvr Mp {xe*$Att
sStL AND #X ffi'L

i'fi{81" f0r$tr SE*,

t&r$$ttr. SrGrF?tl 9+,ru
ALW t,tCLuSf gPAtfljlrf

aglir?tj,Jgr? rlrrig{J&t{ f }rr?*?
t*trr s6L Aaril$urryr *N{i
ra€4vrtF $fitL At t fte$

t9 3i4mr,€s /4, IHf $rytrri
FYtsttS#S

t
5ft"

iaf.

$gAl,$i ilO$A
Dt?fir l?ltfiiliUry gSU0

35

LJ-*UJ

Page 174

06/09/2020; Item No.13.



ftTY oF ror"s0M

cv[R TR[[ nilCITs

coNcR[TE / ASPHALT
I ENGrilrtR[D Ffi_L

SeiLBr .lllll{E
s.tT3: ft8f,UiltT so20 t_5-0s

,TD

ii' n#tF'ffe, fg0t$td l$ &rr* 6116' rt{Sf6
l- J f" {0df rofixed ftffi ldJrr

f,f,f,,{f
f fr#a

rnF)

,{tr * ot trm({ratr trcr
&OW A$x sf,nfi n06'f

2' st oe*# rtoo{
rr0,fiirifarfiJCffvA0

1' 6 pfrtrOft*tfip Aftrfl{ #Ngg (Xw, lQ r*oLfs ffit
r?Otf sOst Snr$ frAfft

da(F'& rr
I"ff,s rn{Ar i'

Z0.*[ tt?r)

:,FIT
fr*g

{rttr}

tw€E t\pf,orf,tqw-J \

Q&l.wlfAY wffiLr tN wz

fi66r

fr'AF fiH A tN(tW g ild,fs l'a 0R
HraoYA'f CLaIH n,X HOg€ &Afr &

$l,Ot7EA AtJEr €* WWtt lEfr)N*ca,{tr

llrzl
tFil€*lr4.t{ fF$$S ffCFryl "N WZ

mr0r

00Ol3Arffi,P frtitr

tr spu{ df?tfjfif,
ptlgF Or*il' fffit. fitE tB{x trotff,rff Jetf {#2) ts fr#Ntn &y ft{. ftt&.ts or r dfrfrf #aNo f&&l

&a$.cEfr tffi Fdlr5 {rt L*tff'{ t4.0Qrffir*t rtsaEfif s?ritrr{ rlils t faor ffi tw
.rur fffi -{ R^U}s F t r*E F8 €ffiY t *tt}! 6&lidlff ,*r fIriSAtr l{€t{r{l (0*1}
#r{}ffrfif s ctrJfm.

2, f,oOrS $Ay tatttFt9 w To 2-7 Dflrs &fl?l0 nt &fr4ffalfn c*r*r.
J l?*S flt ff.f t+Wt Wul{lirilt SlSIIl 9{iirl tr Fu$n {.{onv {.fiO$rl.leFft SA( *41tr

l" pArd/&€ilALtf *tau # ur:/jdraur J i' 84ff( fi,isJ a ddlrffit[

5. roi#[.[ y' ffirrtrA?s I wttt-t rASr{rHet. *tAtL ar'ftrc$ I fittt A ttilG(t sg ff t' ts'rrs pso{ls co{tgr$l s' t#t
Aryfi$"r),

8, *U$., 
'tryF 

* w+$at ltrwlt:&8 {w{ s f' *tu ,4 *tp,d{ C tL{ toffs' 4t8ti {Ar
,fiElils *r {a a# awEws w *tgAE rrgt rg?dtl$ c{d,f*ctr}"

c tl^rt A 6'X6'ttiffp fr*t UtW {(W) l4frile{UJ{ {W ,W Fffi pfficrji C(ffittt}.
*. slspffr {s &Atu Ar4r f4qt xr'.
i wA{" sreJCiwAL 6{5rff{ af o}rigxs ri#ariP ffi Afrarfl$tr..

* {1*t frtt MAl vA&f *t g{Fw g€fr ,4{8A$#t s${E}.

w-ilNwt4L_Avffi.
AfftAvd't sysldil tN t?z

36

Page 175

06/09/2020; Item No.13.



LE

lx0$Itrs-f dg til3

xjrvflJnf "{r tr*I

,ll,qnlrfi Jy JIU{

JSi{.!
f'A -tJJr0MS

fr.rru;'*' & &xst7 sY
{Jrs?Jt/f # ,.ttgqtl t}8t ltvft:f*u#} tfi'tw #)
,9t .N tt*B,t }$ATft V ttlHl 7ltit | $ A3s3lt{7)

"#& # 77Yt15 N9ilJ7 A1$ilvF jW W|fiildift 1:
{uw Nr ?& ffiIstl

sr lJe$t{tr? ly JtlgtJt( tlgt ttvJqJ,rpw*v} ,r'' pJ

,96'-1p Jl*sJ3v' fi$JuHfi y lll&,1 JJ#l t W *}trSttt3$'
-*t ffi I:Wr& l#tliJ? #**Fy# JS## lgUte!4r' "f

fvlt*.pr r* {x}#t
$v JIJ#?Jyi{Jv .!.fin].Jq l}*t 3{nhY*fiddy},#t Cr

,$d .g} JrSiJr{ .}fifiJr# r t#fir }}XJ r n* {}g&lm}
,9. #!'llrt.€ trStrJ'I &ff*dyF l*# Wllw$ff V

*rgxgl lv;eJ "rEJ 
jgr*f lstqJ 3{ssr

"{ #ly 3sr# r6f/l,J t{frtw &tl]sl# *#{ "97.:.t ,S{Mtrt r. S3nVJSli,} -18 ?7Fri6 AJq$vS i$ge T

filffJ isn JJdl IEJsH? #sroJ
&'tt i6 €tr5,rL flr ls$Jtl;*Jsrirss sl -sftrJ$g

rlnflsffi 3a Nwl SSll fllyro? sf JfSt v g *EJll/r
ffrda*? {x*xv* rflrlr ,rf tJ }d}r $i 3F n$fs

tffi*rryd r&0*r .ll*r 3p1filtrdv ,&lti Jo rJs 'l
ffi"Jfi*ffi .5tr#i$

a

?rv$r:??Ktr;
fdtri{,}d,f djl* *f8 .f ifr#

JY 
'Jd!.l#,st

Sdtf SrlH*,srdrldrplijo m fi#ntr.wr&t, tu$tA# '31sdr.l}{!r*S ,{51'\dJ,fitl}P
.et'lkrfif &lJ8#l{B Jt$# "tf

ulruHvfi i#*ri 3:u1

E;{}8 ll{Ti}trfJ l:$JY{l
g:**oli :,mY3gi*-5]

Page 176

06/09/2020; Item No.13.



fftiflffi,{r
SlitdFn'9F fffitt

ffr9p #rfis&
lffr-

ser

rsffi

,ryOrrs
{, 111F 

'WE 
Wfre7lqry ffrJ€/S rf {.{Fr ffi.t:Sr

81. J f,ffif s#*.f,€lfd r#.a\r w ttt{:ff, tr t+f
ff-,ff ro r' #'r*AaB llif fiJf lt/fs/ ffi*ocqtr
itfa.4rlraX W e,4 Wr )rlt{ i 8,{Et/5 tr l" rffi
tvtfiY **#r #' #rifftfj? Ar 5u8&w ,€fi.+l
$)s-t). f'wtrwft ,5 fi8flrtrtr

f. l?df sffr{*{ f5 r}# flfji.rlrrtr# fir t}if dff,r
gdtal{# Fv $rf rF{T9 ffJ{WI

J. lltLftfit#rc 5e,4ff dtf !)&{ trANvALLy #dLtr
St lfflld*i{r &W#r€ u{0tkttlcn tbd itrl.$1s
6R0L;## .*tT p#*Ttt$$t #lt' fdn'rsr ff
L#ttF'"f.}-

4, Ai{ *#t{}\#r*L 8$tu}9 OR ,14&?Jdr ftrl*1h43
illftisf :lS ,i?td ?'ftQff{;fi#l f{t{a *:filr Sf ntrtf
utvtrft ;w ir'Pflrwg$t or I cf,rff-ft ,f&gfrJ5r"

Itrl0f

I

I

I
I

I
{

I

$f,AlS: i'l0l{t
DAfEr ffiSxtinY C020 L5**8

r*J *r11
betl*mrl**ls r

-J6sryL*

ILFg+ otrt
xt*l

$ffs Cx'vdf;,r

ffircf#0# fefftr

i{-T

,,90f
*a#d

,t
I

ffro$ctwr

lr*r t-

fimY $r f0ffi$a{

fi*ft'N* f/tTr-ltN
?*gg Pft*TICI*N ZONf

38

Page 177

06/09/2020; Item No.13.



APPENDIX C: RESOURCES AND REFERENCES

ANSI 4300. Americon National Standard for Tree Core Operations - Tree, Shrub and Other Woody Plant

Management. Londonderry, NH:Tree Care lndustry Association, lnc.

Best Management Practices. Componion Publication to the ANSI 4300: Tree, Shrub, ond Other Woody

Plont Mointenonce. Champaign, lL: The lnternational Society of Arboriculture.

California Code of Regulations. Title 23. Chapter 2.7, Model Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance

(MWELO). 5 490. publisher?, 2015.

https://www.folsom.ca. us/civicax/fileba nk/blobd load.aspx?blobid=3462L.

City of Folsom. Tree Facts and lnformation. 2020

m a rbori ree facts a u

City of Folsom. Tree Permit Guidelines. 2020.

https://www.folsom. ca. us/com mu nitv/a ree nermlt and euidelines/default.aso.

Fite, Kelby and Smiley, Thomas E. Best Manogement Practices, Monaging Trees During Construction

Champaign, lL: The lnternational Society of Arboriculture, 201-9

Folsom, California, Municipal Code L2.16. Jan, 202O.

http*s://www. codepu blishine.com/CAIFolsom/# !/Folso-m12/Eglsom 1-216. htm l#12.16,

Gilman, Edward F. and Lilly, Sharon J. Best Management Proctices, Tree Pruning. 3'd ed. Champaign, lL:

The I nte rnationa I Society of Arboricu lt ur e, 2019.

lnternationalSociety of Arboricu lt ur e. 2020. I SA: hllps: / /www. isa-a rb or. com f

lnternational Society of Arboricult ure. 2A20. Trees Are Good: https://www.treesa regood.org/

Matheny, Nelda P. and Clark, James R. Trees and Development: A Technicol Guide to Preservotion of
Trees During Lond Development. Champaign, lL: lnternational Society of Arboriculture, Jun. 1998.

Olsen, Jeff L. Troining and Pruning Your Home Orchard. Oregon State University Extension. Aug. 201-9

https ://cata log. extension.oregonstate. ed u/pnw400/htm l.

Sacra mento Tree Fou ndation. 2020. lrttps ://www.sactree, com/

WUCOLS. Water Use Classification of Landscape Species. University of California.2O2O.

htt pq ://ucal r. ed u_ls ites/.W U CoLSl.

39

Page 178

06/09/2020; Item No.13.



ATTACHMENT 3

FOLSOM MASTER TREE LIST

6
Page 179

06/09/2020; Item No.13.



FOLSOM MASTER TREE LIST

(Updated May 1,2020)

PURPOSE

planting space and micro-climate. Tree crown height and spread as listed are approximate and vary based on climate, growing conditions and cultivars or varieties.

in the San Francisco Bay Area but will seldom exceed 30 to 40 feet in the Sacramento Valley.

species selection, lack of space above and below ground and poor early care.

Attractive bark, small stature

Dense and compact

Best in afternoon shade, but a few varieties can handle
full sun. Approval by the City Arborist is required prior
to use as a Street Tree.

Form varies with cultivar, provide good drainage,

'Bowhall' has a columnar form with a 15'canopy spread.

Winter seeds hold for birds

Good lawn tree, dense crown, similar to Japanese maple
but more sun tolerant

Striking in age, summer deciduous, native to our region

Striking in bloom

Good screenin& drought tolerant

5'

5'

5'

6',

5'

5'

5'

6'

o

7',

6'

6'

8'

7',

7'

7'

7'

7',

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Moderate

gold
Orange,

Yellow

Red,

orange,

vellow
Orange-

red

Red

red

Orange

Yellow

Yellow

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/n

N/a

N/A

White

Bright red

N/A

M

M

M

M

M

M

VL

M

L

D

D

D

D

D

D

D

D

FulF

crowned

Spreading

Spreading

Full-

crowned

Spreading

Vase

Spreading

Spreading

Pyramidal

20-25

15-25

15-25

25-35

20-2s

20-30

20-30

35-50

25-35

20-25

15-25

].5-25

ln-s0

20-25

20-30

35-50

10-25

25-3s

Acer buergerianum

{cer campestre

Acer rubrum

Acef truncotum

Acer polmotum

Acer totoricum ginnald

Aesculus colifonico

Aesculus x cornea
(includ ing' Btiotii' o nd
'O'Neiil Red')

Allocosuarino strida
(verticulloto)

Irident Maple

Hedge Maple

lapanese Maple

lselect cultivars)

Red Maple (many

cultlvarsl

Amur Maple

Shantung Maple

California Buckeye

Red Hoasechestnut

Beefwood

J ."'-"

."-.- .";*$o{"-"::.ili:"{..{"1* .";":.\.s$"g$f
Remarks

City of Folsom Page 1 May 1,2O2O

Page 180

06/09/2020; Item No.13.



Small flowering tree, small fruit, bird friendly

Smaller than 'Marina' interesting trunk structure, fruit
attractive but can be messy

Best birch for hot areas, others are marginal

Best in full sun, good drainage, fragrant foliage and
wood, attracts birds, native to California

Symmetrical crown, protect young bark from sunscald

Good screening tree, allow plenty of space

Striking silhouette against the skyline, blue-gray foliage,
large accent tree

Rapid grolvth when young, large tree for large spaces,

fragrant foliage and wood

Rugged shade tree, late leaf out in spring

Rugged shade tree, native to California

May surface root, allow plenty of room, litter from fruit
pods on female trees used as a chocolate substitute

Early bloomer, treeJike form, 'Forest Pansy' has purple
foliage, attractive, good lawn tree

Generally more shrub-like, may be trained in to a small

tree, very early bloom, native to our region

Fragrant flowers, 'Bubba is slightly smaller than the
species, good under utility wires, drought resistant, bird
friendly

Small strawberry-like fruit attractive flowers

10'

L0'

8'

o

8',

6'

5',

5

5'

5'

6'

10'

6'

6

L0'

8'

10'

10'

10'

7'

7'.

7'

6'

6'

5'

7'

7'

8'

Low

Low

Moderate

Moderate

Moderate

Low

High

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Moderate

Moderate

yellow

N/A

Yellow

N/A

Yellow

N/A

N/A

N/A

Yellow

Yellow

N/A

Yellow,

russet

Yellow,

russet

Yellow

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Small red

rosy-pink

pink

vary

white-
fringe

clusters

Pink

Light pink

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

H

M

M

L

M

L

L

L

L

M

VL

M

L

L

D

D

E

E

E

E

D

D

E

D

D

D

Vase

Spreading

Spreading

Pyramidal

Pyramidal

Pyramidal

Pyramidal

Pyramidal

Pyramidal

Full-

crowned

Full-

crowned

Spreading

Spreading

Layered

Layered

2s-30

10-20

10-15

10-12

3040

20-35

25-35

20-25

20-30

20-30

3040

30-40

40-50

z5-30

25-35

3540

50-70

50-90

60-80

45-80

25-35

25-35

25-35

10-20

t5-20

10-20

40-50

20-35

3040

60-80

Corpinus betulus

Cosuorina

cunninghomiono

Cedrus otldntico ('Glauca')

Cedrus deodoro

Celtis occidentolis

Celtis loevigoto (vor.

reticuldtd)

Cerotonio siliquo

Cercis conodensis

Cercis occidentolis

Chilopsis lineoris'Bubba'

Chiononthus retusus

Arbutus 'Marina'

Arbutus unedo

Betulo nigro'BNMTF'

Colocedrus decurrens

:ommon Hackberry

:arob

:astern Redbud

Western Redbud

)esert Willow'Bubba'

Chlnese Fringe Tree

ttrawberry Tree

Marina'

Strawberry Tree

River Birch'Ouraheat'

lncense Cedar

European Hornbeam

River She-Oak

Atlas (Blue) Ceda.

Deodar Cedar

Western Hackberry

-""$.$:.{o"::.\1.::"'"1..1:"1* .";"$t.c$";$:"'"c 
Remarks

.a3,to'

".""

FOLSOM MASTER TREE LIST
(Updated May 1, 2020)

May 1,2O20Page 2City of Folsom

Page 181

06/09/2020; Item No.13.



FOLSOM MASTER TREE LIST
(Updated May 1, 2020)

Flowers not showy, fragrant foliage, good screen

Drought tolerant, fast, showy flowers

Fragrant foliage and wood, subject to Verticillium wilt,
plant sparingly, allow plenty of space

Usually small, good drainage, best in partial shade and
moist soil, hybrid between Eastern and Western

dogwoods

Typically multi-stem

Seedlings vary, rugged, tough tree, good screen,

'Chaparral" grows to only 15 ft.

Good small evergreen tree, some litter from summer
fruit

Flowers not showy, fragrant foliage

Usually on the smaller side in our area, red to black
furrowed bark

Good street tree

Fast growing, excellent fall color, watch for borers,

'Autumn Purple'is a favorite

Non-invasive roots, can be litter-prone, fire-resistant

Plant only "male" trees to avoid noxious fruit, 'Princeton

Sentry'maintains central leader best, more narrow
form, beautiful lawn or street tree
Adaptable to poor soils, litter from dry seed pods

Usually on the small side, flowers attractive from below
crown

10'

6'

5'

8'

10'

10'

8'

10'

5'

8

10'

6'

8'

7'

6',

7'

6'

8'

8'

8'

8'

10'

6'

7'

10'

7'

Low

High

Low

Low

Low

Low

Moderate

Moderate

High

Moderate

High

Low

Moderate

Moderate

Low

N/A

Orange,
yellow

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

brown

purple-

bronze

N/A

golden

yellow

yellow

Yellow

Red

Pink

N/A

White,
pink, rose

Fu2zy pink
pendulous

clusters

N/A

Creamy

white

White

White

Fuzzy pink
pen d u lous

clusters

N/A

N/A

White

N/A

N/A

White

M

L

Mt

*M

M

M

L

L

L

M

M

M

M

E

E

E

D

E

D

D

E

D

E

D

Full-

crowned

Spreading

Pyramidal

Vase

Weeping

Spreading

Vase

Spreading

Spreading

Weeping

Full-

crowned

Spreading

Vase

Sp reading

Spreading

30

s0-60

15-45

15-18

20

15-20

15-40

15-45

30-60

3040

50

20

25-35

45-50

15-30

25-30

50-65

2040

10-15

40-50

15-20

40-50

30-75

30-90

40-60

80

25-30

25-50

60-100

30-40

Chitolpo

tas h ke nte nsis' Mo r ni ng

Cloud' or'Pink Down'

Cinnamomum comphoto

Eddie's White Wonder'
Cornus nutolli x'florido

Cotinus coggytio

Cupressus

(Hesperocyporis)

orizonico vor. qlabra

Eriobotryo deJlexa

Eucolyptus nicholii

Euco ly pt us po lyd nt he mos

Eucalyptus sideroxylon

Eucommio ulmoides

Froxinus omericona
('Autumn Purple',

Autumn Applause')

Geijerc poNfofio

Ginkgo bilobo 'Aulumn
Gold','Princeton Sentry'

'Saratoga')

Gymnoclodus dioico

Holesio corolino

:hitalpa 'Morning

Cloud'or'Pink Dawn

Camphor Tree

Dogwood'Eddie's
White Wonder'

tmoke Tree

Smooth Arizona

Cypress

Bronze Loquat

Peppermint Gum

tilver Dollar Gum

Red lronbark

Hardy Rubber Tree

Autumn Ash

lcultivars)

Australian wlllow

Ginkgo (Male,

3rafted)

Kentucky Coffee Tree

Carolina Silver

Bell/Snow Drop Tree

City of Folsom Page 3 May 1,2020

Page 182

06/09/2020; Item No.13.



FOLSOM MASTER TREE LIST
(Updated May 1, 2020)

Usually a large shrub, easily trained to a small tree,
bright red berries, flowers inconspicuous

Sometimes called Chinese Lantern, showy summer
bloom, pink paper-lantern like fruit capsules in fall

Similar to the Chinese Flame but seed capsules are tan
to brown

Profuse bloom May to November. Use tree forms only.
Approval by the City Arborist is required prior to use as

a Street Tree or Parking Lot Shading Tree.

lnconspicuous fiowers, aromatic foliage used for
cooking, sometimes shrubby, fast growing, allow space

Very large tree, allow plenty of space, aphid may cause

dripping

Can be root invasive, allow space, litter-prone but
beautiful summer blossoms

Same beautiful summer blossoms in a smaller framed
tree

Many hybrids with a broad range of burgundy, pink and
while blossoms, blooms before leaves emerge, usually
multi-trunked

Species is armored with spines, 'Whiteshield'is
thornless male, fruitless

Many cultivars with differing forms, subject to fireblight,
select disease-resistant varieties, one ofthe best spring
flowering trees if well cared for, ask for RiRhtRoot d
Needs well drained soil to avoid surface rootin& full sun

lnteresting contorted trunk forms with age, fragrant
foliage and wood, striking bloom

A deciduous conifer, can be fast growing with adequate
water, striking silhouette both in and out of leaf, allow
plenty of space

Female trees may produce small fruit, tolerates a wide
range ofsoil conditiont prune when youngto thin
closely spaced branches

5'

6'

6'

5'

6'

10'

12'.

5'

5'

8'

5'

8'

6',

10'

6',

5'

7',

7'

5'

6'

10'

10'

6'

6'

7'

6',

7'

7'

8'

7',

Low

Low

Low

Low

Moderate

Moderate

Hish

Moderate

Low

Moderate

Low

Moderate

Moderate

Moderate

Low

N/A

yellow

Yellow

Golden
yellow

to red

N/A

Yellow

and gold

N/A

N/A

Yellow

to
russet

yellow

Red to
bronze

N/A

Yellow

to
russet

Scarlet

White

Yellow

Yellow

Varies

with
species

White

Light

yellow

and

white

White

Pink-

white-
purple

N/A

White,
pink, red,

rose

N/A

Creamy

white

N/A

N/A

M

M

M

L

L

M

M

M

M

*L

M

M

L

H

M

E

D

D

D

E

E

E

D

D

D

E

E

D

D

Full-

crowned

Full-

crowned

Spreading

Vase

Spreading

Pyramidal

Full-

crowned

Full-

crowned

Vase

Spreading

Spreading

Weeping

[ayered

Pyramidal

Pyramidal

50-60

15-2S

15-30

2540

10

15-30

40

10-20

15-20

3040

18-30

20-30

\s-2s

12-20

20-30

15-20

2040

20-3s

zo

2040

60-80

60-80

15-25

20-25

40-50

12-25

30-s0

20-30

70-90

30-50

llex x oltoclerensis

'Wilsonii'

Koe I re ute ri o bi p i n notd

Koe lre ut e ri a po n ic u lot o

Logerstroemio sp. (select

cultivars ond hybrids)

Lourus nobilis

Li riode nd ron tu li pife ro

Mognolio grondiflora
(ond select cukivors,

'Little Gem'. St. Marv')
Magnolio grondiflora
'Little Gem'ond St. Mory'

Mognolio xsoulongeono
(ond cuhivors)

Mocluro pomifera

Molus sp.

Moytenus boorio

Melaleuco lanceoloto

Metosequoia
glyptostroboides

Nysso sylvoticd

iouthern Magnolia

Wilson Holly

Chinese Flame Tree

Goldenrain Tree

Crape Myrtle (and

,apanese crape

myrtle)

Bay laurel

Tulip Poplar

Dwarf Southern
Magnolia

Saucer Magnolia

Osage Orange/Hedge

Apple 'Whitefield'

Flowering Crabapple

Mayten

Black Tea Tree

Dawn Redwood

Iupelo / Sour Gum

City of Folsom Page 4 May 1,2020

Page 183

06/09/2020; Item No.13.



lnconspicuous flowers, edible fruit can be messy,

'Mission' produces good quality fruit, 'Swan Hill' and
'Majestic Beauty' are mostly fruitless
Tough tree native to the Sonoran desert, extremely
heavy durable wood, good summer color, keep it on the
dry side

A large shrub easily trained to a small tree form,
fragrant white blossoms spring and summer

Graceful, light shade, better in moist soils, winged seeds
attractive

Excellent fall color, not a common tree in the region

Top choice for dry garden themes, 'Desert Museum' is
thornless

Top choice for dry garden themes, small thorns offer
protection for birds

Green to bluish needle color, multiple cultivars offer
varying depth of color, slow grower, specimen tree

Long needle, graceful pine, almost a weeping
appearance, usually not over 40 feet in our area

Tall and spreading; dense crown, red/orange bark

Very similar to Allepo pine, loose, thinner, spreading
crown than most pines

Similar to Aleppo pine, loose, thinner, spreading crown
than most pines, cones persistent

One of the better pines for urban settings, dark green

erect growth

Very large tree suitable for parks or large spaces, dense
crown, often multi-trunked, source of pine nuts

Fast growing when young, short needles, dark green

foliage, more round topped with ate

o

5',

5'

6'

8'

5',

5'

8'

8'

8'

10'

8'

8'

10'

10'

6',

8',

6'

6'

7'

8'

8'

8'

7'

6'

8'

8'

10'

8'

Moderate

Low

Low

Low

Moderate

Low

Low

Moderate

Moderate

Moderate

Moderate

Moderate

Moderate

Moderate

Moderate

N/A

N/A

N/A

russet

Yellow,

to red

Orange

Yellow

Yellow

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

White

Lavender,
pink

white

N/A

Creamy

white

Bright
yellow

Bright
yellow

N/e

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/a

N/e

N/a

VL

L*

M

H+

M

VL

M

L

M

L

L

M

L

M

E

D

D

D

D

F

E

E

E

E

Layered

lrregular

Vase

Spreading

Pyramidal

Layered

Spreading

Pyramidal

Pyramidal

Pyramidal

Pyramidal

Pyramidal

Pyramidal

Full-

crowned

Pyramidal

25-30

15-30

o-6

20-30

2540

20-25

15-20

t0-20

20-30

3040

15-25

2040

25-35

40-60

20-35

25-3s

15-30

2545

40-60

75-20

20-25

30-60

30-50

30-s0

L0-20

30-80

30-50

40-60

40{0

30-70

Porkinsonio 'Desert
Museum'

Piceo pungens (glouco)

Oleo europoeo (various

cultivars w/ & w/o fruit)

Olneyo tesota

Osmanthus fraqrans

Ostrya virginiono

Oxydendron arboreum

Parkinsonio floridum

Pinus conoriensis

Pinus densiflora

Pinus eldorica

Pinus holepensis

Pinus nigrd

Pinus pinea

Pinus sylvestris

Olive

Desert lronwood

Sweet Olive

American Hop-

hornbeam

Souruood

Desed Museum' Palo

Verde'

Blue Palo Verde

Colondo (Bluel

Spruce

Canary lsland Pine

lapanese Red Pine

Afghan (Mondell or
Calabrian) Pine

Aleppo Pine

Austrian Black Pine

Itallan Stone Pine

tcotch Pine

o.$"$;.*"""";i;:i;";""3.\:1"'-'k ""..,*\.o$"x$::d Remarks

.$,c

"""""

s,o'

FOLSOM MASTER TREE LIST
(Updated May 1,2020)

May 1,2020Page 5City of Folsom

Page 184

06/09/2020; Item No.13.



FOLSOM MASTER TREE LIST
(Updated May 1, 2020)

Bright green needles, common selection in Asian

themed gardens due to interesting branching pattern

Keith Davey' reliably male and seedless, 'Red Push

hybrid leafs out red in spring, turning to green, a

popular seledion with outstandinA fall color
Generally disease resistant, but surface roots are
common, These are over-planted, use sparingly and

allow plenty of space

Fast growing, may get anthracnose, powdery mildew,
good for moist locations, good for large areas only

Moderate growth rate. Works well as a screening tree
due to its columnar growth habit

Phoenix' is thornless, tough desert tree for dry
landscapes, usually on the smaller side of the size range

Many cultivars with varying form including weeping,

beautiful spring bloom, trunk and branches sunburn
easily, maintain leafy crown
Only mostly fruitless cultivars, 'x blieriana' suitable
under utilities, select "high-head" trees

The only non-invasive cultivar, others highly invasive in

wetlands, resistant to fireblight, very popular species
but very over-utilized
Early spring bloom, interesting form, partially

deciduous, watch for fireblight and leaf spot

Native oak that does well in our area, wider than tall at
maturity, deep green foliage contrasts with silvery bark,

sreat for wildlife
The most common native oak in our area, prefers dry
conditions once established, picky about disturbance as

established natural trees

Popular choice for an evergreen oak, dense crown,
silvery underside to the leaves, usually on the smaller

side ofthe size range

Classic native oak of California postcards and photos,

large spreading crown, will tolerate some irrigation but
not constant moisture, allow plentv ofspace

Fast Brower, tolerates wide rante of soils, huge 1-2 "
acorns, 'Urban Pinnacle'taller than wide, much smaller
acorns, a top performer for large spaces

8'

6',

6',

5',

5'

6'

6'

5'

8'

6'

b

72',

5'

5'

8'

7',

7'

8'

L2

7'.

6'

6'

7'

7'.

8'

8'

8'

10'

8',

Moderate

Low

Moderate

Moderate

Low

Moderate

Low

Low

Moderate

Low

Low

Low

Low

Moderate

Moderate

N/A

Orange

to red

to
Yellow

to gold

Yellow

to gold

N/A

Yellow

Yellow

to gold

Red to
bronze

Red to
scarlet

Yellow

N/A

Yellow

to gold

N/n

Yellow

to gold

Yellow

to
russet

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Yellow

White,
pink, rose

Llght pink

White

white

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

M

L

M

M

L

M

M

M

M

VL

VL

t

L

M

E

D

D

E

D

D

D

D

E

E

D

E

D

D

Layered

Spreading

FulF

crowned

Full-

crowned

Oval

vase

Narrow

Spreading

Spreading

Layered

Layered

Full-

crowned

Spreading

Spreading

Spreading

Full-

crowned

3540

25-35

40-60

50-70

15-25

30-3s

20-25

12-L5

25

15-30

30-60

40-50

30-60

50-70

40-50

25-30

25-35

40-60

70-90

30-s0

30

20-25

72-1,5

35

15-30

30-50

50-55

30-60

50-70

40-50

lapanese Black Pine thunbergii

l'^'
chinensis

l'o*"
Chinese Pistache

'Keith Davey'or'x
Red Push'

lPlontanus x hispanica

I'Cotumbio'ond

l'Exctomotion'

London Plane

'Columbia'and
'Exclamation'

American Sycamore occidentolis

l'^"'*
Fern Pine grucilior

leodocarous
hybrid'Phoenix'

l"*'"
Phoenix {thornless)
Mesquite

sp.

l"**
Flowering Cherry
(many cultivars)

lPrunus x blieilnqno or
lr"roriJ"ro
I'Krauter Vesuvius'

Purple Leaf Plum
(fruitless)

hybrid

l''*'Chastity'

Flowering Pear

Evergreen Pear kowakamii

l*''
Coast Live Oak agrrJolio

lo*'*
BIue Oak douqlosii

lo*"'
Holly Oak ilex

lo***
Valley Oak loboto

lo*'.^
Bur Oak (JF9KW3)

'Urbon

lQuercus

lrorrororpo
lPinnocte'

City of Folsom Page 6 May 1,2020

Page 185

06/09/2020; Item No.13.



FOLSOM MASTER TREE LIST
(Updated May 1, 2o2o)

Fine-textured, almost weeping appearance, prefers

deep well drained soil, allow space

Similar to valley oak, but usually much smaller, not a
native, many forms make this a top choice for urban
settings

Retains dry fall leaves throughout winter, aphids are
common, needs space for roots, best in well drained
loamy soils

Similar to red, scarlet and pin oaks, may retain fall
leaves until spring, will tolerate wet areas

Picturesque form, thick, corky, deeply furrowed bark,
Mediterranean origin, the original source of corks is the
bark itself, good choice for our area, qive it space to
On the smaller side ofthe size range in our area,
evergreen or partly deciduous, tolerates urban sites,
gnarled twisting trunks with ase

Commonly multi-trunked, a native ofthe region, dense
crown, leaves smooth or prickly

Can be litter-prone, berries may be toxic to those with
nut allergies, roots are intrusive, allow plenty of space

Small evergreen, good screening tree, a little litter-
prone, but graceful form and compact size make it a

popular choice

Produces some litter from seed pods, 'Regent' is a faster
grower, more reliable in form than the parent, prefers
good drainage

Good under utilities, dry themed landscapes, seeds are
toxic, prefers drier locations

Prefers some afternoon shade, keep slightly moist,
beautiful pendulous white bloom, fragrant, followed by
small berries

Prefers some afternoon shade, keep slightly moist,
beautiful pendulous white bloom with yellow centers,
fragrant, followed by small berries

Prolific summer bloom, fragrant, compact form, good

for urban sites with limited space

Native conifer ofthe NW coast. Prefers slightly moist
soil, fragrant foliage and wood. Dense crown, retain
lower branches for best appearance.

10'

10'

L0'

8'

10'

8'

8'

5'

6',

5'

5',

5'

5'

10'

10'

10'

10'

8'

8'

t2'

10'

7',

7'

6'

6'

o

6',

8'

Moderate

Moderate

High

Moderate

Moderate

Moderate

Moderate

High

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Moderate

Yellow

to
Yellow

oranee

Red

red

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Yellow

N/A

Yellow

to Sold

Yellow

Yellow

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/e

N/A

N/,q

N/A

N/A

N/A

Yellow or
white

Violet blue

White

White
with

yellow

white
Creamy

N/A

M

M

M

L

M

L

L

L

L

M

M*

M

M

D

D

D

D

E

E

E

E

D

D

D

D

Full-

crowned

Full-

crowned

Full-

crowned

Full-

crowned

Full-

crowned

Spreading

Spreading

Weeping

Sp reading

Spreading

lrregular

Vase

Vase

Vase

Pyramidal

30-50

40-70

60-70

3040

30-60

50-100

40-80

2540

20-3s

3040

10-15

15-20

15-20

20

I5-25

50-90

40-70

50-80

40-60

30-60

40-80

30-70

2540

20-30

40-50

20-30

20-25

15-20

20-30

50-70

Quercus robur

Quercus shumqrdii

Quercus suber

Quercus virginiono

Quercus wislizenii

Schinus molle

Sophoro joponico

' Regent' (Sty p h nolob i u m
ioponicum)

Quercus phellos

Quercus rubrc

Seorsia lancea

Sophord scundifloro

Styroxjoponicus

Styrdx obossio

Sy ri nga ret ic u loto' lv ory
sitk'

Thujo plicdto

Willow Oak

English Oak (many

cultivars)

Red Oak

Shumard Oak

Cork Oak

Southern Live Oak

lnterior Live Oak

California Pepper Tree

African Sumac

lapanese Pagoda

Itee'Regent'

Texas Mountain
Laurel (Mescal Bean)

lapanese Snowbell

Fragrant Snowbell

lapanese Tree Lilac

lvory Sllk'

Western Red Cedar

.gc .".-'

."-.- **-"""$)"o'io..,:,\15.-.,"$.{."r-"k ""-.""*\on$";$::d Remarks

City of Folsom Page 7 May 1,2O20

Page 186

06/09/2020; Item No.13.



FOLSOM MASTER TREE LIST
(Updated May 1,2020)

Columnar Full-crowned lrregular Layered Oval Pyramidal Spreading Weeping

Prefers moist soil, a favorite of bees and birds, good

lawn or shade tree. 'Redmond' cultivar is larger, not as

Bood in hot inland areas

Dutch Elm Disease (DED) & Elm Leaf Beetle (ELB)

resistant. Steeped in the history ofthe Sacramento
Valley, allow plenw of space.

Subject to DED & ELB but not commonly affected, large,
spreading and graceful form, emphasize early training
for best form in age

Subject to DED & ELB but not commonly affected, large,
spreading and graceful form, emphasize early structural
pruning for best form in age.

New leaves emerge orange in color. Good medium sized

street tree. Resistant to DED and ELB.

Multi or single trunk, very hardy, fragrant foliage,
blooms summer to fall

Urban friendly, excellent fall color russet to gold to red,
broad and spreading.

Urban friendly and excellent fall color russet to gold to
red. Canopy shape is narrow and columnar.

Urban friendly, excellent fall color russet to gold to red.
Great accent tree for use under utility lines.

Prefers moist and well drained soils, smaller in Ieaf that
American linden, 'Summer Sprite'is a smaller cultivar

8'

8'

8'

10'

8'

6',

5'

8'

o

5

8'

7'

7',

8'

7'

7',

5'

6

6',

6'

Moderate

High

Low

Moderate

Moderate

Moderate

High

Moderate

Moderate

Moderate

Yellow

Yellow

red

Yellow,

Yellow

to gold

to gold

Yellow

Yellow

to gold

Yellow

Yelllow
to gold

to red

Yelllow
to gold

to red

Yelllow

to gold

to red

Light

Yellow

Light

yellow

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Lavender

to blue

N/A

N/A

M

M

M

M

M

L

M

M

M

M

D

D

D

D

D

D

D

D

D

D

Full-

crowned

Pyramidal

Vase

Vase

Vase

Vase

Spreading

Vase

Columnar

Vase

20-25

15-30

1540

50-70

30-50

30

15-2S

50-65

10-15

15-18

40-65

30-s0

30-60

50-70

35-50

4Q

15-25

s0-65

4045

20-2s

Tilio omericono

Tilio corddtq

Ulmus sp, (including

'Accolade','Frontier',
'Emerald Sunshine')

Ulmus porviJolio

(including the cultivar
'Ailee')

U lmus pa rvifol io' Dro ke',

' Dynosty','F rontiet', &
True Grcen'
Ulmus wilsonidna

'Prospectot'

Vitex ognus-costus

Zelkova serrotd (including

'Droke', 'Green Vose', and
'Village Green' )
Zelkova seiloto
'Musoshino'

Zelkova serrota 'City

Sprite'

American Llnden

Little-Leaf Linden

Amerlcan/Hybrid Elm

[hybrids only)

Chinese (tacebark)
Elm

Chinese (Lacebark)

Elm cultivals

Prospetctor Elm

Chaste Tree

Zelkova (and select
:ultivars)

Zelkova 'Musashino'

Dwarf Zelkova

City of Folsom Page I

Vase

May 1,202O

Page 187

06/09/2020; Item No.13.



TREES NOT EtIGIBtE FOR HERITAGE STATUS

The following tree species are exempt from obtaining a status of "Heritage Tree", as defined in Folsom Municipal Code 12.16.020 - Tree
Preservation, due to rapid growth rates, root intrusion, invasiveness, or other objectionable characteristics. Although the Folsom Master Tree
List is subject to change from time to time as knowledge is gained on appropriate species selection, the following list of species is fixed and shall
not incur changes unless otherwise approved by City Council:

Characteristics

Very high water needs. Weak limb attachments make these trees susceptible to limb
failure. Aggressive, far-reaching surface roots are common.
Extremely invasive.

lnvasive. Weak wood and limb attachments are common, making this species prove to
limb failure.
Biologically, these plants are nottrees and do not provide the same level of benefit as

true trees.
Prone to limb failure in age. Mature size may not be suitable for some urban settings.
High flammability.
Poor structure with weak limb attachments result in high likelihood of limb failure in
age. Disease-prone.

Weak branching strength. Aggressive, far-reaching surface roots are common.

Weak branching strength. Aggressive, far-reaching surface roots are common.

Weak branching strength. Large pine cones can be injurious to people and property

Weak limb attachments are characteristic of this species, resulting in a high likelihood
of limb failure. lnvasive.
Very high water needs. Aggressive, far-reaching surface roots are common

Very high water needs. Aggressive, far-reaching surface roots are common

BotanicalName

Populus sp

Ailanthus altissimo

Albizia julibrissin

Arecaceae

Eucalyptus sp.

Fraxinus arizonica
'Modesto'
Li q u i d a m b o r sty ra cilfua

Morus sp

Pinus sabiniana

Pyrus calleryana

Salix sp

Sequoia sempervirens

Common Name

Poplars

Chinese Tree of Heaven

Mimosa/Silk Tree

Palms (all)

Eucalyptus

Modesto Ash

Liquidambar

Mulberry

Foothill Pine

Flowering Pear

Willows

Coast Redwood

City of Folsom Page 9 May 1,2020

Page 188

06/09/2020; Item No.13.



REFERENCES

Best Management Practices. Companion Publication to the ANSI Aj00: Tree, shrub, and other woody Plant Maintenance. champaign, lL: The
lnternational Society of Arboriculture.

Brenzel, Kathleen Norris. The New Sunset Western Garden Book. 9th ed: Tl lnc. Books, 7 Feb. 2018

Ca lifornia I nvasive Pla nt Cou nci l. Ca l-l PC. 22 May. 2O2O : https: / lwww. ca I -i pc.org/

SefecTree. ATree Selection Guide. Urban Forest Ecosystems lnstitute.23 May. 2O2O:https{/selectree.calpoly.edu/

City of Fotsom Page 10 May 1,2O2O

Page 189

06/09/2020; Item No.13.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 190

06/09/2020; Item No.13.



Folsom City Council
Staff ort

MEETING DATE: 61912020

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Receive and File the City of Folsom, the Folsom Redevelopment
Successor Agency, the Folsom Public Financing Authority, the
Folsom Ranch Financing Authority, and the South of 50 Parking
Authority Monthly Investment Reports for the Month of March
2020

FROM: Finance Department

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Finance Department recommends that the City Council receive and file the City of Folsom,
the Folsom Redevelopment Successor Agency, the Folsom Public Financing Authority, the
Folsom Ranch Financing Authority, and the South of 50 Parking Authority monthly
Investment Reports for the month of March 2020.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

Under the Charter of the City of Folsom and the authority granted by the City Council, the
Finance Director is responsible for investing the unexpended cash of the City Treasury. The
primary objectives of the City's investment policy are to maintain the safety of investment
principal, provide liquidity to meet the short and long-term cash flow needs of the City, and
earn a market-average yield on investments. The City's portfolio is managed in a manner
responsive to the public trust and is consistent with state and local laws and the City's
investment policy. The Finance Department hereby submits the investment reports for the
City of Folsom, the Folsom Redevelopment Successor Agency, the Folsom Public Financing
Authority, the South of 50 Parking Authority, and the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority for
the month of March 2020.

1

Page 191

06/09/2020; Item No.14.



POLICY / RULE

1. Section 3.30.010(a) of the Folsom Municipal Code states oothe term 'city' shall
encompass the city of Folsom, the Folsom community redevelopment agency, and all
other agencies and instrumentalities of the city under eitherthe direct or indirect control
of the city council, and this chapter regulates the investment of all moneys of those

agencies."

2. Section 3.30.030(0 of the Folsom Municipal Code states that "the city's chief
investment offrcer shall each month submit an investment report to the city council,
which report shall include all required elements as prescribed by California
Government code section 53646."

3. California Government Code, Sections 53601 through 53659 sets forth the state law
governing investments for municipal governments in California.

4. Section 3.30.020(9) of the Folsom Municipal Code states that "all city cash shall be

consolidated into one general bank account as set out in this code and invested on a
pooled concept basis. Interest earnings shall be allocated to all city funds and subfunds

according to fund and subfund cash and investment balance on at least a quarterly
basis."

ANALYSIS

Overview
The City has diversified investments in accordance with the City Investment Policy and

Government Code. The City of Folsom's total cash and investments are invested on a pooled

basis as required by the Folsom Municipal Code.

The Portfolio Summary of the City's current report includes a ooPooled Equity Section"
identiffing the Redevelopment Successor Agency's (RDSA) and Folsom Public Financing
Authority's (FPFA) portion of the investment pool. The RDSA and FPFA list these amounts

under'oCash" in their respective sections. Currently, the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority
(FRFA) has no funds invested in Pooled Equity.

City of Folsom

Total Cash and Investments
The following graph illustrates the City's monthly cash and investment balances for fiscal
years20I6through 2020. Monthly fluctuations in cash and investments are the result oftypical
receipt of revenues less expenditures for operations, debt service, and capital improvements.
As of March 31,2020, the City's cash and investments totaled $139,814,3 64; an increase of
$21,052,67 2 (18%) from March 3 l, 2019 .

2Page 192

06/09/2020; Item No.14.



+20L5115

City of Folsom Total Cash and Investments
(Fiscal Year)

*2o16/L7 +2otltg *2ol8ll9
-2oL9l20

ut AUG SEP ocT NOV oEc ,AN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNI
I

I
I
I

I

Eo

a

The following chart shows the City's monthly cash and investment balances and percentage

change for Fiscal Year 2019-20 alongwith the yearly dollar and percentage changes.

s1s0

S13o

s110

Seo

S70

Sso

Total City Cash and Investments

Monthly
2019-20 Chanse 20r8-19

Monthly
Change

Yearly $
Change

Yeaily oh

Chanqe

Jul
Aug
Sep

Oct
Nov
Dec
Jan
Feb

Mar

-3%
-6%
t%

-2%
l0%
9%

t%
-5%

-6%
-3%
-t%
-5%

t0%
-3%

t2%
-2%

t2%
t6%
t3%
ts%
19%

t9%
34%

2t%
t8%

$ 133,948,255

$ 129,657,395

s 121,952,538

s 122,996,173

$ 121,112,560

s 132,661,948
g 145,156,622

$ 146,494,239

s 139,814,364

$ I l9,l 84,5 I 9

$ 111,476,371

$ 107,672,166

s 106,928,144

$ 101,854,232

$ 111,671,000

$ 108,415,002

s 121,032,339

$ 118,761,692

$ 14,763,736

$ 18,181,024

s 14,280,372

$ 16,068,029

$ 19,258,329

$ 20,990,948

$ 36,741,620

$ 25,461,900

I 21,052,672

The City's projected cash needs for the next six months are sufficiently provided for by
anticipated revenues and the liquidity of its cash and investments. In addition, in accordance

with Section 3.30.020(c) of the Municipal Code, less than 50% of the City's total cash is

invested for a period longer than one year.

J
Page 193

06/09/2020; Item No.14.



To Maturity as of March 31, 2020

2-3 Yrs

16,861,186

3-4 Yrs

8,775,701

4-5 Yrs

3,752,876

0 Days

25,052,335
16.596

X-2 Yrs

18,466,351

184-365 Days

9,247,063
6.L%

2-L83
10,089,8s0

6.7%
59,264,t20

39.1%

Investment Performance
The City's Portfolio Management Summary report for the month of March 2020 is presented

in attachment 1 to this report. Portfolio investment earnings (including pooled equity earnings

for the RDSA and FPFA) for the three-month quarter ending March 31,2020 totaled $815,695.
The total rate of return of the investment portfolio for the same period was 2.22%.

The following graph illustrates the total dollar amount and allocation percentages for March
3I,2019 and March 3I,2020. The percentages in this graph are based on book value.

4
Page 194

06/09/2020; Item No.14.



City of Folsom Portfolio Allocation

$80,000,000

$70,000,000

$60,000,000

$50,000,000

$40,000,000

$30,000,000

$20,000,000

$10.000.000

$-
Cash -

Checking
Money Market Local

Government
lnvestment

Pool

Commercial
Paper

Cerlificates of Corporate US Agencies
Deposit Bonds

Municipal
Bonds

aMar.31, 2019 City Portfolio lMar. 31, 2020 City Portfolio

ll.ct%
g,5t%

7.??to

t.wh
1.71% t.t2%

1.07% 2.4%

A detailed listing of the portfolio holdings as of March 3I, 2020 is included in Attachment 2

to this report.

The Local Government Investment Pool (LAIF) yield typically moves in the same direction as

market yields, but is less volatile, lagging somewhat behind market moves. This can be seen

in the chart on the next page, illustrating the historical monthly change in yield from July 2017

through December 2019 for LAIF and two-year US Treasury secuities. The effective rate of
return for the City Portfolio is also included.

The Federal Funds rate reached its post-2008 global economic downturn peak at 2.50oh in
December 2018. The Federal Open Market Committee (FOMC) began lowering the rate in
July 2019, with three cuts resulting in the Federal Funds rute at 1.75% as of December 31,

2019. Due to the Covid-19 pandemic, the FOMC cut rates twice in March, by 50 basis points

on March 3'd, and lo/o on March 15th. The effect of these rate cuts is to push down borrowing
costs to help consumers and businesses handle the financial challenges posed by the economic

slowdown that has resulted from the pandemic.

5
Page 195

06/09/2020; Item No.14.



Yield Comparison
July 2017 - March 2020

3.00Vo

2.500h

2.0AVo

l.50Vo

l.00Yo

0.50o/o

0.00%
g 

".* 
s""g$4*+tr$ r$ ed +l;J de-de1 $ r*+f;.f+f
.+-L{IF +2 Yr Trsy --r-Ctty

A listing of transactions for the third quarter of fiscal year 2020 is included in Attachment 3 to
this report.

Folsom Redevelopment Successor Agency

Total Cash and Investments
The RDSA had total cash and investments of $10,190,508 as of March3l,2020. This is a
decrease of $229,531 (2%) since March3l,2019. The cash held by the RDSA is comprised

of city-held funds, as well as 2011 bond proceeds to be utilized for housing and non-housing
projects. These proceeds held by the Agency are broken out individually in the Portfolio
Management Summary in Attachment l.

The following table and graph illustrate the monthly balances and their respective percentage

changes for the reporting period. Monthly fluctuations in cash and investments are the result
of typical receipt of revenues less expenditures for operations, debt service, and capital

improvements.

6
Page 196

06/09/2020; Item No.14.



Fols om Redevelopment Success or Age ncy

2019-20

Monthly
Change 2018-19

Monthly
Change

Yearly $
Change

Yeafly o/o

Change

Jul
Aug
Sep

Oct

-29%

0%

0%

0%

50%

0%

-7%
0%

-25%

0%

0%

0%

27%

0o/o

-8%

t%

-13%

-17%
-17%

-17%

-17%
-2%

-2%

-2%

-2%

Nov

$ 10,258,949

s 7,325,874

s 7,325,990

$ 7,326,077

$ 7,321,623

$ I1,003,048

$ 11,003,290

$ 10,190,327

$ 10,190,508

$ 11,774,675

$ 8,867,880

$ 8,868,071

$ 8,868,187

$ 8,868,303

s 11,220,064

$ 11,220,181

s 10,367,842

$ 10,420,039

$ (1,515,726)

$ (1,542,006)

$ (1,542,080)

$ (1,542,1 10)

$ (1,546,680)

$ Ql7,ol7)
$ (216,891)

$ (177,514)

$ Q2953l)

Dec
Jan
Feb

Mar

Folsom Redevelopment Successor Agency Total Cash and Investments

$20,000,000

$15,000,000

$10,000,000

$5,000,000

$0
Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

820t7-18 r201E-19 .2019-20

The RDSA's projected cash neods for the next six months are sufficiently provided for by
anticipated revenues and the liquidity of its cash and investments.

Investment Performance
The RDSA's Portfolio Management Summary report for the month of March 2020 is presented

in Attachment 1. The RDSA's investment earnings for the three-month quarter ending
December 31,2019 totaled 561,779. The effective rate of return for the RDSA investment
portfolio for the same time period is2.44%.

7
Page 197

06/09/2020; Item No.14.



Folsom Public Financing Aathority

Total Cash and Investments
The FPFA cash and investments totaled $60,001,130 as of March 31, 2020. This is a decrease

of $8,792,474 (I3%) from March 31,2019. Monthly fluctuations in cash and investments are

the result of typical receipt of debt service repayment revenues and the subsequent debt service

expenditures. The following table and graph illustrate the monthly balances and their
respective percentage changes for the reporting period.

Folsom Public Financing Authorify

2019-20

Monthly
Change 20r8-t9

Monthly
Change

Yearty $

Chanqe

Yearly oh

Change

Jul
Aug
Sep

Oct
Nov
Dec
Jan
Feb

Mar

s 68,442,988

$ 71,705,665

$ 60,172,114

$ 60,000,597

$ 60,001,190

$ 60,001,153

$ 60,001,161

$ 60,001,168

$ 60,001,130

$ 78,713,643

$ 83,158,965

$ 70,072,260

$ 69,965,468

$ 70,948,837

s 69,973,145

I 68,764,79t

$ 68,884,597

$ 68,793,604

5%

t6%
0%

0%

0%

0%

0%
lYo

6%

-16%

0%

t%
-l%
-2%

0%

0%

-13%

-t4%
-14%

-14%

-15%

-14%

-13%

-t3%
-13%

$ (10,270,655)

$ (11,453,300)

$ (9,960,146)

$ (9,964,871)

$ (10,947,647)

$ (9,971,991)

$ (8,763,630)

$ (8,883,429)

s (8,792,474)

Folsom Public Financing Authority Total Cash and Investments

$90,000,000

$80,000,000

$70,000,000

$60,000,000

$50,0oo,ooo
Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

o2017-18 r2018-19 .2019-20

The FPFA's projected cash needs for the next six months are sufftciently provided for by

anticipated revenues and the liquidity of its cash and investments.

8
Page 198

06/09/2020; Item No.14.



Investment Performance
The FPFA's Portfolio Management Summary report for the month of March 2020 is presented

in attachment 1. The FPFA's investment earnings for the three-month quarter ending March
31,2020 totaled $503,232. The effective rate of return for the FPFA investment portfolio for
the same time period is 3.40o/o.

Folsom Ranch Financing Authority

Total Cash and Investments
The FRFA cash and investments totaled $71,540,000 as of March 3I,2020, an increase of
$23,465,000 from the prior year. This increase is due primarily to the issuance of $14,040,000
Community Facilities District No. 19 Local Obligations on August7,2019 and the issuance

of $9,695,000 Community Facilities District No. 21 (White Rock Springs Ranch) Local
Obligations on December 19, 2019. The only other activity within FRFA was the maturing of
$270,000 of CFD No. 17 and CFD No. 19 Bonds on September 1, 2019.

The Authority's projected cash needs for the next six months are sufficiently provided for by
anticipated revenues and the liquidity of its cash and investments.

Investment Performance
The FRFA's Portfolio Management Summary report for the month of March 2020 ispresented
in attachment 1. The FRFA's investment earnings for the three-month quarter ending March
31,2020 totaled $869,052. The effective rate of return for the FRFA investment portfolio for
the same time period is 4.95Yo.

South of 50 Parking Authority

Total Cash and Investments
The South of 50 Parking Authority cash and investments totaled $0 as of March 31,2020.

The Authority's projected cash needs for the next six months are sufficiently provided for by
anticipated revenues and the liquidity of its cash and investments.

Investment Performance
There is no investment activity for the South of 50 Parking Authority.

9
Page 199

06/09/2020; Item No.14.



ATTACHMENTS

1. City of Folsom, Folsom Redevelopment Successor Agency, Folsom Public Financing

Authority, and Folsom Ranch Financing Authority Portfolio Management Summary

March2020
2. City of Folsom Portfolio Holdings as of March3l,2020
3. City of Folsom Transaction Summary, Third Quarter of Fiscal Year 2020

Submitted,

I

Tamagni, Finance Director
Agency Finance Officer
Folsom Public Financing Authority Treasurer
Folsom Ranch Financing Authority Treasurer
South of 50 Parking Authority Treasurer

10
Page 200

06/09/2020; Item No.14.



ATTACHMENT 1

City of Folsom, Folsom Redevelopment Successor Agency, Folsom Public
Financing Authority, and Folsom Ranch Financing Authority Portfolio

Management Summary March 2020

Page 201

06/09/2020; Item No.14.



Gity of Folsom
Gombined City of Folsom, Redevelopment

Successor Agency, FPFA & FRFA
Portfolio Summaries

March 31,2020

50 Natoma St.

Folsom, CA 95630

(916) 3s1-3345

tol
Portfolio

]F"O]LSOMT

City of Folsom
Cash

Certilicate Of Deposit

Corporate Bond

FFCB Bond

FHLMC Bond

Local Government lnvestment Pool

Money Market

Municipal Bond

Total / Average

YTM @ Cost

Face Amounu
Shares

Book
Value

Market
Value

2,004,039.00

1 1,308,955.39

22,577,735.00

2,016,540.00

3,022,320.00

78,613,928.41

3,698,487.91

29,OO3,022.58

%of
Portfolio

Days to
Maturity

Days to
Maturity

Accrued
lnterest

1.537o/o

2.373o/o

2.683%

2.3OOo/o

1.950%

2.020o/o

0.7SQo/o

2.276%

2,004,039.00

1 1,095,000.00

22,530,000.00

2,000,000.00

3,000,000.00

78,613,928.41

3,698,487.91

28,594,683.81

3,O85,445.4'l

2,591,951.25

4,512,877.17

234.00

Cost Value

2,004,039.00

1 1,094,387.50

22,670,202.00

2,000,000.00

3,000,000.00

78,613,928.41

3,698,487.91

28,530,41 0.76

Cost Value

3,085,445.41

2,591,951.25

4,5',t2,877.17

234.00

2,004,039.00

11,O94,652.45

22,562,040.08

2,000,000.00

3,000,000.00

78,613,928.41

3,698,487.91

28,536,334.13

Book
Value

$ 139,814,363.85

10,1 90,273.83

1,s04,844.30

$ 1s1,s09,481.98

Book

Value

3,O85,445.4'l

2,591,951.25

4,512,877.17

234.00

Book
Value

'l

toz
707

536

691

1

1

596

60,531.73

179,431.O8

1,672.22

15,969.44

1.32

7.32

14.87

1.32

1,98

51.88

2.44

18.87

30.28

25.43

44.29

0.00

151,206.55

2.{58% $ 151,536,139.13 $ 151,611,/tss.s8 $ 151,s09,.t81.98 $ 152,245,028.29 295 $ 408,811.02

lnterest
Earninos {FYl

$ 2,465,421.28

160,772.57

1,581,155.04

2,323,589.45

100.00

Total Rate

of Return (FY)

2.35%

2.47"/o

3.41o/o

4.90%

%ot
Portfolio

Pooled Eouitv
City of Folsom Cash and lnveslments (excluding RDSA, FPFA & FRFA amounts)

Redevelopment Sucessor Agency (included in RDSA lnvestment Report)

Public Financing Authority (included in PFA lnvestment Report)

Folsom Ranch Financing Authority (included in FRFA lnvestmeni Report)

Total Pooled Equity

92.28%

6.73o/o

0.99%

0.00%

Face Amounu
Shares

Market
Value

Accrued

lnterest

100.00%

3,085,445.41

2,591,951 .25

4,512,877.17

234.00

RedevelopmentSuccessorAqency YTM@Cost
Cash

Non-Housing 201 1A Proceeds

Housing 201'lB Proceeds

Money Market

Total / Average

2.360%

2.3600/o

2.3600/o

O.200o/o

2.360%$ 10,190,s07.83 $ 10,190,507.83 $ 10,190,507.83 $ 10,190,507.83 1$ 100.00

'/" of
Portfolio

Face Amounu
Shares

Market
Value

Accrued
lnterest

Days to
Folsom Public F

Cash

Money Market

Municipal Bond

Total / Average

Cost
1,504,844.30

6,365.16

5A,4A9,921.O2

Cost Value

'1,504,844.30

6,365.16

58,489,921.02

CostValue

1,504,844.30

6,365.16

58,489,921.O2

1,504,844.30

6,365.16

58,489,921.02

Market
Value

2.3600/o

o.200%

3.384o/o

1

1

2734

2.51

0.01

97.48164,953.25

3.358% $ 60,001,130.48 $ 60,001,130.,4 $ 60,001,130.48 $ 60,001,130.4 2665 $ 164,953.25

Face Amounu

Shares

Book
Value

Days to
Maturitv

Accrued
lnterest

100.00

Yo ot
Portfolio

1 00.00

Folsom Ranch Financinq Authoritv YTM @cost
Municipal Bond

Total / Average

4.8590/o 71,540,000.00 71,540,000.00 71,540,000.00 71,540,000.00 794'1 289,683.86

4.859% $ 71,540,000.00 $ 71,5/t{1,000.00 $ 71,54{1,000.00 $ 71,540,000.00 7941 $ 289,683.86

June2.2020

Stacey Tamagni, Finance Director Date

100.00

Page 202

06/09/2020; Item No.14.



ATTACHMENT 2
City of Folsom Portfolio Holdings as of March 31, 2020

Page 203

06/09/2020; Item No.14.



City of Folsom

Portfolio Holdings
Portfolio Holdings for lnv. Report

Report Format: By Transaction

Portfolio / Report Group: City of Folsom

Group By: Security Type

Average By: Face Amount / Shares

As of 313112020

Description lssuer Goupon Rate
Face

AmUShares

alo ot
Portfollo

Cash

Wells Fargo Cash Wells Fargo 0.000 4,039.00 0.00

Wells Fargo Cash Wells Fargo 1.540 2,000,000.00 1.32

Sub Total / Average Cash 1.537 2,004,039.00 1.32

Certificate Of Deposit

Ally Bank 21012612020 Ally Bank 2.000 247,000.00 0.16

American Express - Centurion 2.3 41512021 American Express - Centurion 2.300 247.OOO.O0 0.16

Appalachian Community CU 3.2 212812022 Appalachian Community CU 3.200 245,000.00 0.16

Belmont Savings Bank 2.75 311412023 Belmont Savings Bank 2.750 246,000.00 0.16

Beneficial Bank 2.15 1011812022 Beneficial Bank 2.150 247.000.00 0.16

BMO Harris Bank NA 21011812023-20 BMO Harris Bank NA 2.000 248,000.00 0.16

BMW Bank 2.1 911512021 BMW Bank 2.100 247,000.00 0.16

Capital One Bank USA NA 2.35 812612020 Capital One Bank USA NA 2.350 247,000.00 0.16

CIT Bank, NA 1.05 312812022 CIT Bank, NA 1.050 248.000.00 0.16

Citibank, NA 2.8 412612021 Citibank, NA 2.800 245,000.00 0.16

Citizens Deposit Bank of Arlington, lnc. 3.1 61291 Citizens Deposit Bank of Arlington, lnc. 3.100 246,000.00 0.16

Discover Bank 2.25 21 1 512022 Discover Bank 2.250 247,000.00 0.16

East Boston Savings Bank 2.3 713012021 East Boston Savings Bank 2.300 247,000.00 0.16

Essential FCU 3.55 121512023 Essential FCU 3.550 24s,000.00 0.16

Farmer's & Merchants Bank3.3 912712023 Farmer's & Merchants Bank 3.300 245,000.00 0.16

First Bank of Highland Patk 2.2 812312022 First Bank of Highland Park 2.200 247,000.00 0.16

Greenstate Credit Union 1.9 212812022 Greenstate Credit Union 1.900 249,000.00 0.16

HSBC Bank Slep 1 1 117 12020-18 HSBC BanK 3.100 245,000.00 0.16

lnvestors Bank 2.1 1212812020 lnvestors Bank 2.100 247,000.00 0.16

Jefferson Financial F CU 2.45 1 1 I 1012022 Jefferson Financial FCU 2.450 245,000.00 0.16

Keesler FCU 3.05 813012021 Keesler FCU 3.050 249,000.00 0.16

LCA Bank 2.1 612'112021 LCA Bank 2.100 247,000.00 0.16

Medallion Bank 2.15 1011112022 Medallion Bank 2.150 247,000.00 0.16

Mercantil Commercebank NA 1.65 612412021 Mercantil Commercebank NA 1.650 247,000.00 0.16

Morgan Stanley Bank, NA 2.2712512024 Morgan Stanley Bank, NA 2.200 247,000.00 0.1 6

Morgan Stanley Private Bank, NA2.27l'1812024 Morgan Stanley Private Bank, NA 2.200 247,000.00 0.16

National Cooperative Bank, NA 3.4 1212112023 National Cooperative Bank, NA 3.400 245,000.00 0.16

Neighbors FCU 3.3 911912023 Neighbors FCU 3.300 245,000.00 0.16

Nicolet National Bank 1.1 312812022-20 Nicolet National Bank 1.100 249,000.00 0.16

Public Service CU 3.15 '1012612021 Public Service CU 3.150 245,000.00 0.16

Raymond James Bank, NA 1.95 812312023 Raymond James Bank, NA 1.950 247,000.00 0.16

Page 204

06/09/2020; Item No.14.



Sallie Mae Bank 2.6 4l'1812022 Sallie Mae Bank 2.600 246,000.00 0.16

Sterling Bank 2.35 41212020 Sterling Bank 2.350 248,000.00 0.16

SunTrust Bank Step 113012023-20 SunTrust Bank 2.500 245,000.00 0.16

Synchrony Bank 2.4 511912022 Synchrony Bank 2.400 240.000.00 0.16

Third Federal Savings and Loan 2712812021 Third Federal SaMngs and Loan 2.000 245,000.00 0.16

T|AA, FSB 2.2 8t16t2022 TIAA, FSB 2.200 247,000.00 0.16

Townebank 2.8 1 1 12412020 Townebank 2.800 246,000.00 0.16

UBS Bank USA 2.9 41312024 UBS Bank USA 2.900 249,000.00 0.16

Uinta County Bank 2.6 211612023 Uinta County Bank 2.600 246,000.00 0.16

Valley Strong CU 1.1 912012021 Valley Strong CU 1.100 249,000.00 0.16

Valliance Bank 1.55 ?J1W2021 Valliance Bank 1.550 247,000.00 0.16

Vibrant CU 3.1 '1212112020 Vibrant CU 3.100 246,000.00 0.16

VisionBank of lowa 2.15 513'112022 VisionBank of lowa 2.150 247,000.00 0.16

Wells Fargo National Bank West LV 1.9 112912023 Wells Fargo National Bank West LV '1 .900 249,000.00 0.16

Sub Total / Average Certificate Of Deposit 2.384 11 ,095,000.00 7.32

Corporate Bond

American Express Credit 2.25 51512021-21 American Express Credit 2.250 1,000,000.00 0.66

Bank of America Corp 3.499 811712022-21 Bank of America Corp 3.499 2,000,000.00 1.32

Bank of America Corp Step 211012025-21 Bank of America Corp 2.125 2,000,000.00 1.32

Bank of NY Mellon 2.6 21712022-22 Bank of NY Mellon 2.600 1,000,000.00 0.66

Bank of NY Mellon 3.5 412812023 Bank of NY Mellon 3.500 1,000,000.00 0.66

Citibank NA 2.125 1012012020-20 Citibank NA 2.125 1,000,000.00 0.66

Citibank, NA 2.'l 611212020-20 Citibank, NA 2.100 1,000,000.00 0.66

General Elec Cap Corp 5.55 51412020 General Elec Cap Corp 5.550 1,000,000.00 0.66

JPMorgan Chase & Co 2.295 811512021-20 JPMorgan Chase & Co 2.295 1,000,000.00 0.66

JPMorgan Chase & Co 2.55 31112021-21 JPMorgan Chase & Co 2.550 2,000,000.00 1.32

MUFG Union Bank NA 3.15 41112022-22 MUFG Union Bank NA 3.150 1,000,000.00 0.66

PNC Bank NA 2.'15 412912021-21 PNC BanK NA 2.150 1,000,000.00 0.66

PNC Bank NA 2.15 412912021-21 PNC BanK NA 2.150 1,000,000.00 0.66

State Street Corp 2.653 511512023-22 State Street Corp 2.653 2,530,000.00 1.67

Wells Fargo & Co 2.5 31412021 Wells Fargo & Co 2.500 2,000,000.00 1.32

Wells Fargo &Co 2.625712212022 Wells Fargo & Co 2.625 1,000,000.00 0.66

Wells Fargo & Co. 3.069 112412023-22 Wells Fargo & Co. 3.069 1,000,000.00 0.66

Sub Total / Average Corporate Bond 2.735 22,530,000.00 14.87

FFCB Bond

FFCB 29t23t2022-20 FFCB 2.oool 1,ooo,ooo.oo 0.66

FFCB 2.6 9t14t2020 FFCB 2.6001 1,ooo,0oo.oo 0.66

Sub Total / Average FFCB Bond 2.3001 2,O0O,OOO.00 1.32

FHLMC Bond

FHLMC 1.85 11t27 t2020-17 FHLMC 1.S5ol 2,ooo,Ooo.oo 1.32

FHLMC 2.15 8n12024-20 FHLMC 2.1501 1,ooo,ooo.oo 0.66

Sub Total / Average FHLMC Bond 1.950 | 3,0oo,ooo.oo 1.98

Local Govemment lnvestment Pool

LAIF City LGIP LAIF City 2.o2ol 63,598,399.93 41.97

LAIF FPFA LGIP LAIF FPFA 2.O2Ol 15,015,528.48 9.91

Page 205

06/09/2020; Item No.14.



Sub Total / Average Local Govemment lnvestment 2.020 78,613,928.41 51.88

Money Market

Wells Fargo MM Wells Fargo 0.750 650,191 .44 0.43

Wells Fargo MM Wells Fargo 0.750 3,048,296.47 2.01

Sub Total / Average Money Market 0.750 3,698,487.91 2.44

Municipal Bond

CA St DWR Pwr Supp Rev 1 .71 3 51112021 CA St DWR Pwr Supp Rev 1.7',t3 944,683.81 0.62

CA St DWR Pwr Supp Rev 2 51112022 CA St DWR Pwr Supp Rev 2.000 1,000,000.00 0.66

CA St DWR Pwr Supp Rev 2 51112022 CA St DWR Pwr Supp Rev 2.000 1,000,000.00 0.66

CA St DWR Pwr Supp Rev 5 51112021 CA St DWR Pwr Supp Rev 5.000 500,000.00 0.33

Cabrillo CCD 1.913 21112021 Cabrillo GCD 1 .913 225,000.00 0.15

Cabrillo CCD 1.913 8l 1 12022 Cabrillo CCD 1.913 230,000.00 0.15

Carson RDA SA TABs 2.742 21112021 Carson RDA SA TABs 2.742 145,000.00 0.10

Carson RDA SA TABs 2.992 21112022-17 Carson RDA SA TABs 2.992 100,000.00 0.07

Cent. Contra Costa San Dist Rev. Bonds 2.96 9/1/2 Cent. Contra Costa San Dist Rev. Bonds 2.960 235,000.00 0.16

Coast CCD GOBs 1.975 81112023 Coast CCD GOBs 1.975 1,265,000.00 0.83

CSU Revenue Bonds 2.982 111112021 CSU Revenue Bonds 2.982 300,000.00 0.20

Davis RDA-SA TABS 1.68 91112021 Davis RDA-SA TABs 1.680 1,200,000.00 0.79

Davis RDA-SA TABs 1.72 91112022 Davis RDA-SA TABs 1.720 1,225,000.00 0.81

Davis RDA-SA TABs 1.75 91112023 Davis RDA-SA TABs 1.750 625,000.00 0.41

Fullerton RDA SA TABs 5.774 91112020 Fullerton RDA SA TABS 5.774 100,000.00 0.07

Gilroy USD 1.721 81112021 Gilroy USD 1.721 320,000.00 0.21

Highland RDA-SA TABs 2 21112021 Highland RDA-SA TABs 2.000 405,000.00 0.27

Highland RDA-SA f ABs2.252l112022 Highland RDA-SA TABs 2-250 390,000.00 0.26

lmperial CCD 1.854 81112020 lmperial CCD 1.854 200,000.00 0.13

lmperial CCD 1.874 81112021 lmperial CCD 1.874 200,000.00 0.13

LA Cnty RDA Ref Auth 2 91112022 LA Cnty RDA Ref Auth 2.000 1,235,000.00 0.81

Long Beach CCD 1.738 8112021 Long Beach CCD 1.738 780,000.00 0.51

Marin CCD GOBS 2.243 8l'112021-16 Marin CCD GOBs 2.243 650,000.00 0.43

Monrovia RDA-SA 2.35 51112020 Monrovia RDA-SA 2.350 165,000.00 0.11

Murrieta RDA-SA f ABs 2 81112020 Murrieta RDA-SA TABs 2.000 400,000.00 0.26

Murrieta RDA-SA TABs 2.25 81112021 Munieta RDA-SA TABS 2.250 350,000.00 0.23

Murrieta RDA-SA TABS 2.5 81112022 Murrieta RDA-SA TABs 2.500 250,000.00 0.16

Riverside CCD 2.848 81112020 Riverside CCD 2.848 500,000.00 0.33

Riverside Cnty PFA 1.84 71112023 Riverside Cnty PFA 1.840 195,000.00 0.13

San Dieguito USD GOBs 2.793 81112020 San Dieguito USD GOBs 2.793 500,000.00 0.33

San Francisco RDA SA TABs 2,796 81112021 San Francisco RDA SA TABs 2.796 1,000,000.00 0.66

San Jose RDA-SA 2.259 81112020 San Jose RDA-SA 2.259 1,000,000.00 0.66

San Jose RDA-SA 2.63 81112022 San Jose RDA-SA 2.630 1,000,000,00 0.66

San Jose RDA-SA 2.63 8l'112022 San Jose RDA-SA 2.630 1,000,000.00 0.66

San Jose RDASA TABS 2.828 81112023 San Jose RDASA TABs 2.828 500,000.00 0.33

Santa Clara County GOBs 2.125 81112020 Santa Clara County GOBS 2.125 1,000,000.00 0.66

Santa Cruz County Cap FA Lease Rev 2.88 611l20i Santa Cruz County Cap FA Lease Rev 2.880 490.000.00 0.32

Santa Rosa RDSA 2.75 81112020 Santa Rosa RDSA 2.750 400,000.00 0.26

Santee CDC SuccessorAg 281112020 Santee CDC Successor Ag 2.000 385,000,00 o.25

SF BART Rev Bonds 2.621 71112023-17 SF BART Rev Bonds 2.621 735,000.00 0.49

Page 206

06/09/2020; Item No.14.



State of CA GO 2.5 101112022 State of CA GO 2.500 1,000,000.00 0.66

Univ of CA Revenue 1.49 511512020-16 Univ of CA Revenue 1.490 1,000,000.00 0.66

Univ of CA Revenue 2.15 511512021-17 Univ of CA Revenue 2.',t50 1,000,000.00 0.66

Univ of CA Revenue 2.553 511512021-19 Univ of CA Revenue 2.553 300,000.00 0.20

Univ of CA Revenue 2.657 511512023-19 Univ of CA Revenue 2.657 500,000.00 0.33

Univ of CA Revenue 3.283 511512022-'18 Univ of CA Revenue 3.283 500,000.00 0.33

Vacaville RDA-SA TABs 1.848 91112020 Vacaville RDA-SA TABs '1 .848 450,000.00 0.30

West Contra Costa USD GOBS 3.031 81112021 West Contra Costa USD GOBS 3.031 300,000.00 0.20

West Sacramento Area Flood Control Agy 1.797 9l West Sacramento Area Flood Control Agy 1.797 200,000.00 0.13

West Sacramento Area Flood Control Agy 1.847 9l West Sacramento Area Flood Conhol Agy 1.847 200,000.00 0.13

Sub Total / Average Municipal Bond 2.274 28,594,683.81 18.87

Total / Average 2.1661 151,536,139.131 100.00

Page 207

06/09/2020; Item No.14.



ATTACHMENT 3

City of Folsom Transaction Summary, Third Quarter of Fiscal Year 2020

Page 208

06/09/2020; Item No.14.



City of Folsom
Transactions Summary

Transaction Summary - lnvestment Report

Portfolio / Report Group: City of Folsom

Group By: Action

Begin Date: 0110112020, End Date: 0313112020

Description Security Type
Settlement

Date
Maturity Date

Face
AmUShares

Prlncipal
YrM @
Cost

Buy

Bank of America Corp Step 211012025-21 Corporate Bond 03t0912020 02t1012025 2,000,000.00 2,01 0,000.00 2.140

CA St DWR Pwr Supp Rev 5 51112021 Municipal Bond 03t16t2020 05to1t2021 500,000.00 51 8,295.00 1.700

CIT Bank, NA 1.05 312812022 Certificate Of Deposit 0312612020 0312812022 248,000,00 248,000.00 1.050

LA Cnty RDA Ref Auth 291112022 Municipal Bond 0312012020 0910112022 1,235,000.00 1,247 ,399.40 1.580

Nicolet National Bank 1.1 312812022-20 Certificate Of Deposit o3t27t2020 0312812022 249,000.00 249,000.00 1 .100

Riverside Cnty PFA 1.8471112023 l\ilunicipal Bond o3t12t2020 oTlo'112023 1 95,000.00 195,000.00 1.840

Valley Strong CU 1.1 912012021 Certificate Of Deposit 0311a12020 0912012021 249,000.00 249,000.00 1 .'1 00

Valliance Bank 1.55 211912021 Certificate Of Deposit 0311712020 0211s12021 247,000.00 247,000.00 1.550

Wells Fargo National Bank West LV 1.9 112912023 Certificate Of Deposit 0112912020 01129t2023 249,000.00 249,000.00 1.900

West Sacramento Area Flood Control Agy 1.797 91112 l\ilunicipal Bond 01t2912020 09t01t2021 200,000.00 200,000.00 1.797

West Sacramento Area Flood Control Agy 1.847 91112 l\/unicipal Bond 01t29t2020 09t01t2022 200,000.00 200,000.00 1.847

Sub Total i Average Buy 5,572,000.00 5,612,694.40

Called

FAMC 2.69 91312021-20 FAMC Bond 0310312020 09t0312021 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 0.000

FFCB 2.03 2t27t2024-20 FFCB Bond 0212712020 0212712024 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 0.000

FHLB 1.8 9t1t2023-16 FHLB Bond 0311312020 0910112023 500,000.00 500,000.00 0.000

FHLB 2.07 613012023-16 FHLB Bond 03110t2020 06t30t2023 1,184,210.53 1,184,210.53 0.000

FHLB 2.O7 613012023-16 FHLB Bond 01t23t2020 06t30t2023 165,789.47 165,789.47 0.000

FHLMC 2 712712021-18 FHLMC Bond 01t27t2020 07t27t2021 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 0.000

First Technology FCU 3.25 31412024-20 Certificate Of Deposit 03t04t2020 03t04t2024 249,000.00 249,000.00 0.000

lnternational Bank for Reconstruction and Developm Corporate Bond 01t15t2020 10t15t2022 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 0.000

Security First Bank 3.25 112512024-20 Certificate Of Deposit 01t25t2020 01t25t2024 245,000.00 245,000.00 0.000

Sub Total / Average Called 8,344,000.00 8,344,000.00

Matured

Carson RDA SA TABS 2.503 21112020 Municipal Bond 02101t2020 02t01t2020 250,000.00 250,000.00 0.000

CIT Bank 2.1 111412020 Certiflcate Of Deposit 01t14t2020 o1t14t2020 247,000.00 247,000.00 0.000

Crescent Bank & Trust 1.65 211812020 Certificate Of Deposit 02t18t2020 o211a12020 244,000.00 244,000.00 0.000

Flagstar Bank FSB 2.15 112712020 Certificate Of Deposit 01t27t2020 0112712020 247,O00.OO 247,OOO.00 0.000

Highland RDA-SA TABS 1.75 21112020 lvlunicipal Bond o2to1t2020 021o112020 350,000.00 350,000.00 0.000

Notre Dame FCU 2.2 111312020 Certificate Of Deposit 01t13t2020 01t13t2020 247,000.00 247,000.00 0.000

Reading Co-operative 2.35 31 1612020 Certificate Of Deposit 0311612020 o311612020 248,000.00 248,000.00 0.000

State Bank of lndia LA 2.5 312012020 Certificate Of Deposit 0312012020 03t20t2020 246,000.00 246,000.00 0.000

Tristate Capital Bank 2,3 1l31l2O2O Certificate Of Deposit 01t31t2020 01t31t2020 247,000.00 247.OOO.OO 0.000

Sub Total / Average Matured 2,326,000.00 2,326,000.00

Page 209

06/09/2020; Item No.14.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 210

06/09/2020; Item No.14.



g rli {

_[ff,iLg{-}sr

Folsom City Council
Staff Re rt

MEETING DATE: 61912020

AGENDA SECTION: New Business

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10465 - A Resolution Approving and Certiffing
Addendum No. 2 to the Environmental Impact Report for the
Folsom South of U.S. 50 Specific Plan Project (State

Clearinghouse #2008092051) and Approving Transfer of up to
5,000 Acre-Feet of Water to State Water Contractors

F'ROM: Environmental and Water Resources Department

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Environmental and Water Resources Department recommends the City Council pass and
adopt Resolution No. 10465 - A Resolution Approving and Certifying Addendum No. 2 to the
Environmental Impact Report for the Folsom South of U.S. 50 Specific Plan Project (State

Clearinghouse #2008092051) and Approving Transfer of up to 5,000 Acre-Feet of Water to
State Water Contractors.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The Water Conservation Act of 2009, or Senate BillxT-7 (SBx7-7, Steinberg), amended the
Water Code, under Sections 10608.20 and 10608.24,to require the City to increase water use

efficiency, and to identifu a method for the State to achieve a20%o statewide reduction in urban
per capita water use by December 31,2020. Under SBxT-7, the City has been required to
reduce its per capitawater use by 20o/o since2009. SB7x7 states that water conservation under
that law is subject to Water Code Section 1011, which enables water suppliers to retain their
rights in conserved water and transfer it.

Since 2009, to comply with SBxT-7, the City has undertaken various water management
measures, including implementing metered water rates beginning on January l, 2013 and
carrying out the Water Systems Optimization Review (SOR) Program, consisting of
conservation, repairs, improvements and replacements of existing water transmission and

I
Page 211

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



distribution facilities. On February 24,2009, City Council adopted Resolution No. 8457,

Declaring an Intent to Retain Control of Conserved Water, which in accordance with Water

Code Section 1011 permits the City to retain, use and transfer water supplies resulting from its
conservation actions.

The City has reduced its consumptive use of American River water under its pre-1914 water
rights through the above conservation measures. In addition, under a2007 agreement with the
City, Aerojet has stopped using American River delivered by the City under its water rights
for non-potable industrial use and is now using remediated groundwater from its contaminated
site for that purpose. Prior to implementation of these measures, the City's maximum diversion
of water under its water rights and contracts reached approximately 27,000 acre-feet (AF) in
2007.1n2019, the City's diversion of water was approximately 17,700 AF.

In2011, the City Council approved the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan (Folsom Plan Area).
At that time, the identified water supply for the Folsom Plan Area was a proposed transfer of
Sacramento River water from Natomas Central Mutual Water Company, in the area of the
Sacramento airport, with that water being pumped from the Freeport diversion facility in south

Sacramento to the City. On December 12,2012, the City Council, however, approved a change

in the Folsom Plan Area's water supply to be use of conserved water made available by the
SOR Program and other conservation measures. In order to make this change to the Folsom
Plan Area's water supply, the City Council, among other things, certified an addendum to the
Folsom Plan Area's environmental impact report and a related agreement with landowners in
the Folsom Plan Area. The City Council's related resolutions included the following:

a) Resolution No. 9096 - A Resolution Approving and Certifuing an Addendum to the
Environmental Impact Report for the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan Project for
Purposes of Analyzing an Alternative Water Supply for the Project; and

b) Resolution No. 9097 - A Resolution Approving a Water Supply and Facilities
Financing Plan and Agreement Between the City of Folsom and Folsom Plan Area
Landowners for a Water Supply for the Folsom Plan Area, Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute the Agreement, and Authorizing the Filing of an Action to Validate
the Agreement.

Since adoption of Addendum No. I in 2012, it has been determined that consistent with
standard land development practices, the Folsom Plan Area will not be fully developed for
many years. Accordingly, the Folsom Plan Area's full water demand will not occur for many
years and the City can temporarily transfer 5,000 AF of water available to it under its pre-1914
rights that are the source of the water supply for the Folsom Plan Area under Addendum No.
1. The landowners in the Folsom Plan Area have requested that the City seek to implement
such a transfer to defray their financial obligations under the2012 water supply agreement.

Therefore, the City proposes a short-term (one-year) transfer of 5,000 AF of water to certain
State Water Contractors (SWCs). This is a very dry year and the SWCs, which are located

2Page 212

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



primarily in the San Joaquin Valley, have limited supplies and therefore are seeking water

transfers.

POLICY / RULE

Water Code section 1011(a) defines "water conservation" as follows:ooFor purposes of this

section, the term 'water conservation' shall mean the use of less water to accomplish the same

purpose or purposes of use allowed the existing appropriative right."

Water Code section 1011(b) states, o'Water, or the right to the use of water, the use of which

has ceosed or been reduced as the result of water conservation effirts as described in

subdivision (a), may be sold, leased, exchanged, or otherwise transferred pursuant to any

provision of law relating to the transfer ofwater or water rights, including, but not limited to,

provisions of law governing any change in point of diversion, place of use, and purpose of use

due to the transfer."

Water Code section 1706 applies to pre-1914 rights, which predate the state's Water

Commission Act. Section 1706 states ,"The person entitled to the use ofwater by virtue of an

appropriation other than under the Water Commission Act or this code may change the point
of diversion, place of use, or purpose of use if others are not injured by such change, and may

extend the ditch, flume, pipe, or aqueduct by which the diversion is made to places beyond that

where the first use was made." Section 1706 allows the City itself to make changes to its pre-

1914 rights without approval by the State Water Resources Control Board.

ANALYSIS

The City has reduced its consumptive use of American River water through significant system

improvements and other conservation actions and through its agreement with Aerojet, under

which Aerojet agreed to use remediated groundwater for non-potable industrial pu{poses.

Through implementation of these measures, the City has reduced its maximum water demand

by approximately 10,000 AFY (2007 water demand compared to 2019).

In 2012, the City Council approved the dedication and use of 5,600 AFY of the yield of the

City's conservation measures as the source of the water supply for future development of the

Folsom Plan Area. In December 2012, the City approved an addendum (Addendum No. 1) to

the Folsom Plan Area Project EIR/EIS that analyzed an alternative (new) water supply source

to the Folsom Plan Area.

Of the approximately 10,000 AF of now available American River water under the City's pre-

l9l4 water rights, the City transferred up to 5,000 AFY during 2012 through 2016 to the

Golden State Water Company (GSWC) for use in its Rancho Cordova service area in each of
those years, with acknowledgement from the federal Bureau of Reclamation (Reclamation).

The agreement between the City and GSWC has expired; and therefore, the City will not

a
JPage 213

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



transfer water to that entity during 2020.Instead, the City is seeking to transfer this same
quantity, up to 5,000 AF, to participating SWC in a temporary one-year transfer during 2020.

The quantity of water transferred would be coordinated with Reclamation and Department of
Water Resources (DWR) for releases from Folsom Reservoir into the American River, and
through the Sacramento River and Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta (Delta), for diversion of the
transferred water at DWR's Banks Pumping Plant and conveyance to the participating SWCs.
No new water supply conveyance, diversion or treatment facilities would be constructed as

part ofthe proposed transfer.

The City's Conservation Program and Use of Remediated Groundwater for
Industrial Purposes

The City's conservation program has consisted of many elements, including:

o Leak and loss detection and repairs, namely the Water Systems Optimization Review
(SOR) Program

o Water system upgrades

o Water metering

o Implementing the California Model Water Landscape Ordinance (MWELO)

o Implementing the California Green Building Code Standards (Cal Green)

o Implementing the best management practices (water audits, conservation programs,
etc.) of the California Urban Water Conservation Council (now California Water
Efficiency Partnership)

In addition, the City significantly reduced demand on its pre- I 9I4 water rights in the American
River through the 2007 agreement with Aerojet under which Aerojet began using its own
remediated groundwater for non-potable industrial pulposes as a substitute supply.

Reduction in Consumptive Use through Distribution System Upgrades and
Repairs

The City implemented its leak and loss detection and repairs, and water system upgrades,
pursuant to a System Optimization Review (SOR) it conducted under the U.S. Bureau of
Reclamation's Water for America Challenge Grant Program. The best estimate of the
reduction in losses from the City's water system that resulted from the SOR and following
physical work on that system is 4,625 acre-feet per year. This estimate is documented in an

October 15,2012 memorandum from Water Systems Optimization,Inc.

Use of Aerojet's Remediated Groundwater for Industrial Purposes

Before 2015, under a contract, the City delivered raw water diverted from Folsom Reservoir
under the City's pre-1914 rights to Aerojet for Aerojet's industrial use. This volume of water
averaged 3,408 acre-feet per year during the2008-2014 period, with a high of 3,897 acre-feet

4Page 214

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



in 2008 and a low of 2,614 acre-feet in20l4. In20l5, under a2007 contract, Aerojet began

dedicating to the City previously contaminated groundwater Aerojet had remediated and

treated at its GET AB facility, with the City routing that water to Aerojet for its non-potable

industrial use in lieu of the City's raw water from Folsom Reservoir. 1

Prior to the 2015 initiation of Aerojet's use of GET AB water under the2007 contract with the

City, Aerojet historically discharged the GET AB water to the Rebel Hill Ditch, where that
water infiltrated into the groundwater. Aerojet also was authorized to discharge the GET AB
water to Buffalo Creek. Consistent with this physical situation, the City understands from
Aerojet that GET AB water discharged to Buffalo Creek percolated from the creek into the

ground before reaching the American River. Since the middle of 2016, the City has not

delivered any raw water to Aerojet. Thus, the use of remediated groundwater has resulted in
a reduction of over 2,600 acre-feet per year of surface water under the City's pre-1914 water

rights.

Summary of Results of City's Program

Through all of the efforts listed above, including the SOR conservation program and the use

of remediated groundwater as a supply for Aerojet's industrial operations, the City has reduced

use of the City's pre-1914 supplies from Folsom Reservoir from 2007 levels to current levels
(Calendar Year2}l9)by approximately 10,000 acre-feet. This combined quantity also includes

water conserved through other additional efforts within the City to reduce water use.

Addendum No. 2 has been prepared to evaluate the potential impacts of the proposed

modification of the Folsom Plan Area Project to include a one-year transfer of approximately
5,000 AF of water from the source dedicated to the Folsom Plan Area through Addendum No.
1, as well as water made available by Aerojet's use of remediated groundwater. The City plans

to partner with participating SWCs in 2020 to transfer that 5,000 AF under the SWC's Dry
Year Transfer Program. Addendum No. 2 finds, among other things, that:

The transfer would not impact fish or other environmental resources in the lower
American River or the Delta because the volume of water that would be transferred

would be quite small in comparison with projected streamflows through those

waterbodies;

a

a The reliance of the transfer on Aerojet's groundwater pumping would not have impacts

on groundwater because Aerojet is required to pump the relevant groundwater by
regulatory orders concerning the remediation of the Aerojet site; and

The transfer would not have impacts in the SWCs' service areas because the transfer is

a one-year water supply that only would improve the SWCs' supplies in 2020 and

would not be a reliable supply that would support growth or conversion of land to
irrigated acreage.

1 "GET" means "groundwater extraction and treatment."

5Page 215

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



In order to document the relationship of the transfer to the water supply for the Folsom Plan

Area, there also will need to be an agreement with the landowners in that area under which

those landowners would agree, among other things, that the inclusion of the "Aerojet water"

in the transfer would not result in the dedication of that water supply to the Folsom Plan Area.

FISCAL IMPACT

There is no fiscal impact associated with the transfer of water. Landowners south of Highway
50 in the Folsom Plan Area currently pay for 5,000 AFY of water supplies under a take or pay

contract for approximately $1,800,000. The proposed transfer, if completed, would result in
approximately $1,750,000 in sales to offset most of the take of pay costs paid by the

landowners.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

On June 14,2011, City Council approved Resolution No. 8860 - A Resolution Certi$ing the

Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan (FPASP) Final Joint Environmental Impact

Report/Environmental Impact Statement. The City Council also adopted Findings of Fact and

a Statement of Overriding Considerations and a Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program

for the FPASP project.

On Decemb er 12,2012, City Council approved Resolution No. 9096 - A Resolution Approving
and Certiffing an Addendum to the Environmental Impact Report for the Folsom Plan Area
Specific Plan Project for Purposes of Analyzing an Alternative Water Supply for the Project.

In accordance with CEQA Guidelines section 15164, an addendum to the EIR is appropriate

for consideration for the proposed changes to the Folsom Plan Area project since the transfer

of the relevant water supply will:

(a) Not result in new significant impacts not identified in the Folsom Plan Area EIR/EIS.
as modified bv 201 's Addendum No. 1: The transfer of the 5 ,000 AF to the SWCs

will not have any incrementally significant effects on the environment;

(b) Not substantiallf increase the severity of impacts previously disclosed in the Folsom

Plan Area EIR/EIS: The impacts of the transfer of the relevant water are within the

range of potential impacts identified in the Folsom Plan Area EIR/EIS, as modified
by 2012's Addendum No. 1; and

(c) Not involve any of the other conditions related to new information: The impacts do

not involve any of the other conditions related to new information that can require a

subsequent or supplemental ElR under Public Resources Code section21166 and

CEQA Guidelines section 15162.

6Page 216

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



Specifically, the City has generated, and will generate, the American River water that would
be transferred under its pre-l914 water rights through water management activities that already

have been implemented and obtaining Aerojet's agreement to use, as a substitute supply,
groundwater that it would pump for remediation with or without the transfer.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Resolution No. 10465 - A Resolution Approving and Certifying Addendum No. 2 to

the Environmental Impact Report for the Folsom South of U.S. 50 Specific Plan Project
(State Clearinghouse #2008092051) and Approving Transfer of up to 5,000 Acre-Feet

of Water to State Water Contractors

2. Addendum No. 2 to the Environmental Impact Report for the Folsom South of U.S. 50

Specific Plan Project, with exhibits

3. Purchase Agreement for Water Transfer Between the City of Folsom and Certain State

Water Contractors

4. Agreement Concerning 2020Water Transfer Between the City of Folsom And Certain

Landowners in the Folsom Plan Area

5. Staff Presentation Regarding Proposed Water Transfer

Submitted,

Marcus Yasutake, Director
ENVIRONMENTAL AND WATER RESOURCES DEPARTMENT

7Page 217

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



ATTACHMENT 1

Page 218

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



RESOLUTION NO. 10465

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AND CERTIFYING ADDENDUM NO.2 TO THE
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT FOR THE FOLSOM SOUTH OF U.S.

HrcHwAy 50 SPECIFIC PLAN PROJECT (STATE CLEARINGHOUSE #2008092051)
AND APPROVING TRANSFER OF UP TO 5,000 ACRE-FEET OF WATER TO STATE

WATER CONTRACTORS

WHEREAS, since 2009, the City has undertaken various water conservation measures,

including the Systems Optimization Water Project, which consisted of repairs, improvements

and replacements of existing water transmission and distribution facilities; and

WHEREAS, on February 24, 2009, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 8457,

Declaring an Intent to Retain Control of Conserved Water; and

WHEREAS, in 201 l, the City Council approved the Folsom South of U.S. Highway 50

Specific Plan Project ("FPA Project") and certified a related environmental impact
report/environmental impact statement (State Clearinghouse No. 2008092051) ("FPA EIR/EIS");
and

WHEREAS, on December 1t,20l2,the City Council approved an addendum to the FPA
EIR/EIS to change the FPA Project's water supply to a supply of 5,600 acre-feet a year

supported by the City's implementation of the Systems Optimization Water Project and other

conservation measures; and

WHEREAS, also on December 11, 2012, the City and certain landowners in the FPA
Project's area signed a Water Supply And Facilities Financing Plan And Agreement Between

The City Of Folsom And Certain Landowners In The Folsom Plan Area ("Water Supply

Agreement"), which was recorded in the Sacramento County Official Records in Book
20130124, Page 1382 on January 24,2013; and

WHEREAS, effective June 29, 2007, the City and Aerojet-General Corporation
("Aerojet") signed the Agreement Between The City Of Folsom And Aerojet-General
Corporation With Respect To Water Service, under which the City was able to reduce Aerojet's
demand for American River water under the City's pre-1914 water rights by 5,000,000 gallons

per day by securing Aerojet's treatment to use, to meet Aerojet's non-potable industrial
demands, contaminated groundwater that Aerojet remediates; and

WHEREAS, through the conservation measures described above, other conservation
measnres and implementation of the 2007 Aercjet agreement, the City has reduced use of the

City's pre-I914 supplies from Folsom Reservoir from 2007 levels to current levels (Calendar

Year 2019) by approximately 10,000 acre-fee! and

WHEREAS' the FPA Project's area does not currently require the full water supply
dedicated to it in the Water Supply Agreement and accordingly, under that agreement, the

Resolution No. 10465
Page I of5 Page 219

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



landowners that are parties to that agreement requested that the City attempt to transfer water in
2020; artd

WHEREAS' certain contractors of the State Water Project ("State Water Contractors")

are interested in purchasing water transferred by the City in 2020, which is a dry year; and

WHEREAS, to implement the proposed transfer pursuant to the Water Supply

Agreement, the City has caused to be prepared a proposed Addendum No. 2to the FPA EIWEIS
that analyzes the potential impacts of transferring water subject to the City's pre-I914 water

rights, and made available by Systems Optimization Water Project and by the implementation of
the 2007 Aerojet agreement, to State Water Contractors in 2020 as a temporary one-year water

transfer; and

WHEREAS, the City has provided all notices necessary for its consideration of
approving and certifying Addendum No. 2 at the time and in the manner required by State law
and the City Municipal Code; and

WHEREAS, all agreements necessary to implement the proposed 2020 water transfer

will be in a form acceptable to the City Attorney:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Folsom City Council that:

1. Recitals. The City Council hereby finds and determines that the recitals set forth
above are true and correct and are incorporated herein by this reference.

2. CEQA Addendum. Pursuant to CEQA, the City Council hereby approves and

certifies Addendum No. 2 to the FPA EIR as follows:

a. Name of Project Change: Folsom South of U.S. Highway 50 Specific Plan

Project, CEQA Addendum No. 2 -2020 Water Transfer ("Project Change").

b. Project Change Proponent and Lead Agency: City of Folsom, 50 Natoma Street,

Folsom, CA 95630, (916) 461-6162. Contact person: Marcus Yasutake, Environmental and

Water Resources Director.

c. Project Change Description: The transfer of up to 5,000 acre-feet of water under

the City's pre-1914 water rights to participating State Water Contractors, as discussed in more

detail in Addendum No. 2, which is attached as Item No. 2 to the staff report supporting this
Resolution and incorporated herein by this reference.

d. Project Change Location: The City of Folsom provides retail water services

within the City of Folsom's water rights and contracts place of use. The State Water Contractors
manage and operate facilities for distribution of water to customers in each respective agency's
service area, including water purchased by each agency from the State Water Project. The
transfer will be made available from Folsom Reservoir; conveyed through the Lower American

Resolution No. 10465
Page 2 of5 Page 220

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



River, the Sacramento River and the Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta ("Bay-Delta"); pumped into
the California Aqueduct through the Department of Water Resources' Harvey O. Banks Pumping
Plant in the southern Bay-Delta; and delivered to the participating State Water Contractors'
service areas via the California Aqueduct, San Luis Dam and Reservoir and State Water Project
facilities.

e. Findings: The City Council has reviewed the proposed Project Change,

Addendum No. 2 and attached exhibits, and other documents and information provided by City
staff and consultants. On the basis of this information and the whole record before the City
Council, the City Council hereby finds and determines as follows:

D Addendum No. 2 reflects the City Council's independent judgment and analysis;

ii) The Project Change will not: (1) result in any new significant impacts not
identified in the FPA EIWEIS; (2) substantially increase the severity of impacts
previously disclosed in the FPA EIR/EIS; or (3) involve any of the other
conditions related to new information that would require a subsequent or
supplemental EIR under Public Resources Code section 21166 and CEQA
Guidelines section 15162;

iii) Specifically, the City has generated the water supplies to be transferred as part of
the Project Change by: (a) as discussed in the December 2012 Addendum to the
FPA EIR/EIS, implementing the Systems Optimization Water Project and

including its yield under the City's pre-1914 water rights in the water supplies
dedicated to the FPA Project, which does not require all of that dedicated supply
in 2020; and (b) obtaining Aerojet's agreement to use, for its non-potable
industrial pulposes, remediated groundwater rather than American River water
subject to the City's pre-I914 water rights;

iv) As explained in more detail in Addendum No. 2 and its exhibits, the Project
Change will: (a) not have any significant environmental effects on the Lower
American River, the Sacramento River, the Bay-Delta or any aquatic resources in
those waterbodies; (b) involve the transfer of water made available by the City's
System Optimization Water Project, which already was completed and involved
maintenance of, and repairs on, the City's existing water system; and (c) also will
involve the transfer of water that Aerojet would pump for remediation purposes in
any case if the City had not arranged for Aerojet's use of that water as a substitute
for non-potable supplies that the City previously had delivered to Aerojet from the
American River.

v) The City Council is not aware of any other new information of substantial
importance that discloses that the FPA Project, including the Project Change, will
have other or more severe significant environmental effects not previously
discussed or that previously were rejected or other mitigation measures or
altematives are now feasible and effective.

Resolution No. 10465
Page 3 of5 Page 221

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



vi) Based on the above findings and determinations, there is no substantial evidence,

in tight of the whole record before the City Council, that the Project Change may

have an incrementally significant effect on the environment.

f. Location and Custodian of Documents: Addendum No. 2 and its attachments, and

documents referred to in Addendum No. 2 and exhibits, are on file and available for public

review at the City's offices at the above address. The Environmental and Water Resources

Director at the above address is the custodian of the documents that constitute the record of
proceedings upon which the decision in this matter is based.

g. Notice of Determination: The City Council hereby authorizes and directs the City
Manager or her designee to prepare, sign and post a CEQA Notice of Determination for
Addendum No. 2 pursuant to the Governor's Executive Order N-54-20 within five days from the

date of adoption of this Resolution, and to pay the applicable California Department of Fish and

Game CEQA review fee and posting fee, if any, to the County Clerk.

3. Temporary Changes to The City's Pre-1914 Water Rights. Pursuant to Water

Code section !706,the City Council hereby temporarily amends the City's pre-1914 water rights

for the term necessary to complete the water transfer to State Water Contractors that is part of the

Project Change as follows:

a. The points of diversion and rediversion temporarily are amended to include the

Department of Water Resources' Harvey O. Banks Pumping Plant, as well as San Luis Dam and

Reservoir, jointly operated by the Department of Water Resources and the federal Bureau of
Reclamation;

b. The place of use temporarily is amended to include the service areas of the

participating State Water Contractors;

c. The purpose of use temporarily is amended to include agricultural use; and

d. These changes will not injure any other legal user of water because: (i) as

recognized in multiple contracts with the United States, the City holds a pre-19I4 water right
entitling it to divert 27,000 acre-feet per year of American River water, with diversions occurring
year-round; (ii) the City's current level of diversion is approximately 17,700 acre-feet, as a result

of numerous conservation measures and obtaining Aerojet's agreement to substitute other

supplies to meet its needs; and (iii) the 5,000 acre-feet that the City is transferring is

approximately 50o/o of the 9,300 acre-feet per year of reduced water use, resulting in the transfer

having a safety margin of 4,300 acre-feet, which 86% of the transfer amount.

4. Execution of Agreements. The City Council hereby authorizes and directs the

City Manager or her designee to execute, subject to the approval as to form of the City Attorney:
(a) an Agreement Concerning 2020 Water Transfer Between The City Of Folsom And Certain

Landowners In The Folsom Plan Area in substantially the form of Item 3 attached to the staff
report for this matter; and (b) other agreements with the Department of Water Resources, the

federal Bureau of Reclamation or other parties as may be necessary to implement the Project

Resolution No. 10465

Page 4 of5 Page 222

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



Change

5. Approval of Project Change. The City Council approves the Project Change as
a modification of the FPA Project.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 9tr day of June 2020,by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):

Sarah Aquino, MAYOR
ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10465
Page 5 of5 Page 223

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



ATTACHMENT 2

Page 224

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



FOLSOM SOUTH OF U.S. 50 SPECIFIC PLAN
PROJECT

EIR/EIS Addendum #2

Prepared for

City of Folsom June 2020

r TSA
)

Page 225

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



FOLSOM SOUTH OF U.S. 50 SPECIFIC PLAN
PROJECT

EIR/EIS Addendum #2

Prepared for

City of Folsom

2600 Capitol Avenue

Suite 200

Sacramento. CA 95816

91 6.564.4500

esassoc.com

June 2020

r ESA
)

Page 226

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



OUR COMMITMENT TO SUSTAINABILITY I ESA h€lps a varloty of
public and privats sector clients plan and prepare for climats change and

emerging r€gulations that limit GHG emissions. ESA is a register€d
assessor with the Callfornia Cllmat€ Actlon Reglstry, a Cllmat€ Leader, and
foundlng reporter for the Cllmat€ RsglsEy. ESA ls also a corponte member
of the U.S. Green Buildlng Counoll and the Buslness Councll on Cllmate
change (Bc3). lntemally, ESA has adoptod a Sustainabllity Vlslon and
Policy Statsment and a plan to r€duce waste and energy wlthln our
operalions. This docum€nt was produced using recycled paper.

Page 227

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



TABLE OF CONTENTS
Folsom South of U.S. 50 Specific Plan Project
Adden dum #2

Paqe

Section 1, Background and Purpose of this Addendum 1-1
1.1 lntroduction...... ..1-1

..1-21.2 Purpose of the EIR Addendum

Section 2, Description of Project Ghanges......... 2-1
2.1 Background...... ..2-1

..2-32.2 Proposed Project Change......

Section 3, Analysis of Potential Environmental Effects.. 3-1

3.1
3.3
3.4

lntroduction .....
Conclusion ......
References......

...3-1
3-1 5
3-1 5

Attachments

A. City of Folsom Water Transfer, Water Operations Analysis Technical Memorandum

List of Tables

1 Environmental Review..,.,.,

Folsom South of U.S. 50 Specific Plan Prciect
EIFUEIS Addendum #2

ESA / 201901015
June2020

Page 228

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



Table of Contents

This page intentionally left blank

EIRYEIS Addendum #2

ESA / 201901015

Jun€ 2020
Folsom soulh of U.s. 50 specific Plan Prcject

Page 229

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



SEGTION 1

Background and Purpose of this Addendum

1.1 Introduction
The Folsom South of U.S. Highway 50 Specific Plan Project (Folsom Plan Area Project)

Environmental Impact Report (ElR)/Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) was prepared by the

City of Folsom (City) and the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE), in accordance with the

requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and the National

Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) (State Clearinghouse #2008092051). The City, as lead agency

under CEQA, certified the EIR on June l4,20ll and adopted the Folsom Plan Area Project.

The City has reduced its consumptive use of water through significant system improvements and

other conservation actions, and in 20l2,the City Council approved the dedication and use of
5,600 acre-feet per year (AFY) of the yield of the City's conservation measures as the source of
the water supply for future development of the Folsom Plan Area. In December 20l2,the City

approved an addendum (Addendum #1) to the Folsom Plan Area Project EIR/EIS that analyzed

an alternative (new) water supply source to the Folsom Plan Area. The new water supply is

derived through an exchange of Pre-I914 water rights supplies with the City's East Area and

yield resulting from the City's conservation activities for up to 5,600 AFY. The exchange was

made possible by the City's conservation activities, including a leak and loss detection and

correction program known as the Systems Optimization Water Project. Addendum #1 evaluated

this change in water supply source for the Folsom Plan Area Project and concluded that it would

not result in new significant impacts, substantially increase the severity of previously disclosed

impacts or involve any of the conditions related to changed circumstances or new information

that would require preparation of a subsequent or supplemental EIR beyond those impacts

identified and evaluated in the Folsom Plan Area Project EIR/EIS.

Consistent with standard land development practices, the Folsom Plan Area will not be fully
developed for many years. Accordingly, the Folsom Plan Area's full water demand will not occur

for many years and the City can temporarily transfer 5,000 AFY of water available under its pre-

l9l4 rights that includes a source of the water supply for the Folsom Plan Area under Addendum

#1. The source of the transfer water also includes substitution of remediated groundwater for
Aerojet's industrial use in place of raw water that the City previously delivered to Aerojet under

the City's pre-1914 rights. Therefore, the City proposes a short-term (one-year) transfer of 5,000

AF of water in2020. This addendum (Addendum #2)has been prepared to evaluate the potential

impacts of the proposed modification of the Folsom Plan Area Project to include a one-year

transfer of approximately 5,000 AF of water from the source dedicated to the Folsom Plan Area

Folsom south of U.s. 50 specific Plan Prcject

EIRYEIS Addendum #2

1-1 ESA / 201901015
Jun6 2020

Page 230

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



1. Background and Purpose of this Addendum

through Addendum #1, as well as water made available by Aerojet's use of remediated

groundwater.

1,2 Purpose of the EIR Addendum
According to Section 15164(a) of the CEQA Guidelines, the lead agency or a responsible agency

shall prepare an addendum to a previously certified EIR if some changes or additions are

necessary but none ofthe conditions described in Section 15162 requiring preparation ofa
subsequent EIR have occurred. Section 15162 of the CEQA Guidelines lists the conditions that

would require the preparation of a subsequent EIR rather than an addendum. These include the

following:

l. Substantial changes are proposed in the project which will require major revisions of the
previous EIR or negative declaration due to the involvement of new significant
environmental effects or a substantial increase in the severity of previously identified
significant effects;

2. Substantial changes occur with respect to the circumstances under which the project is
undertaken which will require major revisions of the previous EIR or negative declaration
due to the involvement of new significant environmental effects or a substantial increase in
the severity of previously identified significant effects; or

3. New information of substantial importance, which was not known and could not have been

known with the exercise of reasonable diligence at the time of the previous EIR was certified
as complete or the negative declaration was adopted, shows any of the following:

a. The project will have one or more significant effects not discussed in the previous EIR or
negative declaration;

b. Significant effects previously examined will be substantially more severe than shown in
the previous EIR;

c. Mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be feasible would in fact be

feasible, and would substantially reduce one or more significant effects of the Project, but
the project proponents decline to adopt the mitigation measure or alternative; or

d. Mitigation measures or alternatives which are considerably different from those analyzed,

in the previous EIR would substantially reduce one or more significapt effects on the
environment, but the project proponents decline to adopt the mitigation measure or
alternative.

In its 2016 decision inFriends of College of San Mateo Gardens v. San Mateo Cty. Comm.

College Dist.,lhe California Supreme Court held that an addendum can be used under CEQA

where these above conditions are met and the original CEQA document retains some

informational value despite the proposed changes to the project. (Friends of College of San

Mateo Gardens v. San Mateo Cty. Comm. College Dist. (2016) I Cal.Sth 937,947-948, 950-953.)

Under these standards, this Addendum #2 concludes that an addendum is the appropriate method

for evaluating the proposed project changes.

Folsom South of LJ.S. 50 Specific Plan Prcject
EIFUEIS Addendum #2

1-2 ESA / 201901015
June 2020

Page 231

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



SECTION 2
Description of Project Changes

2.1 Background

Gity Water Supply

The City has water rights and contracts for 34,000 AFY of surface water for diversion from the

American River at Folsom Reservoir or the Folsom South Canal. These supplies are based on the

following water rights and contracts:

o Pre-1914 Appropriative Water Right for 22,000 AFY. The City's entitlement is based on a

pre-1914 appropriative right from the South Fork of the American River established by the

Natoma Water Company in 1851. Natoma Water Company's original pre-1914 water right
established a maximum diversion rate "to fill a Canal Eight feet wide and Four feet deep with
a current running ten miles per hour." This correlates to a diversion rate of 60 cubic feet per

section (cfs) and a maximum quantity of 32,000 AFY. Of this quantity, the City acquired a

22,000 acre-foot (AF) entitlement under a 1967 co-tenancy agreement with what is now
Golden State Water Company (GSWC). The remaining 10,000 AF is discussed below. The

City's 22,000 AF portion of the pre-1914 right is conveyed by the Bureau of Reclamation
(Reclamation) to the City under Contract No. l4-06-200-5515A. There are no dry-year
shortage terms in Conffact No. 14-06-200-5515A.

o Pre-1914 Appropriative Water Right for 5,000 AFY. The City's 5,000 AF entitlement is
also based on Natoma Water Company's pre-1914 appropriative water right from the South

Fork of the American River. In November l994,the City executed a contract with Southem

California Water Company-Folsom Division (SCWC) - which is now GSWC - under which
the City acquired the right to use 5,000 AF of water per year of the 10,000 AFY that SCWC
had retained under the 1967 co-tenancy agreement identified above. The City's 5,000 AF
entitlement is conveyed by Reclamation to the City under Contract No. 14-06-200-4816A.

There are no dry-year shortage terms in Contract No. 14-06-200-4816A.

o Central Valley Project (CVP) Contract Entitlement for 70000 AFY. On February 28,

2020,the City executed a repayment contract with Reclamation for 7,000 AFA of CVP water
supplies. This water is derived solely from American River water rights held by the
Reclamation for diversion and storage at Folsom Reservoir. Reclamation's CVP water rights
are junior to water rights that existed prior to the development of the CVP. In dry years, the

water supply is subject to Reclamation's Municipal and lndustrial Water Shortage Policy
(M&I Shortage Policy). Under this policy, water supplies are reduced from a baseline volume
depending upon the inflow and storage conditions. The City is not seeking to transfer, in
2020, any water available under its CVP repayment contract.

Folsom South of U.S. 50 Specific Plan Prcject

EIFUEIS Addendum #2

2-1 ESA / 201901015
June 2020

Page 232

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



2. Description of Proiect Changes

Folsom Plan Area Water Supply

To provide a reliable water supply to the Folsom Plan Area, the City proposed, and the 201 I

Folsom Plan Area Project EIR/EIS evaluated, purchasing a permanent assignment of not more

than 8,000 AFY of CVP contract water from the Natomas Central Water Company (NCMWC),

diverting the water from the Sacramento River at the Freeport Regional Water Authority Project

(Freeport Project) and conveying it to the Folsom Plan Area through new potable water

infrastructure. The use of the Freeport Project was based on a Memorandum of Understanding

(MOU) entered into between the City and Sacramento County Water Agency (SCWA) for the

City to use 6.5 million gallons per day (MGD) of SCWA's portion of the Freeport Project. In
addition, the approved project included construction and operation of new water supply

conveyance infrastructure to deliver the water to the Folsom Plan Area.

As described in Addendum #1, due to the uncertainty in the schedule for Reclamation to approve

the assignment of NCMWC CVP entitlement (8,000 AFY) to the City, the City modified the

Folsom Plan Area's water supply to include water supply derived from certain of the City's water

conservation activities (Revised Proposed Off-site Water Facilities Alternative). Water Code

section 101I permits the City to retain and use water supplies resulting from its water

conservation actions. On February 24,2009 - prior to the enactment of 2009's SBXT-7

conservation legislation - the Folsom City Council adopted Resolution No. 8457, which allows

the City of Folsom to retain the rights of all water conserved. The City's conservation program

consists of many elements, including:

o Leak and loss detection and repairs

o Water system upgrades

o Water metering and metered water rates

. Implementing the California Model Water Landscape Ordinance (MWELO)

. Implementing the California Green Building Code Standards (Cal Green)

o Implementing the best management practices (water audits, conservation programs, etc.) of
the California Urban Water Conservation Council (now California Water Efficiency
Partnership)

The conservation yield from the City's implementation of leak and loss detection and repair, and

related water system upgrades pursuant to its Systems Optimization Water Project, as calculated

by the City, is approximately 6,450 AFY. This yield is conserved from the City's existing water

supply system, pursuant to unfunded state mandates, and exceeds the Folsom Plan Area's

projected buildout water demand of 5,600 AFY. This calculation of the conservation yield

includes a conservative assumption that the City's application of metered water rates would
reduce consumption at metered connections by l0%. As discussed in the documents supporting

Addendum #1, the standard assumption among water agencies is that the application of metered

water rates will result in approximately a20Yo reduction in consumption at metered connections.

Folsom South of U.S. 50 Specific Plan Prcject

EIRI/EIS Addendum #2

2-2 ESA / 20190 101 5

June 2020

Page 233

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



2. Description of Proiect Chanqes

Under Water Code section I 0 I I , in 2012, Ciry Council approved the dedication and use of the

yield of the City's conservation measrues and system improvements as the water supply for the

future development of the Folsom Plan Area. Addendum #1 to the Folsom Plan Area Project

EIR/EIS evaluated this new water supply source that included an exchange of supplies with the

City's East Area and consisted of a combination of pre-1914 water rights (up to 5,000 AFY) and

yield resulting from the City's conservation activities for up to 5,600 AFY.

Aerojet Water

Before 2015, under a contract, the City delivered raw water diverted from Folsom Reservoir

under the City's pre-1914 rights to Aerojet for Aerojet's industrial use. This volume of water

averaged 3,408 AFY during the 2008-2014 period, with a high of 3,897 AF in 2008 and a low of
2,614 AF in20l4. In 2015, under a 2007 contract, Aerojet began dedicating to the Cify
previously contaminated groundwater Aerojet had remediated and treated at its groundwater

extraction and treatment (GET) AB facility, with the City routing that water to Aerojet for its

non-potable industrial use in lieu of the City's raw water from Folsom Reservoir.

Prior to the 2015 initiation of Aerojet's use of GET AB water under the 2007 contract with the

City, Aerojet historically discharged the GET AB water to the Rebel Hill Ditch, where that water

infiltrated into the groundwater. Aerojet also was authorized to discharge the GET AB water to

Buffalo Creek. The GET AB discharge point on Buffalo Creek is more than six miles upstream

of the creek's discharge point to the American River. Aerojet's GET AB discharges and

operations have been regulated by a series of waste discharge requirements (WDRs) issued by the

Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board (Central Valley Regional Board). The

current WDRs are Regional Board Order R5-2017-0095, which describes GET AB, as well as

several other GET facilities. Those WDRs state that not only is the point at which GET AB is
discharged to Buffalo Creek several miles upstream of the American River, but also that Buffalo

Creek features retention basins between that point and the river, with those ponds acting as points

where "[t]he impounded water is stored for evaporation [and] percolation." I Consistent with this,

the City understands from Aerojet that GET AB water discharged to Buffalo Creek percolated

from the creek into the ground before reaching the American River2.

Since the middle of 2016, the City has not delivered any raw water to Aerojet. As a result, the

use of remediated groundwater has resulted in a reduction of over 2,600 AFY of surface water

under the City's pre-1914 water rights.

2.2 Proposed Project Change

As discussed in Section 2.1 Background, the City holds pre-1914 appropriative rights to 22,000

AFY and 5,000 AFY, both of which are covered by water-right conveyance contracts with
Reclamation. The City has reduced its consumptive use of American River water under its pre-

l9l4 water rights through significant system improvements, other conservation actions, and use

1 www.waterboards.ca.gov/centralvalley/board_decisions/adopted_orders/sacramento/r5-2017-0095.pdf. The
discussion of the retention basins is on page F-21 of Attachment F, which is the Fact Sheet.

2 Personal communication between Todd Eising, City of Folsom, and Scott Goulart, Aerojet, March16,202O.

Folsom South of u.S. 50 Specific Plan Prcject

EIRYEIS Addendum #2

2-3 ESA/ 201901015
June 2020

Page 234

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



2. Description of Project changes

of remediated groundwater from the contaminated Aerojet site. Prior to implementation of these

measures, the City's maximum water demand reached approximately 27,000 AF in 2007.

Through implementation of these measures, the City has reduced its maximum water demand by

10,000 AF (2007 water demand compared to current water demand [Calendar Year 2019]).

Of the 10,000 AF, the City transferred up to 5,000 AF during 2012 through 2016 to GSWC in

each of those years, with acknowledgement from Reclamation. The agreement between the City

and GSWC has expired; and therefore, the City will not transfer water to that entity during 2020.

Instead, the City is seeking to transfer this same quantity, up to 5,000 AF, to participating State

Water Contractors (SWC) in a temporary one-year transfer during 2020 (proposed transfer). The

City understands that the participating SWCs are the following:

o Alameda County Water District

o Dudley Ridge Water District

o Kern County Water Agency

o County of Kings

o Tulare Lake Basin Water Storage District

o Palmdale Water District

The quantity of water transferred would be coordinated with Reclamation and Department of
Water Resources (DWR) for releases from Folsom Reservoir into the American River, and

through the Sacramento River and Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta (Delta), for diversion of the

transferred water at DWR's Harvey O. Banks (Banks) Pumping Plant and conveyance to the

participating SWCs. It is anticipated the proposed up to 5,000 AF transfer could occur through a

range ofoperations scenarios. The following scenarios representbookends ofoperations under

which the transfer could occur:

o Release of 25 cubic feet per second (cfs) (approximately 1,500 AF) each month July I
through October 8,2020

o Release of 80 cfs (approximately 5,000 AF) of water in August 2020

o Release of 80 cfs (approximately 5,000 AF) water in September 2020

The 25-cfs release scenario reflects a bookend ofa low instantaneous release/long duration

operational scenario. The 80-cfs release scenarios represent high instantaneous release/short

duration scenarios.

The actual release schedule for the proposed transfer water would be determined following

completion of coordination with Reclamation and DWR.

No new water supply conveyance, diversio4 or treatment facilities would be constructed as part

of the proposed transfer.

Folsom South of u.S. 50 Specific Plan Prciect
EIRYEIS Addendum #2

2-4 ESA / 2019010'15

June 2020

Page 235

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



2. Analysis of Potential Environmental Effects

SECTION 3
Analysis of Potential Environmental Effects

3.1 lntroduction
The Folsom Plan Area Project EIR/EIS, as amended through Addendum #1, evaluated potential

environmental impacts in the following resource areas: aesthetics; air quality; biological

resources; climate change; cultural resources; environmental justice, geology, soils, mineral

resources and paleontological resources; hazardous and hazardous materials; hydrology and water

quality; land use and agricultural resources; noise; parks and recreation; population, employment

and housing; public services; traffic and transportation; utilities and service systems;

groundwater; and water supply. Cumulative and growth-inducement impacts were also evaluated.

These resource areas are reconsidered in this addendum in light ofthe proposed modification of
the Folsom Plan Area Project described in this addendum.

Specifically, the addendum analyzes whether, with the proposed modifications, implementation

of the Folsom Plan Area Project will result in any new significant impacts or substantially more

severe impacts than those identified in the Folsom Plan Area Project EIR/EIS, as amended

through Addendum No. 1. The Folsom Plan Area Project EIR/EIS (Section 3.0, Approach to the

Environmental Analysis) describes the criteria that were used to determine the significance of
environmental impacts. All mitigation measures identified in the Folsom Plan Area Project

EIR/EIS were subsequently adopted by the City as conditions of project approval. All applicable

measures also will apply to the modified Folsom Plan Area Project described in this addendum.

3.2 Environmental Review of Project Change

The proposed change to the Folsom Area Plan evaluated in this addendum includes a one-year

transfer of up to 5,000 AF from a source dedicated to the Folsom Plan Area and water made

available by Aerojet's use of remediated groundwater. The quantity and timing of water

transferred would be coordinated with Reclamation and DWR for releases from Folsom Reservoir

into the American River, and through the Sacramento River and the Delta, for diversion of the

transferred water at DWR's Banks Pumping Plant and conveyance to the participating SWCs. As

a result, the environmental analysis considers the potential impacts of each of three operational

scenarios by which the transfer could be implemented. Because the proposed transfer would be a

one-year transfer limited to 5,000 AF, for the participating SWCs, the transfer only would

backfill dry-year reductions in their standard water supplies for one year and would not be

sufficiently reliable over any multi-year term to support new construction, development of land

for either urban or agricultural uses or conversion ofland to irrigated agriculture.

Folsom South of U.S. 50 Speciflc Plan Prcject

EIRYEIS Addendum #2

3-1 ESA / 201901015
June 2020

Page 236

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



2. Analysis of Potential Environmental Effects

Addendum #1 (approved in December 2012)to the Folsom Plan Area Project EIR/EIS evaluated

the water supply to meet the demand of the Folsom Area Plan Project that included an exchange

of supplies with the City's East Area and consisted of a combination of pre-1914 water rights (up

to 5,000 AFY) and yield resulting from the City's conservation activities for up to 5,600 AFY.

Therefore, this addendum does not include a firther evaluation ofthe source ofthe water for the

proposed one-year transfer. Addendum #1 concluded that water supplies associated with

conservation activities (leak fixes that are components of the City's Systems Optimization Water

Project and implementation of metered rates water): (1) were consistent with CEQA's standards

for categorical exemptions (Class 2 for leak fixes; Class I and 3 for metered rates); (2) would not

result in any significant environmental impacts that were not analyzed in the Folsom Plan Area

Project EIR/EIS; (3) would not result in a substantially more severe environmental impacts than

were analyzed in the Folsom Plan Area Project EIR/EIS; and (4) would involve no new

information of substantial importance concerning environmental impacts. Therefore, the source of
the water for the one-year transfer attributed to conservation is not further evaluated in this

addendum.

In addition, the proposed one-year transfer of 5,000 AF would not change the source or amount of
water needed to meet the demand of the approved Folsom Plan Area Project evaluated in the

Folsom Plan Area Project EIR/EIS, as amended. Furthermore, the City's inclusion of some or all

of the Aerojet water in the proposed transfer would not result in any portion of the Aerojet water

being included in the Folsom Plan Area's water supply. Therefore, impacts associated with

meeting the water demand at buildout of the Folsom Plan Area are not further evaluated in this

addendum.

This addendum does evaluate potential impacts associated with the one-year transfer of up to

5,000 AF to participating SWCs for use in their service areas, as well as water made available by

Aerojet's use of remediated groundwater, compared to the environmental impact analysis

contained in the Folsom Plan Area Project EIR/EIS, as amended. Because the quantity and timing

of water transferred would be determined in coordination with Reclamation and DWR, the

environmental analysis considers the potential impacts of each of three operational scenarios

through which the transfer could occur as presented in Table 1.

Table I includes: (l) a discussion of summary of the impact discussion contained in the Folsom

Plan Area Project EIR/EIS for each resource area; (2) list of mitigation measwes adopted for the

Folsom Plan Area Project EIR/EIS; and (3) discussion of environmental impacts, if any,

associated with the proposed transfer and its relationship to the analysis contained in the Folsom

Plan Area Project EIR/EIS for each resource area. Specifically, the information presented in

Table 1 answers the following questions:

Where Impact(s) were analyzed in the EIR/EIS - where in the Folsom Plan Area Project

EIR/EIS impacts for each resource topic were discussed.

EIR/EIS Impact Conclusions. impact conclusion for each resource topic:

NI - no impact

LTS - less than significant impact

a

a

Folsom South of U.S. 50 Specific Plan Prc.iect

ElFUE|s Addendum #2

3-2 ESA / 201901 01 5

June 2020

Page 237

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



2. Analysis of Potential Environmental Effects

LSM - Iess than significant with mitigation measures incorporated

SU - significant and unavoidable

o Would the proposed modifications involve any new sigaificant or substantially more severe

impacts?

o Are there any new circumstances involving new significant impacts or substantially more

severe impacts?

o Is there any new information requiring new analysis or verification?

o Are prior mitigation measures sufficient for addressing any new potential changes or
impacts?

3- 
There is an equal chance of actual hydrologic conditions being wetter or dryer than the 50% exceedance forecast. Actual hydrologic

conditions have a 90% chance of being wetter than the 90% exceedance forecast with only a 1 0% chance of being dryer. Reclamation is
required to use the 90% exceedance forecast when allocating water supply to CVP water service contraclors. The proposed City of Folsom

water transfer is analyzed using both the 50% and 90% exceedance forecasts to cover the range of possible effects.

Folsom South of u.S. 50 Specific Plan Prcject
ElRYEls Addendum #2

Tlale I
ENURoNMENTAL REvIEw

Envircnmentdl
lssue Area

Wherc
lmpoct(s) were

Anolyzed in
Ptior

Envircnmental
Documents

Whatwercthe
Environmentol

Impact
conclusions for
the Proposed

woter
Focilities?

Do Ptoposed
changes

Involve New
Significant or
substantiolly
More Severc

Impdds?

Any New
circumstdnces
lnvolving New

Significont
lmpads or

Substontidlly
More Severe

lmpacts?

Any New
Inlormotion

Requiring New
Analysis ot

vetilication?

Are Prior
Mitigation
Meosures

sullicient Iot
Addressing Any
New Potential

Chonges or
lmpacts?

Aesthetlcsl/lsual
€lR/EIS Pages
38.1 through

t-a
LSM No ilo NO None Requlred

EIR/ElS Discussion:

Section 38.1 Aesthetics-Water, concluded that impacts to aesthetic resources and light and glare associated with the construction

and operation of the Proposed Off-site Water Facility Alternative could be significant but would be reduced to less than siSnificant

levels with incorporation of mitigation measures. Addendum #1 evaluated a change in water supply source for the Folsom Plan

Area Project and concluded that it would have the same or less impacts as those identified in the Folsom Plan Area EIR/EIS.

Project Change Discussion:

lmplementation of the proposed transfer would not result in the construction or operation of new water supply conveyance,

diversion or treatment facilities in either the Folsom Plan Area or any SWC's service area that would receive the transfer water. As

a result, implementation ofthe proposed transfer would not result in a short-term or permanent change in visual character or in

new sources of light or glare,

Release of water from Folsom Reservoir under the proposed transfer would result in a short-term increase in flow in the

American River. As presented in Attachment A: City of Folsom Water Transfer, Water Operations Analysis Technical

Memorandum, depending on the scenario, these increases would range from 25 cfs (approximately 1,500 AF) per month July 1

throughOctobers;toSOcfs(upto5,000AF)ineitherAugustorSeptember. AspresentedinAttachmentA,flowratesinthe
lower American River are forecasted by Reclamation(May 26, 2020 CVP Water Supply Update) to be 3,385 cfs (approximately

208,000 AF) in July; 3,276 cfs (approximately 201,000 AF) in Augusu 7,776 cfs (approximately 106,000 AF) in September; and

!,276cfs(TS,oOOAFlinOctoberfortheg0%exceedancer. BasedonReclamation'sforecast,theproposedtransferwouldresult
in a less than lyoincreaselo2yo increase in lower American River flows (releasing 25 cfs per month), using Reclamation's 90%

exceedanceforecast. Thereleaseof S0cfsinAugustorSeptemberwouldresultinaone-timeincreaseinflowsof approximately,
2.4%and4.5%,respectively,usingReclamation's90%exceedanceforecast. TotheextenttheAmericanRiverflowsintheiuly-
October period actually would be higher if hydrology ultimately were closer to prior 50% exceedance forecasts by Reclamation,

theeffectsofthetransferonAmericanRiverflowsandotherwaterbodieswouldbeevenlower. Underall ofthescenarios,the
increase in flow would not represent a noticeable change in water levels; and therefore, would not result a noticeable change the

visual character of the river.

3-3 ESA / 201 90101 5
June 2020

Page 238

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



2. Analysis of Potential Environmental Effects

Tnele {
Erunoruextal Revlew

Environmentdl
lssue Areo

Where
hpoa(s)were

Analyzed in
Ptiot

Environmental
Documents

what were the
Envircnmentol

lmpad
conclusions for
the Proposed

Woter
Focilities?

Do Proposed
Chdnges

tnvolve New
signilicont or
Substontiolly
More Severe

lmpads?

Any New
Circumstonces
lnvolving New

Signilicdnt
lmpacts or

Substantially
More Severe

lmpads?

Any New
lnlormation

Requiring New
Analysis or

verilicotion?

Are Priot
Mitigdtion
Meosures

Sullicient for
Addrcssing Any
New Potentidl

Changes or
Impocts?

ln addition to the proposed transfer, other water suppliers in the American River area are proposing additional 2020 water

transfers. The City of Sacramento, Carmichael Water District, GSWC and Sacramento Suburban Water District are proposing a

transfer that would involve up to 18,500 AF of water being made available from the American River for diversion by DWR at its

Banks Pumping Plant. Attachments to the City of Sacramento's and Carmichael Water District's associated water-right petitions

describe that transfer as involving streamflows increasing 70 cfs in the July-September period, and 40 cfs in the October-
Novemberperiod,belowtheCityofSacramento'sFairbairndiversionfacility. Thatfacilityislocatedjustwestanddownstreamof
theHoweAvenuebridge. Theincreasedflowswouldbemadeavailablethroughthetransferringpartiespumpinggroundwaterin
lieu of diverting water primarily at the Fairbairn diversion facility. According to the above-referenced water-right petition

attachments. this other transfer would change streamflows only downstream ofthe Fairbairn facility. The Placer County Water
Agenry (PCWA) filed a water-right petition onMaV 22,2020 that would involve the transfer of up to 20,000 AF (approximately

150 cfs), potentially between July and September, that would be released from Folsom Reservoir for diversion by DWR at the
BanksPumpingPlantand/orbyReclamationattheBillJones(JoneslPumpingPlant. lftheCityofFolsom'sproposedtransferand
the other American River agencies' proposed transfers were to be implemented simultaneously, they would involve an increase in

streamflows a maximum of 75 cfs (July) and 230 cfs (August/September) above the Fairbairn facility and 245 cfs (July) and 300 cfs

(AugustAeptember) below Fairbairn during the proposed transfer period. Given the American River streamflows projected by

Reclamation for that period, the combined effect of the transfers would be minor and would not noticeable aesthetically in river.

The proposed transfer would be a temporary one year transfer to offset shortages due to a reduced allocation ofSWP water, that
would not be sufficiently reliable for multiple years to support long-term or permanent construction or land use changes in the
SWCS'serviceareas. Thetransfer,therefore,wouldnotresultinchangestoagricultural orurbanuseinSWCserviceareas
receiving the water that could change the existing visual character or result in new sources of light and glare.

Therefore, implementation of the proposed transfer would not result in any new significant impacts or substantially more severe

impacts than those described in the Folsom Plan Area Project EIR/EIS, as amended.

Alt quafity
EtR/ElS Pages

38.2-1thrcu8h
2-'i6

SU Itlo Ito No l{one Requlred

EIR/ElS Discussion:

Section 38.1 Air Quality - Water, concluded that construction of the Proposed Off-site Water Facility Alternative could result in

temporary but significant and unavoidable, impacts to air quality though the generation of criteria ozone precursors (e.g.,

nitrogen oxides (NOx). Even after the application of mitigation, residual construction-related NOx emissions would be significant.

Only minor quantities of criteria air pollutants would be generated during the operation of the Proposed Off-site Water Facility

Alternative and; therefore, the residual impact would be less than significant with no mitigation required. Addendum #1

evaluated a change in water supply source for the Folsom Plan Area Project and concluded that it would have the same or less

impacts as those identified in the Folsom Plan Area EIR/EIS.

Project Change Discussion:
As discussed above under Aesthetics/Visual, implementation of the proposed transfer would not result in the construction or
operation of new water supply conveyance, diversion or treatment facilities in either the Folsom Plan Area or any SWgs service

area that would receive the transfer water. Therefore, the operation of involved water facilities would be within the range of
historical operations and there would be no construction or operational activities that could result in short-term or permanent

increases in air emissions.

As presented in Attachment A, the Citys proposed transfer would result in a maximum increase of pumping of approximately 80

cfs for a one-month period at DWR'S Banks Pumping Plant, which would result in a maximum increase in Banks' exports of about

3,750 AF from approximately 55,000 AF to approximately 59,000 AF. As described above under Aesthetics/Visual, other water

suppliers in the American River area are proposing additional 2020 water transfers that would involve up to 38,500 AF of water
being made available from the American River for diversion by DWR at its Banks Pumping Plant and/or by Reclamation at its Jones

PumpingPlant. lftheCity'sproposedtransferandtheotherAmericanRiveragenciesproposedtransfersweretobe
implemented simultaneously, they would involve an increase in pumping at the Banks and/or Jones Pumping Plants. The

increases in pumping are anticipated to be within the normal operations of both the Banks and Jones Pumping Plants because

Folsom South of U.S. 50 Specific Plan Prcject

EIFVEIS Addendum #2

3-4 ESA / 201S01015

June 2020

Page 239

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



2. Analvsis of Potential Environmental Effects

TneLe I
ENVIRoNMENTAL REvIEw

Environmentol
lssue Area

Where
lmpact(s) were

Analyzed in
Prior

Environmental
Documents

whot werc the
Environmentol

lmpact
conclusions lor
the Proposed

water
FacilitiesT

Do Proposed
changes

lnvolve New
Signilicant or
Substantially
More Severe

lmpdds?

Any New

Circumstances
lnvolving New

signilicant
lmpacts or

Substontially
Morc Severe

lmpacls?

Any New
lnlormation

Requiring New
Analysis ot

Verification?

Are Priot
Mitigotion
Medsures

Sufficient for
Addressing Any
New Potentiol

Changes or
lmpdcts?

theyarepartof recurrentdryyeartransferprograms. Therefore,theincreasewouldnotbeanticipatedtoresultinasignificant
change in pumping and associated air emissions.

As also discussed above in Aesthetics/Visual, the proposed transfer would be a temporary one year transfer to offset shortages

due to a reduced allocation of SWP water. lt would not result in changes to agricultural or urban use in SWC service areas

receiving the water that would increase air emissions over current conditions.

Therefore, implementation of the proposed transfer would not result in any new significant impacts or substantially more severe

impacts than those described in the Folsom Plan Area Proiect EIR/EIS, as amended.

Resources
Blologkal

ElR./EIS Pages

38.+l through
?-62

su llo NO No None Requlred

EIR/ElS Discussion:
Section 38.3 Biological Resources-Water, concluded that implementation of the Proposed Off-site Water Facility Alternative
would result in significant impacts to biological resources including plant, and wildlife resources, either directly or through the
loss or degradation of habitat. Significant impact would be reduced to less than significant levels with incorporation of mitigation
measures. The EIR/ElS also concluded that construction and operation ofthe Off-site Water Facility Alternatives would have the
potentialto interfere substantially with the movement of native resident or migratory fish. This impact was determined to be less

than significant because construction activities would be temporary and would not result in any permanent barriers to the
movement of native resident or migratory f ish. ln addition, the EIR/ElS concluded that assignment of water from NCMWC to the
City would result in slight, permanent increases in river flows (see Chapter 38.9.3) within a section of the Sacramento River, north
of Freeport. ln considering the combination of a change in delivery schedule, addition of a new point of diversion, and quantity of
water diverted, the Off-site Water Facilities could realize benefits in terms of increased flows within the Sacramento River when
compared to existing conditions, and therefore, could realize added minor benefits to fisheries. The EIR/ElS also concluded

operation of the Off-site Water Facility Alternatives would not result in any substantial changes in flows that could contribute to a

reduction in fish populations or the quality or quantity of aquatic habitat within the Sacramento River system, including the Delta,

for any special-status wildlife and fishery species and the direct and indirect impacts are considered less than significant.

Addendum #1 evaluated a change in water supply source for the Folsom Plan Area Project and concluded that it would have the
same or less impacts as those identified in the Folsom Plan Area EIR/EIS.

Project Chan8e Discussion:
As discussed above under Aesthetics/Visual, implementation of the proposed transfer would not result in the construction or
operation of new water supply conveyance, diversion or treatment facilities in either the Folsom Plan Area or any SWC's service

area that would receive the transfer water. As a result, it would not include any activities that could result in short-term or
permanent disturbance or loss of plant or wildlife species or habitats. ln addition, the proposed transfer would be a temporary
one year transfer to offset shortages due to a reduced allocation of SWP water. lt would not result in changes to agricultural or
urban use in SWC service areas receiving the water that could result in a short-term or permanent disturbance or loss of plant or
wildlife species or habitats.

As described in more detail in Attachment A and above under Aesthetics/Visual, hydrologic modeling results for the proposed

water transfer show no significant changes in any of the hydrologic indicators measured (i.e., Folsom Reservoir storage, American

River flow, Delta outflow, and Banks exports). Release of water from Folsom Reservoir under the proposed transfer would result

in a short-term and minor increase in flow in the American River (i.e., less than 1% increase to 2% increase in lower American

River flows releasing 25 cfs per month, and less than 2.4% and 4.5% increase in American River flows releasing 80 cfs in August or
September, respectively), using Reclamation's 90% exceedance forecast.

Based on a review of stage-discharge data relationships in the American River (USGS 11446500 American River at Fair Oaks, CA),

these minor (very small) changes in flow would be indiscernible in terms of changes to habitat conditions (i.e., less than one-inch,

or less than 2%, change in stage). Under all ofthe scenarios, the increase in flows would not represent a noticeable (or

discernable) change in aquatic habitat suitability, based on flow-habitat relationships, for speciaFstatus fish, including
anadromous salmonids (i.e., Steelhead and Chinook Salmon). Further, the transfers would occur during periods that are outside
of peak occurrence for spawning and egg incubation (Hallock et al. 1961; McEwan 2001), which are sensitive life stages for these

species.

Folsom South of U.S. 50 Specific Plan Prcject
EIRYEIS Addendum #2

3-5 ESA/201901015
June 2020

Page 240

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



2. Analysis of Potential Environmental Effects

TABLE 1

ENvIRoNMENTAL REvtEw

Environmental
Issue Area

where
Impact(sJ were

Analyzed in
Prior

Environmentol
Documents

whot were the
Environmentdl

lmpact
conclusions for
the Prcposed

Water
Fdcilities?

Do Ptoposed
Changes

lnvolve New
Significant or
Substontially
More Severe

lmpads?

Any New
circumstonces
lnvolving New

Signilicant
lmpocts or

Substontiolly
More Severe

lmpocts?

Any New
lnlormation

Requiring New
Analysis ot

Verification?

Are Prior
Mitigotion
Medsures

Sfficientlor
Addressing Any
New Potentiol

Changes or
lmpocts?

As described in more detail above under Aesthetics/Visual, other water suppliers in the American River area are proposinB

additional 2020 water transfers that would involve up to 38,500 AF of water being made available from the American River for
diversion by DWR at its Banks Pumping Plant and/or by Reclamation at its Jones Pumping Plant. The attachments to those water-

right petitions describe that transfers as involving streamflows increasing 150 cfs above the City of Sacramento's Fairbairn

diversion facility in the iuly- September period, and 220 cfs in the July-September period, and 40 cfs in the October-November
period,belowtheFairbairndiversionfacility. Asdiscussedabove, lftheCity'sproposedtransferandtheotherAmericanRiver
agencies' proposed transfers were to be implemented simultaneously, they would involve an increase in streamflows a maximum

of 75 cfs (July) and 230 cfs (August/September) above the Fairbairn facility and 245 cfs (July) and 300 cfs (August/September)

below Fairbairn during the proposed transfer period which would not represent a noticeable (or discernable) change given the
American River streamflows projected by Reclamation for that period. Therefore, it would not result in a discernable change in

aquatic habitat suitability, based on flow-habitat relationships, for special-status fish, including anadromous salmonids (i.e.,

SteelheadandChinookSalmon). Further,theperiodduringwhichtheCity'stransferisanticipatedtobeimplementedgenerally
would be outside of the period for spawning and egg incubation for salmon and steelhead in the American River.

Therefore, implementation of the proposed transfer would not result in any new significant impacts or substantially more severe

impacts than those described in the Folsom Plan Area Proiect EIR/EIS, as amended.

cllmate charBe
EIR/EIS Pages

38.+1thrclJ8h
4-10

SU No l{o No None Requlr€d

EIR/Els Discussion:
Section 38.4 Climate Change - Water, concluded that implementation of the Proposed Off-site Water Facility Alternative would
generate substantial greenhouse gas emissions (GHG) emissions. Even with the implementation of mitigation measures, GHG

emissions would not be reduced to a less-than-significant level; and therefore, would remain siSnificant and unavoidable.

Addendum #1 evaluated a change in water supply source for the Folsom Plan Area Project and concluded that it would have the
same or less impacts as those identified in the Folsom Plan Area EIR/EIS.

Project Change Discussion:
As discussed above under Aesthetics/Visual, implementation of the proposed transfer would not result in the construction or
operation of new water supply conveyance, diversion or treatment facilities in either the Folsom Plan Area or any SWC's service

areathatwouldreceivethetransferwater. Therefore,itwouldnotincludeactivitiesthatcouldresultinshort-termorpermanent
increases in GHG emissions,

As presented in Attachment A and discussed above under Air Quality, the proposed transfer would result in minor changes in

pumping at DWR'S Banks Pumping Plant and Reclamation's Jones Pumping Plants. As also described under Air Quality, other
water suppliers in the American River area are proposing additional 2020 water transfers that would involve up to 38,500 AF of
water being made available from the American River for diversion by DWR at its Banks Pumping Plant and/or by Reclamation at
itsJonesPumpingPlant. lftheCity'sproposedtransferandtheotherAmericanRiveragencies'proposedtransfersweretobe
implemented simultaneously, they would involve an increase in pumping at the Banks and/or Jones Pumping Plants. The

increases in pumping are anticipated to be within the normal operations of both the Banks and Jones Pumping Plants because

theyarepartof recurrentdryyeartransferprograms. Therefore,theincreasewouldnotbeanticipatedtoresultinachangein
energy required for pumping and associated GHG emissions.

As also discussed above in Aesthetics/Visual, the proposed transfer would be a temporary one year transfer to offset shortages

due to a reduced allocation of SWP water. lt would not result in changes to agricultural or urban use in SWC service areas

receiving the water that could result in a short-term or permanent increase in GHG emissions over current conditions.

Therefore, implementation of the proposed transfer would not result in any new significant impacts or substantially more severe

imoacts than those described in the Folsom Plan Area Proiect EIR/EIS, as amended.

Cultural
Resources

EIR/EIS Pages

38.91throu8h
5-10

su No l{o No None Requlrcd

EIR/ElS Discussion:

Folsom South of U.S. 50 Specific Plan Prcject

EIR/ElS Addendum #2

3-6 ESA / 201901015
June 2020

Page 241

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



2. Analysis of Potential Environmental Effects

TneLe I
ENvrRoNruEilTAL REvtEw

Envircnmental
lssue Ared

tAlherc

lmpod(s) were
Analyzed in

Prior
Environmental

Documents

What were the
Envhonmentdl

lmpact
conclusions for
the Prcposed

Water
Fdcilities?

Do Proposed
chonges

Involve New
signiJicont ot
Substontially
More Severe

lmpdcts?

Any New
Circumstances
lnvolving New

signilicdnt
lmpocts or

Substontially
More Severc

Impacts?

Any New
lnlormotion

Requiilng New
Analysis or

veriftcation?

Are Prior
Mitigotion
Meosures

sulficient rot
Addrcssing Any
New Potentiol

Changes or
lmpocts?

Section 38.5 Cultural Resources - Water, concluded that implementation of the Proposed Off-site Water Facility Alternative
would have significant and unavoidable impacts on identified and previously undiscovered cultural resources. This is primarily

due to the fact that some of the proposed facilities would fall under the jurisdiction of Sacramento County or the City of Rancho

Cordova; therefore, neither the City nor the project applicant(s) would have control over the timing or implementation of
mitigationmeasuresfortheseimprovements. BecausetheCitydoesnotcontrol implementationof mitigationmeasuresinareas

under the jurisdiction of these other agencies, potential impacts to cultural resources were considered potentially significant and

unavoidable for improvements which would be located in the jurisdiction of Sacramento County or the City of Rancho Cordova.

Addendum f1 evaluated a change in water supply source for the Folsom Plan Area Project and concluded that it would have the

same or less impacts as those identified in the Folsom Plan Area EIR/EIS.

Project Change Discussion:

As discussed above under Aesthetics/Visual, implementation of the proposed transfer would not result in the construction or

operation of new water supply conveyance, diversion or treatment facilities in either the Folsom Plan Area or any SWC'S service

areathatwouldreceivethetransferwater. Therefore,itwouldnotincludeanygrounddisturbingactivitiesthatcouldresultin
the destruction or loss of cultural and or tribal cultural resources.

As presented in Attachment A and discussed in more detail above under Aesthetics/Visual, depending on the scenario, the

transferwouldinvolveminorchangesinAmericanRiverflows. Underallofthescenariosforthetransfer'simplementation,the
increase in flow would not represent a noticeable change in water levels; and therefore, would not result in a substantial change

insignificanceoftribal cultural resource. Asalsodescribedinmoredetail aboveunderAesthetics/Visual,otherwatersuppliers
intheAmericanRiverareaareproposingadditional2020watertransfersthatwouldinvolveupto3S,500AF. lftheCity's
proposed transfer and the other American River agencies proposed transfers were to be implemented simultaneously, they

would involve an increase in streamflows a maximum of 75 cfs (July) and 230 cfs (August/September) above the Fairbairn facility

and245cfs(lulyland300cfs(August/September)belowFairbairnduringtheproposedtransferperiod. GiventheAmericanRiver

streamflows projected by Reclamation for that period, the combined effect of the transfers would be minor and would not

represent a change in water levels in the river; and therefore, would not result in a substantial change in significance oftribal
cultural resource.

As also discussed above under Aesthetics/Visual, the proposed transfer would be a temporary one year transfer to offset

shortages due to a reduced allocation of SWP water. lt would not result in changes to agricultural or urban use in SWC service

areas receiving the water that would include ground disturbing activities that could result in the destruction or loss of cultural and

or tribal cultural resources.

Therefore, implementation of the proposed transfer would not result in any new significant impacts or substantially more severe

impacts than those described in the Folsom Plan Area Project EIR/EIS, as amended.

Envlronmental
Justke

EIR/EIS PaSes

3B.G1thrcugh
64

NI NO No NO None Requlred

EIR/ElS Discussion:

Section 38.6 Environmental Justice - Water, concluded that implementation of the Proposed Off-site Water Facility Alternative

would not cause a disproportionately high and adverse impact on low-income or minority populations. Potential impacts to
existing low-income and minority populations would be less than significant and; therefore, no residual significant impact would

occur. Addendum #1 evaluated a change in water supply source for the Folsom Plan Area Project and concluded that it would

have the same or less impacts as those identified in the Folsom Plan Area EIR/EIS.

Project change Discussion:

As discussed above under Aesthetics/Visual, implementation of the proposed transfer would not result in the construction or

operation of new water supply conveyance, diversion or treatment facilities in either the Folsom Plan Area or any SWC's service

areathatwouldreceivethetransferwater. Therefore,nonewfacilitieswouldbeconstructedoroperatedthatwouldresultinan
any incremental environmentaljustice impacts because it would not divide a community and would not affect any low-income or

minority populations.

Folsom South of U.S. 50 Specific Plan Prcject

EIRYEIS Addendum #2

3-7 ESA/ 201S01015
June 2020

Page 242

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



2. Analysis of Potential Environmental Effects

TABLE 1

ENvTRoNMENTAL REvtEw

Environmentol
lssue Area

Where
lmpoct(s) were

Anolyzed in
Prior

Environmentol
Documents

whot were the
Envhonmentdl

lmpact
conclusions for
the Proposed

Woter
Facilities?

Do Ptoposed
Chonges

lnvolve New
Signilicant or
substontially
More Severe

lmpads?

Any New
Circumstonces
lnvolving New

signilicdnt
lmpacts or

Substontially
More Severe

lmpacts?

Any New
lnfomdtion

Requifing New
Analysis or

vetilication?

Arc Prior
Mitigotion
Measures

Sulficient for
Addrcssing Any
New Potential

Chonges or
Impocts?

As also discussed above under Aesthetics/Visual, the proposed transfer would be a temporary one year transfer to offset

shortages due to a reduced allocation of SWP water. lt would not result in changes to agricultural or urban use in SWC service

areas receiving the water that could result in incremental environmentaljustice impacts associated with dividing a community or

affect any low-income or minority population.

Therefore, implementation ofthe proposed transfer would not result in any new significant impacts or substantially more severe

impacts than those described in the Folsom Plan Area Project EIR/EIS, as amended.

Geology, Solb,
ard
Pahontologkal
Resources

EIR/EIS Pag6
38.7-1 throuth

,-t6
rrs/M NO No No None Requlred

EIR/Els Discussion:

Section 38.7 Geology, Soils, and Paleontological Resources - Water, concluded that impacts related to strong seismic ground

shaking, construction-related erosion, soil hazards related to settlement and corrosion, and the potential for encountering
previously undiscovered paleontological resources would be reduced to less than significant with identified mitigation measures;

and therefore, the Proposed Off-site water Facilities Alternative would not result in residual significant and unavoidable impacts

related to geology, soils, or paleontological resources. Addendum #1 evaluated a change in water supply source for the Folsom

Plan Area Project and concluded that it would have the same or less impacts as those identified in the Folsom Plan Area EIR/EIS.

Project Change Discussion:
As discussed above underAesthetics/Visual, implementation ofthe proposed transfer would not result in the construction or

operation of new water supply conveyance, diversion or treatment facilities in either the Folsom Plan Area or any SWC's service

areathatwouldreceivethetransferwater. Therefore,nonewfacilitieswouldbebuiltoroccupiedthatcouldbesubjectto
damageassociatedwithseismicgroundshakingorothergeologicorsoilhazards. lmplementationoftheproposedtransferwould
also not include any ground disturbing activities that could result in short-term increases in soil erosion or the destruction or loss

of paleontological resources.

As also discussed under Aesthetics/Visual, the proposed transfer would be a temporary one year transfer to offset shortages due

to a reduced allocation of SWP water. lt would not result in changes to agricultural or urban use in SWC service areas receiving

the water that would include the development of new structures that could be subject to damage associated with seismic

groundshaking or other geologic or soil hazards; or result in ground disturbing activities that could result in short-term increases

in soil erosion or the destruction or loss of paleontological resources,

Therefore, implementation of the proposed transfer would not result in any new significant impacts or substantially more severe

impacts than those described in the Folsom Plan Area Project EIR/EIS, as amended.

Hazards and
Hazardou3
Materlals

El8/ElS Pages
38.&l through

&l4
rrs/M No l{o I{o llone Requlred

Discussion:

Section 38.8 Hazards and Hazardous Materials - Water, concluded that with implementation of mitigation measures the

Proposed Off-site Water Facility Alternative would not result in any residual significant and unavoidable impacts related to risks of

upset or accidental release of hazards and hazardous materials, or risk of wildfires during construction and impacts would be

minimized to less than significant. The use of surface water from the Sacramento River for use as a potable water supply within

the Folsom Plan Area would not create a public hazard and impacts resulting from the use of this supply are considered less than

significant. Addendum#levaluatedachangeinwatersupplysourcefortheFolsomPlanAreaProjectandconcludedthatit
would have the same or less impacts as those identified in the Folsom Plan Area EIR/EIS.

Project Change Discussion:

As discussed under Aesthetics/Visual, implementation of the proposed transfer would not result in the construction or operation

of new water supply conveyance, diversion or treatment facilities in either the Folsom Plan Area or any SWC's service area that
wouldreceivethetransferwater. Therefore,implementationoftheproposedtransferwouldnotincludeanyconstruction
activitiesthatcouldresultintheaccidental releaseof hazardousmaterialsorresultinanincreasedriskofwildfire. Operationof
the existing water supply conveyance and treatment facilities would not substantially change over current conditions so there

would be no anticipated change in the use, transportation or disposal of hazardous materials.

Folsom South of U.S. 50 Specific Plan Prcject

EIRYEIS Addendum #2

3-8 ESA / 201901015
June 2020

Page 243

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



2. Analysis of Potential Environmental Effects

TaeLe 1

ENVTRoNUENTAI REuew

Envircnmental
lssue Area

where
Impod(s) were

Analyzed in
Ptiot

Environmentot
Documents

Whot were the
Environmentdl

lmpact
conclusions for
the Prcposed

Woter
Facilities?

Do Proposed
chonges

lnvolve New
Signilicont or
Substantially
More Severe

lmpacts?

Any New
Circumstances
Involving New

Signilicant
lmpocts or

Substontiolly
More Severe

lmpacts?

Any New
lnlormation

Requiring New
Anslysis ot

Verificotion?

Arc PiloT
Mitigation
Meosures

Sfficient for
Addressing Any
New Potential

Changes or
lmpocts?

ln addition, as discussed under Aesthetics/Visual, the proposed transfer would be a temporary one year transfer to offset

shortages due to a reduced allocation of SWP water. lt would not result in changes to agricultural or urban use in SWC service

areas receiving the water, and there would be no anticipated change in the use, transportation or storage of hazardous materials

over that which currently exists.

Therefore, implementation of the proposed transfer would not result in any new significant impacts or substantially more severe

impacts than those described in the Folsom Plan Area Project EIR/EIS, as amended.

llydrologyand
Water quafity

EIR/EIS Pages

3B.9l through
$.32

LTS/M No No t{o None Requir€d

EIR/ElS Discussion:

Section 3B.9 Hydrology and Water Quality - Water, concluded that with implementation of mitigation measures the Proposed

off-site Water Facility Alternative would not result in any residual significant and unavoidable impacts related to increased risk of
flooding from stormwater runoff, from water quality effects from long-term urban runoff, or short-term alteration of drainages

and associated surface water quality and sedimentation. Based on the hydrologic modeling conducted in support of the Folsom

Plan Area Project EIR/EIS using CALSIM ll, potential impacts to flows within the Sacramento River as a result of the operation of
the Proposed Off-site Facility Alternative would be less than significant. Addendum #1 evaluated a change in water supply source

for the Folsom Plan Area Project and concluded that it would have the same or less impacts as those identified in the Folsom Plan

Area EIR/ElS.

Project change Discussion:
As discussed under Aesthetics/Visual, implementation of the proposed transfer would not result in the construction or operation

of new water supply conveyance, diversion or treatment facilities in either the Folsom Plan Area or any SWC'S service area that
wouldreceivethetransferwater. Therefore,itwouldnotincludeanynewfacilitiesthatwouldresultinincreasedimpervious
surfaces that would increase the rate or amount of surface run off that could adversely affect drainage system capacity or
localizedflooding. tnaddition,therewouldbenogrounddisturbingactivitiesthatcouldresultinincreasedratesoferosionthat
would adversely affect receiving water quality.

As presented in Attachment A and discussed in more detail under Aesthetics/Visual above, the transfer would involve minor

changesinAmericanRiverflowsduringaperiodthatcouldencompassJulylthroughearlyOctober. Underallofthedescribed
scenarios, the increase in flow would not represent a noticeable change in water levels that could reduce flood capacity of the

American River levees. Furthermore, the transfer would occur in the summer/ early fall when flood risk is minimal, As also

described in more detail above under Aesthetics/Visual, other water suppliers in the American River area are proposing additional
2020watertransfersthatwouldinvolveupto33,500AF. lftheCity'sproposedtransferandtheotherAmericanRiveragencies
proposed transfers were to be implemented simultaneously, they would involve an increase in streamflows a maximum of 75 cfs

(July) and 230 cfs (August/September) above the Fairbairn facility and 245 cfs (July) and 300 cfs (August/September) below
Fairbairnduringtheproposedtransferperiod. Therefore,becausebothtransferswouldoccurduringthesummer/earlyfall
months outside ofthe flood season, the combined transfers would not be anticipated to increase flood risk.

As also discussed under Aesthetics/Visual, the proposed transfer would be a temporary one year transfer to offset shortages due

to a reduced allocation of SWP water. lt would not result in changes to agricultural or urban use in SWC service areas receiving

the water. Therefore, the proposed transfer would not include any new facilities that would result in increased impervious

surfaces that would increase the rate or amount of surface run off that could adversely affect drainage system capacity or
localizedflooding. lnaddition,therewouldbenogrounddisturbingactivitiesthatcouldresultinincreasedratesoferosionthat
would adversely affect receiving water quality.

Therefore, implementation of the proposed transfer would not result in any new significant impacts or substantially more severe

impacts than those described in the Folsom Plan Area Project EIR/EIS, as amended.

tand Use and
Agrkuhural
Resources

EIR/EIS Pages

38.lG1
throuch 1G22

SU No No l{o None Requlred

Discussion:

Folsom South of U.S. 50 Specific Plan Prcject

EIFYEIS Addendum #2

3-9 ESA / 201 901 01 5

June 2020

Page 244

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



2. Analysis of Potenlial Environmental Effects

Taeue 1

Erunoru:rrll REUEw

Environmentol
lssue Area

Where
lmpoct(s) were

Andlyzed in
Prior

Environmental
Documents

What were the
Envircnmental

lmWd
conclusions for
the Ptoposed

Woter
Facilities?

Do Ptoposed
Changes

tnvolve New
Significant or
Substdntiolly
More Severe

Impacts?

Any New
Circumstances
lnvolving New

Significant
tmpacts or

Substontially
More Severe

lmpacts?

Any New
Inlormotion

Requiring New
Andlysis ot

Verification?

Are Prior
Mitigation
Measures

Sufficient for
Addressing Any
New Potential

Changes or
lmpdcts?

Section 38.10 Land Use and Agricultural Resources - Water, concluded that implementation of the Proposed Off-site Water
Facility Alternative would not result in the conversion of lmportant Farmland; and activities associated with construction and

operation would generally be consistent with applicable federal, State, regional and local plans and policies, Howevet impacts

related to the cancellation of existing on-site Williamson Act contracts to accommodate the water treatment facility would be

significant and unavoidable and no feasible mitigation measures are available to reduce this impact to a less-than-significant level.

ln addition, the Proposed Off-site Water Facility Alternative could conflict with existing off-site Williamson Act contracts or result

in the cancellation of such contracts on lands south of the project site and no feasible mitigation measures are available to reduce

this impact to a less-than-significant level. Addendum #1 evaluated a change in water supply source for the Folsom Plan Area

Project and concluded that it would have the same or less impacts as those identified in the Folsom Plan Area EIR/EIS.

Project Change Discussion:

As discussed under Aesthetics/Visual, implementation of the proposed transfer would not result in the construction or operation
of new water supply conveyance, diversion or treatment facilities in either the Folsom Plan Area or any SWC's service area that

wouldreceivethetransferwater. Therefore,therewouldbenoassociatedchangeinlanduseorconversionofagricultural use.

As also discussed under Aesthetics/Visual, the proposed transfer would be a temporary one year transfer to offset shortages due

to a reduced allocation of SWP water. lt would not result in changes to agricultural or urban use in SWC service areas receiving

the water that could result in the permanent conversion of agricultural land.

Therefore, implementation of the proposed transfer would not result in any new significant impacts or substantially more severe

impacts than those described in the Folsom Plan Area Project EIR/EIS, as amended.

Mlmral
Resource3

ErR/E|S

Pace 3€ NI No I{o No None Requlred

EIR/ElS Discussion:
The mineral resources analysis in the Folsom Plan Area EIR/ElS concluded that review of available Sacramento County mineral
resources maps indicated that implementation of the Proposed Off-site Water Facility Alternative would not impede access to
delineated mineral resources within the eastern portions of Sacramento County. Portions of the conveyance pipeline alternatives
would travel in close proximity to several areas identified as containing mineral resources classified as Mineral Resource Zone

(MRZ)-2. These alignments; however, would be confined to the existing road rights-of-way, so their location would not contribute
toanyincreasedlossesintheavailabilityof knownmineral resources. Therefore,noimpactswouldoccurandnomitigationis
required. Addendum #1 evaluated a change in water supply source for the Folsom Plan Area Project and concluded that it would
have the same or less impacts as those identified in the Folsom Plan Area EIR/EIS.

Project Change Discussion:
As discussed above under Aesthetics/Visual, implementation of the proposed transfer would not result in the construction or
operation of new water supply conveyance, diversion or treatment facilities in either the Folsom Plan Area or any SWC's service

areathatwouldreceivethetransferwater. Therefore,nonewfacilitieswouldbebuiltthatcouldinterferewithaccessto
delineated mineral resources.

As also discussed under Aesthetics/Visual, the proposed transfer would be a temporary one year transfer to offset shortages due

to a reduced allocation of SWP water. lt would not result in changes to agricultural or urban use in SWC service areas receiving

the water that could interfere with access to delineated mineral resources.

Therefore, implementation of the proposed transfer would not result in any new significant impacts or substantially more severe

imoacts than those described in the Folsom Plan Area Proiect EIR/EIS, as amended.

Noke
EIR/EIS Pages

38.11-1
throurh 11-18

SU NO No Ito l{one Requlred

EIR/ElS Discussion:

Section 38.11 Noise - Water, concluded that even after implementation of all feasible mitigation measures, construction noise

impacts would remain significant and unavoidable for the Proposed Off-site Water Facility Alternative. The operation of the
pumps and generators for the Proposed Off-site Water Facility Alternative could occur within close proximity of sensitive

receptors, therebv resulting in a permanent increase in noise levels. Although the City has identified a series of mitigation

Folsom South of U.S. 50 Specific Plan Prcject
EIFYEIS Addendum #2

3-1 0 ESA / 201901015
June 2020

Page 245

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



2. Analvsis of Potential Environmental Effects

TleLe I
EnunoNmentll REvlEw

Environmentdl
lssue Areo

Where
hpaa(s) were

Anolyzed in
Prior

Envircnmental
Documents

What werc the
Environmental

lmpod
conclusions for
the Proposed

woter
Focilities?

Do Ptoposed
chonges

lnvolve New
Signilicant ot
Substdntiolly
More Severe

lmpactsT

Any New
Circumstdnces

Involving New
Significant
lmpacts or

Substontially
More Severe

lmpdcts?

Any New
lnlonotion

Requiring New
Andlysis or

veilficotion?

Are Prior
Mitigation
Measures

Suflicient for
Addressing Any
New Potential

Changes or
lmpacts?

measures to address potential long-term impacts to adjacent sensitive receptors, given uncertainties regarding the design of

these facilities and their respective locations, the City is unable to confirm whether the mitigation imposed would be effective in

reducinglong-termnoisetoaless-than-significantlevel. Therefore,long-term,residualnoiseimpactswouldbesignificantand
unavoidable. Addendum #1 evaluated a change in water supply source for the Folsom Plan Area Project and concluded that it
would have the same or less impacts as those identified in the Folsom Plan Area EIR/EIS.

Project Change Discussion:
As discussed under Aesthetics/Visual, implementation of the proposed transfer would not result in the construction or operation

of new water supply conveyance, diversion or treatment facilities in either the Folsom Plan Area or any SWC's service area that
would receive the transfer water. Therefore, no new facilities would be constructed or operated that could expose sensitive

receptors to short-term or permanent increases in noise levels.

As also discussed under Aesthetics/Visual, the proposed transfer would be a temporary one year transfer to offset shortages due

to a reduced allocation of SWP water. lt would not result in changes to agricultural or urban use in SWC service areas receiving

the water. As a result, no new facilities would be constructed or occupied that could expose sensitive receptors to short-term or
permanent increases in noise levels.

Therefore, implementation of the proposed transfer would not result in any new significant impacts or substantially more severe

impacts than those described in the Folsom Plan Area Proiect EIR/EIS, as amended.

Pad6 and
R€creatlon

EIR/Els Pages
38.12-1

through 12-5
LTS/M Irlo NO No tuone RequlEd

EIR/ElS Discussion:

Section 38.12 Parks and Recreation - Water, concluded that because construction ofthe Proposed Off-site Water Facility

Alternative would involve crossing the Folsom South Canal, it could temporarily disrupt the use of the canal's multi-use trail. With
implementation of mitigation measures this impact would be reduced to less than significant because continued access would be

provided. Addendum #1 evaluated a change in water supply source for the Folsom Plan Area Project and concluded that it would
have the same or less impacts as those identified in the Folsom Plan Area EIR/ElS.

Project change Discussion:
As discussed under Aesthetics/Visual, implementation of the proposed transfer would not result in the construction or operation

of new water supply conveyance, diversion or treatment facilities in either the Folsom Plan Area or any SWC's service area that
would receive the transfer water. Therefore, no new facilities would be constructed or operated that could interfere with

recreational access.

As also discussed under Aesthetics/Visual, the proposed transfer would be a temporary one year transfer to offset shortages due

to a reduced allocation of SWP water. lt would not result in changes to agricultural or urban use in SWC service areas receiving

the water. As a result, no new facilities would be constructed or operated that could interfere with recreational access,

Therefore, implementation of the proposed transfer would not result in any new significant impacts or substantially more severe

impacts than those described in the Folsom Plan Area Project EIR/ElS, as amended.

Populatlon,
Employm€nt,
ald Houlng

ErR/E|S

Page:t-8
N! No NO No None Requlrcd

EIR/ElS Discussion:
The population, employment and housing analysis in the Folsom Plan Area EIR/ElS concluded that because no residential homes

would be located on the proposed water treatment facility site, or within the Proposed Off-site Water Facility Alternative

conveyance pipeline alignments analyzed in the EIR/ElS, the Proposed Off-site Water Facility Alternative would not dlsplace

existing housing or a substantial number of people necessitating the construction or replacement housing elsewhere. Those

facilities would be generally constructed in roadway rights-of-way, and so would not affect planned housing units. As a result,

Therefore, no impact would occur and no mitigation is required. Addendum #1 evaluated a change in water supply source for the

Folsom Plan Area Project and concluded that it would have the same or less impacts as those identified in the Folsom Plan Area

Er R/ErS.

Folsom South of lJ.S. 50 Specific Plan Prcject
EIRYEIS Addendum #2

3-1 1 ESA / 20'1901015

June 2020

Page 246

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



2. AnalVsis of Potential Environmental Effects

TleLe I
ENvIRoNMENTAL REvtEw

Environmental
lssue Ared

Wherc
Impoa(s) were

Analyzed in
Prior

Envircnmentdl
Documents

Whdt werc the
Environmental

lmpod
conclusions lor
the Proposed

Wdter
Facilities?

Do Proposed
changes

tnvolve New
signiJicdnt or
Substantially
More Severe

lmpods?

Any Neut

Circumstonces
Involving New

Signifiicont
lmpacts or

Substdntially
More Severe

lmpdcts?

Any New
lnformotion

Requifing New
Analysis ot

verilicotion?

Arc Prior
Mitigdtion
Meosures

Surlicient fot
Addrcssing Any
New Potentiol

chdnges or
lmpocts?

Project Change Discussion:
As discussed under Aesthetics/Visual, implementation of the proposed transfer would not result in the construction or operation

of new water supply conveyance, diversion or treatment facilities in either the Folsom Plan Area or any SWC'S service area that
would receive the transfer water. Therefore, no new facilities would be constructed or operated that would generate an increase

in population.

As also discussed under Aesthetics/Visual, the proposed transfer would be a temporary one year transfer to offset shortages due

to a reduced allocation of SWP water. lt would not be a reliable supply of water that would support changes to existing

agricultural or urban use in SWC service areas receiving the water that could result in increased population growth in SWC service

areas receiving the water.

Therefore, implementation of the proposed transferwould not result in any new significant impacts or substantially more severe

imDacts than those described in the Folsom Plan Area Proiect EIR/ElS, as amended.

Publlc Servlces
ErR/ErS

Pace 3-8
trll No NO No None Requlred

EIR/ElS Discussion:
The public services analysis in the Folsom Plan Area EIR/EIS concluded that because the Proposed Off-site Water Facility

Alternativewouldnotdirectlygeneratenewpopulationitwouldnotrequireanynewpublicservices. Theproposedwater
facilities would allow the City to provide water service to new development with the Folsom Plan Area. New development within

the Folsom Plan Area would be subject to the requirements of the Folsom Specific Plan, which identified performance standards

and funding mechanisms to support the demand for the kinds of public services that would support new residents with the
FolsomPlanArea,suchasschools,parks,fire,police,orotherpublicfacilities. Therefore,noimpactwouldoccurandno
mitigation is required. Addendum #1 evaluated a change in water supply source for the Folsom Plan Area Project and concluded

that it would have the same or less impacts as those identified in the Folsom Plan Area EIR/EIS.

Project Change Discussion:
As discussed above under Aesthetics/Visual, implementation of the proposed transfer would not result in the construction or

operation of new water supply conveyance, diversion or treatment facilities in either the Folsom Plan Area or any SWC's service

area that would receive the transfer water. Therefore, no new facilities would be constructed or operated that would Senerate an

increase in population. As a result, there would be no need for new or expanded fire protection, police protection, schools, parks,

or other public services.

As also discussed under Aesthetics/Visual, the proposed transfer would be a temporary one year transfer to offset shortages due

to a reduced allocation of SWP water. lt would not be a reliable supply of water that would support changes to existing

agricultural or urban use in SWC service areas receiving the water. As a result, there would be no need for new or expanded fire
protection, police protection, schools, parks, or other public services.

Therefore, implementation of the proposed transfer would not result in any new significant impacts or substantially more severe

impacts than those described in the Folsom Plan Area Proiect EIR/EIS, as amended.

Trafffc and
Tramportatlon

EIR/EIS Pages

38.ltl
through 1$12

LTS/M No No No None Requlred

EIR/ElS Discussion:

Section 3B.15Traffic and Transportation - Water, concluded that construction of the Proposed Off-site Water Facility Alternative
would result in potentially significant traffic impacts. lmplementation of identified mitigation measures would reduce impacts to
less than significant through proper construction sequencing, maintenance of two-way traffic. where possible, during

construction and measures to avoid the creation of traffic hazards. Therefore, the Proposed Off-site Water Facilities Alternative
would not result in residual significant and unavoidable impacts related to traffic and transportation. Addendum #1 evaluated a

change in water supply source for the Folsom Plan Area Project and concluded that it would have the same or less impacts as

those identified in the Folsom Plan Area EIR/EIS.

Proiect Chanse Discussion:

Folsom Soulh of U.S. 50 specific Plan Prcject

EIFVEIS Addendum #2

3-12 ESA/ 20190101s
June 2020

Page 247

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



2. Analysis of Potential Environmental Effects

TABLE 1

ENVIRoNMENTAL REVIEW

Environmentdl
lssue Area

where
lmpad(sl were

Analyzed in
Prior

Environmentol
Documents

what were the
Envircnmentdl

lmpad
conclusions lor
the Prcposed

Water
Facilities?

Do Proposed
Changes

lnvolve New
signilicont or
Substantially
More Sevefe

lmpocts?

Any New
Circumstonces
Involving New

Significont
lmpdcts or

Substontially
More Sevefe

lmpocts?

Any New
lnformation

Requiring New
Anolysis or

VeriJicotion?

Ate Pilor
Mitigation
Medsures

Sullicient lor
Addrcssing Any
New Potentiol

Chonges or
Impocts?

As discussed under Aesthetics/Visual, implementation of the proposed transfer would not result in the construction or operation

of new water supply conveyance, diversion or treatment facilities in either the Folsom Plan Area or any SWC's service area that

would receive the transfer water. Therefore, no new facilities would be constructed or operated, there would be no construction

activities that could result in short-term increases in traffic or the creation oftraffic hazards or permanent increase in traffic
levels.

As also discussed under Aesthetics/Visual, the proposed transfer would be a temporary one year transfer to offset shortages due

to a reduced allocation of SWP water. lt would not be a reliable supply of water that would support changes to existing

agricultural or urban use in SWC service areas receiving the water and would result in increases in traffic levels or the creation of

traffic hazards.

Therefore, implementation of the proposed transfer would not result in any new significant impacts or substantially more severe

impacts than those described in the Folsom Plan Area Project EIR/EIS, as amended

Utllltles and
Serulce Systems

EIR/EIS Pates
38.1Gl

throulh 1G11
rrs/M No No No l{one Requlrcd

EIR/ElS Discussion:

Section 3B.16 Utilities and Service Systems - Water, concluded that construction of the Proposed Off-site Water Facility

Alternative would involve activities that could directly impact existing utility services; however, with implementation of mitigation

measures, impacts would be reduced to less than significant through proper notification and coordination. Operational impacts

would be minimized and addressed through interagency MOUS and; therefore, are not expected to result in any residual

significant unavoidable impacts to public and private utility and service systems. Construction and operation of the Proposed Off-

site Water Facility Alternative would be conditioned to be as energy efficient as feasible and would be required to maximize

recycling opportunities to minimize the quantity of solid waste transported to existing landfills. Therefore, the Proposed Off-site

Water Facilities Alternative would not result in residual significant and unavoidable impacts related to energy use. Addendum #1

evaluated a change in water supply source for the Folsom Plan Area Project and concluded that it would have the same or less

impacts as those identified in the Folsom Plan Area EIR/ElS.

Project Change Discussion:
As discussed under Aesthetics/Visual, implementation of the proposed transfer would not result in the construction or operation

of new water supply conveyance, diversion or treatment facilities in either the Folsom Plan Area or any SWC's service area that
wouldreceivethetransferwater.Waterwouldbetransferredthroughexistingfacilities. Noneworexpandedurban
development would be constructed and there would be no increase in population. As a result, there would be no need for new or

expanded water, wastewater, drainage, electrical, natural gas ortelecommunication facilities or solid waste services.

As presented in Attachment A and discussed under Air Quality, the proposed transfer would result in a minor increase in pumping

at DWR'S Banks Pumping Plant. This increase would not be anticipated to result in a change in energy required for pumping.

As also discussed under Aesthetics/Visual, the proposed transfer would be a temporary one year transfer to offset shortages due

to a reduced allocation of SWP water. lt would not be a reliable supply of water that would support changes to existing

agricultural or urban use in SWC service areas receiving the water. As a result, there would be no need for new or expanded

water, wastewater, drainage, electrical, natural gas ortelecommunication facilities or solid waste services.

Therefore, implementation of the proposed transfer would not result in any new significant impacts or substantially more severe

impacts than those described in the Folsom Plan Area Project EIR/EIS, as amended.

6roundwater
EIR/EIS Pages

38.17-1
throulh 17-14

Lrs/M No tlo No None Requlred

EIR/ElS Discussion:

Section 38.17 Groundwater - Water, concluded that operation of the Proposed Off-site Water Facility Alternative would not

result in residual, project-specific significant and unavoidable impacts to the quality and quantity of local and regional

groundwater resources. With implementation of dewatering mitigation measures, construction-related impacts to shallow

groundwater would be reduced to less than significant through the proper control, treatment, and containment of pumped

Folsom South of u.S. 50 specific Plan Prcject

EIRYEIS Addendum #2

3-1 3 ESA/ 201901015
June 2020

Page 248

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



2. Analysis of Potential Environmental Effects

TneLe 1

ENVIRoNMENTAL REVIEW

Environmentol
lssue Arco

Wherc
Impad(s) were

Anolyzed in
Prior

Environmentdl
Documents

Whdt were the
Environmentdl

lmpacl
conclusions for
the Prcposed

Water
Fd,cilities?

Do Proposed
Chdnges

lnvolve New
Signilicont or
substontially
More sevefe

lmpdds?

Any New
Circumstdnces
lnvolving New

Signilicant
Impacts or

Substantially
More Severe

lmpacts?

Any New
lnfomation

Requiilng New
Andlysis ot

Veriftcation?

Are Prior
Mitigation
Meosures

Sufficient for
Addressing Any
New Potentiol

Changes or
lmpdcts?

groundwater prior to off-site discharge. Addendum #1 evaluated a change in water supply source for the Folsom Plan Area

Project and concluded that it would have the same or less impacts as those identified in the Folsom Plan Area EIR/EIS.

Project Change Discussion:
As discussed under Aesthetics/Visual, implementation of the proposed transfer would not result in the construction or operation

of new water supply conveyance, diversion or treatment facilities in either the Folsom Plan Area or any SWC's service area that
would receive the transfer water. Therefore, there would be no construction that would create new impervious surfaces that
could interfere with groundwater recharge or require dewatering. Furthermore, there would be no new or expanded urban

development and no increase in population, and as a result, there would be no increase in groundwater use.

There would be no change in groundwater pumping to accommodate the proposed transfer due to the use of remediated
groundwaterfromthecontaminatedAerojetsite. Beginninginthelatel9S0sstateandfederalregulatoryagenciesimposed
obligations on Aerojet to address groundwater contamination on its property that including pumping and treating the
groundwater. ln 2015, under a 2007 contract, Aerojet began dedicating to the City previously contaminated groundwater Aerojet

had remediated and treated at its GET AB facility, with the City routing that water to Aerojet for its non-potable industrial use in

lieu of the City's raw water from Folsom Reservoir. Since the middle of 2016, the City has not delivered any raw water to Aerojet.

As also discussed under Aesthetics/Visual, the proposed transfer would be a temporary one year transfer to offset shortages due

to a reduced allocation of SWP water. lt would not be a reliable supply of water that would support changes to existing

agricultural or urban use in SWC service areas receiving the water. As a result, there would be no change in groundwater use over

that which currently exists.

Therefore, implementation of the proposed transfer would not result in any new significant impacts or substantially more severe

impacts than those described in the Folsom Plan Area Project EIR/ElS, as amended.

waterSupply
EIR/ElS Pages

38.1&1
throurh 1&54

rTs/M No No NO None Requlred

EIR/ElS Discussion:
Section 38.18 Water Supply, concluded that implementation of the Off-site Water Facility Alternative is necessary to serve the

water demand of the Folsom Plan Area Project, and without mitigation Folsom Plan Area demand for water would be a direct,
potentially significant impact. Mitigation measures would reduce impacts associated with increased demand for potable water

supply and conveyance and treatment facilities to a less-than-significant level by ensuring the provision of adequate water

supplies and construction of sufficient conveyance and treatment capacity in advance of approval of individual development

applicationswiththeFolsomPlanArea. ThisconclusionissupportedbythefactthattheFolsomPlanAreaprojectincludesa
water supply that, when implemented, would be sufficient to satisfy the water demand of the proposed development. Therefore,

no residual significant impacts would occur. Addendum f1 evaluated a change in water supply source for the Folsom Plan Area

Project and concluded that it would have the same or less impacts as those identified in the Folsom Plan Area EIR/EIS.

Project Change Discussion:
As discussed above under Aesthetics/Visual, implementation of the proposed transfer would not result in the construction or

operation of new water supply conveyance, diversion or treatment facilities in either the Folsom Plan Area or any SWC'S service

area that would receive the transfer water. No new or expanded urban development would be constructed and there would be

no increase in population. As a result, there would be no change in water supply demand.

As also discussed under Aesthetics/Visual, the proposed transfer would be a temporary one year transfer to offset shortages due

to a reduced allocation of SWP water. lt would not be a reliable supply of water that would support changes to existing

agricultural or urban use in SWC service areas receiving the water. As a result, there would be no need for new or expanded

water supplies,
Therefore, implementation of the proposed transfer would not result in any new significant impacts or substantially more severe

impacts than those described in the Folsom Plan Area Project EIR/EIS, as amended.

Folsom South of U.S. 50 Speciflc Plan Prcject

EIFVEIS Addendum #2

3-14 ESA / 201901015
June 2020

Page 249

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



2. Analysis of Potential Environmental Effects

TABLE 1

EiIvIRoNMEilTAL REVIEW

Environmental
lssue Areo

Where
lmpoct(s) were

Analyzed in
Prior

Environmentdl
Documents

Whot were the
Envircnmental

lmpact
conclusions for
the Proposed

Water
Facilities?

Do Proposed
Chonges

lnvolve New
Signilicdnt or
Substontially
More Severe

lmpods?

Any New
Circumstances
lnvolving New

signiiicont
lmpacts or

Substantially
More Severe

lmpacts?

Any New
lnformotion

Requifing New
Analysis or

verification?

Are Prior
Mitigation
Meosures

Sulficient lor
Addressing Any
New Potential

Changes or
lmpdcts?

Cumulatlve
lmpacts

ElR./EIS PaSes
tt-l through 4-

88
SU No No No None Requlred

EIR/ElS Discussion:
As discussed in detail in Section 4.1 Cumulative lmpacts, implementation of the Proposed Off-site Water Facility Alternative

would result in the following direct and indirect cumulatively considerable incremental contributions to siSnificant adverse

cumulative impacts associated with aesthetics/visual resources, biological resources, climate change, cultural resources, noise,

and traffic and transportation. Addendum #1 evaluated a change in water supply source for the Folsom Plan Area Project and

concluded that it would have the same or less impacts as those identified in the Folsom Plan Area EIR/EIS.

Project Change Discussion:
lmplementation ofthe proposed transfer would not result in the construction or operation of new water supply conveyance,

diversion or treatment facilities in either the Folsom Plan Area or any SWC'S service area that would receive the transfer water.

No new or expanded urban development would be constructed and there would be no ground disturbing activities that could

result in the destruction or loss of biological, cultural and or tribal cultural resources. There would also be no change in air

emissions, noise levels GHG emissions or traffic associated with increased population. ln addition, the proposed transfer would be

a temporary one year transfer to offset shortages due to a reduced allocation of SWP water. lt would not be a reliable supply of

water that would support changes to existing agricultural or urban use in SWC service areas receiving the water. As a result, there

would be no ground disturbing activities that could result in the destruction or loss of biological, cultural and or tribal cultural

resources. There would also be no change in air emissions, noise levels GHG emissions or traffic associated with increased

population. Therefore, implementation of the proposed transfer would not result in any new significant impacts or substantially

more severe cumulative impacts than those described in the Folsom Plan Area Project EIR/EIS, as amended.

3.3 Conclusion
As presented in Table 1, this addendum documents that the proposed one-year transfer of up to

5,000 AF would not result in any new or more severe impacts than those discussed in the Folsom

Plan Area Project EIR/EIS, as amended, and as updated by this Addendum #2. None of the

conditions or circumstances that would require preparation of a subsequent or supplemental EIR

pursuant to Public Resources Code Section 21166 exists for the proposed project with these

changes.

3.4 References
Hallock, R. J., W. F. Van Woert, and L. Shapovalov. 1961. An Evaluation of Stocking Hatchery-

Reared Steelhead Rainbow Trout (Salmo gairdnerii gairdnerii) in the Sacramento River
System. Fish Bulletin No. 114. Sacramento, CA: Department of Fish and Game.

McEwan, D.2001. Central Valley steelhead,In Contributions to the biologt of Central Valley

salmonids, R. L. Brown, editor, CDFW, Sacramento, CA, Fish Bulletin, Yol.l79,pp.l-44

Folsom South of U.S. 50 Specific Plan Prcject

EIFVEIS Addendum #2

3-1 5 ESA / 2019010'15

June 2020

Page 250

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



Attachment A
City of Folsom Water Transfer,
Water Operations Analysis
Technical Memorandum

r ESA
)

Page 251

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



MBKWEA'G 
' 'EERS

Water Resources . Flood Control o Water Rights

DATE:

TO:

PREPARED BY:

SUBJECT:

TECHNICAL MEMORANDUM

May28,2O2O

Cathy McEfee, ESA

Walter Bourez

City of Folsom Water Transfer Water Operations Analysis

The purpose of this Technical Memorandum (TM) is to describe potential changes in CVP and SWP

operations due to the proposed City of Folsom water transfer of 5,000 acre-feet (AF) in 2020. Changes

in CVP and SWP operations are assessed by imposing the proposed transfer on forecasted CVP and SWP

operations over the possible transfer period of July 2020 through November 2020. The exact timing of
when the transfer water will be conveyed from the City of Folsom to a buyer south of the Delta and

potential change in Folsom operations is not fully defined, therefore the range of possibilities has been

analyzed.

Preliminarily, the City's water conservation measures, including leak and loss detection involved in its

Systems Optimization Water Project, and its securing of Aerojet's agreement to substitute remediated

groundwater to meet its non-potable industrial demands rather than the raw American River water that

the City previously delivered to Aerojet have reduced the City's use of American River water by over

10,000 AF from a high of 31,285 AF in 2008 to 17,704 AF in 2019. The City's primary water supply is its

27,OOO AF per year under its pre-1914 water rights, so the reduction in use from 2008 to 2019 occurred

almost entirely under those water rights.

For analysis of the proposed water transfer, forecasted CVP and SWP operations that were provided by

Reclamation CVO on April 21, 2020; the Reclamation forecast summaries are included in this TM in

Figure 7 and Figure 8. Reclamation provided updated forecasts on May 26,2020; therefore, analysis of

the proposed transfer has been performed using these updated forecasts; these forecasts are included

in Figure 9 and Figure 10. Reclamation produces a 50% and 90% exceedance forecast for their
operations and updates them each month. There is an equal chance of actual hydrologic conditions

being wetter or dryer than the 50% exceedance forecast. Actual hydrologic conditions have a 90%

chance of being wetter than the 90% exceedance forecast with only a L0% chance of being dryer.

Reclamation is required to use the 90% exceedance forecast when allocating water supply to CVP water

service contractors. The proposed City of Folsom water transfer is analyzed using both the 50% and 90%

exceedance forecasts to coverthe range of possible effects.

2City of Folsom water transfer, water operations analysis

Page 252

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



ln addition to using a range of possible hydrologic conditions for analyzing this transfer, various periods

for when the water transfer may occur under each condition are also addressed. There are three

transfer scenarios that have been evaluated using the 50% and 90% exceedance forecasts, therefore

therearesixmodeledscenarios. Foreachofthethreetransferscenariosevaluated,theincremental
changes in flows and storage are the same in the respective 50% and 90% forecasted operation analysis.

Alternatives are selected to analyze the range of possible times and rates that the transfer may occur so

that all possible effects of the proposed transfer may be analyzed. Figure 1 through Figure 6 contain
graphical summaries of flows and storage along with changes associated with each transfer scenario

analyzed using the April 2020 operations forecasts. Figures lL through 16 contain the same graphical

summaries using the May 2020 forecasts. Both the April and May forecasts are used for this analysis to
capture a broader range of potential effects. The forecasted water transfer scenarios analyzed are as

follows:

1. Transfer of 25 CFS from July l through October 8
. April 2O2O,SOYo Exceedance Operations Forecast Summary

2. Transfer of 25 CFS from July l through October 8

o April 2O2O,90% Exceedance Operations Forecast Summary

3. 5,000 AF Transfer in August with April through September accumulation of Transfer Supply

o April 2O2O,50% Exceedance Operations Forecast Summary

4. 5,000 AF Transfer in August with Aprilthrough September accumulation of Transfer Supply

. April2O2O,90% Exceedance Operations Forecast Summary

5. 5,000 AF Transfer in September with April through September accumulation of Transfer Supply

o April 2O2O,50% Exceedance Operations Forecast Summary

6. 5,000 AF Transfer in September with April through September accumulation of Transfer Supply

. April 2O2O,90% Exceedance Operations Forecast Summary

11. Transfer of 25 CFS from July 1 through October 8
. May 2O2O,50% Exceedance Operations Forecast Summary

12. Transfer of 25 CFS from July 1 through October 8
. May 2O2O,90% Exceedance Operations Forecast Summary

13. 5,000 AF Transfer in August with Aprilthrough September accumulation of Transfer Supply

. May 2O2O,50% Exceedance Operations Forecast Summary

14. 5,000 AF Transfer in August with Aprilthrough September accumulation of Transfer Supply

. May 2O2O,90% Exceedance Operations Forecast Summary

15. 5,000 AF Transfer in September with April through September accumulation of Transfer Supply

. May 2O2O,50% Exceedance Operations Forecast Summary

16. 5,000 AF Transfer in September with April through September accumulation of Transfer Supply

. May 2O2O,90% Exceedance Operations Forecast Summary

Analyses are performed by extracting flow and storage data from the 50% and90% exceedance

forecasts for operational components that may change due to this transfer and then adjusting for the

transfer. Transfer water made available by the City of Folsom is released from Folsom Dam and Nimbus

Dam to the Lower American River, flows from the American River into the Sacramento River and then

flows through the Delta. Transfer water will be exported at the SWP Banks Pumping Plant (PP) and a

2City of Folsom water transfer, water operations analysis

Page 253

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



portion willflow out of the Delta to the Bay. lt is assumed that25016 of the water made available is

required to flow out of the Delta to prevent salinity changes in the Delta, this "carriage wate/' is a

typical requirement for water transfers. lt is estimated that the 5,000 AF proposed transfer will result in

3,750 AF of increased pumping at Banks PP and Delta outflow will increase approximately 1,250 AF.

Components of the CVP that have been evaluated for changes under this transfer are:

o Folsom Lake storage
o Lower American River flow
o Sacramento River inflow to the Delta (changes are the same as Lower American River)

o Delta export at Banks PP

o Delta outflow

Transfer of 25 CFS from July 1- through October 8

This transfer scenario assumes that 25 cubic feet per second (cfs) of water is made available from July 1,

2020 through October 8,2020, with a total amount of transfer water of 5,000 AF. Under this scenario,

transfer water made available will be released from Folsom Lake and Nimbus Dam

Figure 1 and Figure 2 contain charts showing changes to operations under this scenario using the April

forecasted operation and Figure 11 and Figure 12 show changes to the May forecasted operation. 25 cfs

is a relatively small flow rate change for the lower American River and under both the 50% and9O%

exceedance it is difficult to see differences in the line charts and next to impossible to detect differences

in actual operations.

5,000 AF Transfer in August with April through September Accumulation of Transfer

Supply
This transfer scenario assumes that water is made available to transfer from April through September

and stored in Folsom Lake. The entire transfer amount of 5,000 AF is released from Folsom Lake during

the month of August, this would increase average flow in the lower American River by about 80 cfs for
the month. Under this scenario, transfer water made available increases Folsom storage approximately

3,400 TAF by the end of July.

Figure 3 and Figure 4 contain charts showing changes to operations under this scenario using the April

forecasted operation and Figure 13 and Figure 14 show changes to the May forecasted operation. Flow

increases in August may be seen in Figure 3 and Figure 4; however, this increase is relatively minor

relative to the forecasted flow rate. lncreases in Delta outflow are approximately 20 c'fs in August under

this scenario.

5,000 AF Transfer in September with April through September Accumulation of Transfer

Supply
This transfer scenario assumes that water is made available to transfer from April through September

and stored in Folsom Lake. The entire transfer amount of 5,000 AF is released from Folsom Lake during

the month of September, this would increase average flow in the lower American River by about 80 cfs

2City of Folsom water transfer, water operations analysis

Page 254

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



for the month. Under this scenario, transfer water made available increases Folsom storage

approximately 4,300 TAF by the end of August.

Figure 5 and Figure 5 contain charts showing changes to operations under this scenario using the April

forecasted operation and Figure 15 and Figure 15 show changes to the May forecasted operation. Flow

increases in September may be seen in Figure 5 and Figure 6; however, this increase is relatively minor

relative to the forecasted flow rate. lncreases in Delta outflow are approximately 20 c'fs in September

under this scenario.

2City of Folsom water transfer, water operations analysis

Page 255

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



Figure 1 - Transfer of 25 CFS from July 1 through October 8

April 2020, 50% Exceedance Operations Forecast Summary

Folsom Storage With City of Folsom Transfer
Estlmated CVP Operations 509{ Excedance

Mar Apr May Jun lul Aug S€P oct ild

Eia Dift refte in Storaee + Fohom Stora8e - Fqust + Fohom SbtaSp with Trander

American River Flow with City of Folsom Transfer
Estimated CVP Operations 5096 Exc*dance

Apr May lon Jul Au8 5€p od Nov

-Changein 
Nimbls relea* +-t{imbus ReleaF - Fot6al ..a-Nimbus Seleae withtracfur

City of Folsom water transfer, water operations analysis

Banks Export with City of Folsom Transfer
Estimated cVP Operations 50% Exceedance

Apr May Jun .,!l Aug Sep Od Nd

a::achartse in Delta Erpon -G-Sbte Eanks Expo.t . Fqe@st ."O- Sanks €tpon with tEnde.

Delta Outflow with City of Folsom Transfer
Estimated CVP Operations 50% Exceedance

7m

650

60
550

5m

450

4@

350

3O

29
2@

4@O

3500

3d)o

25m

2(m

1500

1@0

50

F

I

:

6

;
E

5c
E

r

9

8

6

5

l
1

t

0

9

8

7

6

s

4

2

I

o

I

180

1@

1,O

120

10

80

60

40

20

0

1600

1,n@

l2(XD

1dm

8(no

6(m

4@0

2(m

140

120

lm?
JJ

80E
g

60E
;rof

N)

-ciF
=tU9
E>

g-5
#oEP

i

3
E

:
t
e

6
t

24

2l 'a
tg.ll

t2 6:
I

o6s
J

As. May

E=lG.,iage Wate.lo$

Jun ,ul Aug Sep od lld

-G Hta Ortllow .+ Detb oftflow with T,a6fe t

2

Transfer (AFlmon):

Page 256

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



Figure 2 - Transfer of 25 CFS from July 1 through October 8

April 2020, 90% Exceedance Operations Forecast Summary

Folsom Storage With City of Folsom Transfer
Estimated CVP Operations 90%Exceedance

Banks Export with City of Folsom Transfer
Estimated CVP Operations 9096 Excedance

70
650

60
550

5@

450

4@

350

3@

2n
2m

40oo

3500

3m0

2500

2(m

1500

100

m

;r

:
c

6
'b
!
E

:
g

a

rl

I

6

5

z

I

o

I

^CiF
:3
E>3€E8
oExo;p

'E:
a
:
t

1&

1@

14

120

1q)

80

@

40

20

0

24

21
G

tg 11

ls E
.g

125]p
o

E
3

o

160@

1,$(n

12(m

1@@

8(m

6(m

4@O

2@0

ef,

'E

Mar Apr May ,un Jul Aug Sep Od t{@

-Oifft 
Ence in Sbrage + Fokom Storagp - Fq@st + Folom StdaSe with TranCer

American River Flow with City of Folsom Transfer
Estimated CVP Operations 9096 Exceedance

Apr May Jun lul AUB sep ctt llw

s:ChanSe in Delta Erpon +State Eanks tlport - Fqsst -+- 0anks txpo.t with tEnier

Delta Outflow with City of Folsom Transfer
Estimated CVP Operations 9096 Exceedance

1m

120

1m3
11

soE
:
'ro€

)o

00

Apr May lun Jul Aug S€p Oct lld

t-=change in t{imbus reloae -}-Nimbue nebae - tur{es + Nimblt R€leae with traclbr

City of Folsom water transfer, water operations analysis

Apr May

E=lcartuBe Water 16

lun .lul Aug

-+-Ddb otrtlldx

Sep O(t Nq

-G tklta Ortiow r,rith Tra6fu.

2

Transfer (AFlmon):

I

Page 257

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



Figure 3 - 5,000 AF Transfer in August with April through September Accumulation of Transfer Supply

April 2020, 50% Exceedance Operations Forecast Summary

Folsom Storage With City of Folsom Transfer

76
650

6@

550

50
49
4m

350

3@

2n
2@

4m0

3Sm

3(D0

2500

2frX)

1500

1@O

5m

r
5

!

6

]
e

c
E

E

e

Estimated CVP Operations 50% Exce€dance

Mar Ap. May ,un Jul Aug sep Od Nw

-l 
clifferdce in sbra8. + fds Stora8p - Fq@st + Fds storage with Tran$er

American River Flow with City of Folsom Transfer
Est:mated CVP Operations 5096 Exceedance

Apr May lun ,ul Aug S€p Oct l{ov

l:=lchanSe in Nimbus releas -rFilimbls Releae - tute$ -a- ilimbus Rel€as \rith tra6fet

City of Folsom water transfer, water operations analysis

F
t
E

E

:
r

a

'"9
E

:
r

9

8

t^

;
43

.tr
t-
0

.1

i

180

1@

140

120

1m

80

50

40

20

0

160m

14(m

120O

1m@

8m

6mo

l|qlo

2mo

o

t40

120

lm

80

60

40

20

0

Banks Export with City of Folsom Transfer
Estimated CVP Operations 50% Exceedance

Delta Outflow with City of Folsom Transfer
Estimated CVP Operations 5096 Uceedance

t

Apr M.y Jun Jul AUB s€p Oct l{ov

Elchange in Delte Erpon +Sbte Eanks Etpon - Fd&st -a- B.nks Expod with tnnJer

)'l

2t ^
tr9
lsE
126.
9E

o
6o

l

Apr M.y

liiacariage wate, 16

lun .lul Aug

-a-.D€lborjtflN

sep oct t{ry

-+ Delta ortfld with TraNbt

2

EIE[[

Page 258

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



Figure 4 - 5,000 AF Transfer in August with April through September Accumulation of Transfer Supply

April 2020, 90% Exceedance Operations Forecast Summary

7O

650

60
550

5m

450

,m
350

3m

2S0

2m

4000

3500

3frX)

2500

2@O

1vx)

l@o

5(n

F

ts

:
.9

Folsom Storage With City of Folsom Transfer
Estimated CVP Operations 90% Exceedance

Mar Ag. May jun .lul Aug 5€p Ckt l{ov

f;=DdfeEme in sbra8e -rFfds Storagr - Fq@$ ."O-FolM Stotage with trander

American River Flow with City of Folsom Transfer
Estimated cVP Operations 9096 Excedance

Banks Export with City of Folsom Transfer
Estimated CVP Operations 90% Exceedance

I

0

9

8

o{

4.E

)P
ti
o

I

1&

160

Qrm

E',
> 1q)
a
5eo

s60
9+o

20

0

160@

14(m

12fln

1@@

800

6(m

4@O

2(m

t
E
i
c

ri

t

24

)1 ;.- t
El9Eg

12 6
3

9:
o
!6l

Apr May Jun Jul Aug s€p Ctt Nw

: Ch.nBe in Delta €lpoft + State 8an*s Erpoft - Fasst -a- Banks Exporl with t6nCer

Delta Outflow with City of Folsom Transfer
Estlmated CVP Operations 90% Exceedance

1{

120

1m

80

60

40

20

0 0

Apr May Jun .,ul Au8 sep Od l{d

I;=lchange in Nimbusreleae {-t{imbus Releae - For@l +a{imb6 Releas withtraFtur

City of Folsom water transfer, water operations analysis

Apr May

El;lCarriage Water lo$

lun Jul Aug

-.}. Delta Orttlow

Sep Oct Nov

--- Det6 Grtfl ow with Tra6tur

2

trr[[ tr

Page 259

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



Figure 5 - 5,000 AF Transfer in September with April through September Accumulation of Transfer Supply

April 2020, 50% Exceedance Operations Forecast Summary

1S

160

140

120

1O

80

60

40

20

0

70
650

60
550

5&

450

4d)

350

36
250

20

16(m

1{XD

120@

10@

8d)0

6@0

4&0

2m0

r
I
:
c

t
E
E

:
F

i

Folsom Stonge With City of Folsom Transfer
Estlmated CVP Operations 50% Exceedance

Mar Apr May Jun ,ul Aug sep oct llw

El Oitterc@ in StoraSE -+- Solsm StoragB - Fd@st -G Fdem StoragP with Trande.

American River Flow wlth City of Folsom Transfer
Estimated CVP Operatlons 50% Excedance

Apr May lun .lul Aug Sep Od l{ov

l:achame in llimbuirelee* +Nimbus Releae - gorda$ +Nimbus nebas with t.a6fu r

City of Folsom water transfer, water operations analysis

Banks Export with City of Folsom Transfer
Estimated CVP Operations 50 Exceedance

Apr May .lun lul Aug Sep Oct ?{ov

Elchaoge in t}elb Erpon +-sbte Banks Erpon ^ Fd@3t + Eanb txpon with t€nJer

Delta Outflow with City of Folsom Transfer
Estimat€d CVP Operations 50% Exceedance

'I
E

:
r

I
E

E.

:
t

9

8

7^
oE

4 ,gl

,i-
rI
,fi
r)

I

I

o

4-

e
i5]
9

21 ;
la -
ts g

1) a

'
o

69,
E

.l

4@O

3500

3@O

2500

2(m

15d)

100

5m

t€

120

lm3
9

80E
P
e60;
i

ao€

/o

0
Ap. May

Elc.,riaSe Water lo$

Jun Jul Aug

+-Ddb Ofilow

Sep Oct Nov

-a- Hta Oltflow with Tra6fer

2

,,r[[

Page 260

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



Figure 6 - 5,000 AF Transfer in September with April through September Accumulation of Transfer Supply

April 2020, 90% Exceedance Operations Forecast Summary

1S

16
1,lo

120

10

80

60

@

20

0

7(n

650

6m

5SO

50
450

itCD

3so

3m

250

2q)

4mo

3glo

3@0

2vx)

2@O

1500

1g)o

5@

I

:

t

:
r

Folsom Storage With City of Folsom Transfer
Estimated CVP Operations 909{ Excmdance

Mar Apr May Jun lul Aug sep Oct lld

E;;l Oiffr@rc! in Storage + Folsom Sto,agp - Fqest + Fohom Sto.aSe with Transter

American River Flow with City of Folsom Transfer
Estimated CVP Operations 9096 Exceedance

Banks Export with City of Folsom Transfer
Estimated CVP Operations 90% Exce€dance

f
3

"9

z

:
r

'E
E

r

g

8

t_
sE

-5

,F
t'
0

I

9

8

5

4

3

)

I

o

5
?
3

Apr May lon lul Aug sep oct l{ov

s:;-Change in Delte trpon + Sbie Banls tulon - Fdsst + Banks Expd whh tbnJer

Delta Outflow with City of Folsom Transfer
tstlmated CVP Operations 90% Exceedance

lio

120

tm

80

60

40

20

0

t

24

21 a
rg9I
15 3

125
3

o
E

3

1@q'

1{06

120(n

1@@

8@O

6(m

4@0

2dx)

o
Apr May Jun lul Au8 S€P Od il@

f-lchange in Nimbls releae -l}- Nimbus nebae - turea* -a-t{imbus Releas with traEtut

City of Folsom water transfer, water operations analysis

Apr MaY

E:Ca.riage Wate.16

lun iul Aug

-r> Ddb oltflm

sep o.t t{w

-a- Deha Outflw with T.a6f€r

2

EEIN

I

Page 261

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



Figure 7 - Reclamation - April2020,90% Exceedance Operations Forecast Summary
Ecllmded CVP OpordlorF 00rig grceedanco

l00tt UIR/Rcfugc.'l5!lAg Ct9l tl{

Storages
F6deral lnd otlh. llonth ttoragerElc%llon lTAtFeetl

tAt-
9reUl.

tmLa
Totrl 3ln
Lfrdttt rllr t2rl ittt tll fL aff 75t tca l'c t2t7 rtSt tait l2tl

Monthly Rlver Reha3ca {TAFrcfB}

Trlnlty Dlvorsbns ITAFI
tOr ilry 'lul ,rd tug t? O.t lloY O.. Jn t.! I.t

rmry

mlrr!ffi

'EE
rollon

fdtrloml

aa Lut

Lru
e0 a5

DeltaSummry {TAF} lPl rlly Ju Jll Alg a? Oct Lov D- Js t! Iu

ot

Hrdrology

L32 t
raom

at*

{Nxffir
oarl
reqlhnw |Tl'I

CVP aclual opmlbnt do ma tobr any toraca3l.d opfalbn or oullook; clul +atalb6 m b.rd m raaflln a coidllm.
C\rp oFraibnd tsacadt r dtbdr ragmnl ganf,d rytlam.r$. dyranbt rd do noa mcattady addm tpacrt tdaBhadr.blra,y dalllt
C\rp nlD: a rxpoi vabr nprqJil moitily mltl.
CVP ODordbF lrr upddrd nmlhit !r lw httfoSgy htqn dabn B mdc wdlbb Oc.mbtr ltragh U!y.

1nlno20

City of Folsom water transfer, water operations analysis 2

Page 262

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



Figure B - Reclamation - April 2020, 50% Exceedance Operations Forecast Summary
Ertlmdod CVp Opsrdbm 5OA Erceodatrce

Storages
Fed€rC End of tho llonlh Sdrg€/Esdlon (TAflFc{ll

lh. llonlh R.3crvllt
0torilra

{tto lfl lolt itt aat 3rn a?a rat trt4 t6ll tac? rtl2 2024

Monthly Rtuor Releasee {TAF/clrl

Trini9Diwrslom ITAFI Ju P.b Xarlpr W Jstr Jul Asg 5!p Oct ilcY Drc

rrrn ry

nhl|rryril

trau
FUtOm

f,rxalomr

ln Lut

t0

Detta Summary FAFI Apr Hry Jun Jul tut 8.p Oct Lov D.c J3t F$ llr

EI

-TrElET]D-Etr

Hydrology

IYori0d (l^tl

CVP a€trat cplnlbna do ltd tolw .ny tbracarhd otaralbn or odl6l: :tol oparalbil e bard o t.tllln. conda{od.
CVP opantbnt lbncrdr r oubolt rl'raml iarxd ryrlm{i$r dtrmtst nd to nd mcatrtty rddnr rpaclt waanhadroUlty daldt.
CVP nl!'lr o..xtod vduos rrllr.nl moril*y trmlrr,
CVp ODil.lbB.ro updd.d mo.iht rr ffihycology htondba b md. n.L!|. Omb.r tllouoh lly-

City of Folsom water transfer, water operations analysis

anlnoz0

2

Page 263

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



Figure 9 - Reclamation - May 2020,90% Exceedance Operations Forecast Summary

Estlmded CVP Operdlons 8091 Exceedarce

Storagec
F.derc End oflh. llonlh gor{9/E.vatlon {TAF/F.cl}

Crerlllo lr*
9rn lutt
lolll 3ln
-frfrlt rltt 11r' ttt tra 3ta a3t aat Itt tt6 tlto lt/ac l0tt me

Monthly Rlvor Releases (TAF/cfsl

Trlnlty Dlrlelslom ITAFI Jul Aug irp Oot Lov Oac Js f.l Ia AptI'|ry Jun

ril:y

tBEf,tytffi

INTU

rroD

ta*$dom

ln Lulr

t0lc

Delta Summary {TAF} Xrf Jun Jul Aug S.p Oct t.or O.c Ju t- Is Ael

50t a

-TT.fiI 
T,NIItr6IEgIUfl

MIff
Dr-t-;ii-

Hydrology

IYo!.hnd FAt,

CVP lrtull opmlbor do nd toln &ry toarorlad opcntbn or ostl@h: rlsl ogarttbB rE blsd m r!}lln c condllG,
C\rP opa[tbnal toncalt d oulbotr rl?tarnl lonxd rytl.m.!5a dtran:r ]d dc ?El ilsrtraily aadns rDaclb trtlatrhadilodtty dol.lt.
CVP rallt.r a argod vd[ neu.nl monlHy ryararor,
CvP OpalalbB !r. lPddrd modht at nr hydobgy htma0dt b m dg sdall. Otambd i,ttngh u.y-

City of Folsom water transfer, water operations analysis

5r2itmm

2

Page 264

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



Figure 1.0 - Reclamation - May 2O2O,50% Exceedance Operations Forecast Summary

E3tlm.ted CvP Opcrdlon 50.i Ercc.danc.

Storages
Fcdcr.l End oflhc t[onth gongp/Ervrllon (TAF/F.ct]

trctlllt ln*
ts ldt
tocrl aa
-fr t?ttl lt77 10of i00? t0l tt0 tot a8t iltt tttt tttt I eat 202e ttca

fllontity River Releases {TAFlcGl

TrlnlvDlvcrsbns {TAFI
I,ly Ju f!O Irt A'lJd ArC tt OGt Lov O* Jln

ttlfrtr

;lrcn
tfnm

Irrlcrn

ttrd$ror

.mf

t0

Delta Sumnnry {TAFI lLy Jm Jd AtA 3? oc! Lov oc &n r- Iry ,lPr

-:If:nIfln

l{ydrology

Y.[ nnou Frtl

cvP rcn6t oprllbat do nd toarf rny toncrsLd oDmlbn d oulldl(: *lul o9aralbnt an itsd m ntl.tnc cffitlkn.
cVP opillbni tortcrir d oullo&t n9rlrnt lonrd syllam.ita rtyrrmEr nd oo nal naccrtlrt r4t?clr l9acll rvianhcdrttrtrtt dcltnr
CVP nb!rt c arpod vrlrt [prnnl modny dmg.3
Cvp OprnbB r. upd.lrd mGlhtt !r nr hydology htqndott lt nlda ldad. Oxmb.. fiwgh lfty.

City of Folsom water transfer, water operations analysis

5n$m20

2

Page 265

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



Figure 11 - Transfer of 25 CFS from July 1 through October 8

May 2020,50% Exceedance Operations Forecast Summary

Folsom Storage With City of Folsom Transfer Banks Export with City of Folsom Transfer
Estlmated CVP Operations 50% Exceedance for May

Apr May .lun Jul Aug sep Od ,{d

ElchanSe in Delta Erpon + Sbte Sanls [xpoft - Fdsst -+- Eanks Erpon with lEnder

Delta Outflow with City of Folsom Transfer
Estimat€d CVP operations 5096 Exceedance for May

8&

76

60

5&

4@

3@

2m

3500

3&O

25m

200

lvx)

1fin

50

ll
lo

f
-

24

2l _
tg9

ls E

El2 o;
9E

o
6J

l

3@

2n

2m

150

1q)

50

1,ro@

1206

1@

8(m

5qD

400

2m

,I:
:
P

a
)
E

Ec:
r
a

€c

a

'r:
€

F

Ma. Apr MaV .iun iul A08 S€P Od ?lov

f:= Difiercnce in Slora8p iF Folgm StoragE - Fd@st -+- Folsm Storage with Tran{er

American River Flow with City of Folsom Transfer
Estimated CVP Operations 50% Exceedance for May

ts

Apr May Jun .lul Aug Sep Od llov

I:lChange in tlimbusrelea* +Nimbus Rel€as - Forsl -+Nimbus Releac with racbr

City of Folsom water transfer, water operations analysis

Apr tday

Ii=aCa..iage Water los

Jun ,ul Aug

+-Ntao(filow

5.p Oct l{d

-+ Delb Ortllo{ with T.aBbr

l)o

lmg
I

80P

60:
]

ro€

20

0o

2

Transfer (AF/mon):

Page 266

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



Figure 1"2 - Transfer of 25 CFS from July 1 through October 8

May 202O, 90% Exceedance Operations Forecast Summary

Folsom Storage With City of Folsom Transfer
Estimated CvP Operations 90% Exce€dance for May

Mar Apr May tun lul Aug S.P oct l{ov

E Diffgren@ in Sto.a8e -rF Fds Stdage - Fdeast + Fdm Sto.aSe with Trander

American River Flow with City of Folsom Transfer
Estimat€d CVP Operations 9096 Exceedance for May

Banks Export with City of Folsom Transfer

u
A$ May Jun Jul Aug sep Ort l{d

Elchange in Delta Expon -rFstate Eanks trpoft - FtrMst --- Sanb tupd with tBnCer

Delta Outflow with City of Folsom Transfer
Estimated CVP Operations 90% Exceedance for May

F

r
€

:
E

'E
:
F

8@

7@

60

56

40

30

2@

4@0

3SO0

3@0

2500

200

15@

100

56

180

1@

140

!20

16

80

60

40

20

0

,tr

21

21 ^
tg9

ls E
e

12 i5
3

9=
o

i
J

o

160@

1{m

1Xm

1m@

8m0

600

4@O

200

at
]
-e

c:
r

1t0

t20

lm3tl
80E

P

50E
3

ao€

20

Apr May Jun ,ul Aug S€P Oct llw

5;itiachange in Nimbus.eleae +tlimbus Releas . for@$ -'a-Nimbus Releae with traEfur

City of Folsom water transfer, water operations analysis

Apr May

l: carriage wate. lo$

iun Jul Aug

+futa Outflow

S€p Oct Nov

-.O- tblb Cutffq with Tre6fet

2

Transfer (AFlmon):

Page 267

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



Figure L3 - 5,000 AF Transfer in August with April through September Accumulation of Transfer Supply

May 2020,50% Exceedance Operations Forecast Summary

8&

70

6@

5@

400

3d)

2@

3500

3m

2W

2CtX)

1500

1m

5@

F

r
E

:

t

:
r

Folsom Storage With City of Folsom Transfer
Estimated CVP Operations 50% Exceedance for May

Mar Ap, May lun lul Aug Sep Od llov

E: Diffucnce in Storage + Fdff StdagF - ftrEast + Folem Storage with Transfet

American River Flow with City of Folsom Transfer
Estimated CVP Operations 50% Exceedance for May

Banks Export with City of Folsom Transfer
Estimated CVP Operations 50% Exceedance for May

Apr May Jun Jul Au8 S€p Od l{d

E=lchange in Hb €xport i> State Eanks tupon - fs@t -a- Bants €xport with tanier

Delta Outflow with City of Folsom Transfer
Estimated CVP Operations 50% Exceedance for May

Apr May Jun Jul Au8 sep O.t l{d

E:ia carriaSe water lo$ -.>- Delta Outflow -+- Nb Ortflow with Tracfer

1t

10

9

s9
t;
65
53
,1 6
rF

I
o

I

3m

29

2m

150

1@

50

1{)m

120@

10@

8{no

6{00

400

2@O

1{

120

lm3
.:1

808

3ro€
20

F{

t
G

:
p

t

:
p

a

9

8

I
C

sF_

ig
i5

-t]I
)

I

0

21 e

3
IS :

120
3

9=
o

E
l

)4

o0
Ap. May lun Jul Au8 Sep Od l{w

E-,=Changein Nimbusreleas -.a-t{imbus Releae - Fo,M* -a-tlimbus Releae with traFfut

City of Folsom water transfer, water operations analysis 2

qn[[,. I

Page 268

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



Figure 14 - 5,000 AF Transfer in August with April through September Accumulation of Transfer Supply

May 2020,90% Exceedance Operations Forecast summary

Folsom Storage With City of Folsom Transfer
Estimated CVP Operations 90% lxceedance for May

Banks Export with City of Folsom Transfer
Estimated CVP Operations 90% Exceedance for May

8{b

7m

60

5@

4@

30

26

4CrX)

3500

3mo

2W

2m0

15m

lmo

5@

t

=

t

:
p

ll
l0

1$

160

1/l0

120

1S

80

60

40

20

0
Mar Apr May Jutr Jul Au8 Sep Oct l{ov

ElDiffu rcme in Sto.a8e ;F Fds Stora8e - Fq*ast +Fdem Storage with Trander

American River Flow with City of Folsom Transfer
gstimated CVP Operations 909{ Exceedance for May

Apr May lun ,ul Aug Sep Oct l{ov

ElchanSe in Delta Expon +state Banls txpon - Fd6ast + Banks txpon with tEnsf er

Delta Outflow with City of Folsom Transfer
Estimated CVP Operations 90% Exceedance for May

F
;3
F

:
r
e

G

t
-9*t
il
&

9

"C

.1 O

,F
r9
I
o
I

]

)4

2l ^
rn 9-'3
15 :

tt6

9E
o

5!

1@@

140@

1209)

10@

8(m

6d)

4(!0

2mo

110

120

1m

80

50

40

20

0

3

t

0 o

Ap, May Jrn Jul Aug S€p Od Nd

5:Change in t{lmbus releas + t{imb6 neba* ' For$s -a-l{imbus Releas with tra6br

tun Jul Aug

-iFNta Ordlow

Sep Od lld

-a- Hta oitffow with Tra6fer

Apr May

E- carriage water 16

City of Folsom water transfer, water operations analysis 2

tr[[[

Page 269

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



Figure 1"5 - 5,000 AF Transfer in September with April through September Accumulation of Transfer Supply

May 2020,50% Exceedance Operations Forecast Summary

30

- 250

i,,
5 1s0

:
s1m
!iso

o

t1

10

9

ei,r
s!

rS
z;
I

o
I

80

70

5m

50

4@

3(r

26

1{m

120@

1m@

80)0

6@0

4@0

2q)0

t

I
:
t;

b

6:
o
!

t
E

5
:
F

Folsom Storage With City of Folsom Transfur
Estimated CVP Operations 50% Fxceedance for May

Mar Apr May Jud Jul Aug 9p O.t lw

E=oifferen@ in Storagp -GFohom SloraSB' Eqcast -+- Fdem Storagp with Transfer

American River Flow with City of Folsom Transfer
Estimated CVP Operations 50j6 Exceedance for May

Banks Export with City of Folsom Transfer
Estimated CVP Op€rations 5096 Excsdance for May

ts
q

t!

6
)

o

6

Apr May Jun ,ul Aug Sep Od l{d

E;-l change in Delia tlpod -+- sbte 0anks [xpoft - td@st <F Sanks hport with tansl€r

Delta Outflow with City of Folsom Transfer
Estimated CVP Operations 5096 Excedance for May

3500

3&O

2500

2m

15d)

1m0

1{)

trc

lm

80

60

40

20

o

)4

)1

15

00
Apr May .lun Jul Aug S€p Oct Nov

EChange in tlimbus releae + ilimbB R.ba* - For6as -ia-alimbus Rdeae with tracfe.

City of Folsom water transfer, water operations analysis

Apr llay

E Carria8€ Water b$

Jun Jul Aus

+oeha qrdbw

Sep Od l{ov

-O- o€lta oottlow with TraGfet

2

,n[[

Page 270

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



Figure 1"6 - 5,000 AF Transfer in September with April through September Accumu lation of Tra nsfer Supply

May 2020,90% Exceedance Operations Forecast Summary

8(D

7m

6fl)

5&

4m

3(D

2@

4U)

3500

3@O

2W

2m

1500

1m

5d)

r
€c:
!

?t
tI

E

:
t
e

Folsom Storage With City of Folsom Transfer
Estlmat€d CVP Operations 9096 Exceedance for May

Mar Apr M.y jun lul Aug Sep Oct l{@

Ea Diffuren@ in StoraEe -a- Fds StoraSB " Fqdatt +. Fohom stda8p *ith Tran{er

American River Flow with City of Folsom Transfer
Estimated CvP Operations 909{ Exceedance for May

Banks Export with City of Folsom Transfer
Estimated CVP Operations 90X Exceedance for May

6

ll
to
9

8

I

4

J

)
I
o

I

1&

1@

t&
120

1(D

80

60

40

20

0

74

2t^

18;

rz 6

,.3
o
Eol

0

1506

t40u)

120@

1m

8(m

6@

4@0

2m

C

]
.9

E

:
r

t
E

:
I

]

I

o
Apr MaV lun Jul Au8 Sep &t l{ov

5:::l Chan8e in Hta tipon +state Sanks Expon - Fqsast -a- Banks frpon whh tEnder

Delta Outflow with City of Folsom Transfer
Estimated CVP Operations 9096 Exceedance for May

l{

120

ADr May Jun Jul Aus Sep Od l{ov

:change in Nimbus relea* +Nimbus Rebas - Fo.@l -a-ilimbui Releae with traEbt

Apr May

l:: Car.iage Water lo$

Jun lul Aug

+Mta Ortflow

S€p oct N@

+ Oeita orrtfl @ with T.a6fu r

City of Folsom water transfer, water operations analysis

lmg
t1

80E

60E
]

{on

20

o

2

E [H[ t

i

Page 271

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



ATTACHMENT 3

Page 272

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



PURCHASE AGRBEMENT FOR WATER TRANSFER
BE,TWEEN SELLER AND BUYBRS

This Purchase AGREEMENT for Water Transfer ("AGREEMENT") is effective when

fully executed by and between the City of Folsom ("SELLER") and the public agencies listed in

Appendix A that execute this AGREEMENT ("BUYERS").

RECITALS

A. SELLER is a California entity formed and operating in accordance with California law,

and is empowered to sell water to BUYERS as provided for in this AGREEMENT.

B. BUYERS are public agencies that execute this AGREEMENT and are formed and

operating under the California Water Code and are empowered to purchase water from

SELLER as provided for in this AGREEMENT for delivery to their customers.

C. This AGREEMENT allows for BUYERS, willing purchasers, to acquire from SELLER,

a willing seller, water supplies that BUYERS have determined are needed for use in

BUYERS' service areas. The water supplies to be transferred under this AGREEMENT

will be a portion of the 27 ,000 acre-feet of water available to SELLER under its pre- 1914

water rights to divert water from the American River, identified in Contracts Nos. DA-

04-167-eng-330 (as assigned to SELLER),14-06-200-48164. (as assigned to SELLER)

and l4-06-200-5515A with the United States.

D, The water made available for transfer under this AGREEMENT will result from

GROLINDWATER SUBSTITUTION OT RESERVOIR REOPERATION.

OPERATIVB PROVISIONS

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing Recitals and the mutual

covenants and conditions contained herein, the PARTIES agree as follows:

1Page 273

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



L Recitals Incorporatecl.

The foregoing Recitals are incorporated herein by reference.

2. DeJinitions.

The following terms shall have the following meanings as used herein:

a. "AEROJET" means Aerojet-General Corporation.

b. "BUYERS" are the public water agencies listed in Appendix A that execute this

AGREEMENT.

c. "CEQA" means the California Environmental Quality Act.

d. "CONTRACT INTEREST RATE" is the interest rate paid monthly by the Local

Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), calculated from the date of the payment being

refunded and compounded monthly.

e. "CONTRACTORS" means the State Water Contractors.

f. "GROUNDWATER SUBSTITUTION" is American River water made available

by pumping and use of remediated groundwater by Aerojet-General Corporation

to meet its non-potable industrial uses pursuant to a June 29,2007 Agreement

Between The City Of Folsom And Aerojet-General Corporation With Respect To

Water Service and in lieu of American River supplies previously delivered for

those purposes by SELLER.

g. "PARTIES" are the BUYERS and SELLER. DWR, while not a PARTY, does

have authority to consent to this AGREEMENT.

h. "POINT OF DELIVERY" means the point at which water is released from

Folsom Dam.

i. "RESERVOIR REOPERATION" means the purposeful release of water subject

to the SELLER's pre-1914 water rights and made available by SELLER's

2Page 274

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



irnplementation of its System Optimization Water Project, which was SELLER's

program of identifliing and correcting leaks and losses within its municipal water

distribution system, that, as a practical matter, has been present in Folsom

Reservoir as a result of SELLER's curently reduced demand under those rights.

j. "SWC AGREEMENT" means the State Water Contractors 2020 Dry Year Water

Transfer Agreement by and between the BUYERS and CONTRACTORS.

k. "IJSBR" means the United States Bureau of Reclamation.

3. Term.

This AGREEMENT will be effective between the SELLER and any BUYERS listed above once

they have both executed this AGREEMENT. This AGREEMENT will be in effect until

December 37,2020, or such later date when all obligations under it are satisfied. No right of

renewal or right to enter into extensions of this AGREEMENT or to enter into any new water

transfer agreement is expressly granted hereunder, nor may such a right be implied from the

execution of this AGREEMENT.

4. Agreement to Transfer Water.

a. The BUYERS have entered into a SWC AGREEMENT. In the SWC

AGREEMENT, the BUYERS authorized the CONTRACTORS to handle all

payments and disbursements described in this AGREEMENT on the BUYERS'

behalf. The SWC AGREEMENT requires BUYERS to deposit with the

CONTRACTORS funds necessary to make the payments for water and the

BUYERS' share of regulatory costs and authorizes the CONTRACTORS to make

all such payments to SELLER lequired by this AGREEMENT. SELLER shall

send all notices or invoices required by this AGREEMENT to the

CONTRACTORS with a copy to BUYERS, and the CONTRACTORS shall send

a
J

Page 275

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



all notices and payrnents to SELLER under this AGREEMENT on behalf of the

BUYERS. The CONTRACTORS shall make all payments to SELLER required

in accordance with this AGREEMENT on the BUYERS' behalf. Payment shall

be made to SELLER in accordance with SELLER's instructions. Nothing in this

Section 4(a) shall affect or limit the BUYERS' duties and obligations under this

AGREEMENT, and they remain jointly and severally obligated to make the

subject payments to SELLER, notwithstanding performance or non-performance

on the part of the CONTRACTORS.

b. SELLER agrees to sell to BUYERS up to 5,000 acre-feet, at a price of $350.00 for

each acre-foot, of the water supply derived from GROTINDWATER

SUBSTITUTION andlor for RESERVOIR REOPERATION for delivery in2020

for each-acre foot SELLER makes available to BUYERS at the POINT OF

DELIVERY. Neither this section, nor any other provision in this AGREEMENT,

shall establish a precedent or be considered binding on the PARTIES regarding the

terms and conditions of agreements governing possible future transfers.

c. For GROUNDWATER SUBSTITUTION, the PARTIES acknowledge that the

associated groundwater pumping has occurred for many years pursuant to

regulatory mandates of, among other agencies, the United States Environmental

Protection Agency and that GROI-INDWATER SUBSTITUTION water subject to

SELLER's water rights has been present in Folsom Reservoir on an on-going

basis since 2016. Nothing in this AGREEMENT constitutes an admission by

SELLER for purposes of future transfers that the regulatory requirements imposed

on this water transfer are required under applicable law.

4Page 276

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



d. In the event SELLER fails to make available the water quantity purchased at the

POINT OF DELIVERY, SELLER will first provide appropriate adjustments to

the final invoice to reflect any differences in the volume of water requested by

BUYERS and ultimately delivered by SELLERS. If due to unforeseen

circumstances the final invoice reflects an amount due to BUYERS, SELLER will

promptly refund to BUYERS any payments made for purchased water not

provided by SELLER. Any refunds shall accrue interest at the CONTRACT

INTEREST RATE.

5. Paymentsfor GROUNDWATER SUBSTITUTION and RESERVOIR

RE OPERATI ON Transfer lYater.

a. SELLER may invoice BUYERS for 50o/o of the final quantities SELLER offers on

or before June 30, 2020, provided DWR has approved conveyance of the transfer

water and BUYERS have called the water. If DWR approval occurs after June

30,2020, SELLER may invoice BUYERS for 50Yo of the final quantities at that

time, provided BUYERS have called the water. On or after July 31,2020,

SELLER may invoice BUYERS for an additional 40Yo of the final water quantity

offered by SELLER under this AGREEMENT. After DWR has confirmed the

final water quantity delivered by SELLER at the POINT OF DELIVERY,

SELLER may invoice BUYERS for the final balance owed. BUYERS shall pay

all invoices under this section within thirty (30) days of receipt. Payments not

made within thirty (30) days under this section shall accrue interest at the

CONTRACT INTEREST RATE, compounded monthly.

6. Woter To Be Tronsferred; Delivery Conditions; POINT OF DELIVERY.

5
Page 277

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



fl. On or before 5:00 p.m. on June 15,2020, in their sole discretion, BUYERS shall

notify SELLER whether they want to buy the total amount of water offered by

SELLER on July 1,2020. Failure by BUYERS to notiff SELLER on or before

5:00 p.m. on June 15,2020 shall be deemed an election by BUYERS to take all

water offered by SELLER on July 1,2020. Except as provided for in Sections

6(b) and 6(b), once BUYERS have notified SELLER of their intent to buy all

water made available by SELLER (or that election has been otherwise deemed to

occur), BUYERS will have a "take or pay" obligation for the total amount of

water offered by SELLER at the POINT OF DELIVERY and that DWR will

convey to BUYERS.

b. For water made available by RESERVOIR REOPERATION:

i. BUYERS agree to purchase the amount of RESERVOIR REOPERATION

water specified by SELLER in Section 6(a) that DWR will convey to

BUYERS, and is made available by SELLER at the POINT OF

DELIVERY.

ii. Until SELLER provides the notification set forth in Section 6(a), SELLER

may, in its sole discretion, reduce in whole or in part the amount of water

being offered from RESERVOIR REOPERATION it wishes to make

available to BUYERS.

iii. If regulatory restrictions, including increased carriage losses, or State

Water Project (SWP) infrastructure availability limit BUYERS' ability to

divert and use the RESERVOIR REOPERATION water under this

AGREEMENT, or the BUYERS choose to terminate RESERVOIR

REOPERATION transfels, BUYERS shall provide seventy-two (72) hour

6Page 278

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



notice and suspend or terminate RESERVOIR REOPERATION transfers.

Any water released prior to the effective date of the suspension or

termination will be considered transferred to BUYERS.

iv. In the event SELLER's supply is reduced or curtailed, SELLER will meet

and confer with BUYERS, but SELLER will reserve the right in its sole and

absolute discretion to terminate this AGREEMENT. However, the

obligations set forth in Section 7 will still apply.

c. For water made available by GROUNDWATER SUBSTITUTION:

i. BUYERS agree to purchase the amount of GROUNDWATER

SUBSTITUTION water specified by SELLER in Section 6(a) that is

determined to be transferable at the POINT OF DELIVERY by DWR,

subject to Section 6(c)(iv), and is made available by SELLER at the

POINT OF DELIVERY identified in Section 6(d).

ii. Until SELLER provides the notification set forth in Section 6(a), SELLER

may, in its sole discretion, reduce in whole or in part the water quantity

being offered from GROTINDWATER SUBSTITUTION it wishes to

make available to BUYERS. Subject to Section 6(c)(iv), SELLER will

use reasonable efforts to provide the GROTINDWATER SUBSTITUTION

water during the transfer period. GROLTNDWATER SUBSTITUTION

amounts are subject to change based on the final starl date for the water

transfer, regulatory approvals and requirements, and any monitoring and

mitigation obligations whicli may sllspend or reduce pumping.

iii. Other than the 5,000 acre-feet that SELLER will transfer to BUYERS, this

AGREEMENT places no requirement or restriction on SELLER's

7Page 279

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



diversions of surface water under its water rights and contracts within

SELLER's boundary during the transfer period. However, if regulatory

restrictions, including increased carriage losses, or State Water Project

(SWP) infrastructure availability limit BUYERS' ability to divert and use

the GROUNDWATER SUBSTITUTION water under this

AGREEMENT, or the BUYERS choose to terminate GROLINDWATER

SUBSTITUTION transfers, BUYERS shall provide seventy-two (72) hour

notice of the need for SELLER to either suspend or terminate delivery of

GROUNDWATER SUBSTITUTION water and SELLER shall use its

reasonable best efforts to have USBR cease releasing that water from

Folsom Dam. BUYERS may request SELLER to resume delivery of

GROUNDWATER SUBSTITUTION water under this AGREEMENT,

and SELLER will use its reasonable best efforts to have USBR resume

release of that water no later than forty-eight (48) hours after BUYERS'

notice.

iv. SELLER shall monitor and prepare and submit reports as required by

DWR to document pumping by AEROJET that makes GROUNDWATER

SUBSTITUTION available. In the event that groundwater necessary to

provide the water requested pursuant to Section 6(a) is not pumped, for

which BUYERS have contracted and paid for, SELLER will promptly

refund to BUYERS any payments made in accordance with this

AGREEMENT for each acre-foot not produced. Any refunds shall include

interest at the CONTRACT INTEREST RATE.

8
Page 280

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



d. SELLER shall make transfer water subiect to this AGREEMENT available at the

POINT OF DELIVERY, and SELLER shall not schedule the delivery to

BUYERS of water to be transferred under this AGREEMENT. Except to the

extent provided for in Section 6, BUYERS shall be responsible for and shall bear

all risks for all conveyance and other losses related to the inability of BUYERS or

DWR to convey the water from the POINT OF DELIVERY to BUYERS, and for

any carriage water losses assessed against BUYERS by USBR or DWR.

BUYERS understand and acknowledge that the transfer of water will occur within

the current and future regulatory parameters for the SWP, including all Biological

Opinion requirements under the federal and state endangered species acts and any

additional restrictions being implemented as a result of interim operational

remedies imposed by a state or federal coutt. SELLER shall in no way be

responsible for BUYERS' inability, infeasibility, frustration of purpose, or

increased expenses resulting from transferring or transporting the water after the

POINT OF DELIVERY. To the extent provided in Section 6(a), BUYERS'

obligations under this AGREEMENT shall remain the same notwithstanding

difficulty, increased costs, impossibility, or inability to transport the water to

BUYERS' place of use except as plovided in this AGREEMENT.

e. The 5,000 acre-feet of water made available to BUYERS by GROTINDWATER

SUBSTITUTION or RESERVOIR REOPERATION pursuant to this

AGREEMENT shall be for the exclusive use of the BUYERS, and SELLER shall

take no actions, except those permitted by this AGREEMENT, that would reduce

the water transferled under this AGREEMENT.

7. Obtaining Approvals; Environmental Compliunce; snd Reluted Costs.

9Page 281

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



a. Approvals and Documentation. SELLER will be responsible for preparing any

necessary CEQA and SWRCB documentation.

For RESERVOIR REOPERATION, SELLER will be responsible for

preparing any necessary CEQA or NEPA documentation, and acquiring

any Warren Act Contract or other contract or agreement with USBR as

determined necessary.

b. SELLER is required to obtain USBR's (where applicable) and DWR's consent to

the water transfer provided for under this AGREEMENT. BUYERS and

SELLER will cooperate with and assist each other as necessary in obtaining

approval and agreement from USBR and/or DWR.

c. BUYERS will reimburse SELLER's reasonable and documented out-of-pocket

administrative expenses, including but not limited to legal, environmental, and

engineering consultants' fees and expenses incurred by SELLER for developing

and administering mitigation and monitoring programs for GROUNDWATER

SUBSTITUTION, and obtaining any necessary approvals supporting this

AGREEMENT, regardless of whether water is transferred, unless SELLER fails

to provide any water after the BUYERS provide notification to purchase water as

set forth in Section 6.a). Subject to the foregoing, SELLER shall be entitled to

this reimbursement for such costs incurred after February 1,2020, and upon the

BUYERS and SELLERS executing this AGREEMENT. Except as set forth in

Section 7(d), the maximum amount that a SELLER will be reimbursed for its out-

of-pocket administrative expenses is $50,000 (for actual net delivelies gr"eater than

10,000 acre-feet); $30,000 (for actual net deliveries between 9,999 acre-feet and

5,000 acre-feet); and $20,000 (for actual net deliveries between 4,999 acre-feet

10Page 282

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



and 1,000 acre-feet). Water quantity offered by the SELLER but declined per

Section 6(c)(iv) will be counted towards the aforementioned administration

reimbursement quantification tiers. SELLER may invoice BUYERS one time for

such expenses after May 30, 2020. BUYERS shall pay such invoices within thirty

(30) days of BUYERS' receipt of the invoice. SELLER shall invoice BUYERS

for all costs under this section by no later than December 3 | , 2020 . If SELLER

fails to invoice by December 31, 2020, BUYERS are not obligated to pay the

costs set forth in this Section 7(c).

d. In the event of an administrative challenge andlor litigation related to the

proposed 2020 water transfer, SELLER and BUYERS will promptly meet and

confer to perform a risk assessment of the litigation/challenge, and cooperate in

good faith to determine whether to terminate the AGREEMENT due to the

litigation/challenge. If litigation andlor an administrative challenge is pending as

of June 30,2020, either PARTY may elect to terminate the AGREEMENT due to

any such litigatiorVchallenge. If either PARTY so elects to terminate the

AGREEMENT, BUYERS shall still be obligated to pay SELLER's reasonable

and documented out-of-pocket administrative expenses, and for all of the water

transferred to BUYERS prior to such termination. If litigation and/or an

administrative challenge is initiated after June 30, 2020, SELLER and BUYERS

will promptly meet and confer to perform a risk assessment of the

litigation/challenge, but termination of this AGREEMENT may only occur

through agreement of both BUYERS and SELLER or at the option of SELLER in

its sole discretion. SELLER will take all necessaly and appropriate actions to

defend the transfer on behalf of BUYERS and SELLER. Except as set forth in

1l
Page 283

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



Section 7(dxii), BUYERS will reimburse 100% of SELLER's actual out-of-

pocket expenses incurred in defending the proposed 2020 water transfer.

BUYERS shall cooperate in defending the litigation as requested by SELLER.

SELLER shall invoice BUYERS for expenses under this section on a monthly

basis (supported by invoices) beginning the month following initiation of the

proceeding or challenge, and BUYERS shall pay such invoices within thirty (30)

days of BUYERS' receipt of each invoice. However, BUYERS may still dispute

such invoices after paying.

i. Subject to Section 7(dxii), BUYERS shall bear their own costs of any

litigation and/or administrative challenge and shall pay any remedial

award associated therewith, whether levied against BUYERS or SELLER.

ii. As to claims that solely challenge SELLER's conduct within SELLER's

service area or above the POINT OF DELIVERY, and excepting claims

governed by Section 7(d), including CEQA, Endangered Species Act, or

administrative challenges to the entire transfer program, SELLER shall

have primary responsibility for defending such claims on behalf of both

SELLER and BUYERS, and BUYERS shall participate in defending

against such claims to the extent it deems necessary or appropriate, in

BUYERS' sole discretion. BUYERS shall bear their own fees and costs

of defending against such claims. Except as plovided in Section 7(c),

SELLER shall bear its own fees and costs of defending against such

claims and shall pay any monetary awards associated thelewith.

12
Page 284

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



e. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in Sections 7(c) and (d), BUYERS shall

not be required to reimburse SELLER for the time spent by its directors, officers,

or employees relating to this transfer.

f SELLER is required to obtain DWR's agreement that the water made available by

SELLER at the POINT OF DELIVERY is transferable to BUYERS. BUYERS

are required to obtain DWR's agreement to divert the quantity of water calculated

pursuant to Section 4(b), less carriage and any other water losses assessed by

DWR, at the H.O. Banks Pumping Plant for delivery to BUYERS, consistent with

BUYERS' SWP water supply contract. SELLER will cooperate with and assist

BUYERS as requested to obtain DWR's agreement, but SELLER shall not act as

a guarantor of such an agreement. BUYERS and SELLER acknowledge that

DWR's approval will occur subsequent to executing this AGREEMENT. If

DWR's agreement is not obtained, BUYERS and SELLER will confer to

determine whether they will mutually agree to continue this AGREEMENT, with

or without appropriate amendments.

g. SELLER shall obtain any and all other necessary approvals required to effectuate

the water transfer under this AGREEMENT, except that BUYERS shall obtain all

authorizations for the conveyance of the transfer water from the POINT OF

DELIVERY to BUYERS' places of use.

8. Lluter Rights Not Affected.

No transfer of water pursuant to this AGREEMENT shall confer any appropriative, public trust,

or other right to water on any person or entity. Nothing in this AGREEMENT shall act as a

forfeiture, diminution, or impairment of any dghts of SELLER to its full deliveries of water after

the expiration of the AGREEMENT, and shall in no way prejudice any of SELLER's rights

13
Page 285

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



thereto. Consistent with the provisions of California Water Code Sections 109, 47 5, 1071, 1244,

and 11961, the PARTIES agree that no transfers under this AGREEMENT, nor the

AGREEMENT itself, is evidence of the availability of surplus water beyond the term of the

AGREEMENT, nor evidence of lack of beneficial use of the water involved in the transfer, and

they shall not contend otherwise. The only rights granted to the PARTIES as a result of this

AGREEMENT are those expressly set forth herein.

9. General Indemnity.

Subject to the provisions ofSection 7(d) regarding allocation oflitigation expenses, each

PARTY (that is, SELLER on the one hand, and BUYERS on the other hand) agrees to protect,

defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the other PARTY and its/their directors, officers, agents,

servants, employees, and consultants, in addition to the CONTRACTORS' directors and

employees from and against any and all losses, claims, liens, demands, and causes of action of

every kind and character, without limitation by enumeration, occurring or in any way incident to,

connected with, or arising directly or indirectly out of the performance or non-performance by

the indemnifuing PARTY hereunder.

10. Construction and Interpretution.

It is agreed and acknowledged by the PARTIES that this AGREEMENT has been arrived at

through negotiation, and that each PARTY has had a full and fair opporlunity to revise the terms

of this AGREEMENT. Consequently, the normal rule of construction that any ambiguities are to

be resolved against the drafting party shall not apply in construing or interpreting this

AGREEMENT.

11. Obligations Prior to Termination.

14
Page 286

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



Notwithstanding any other provision hereof, the obligations of the PARTIES incurred pursuant

to this AGREEMENT prior to the termination of this AGREEMENT, including without

limitation the obligations to make refunds as required, shall survive the termination.

12. Severability.

The invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability of any provision of this AGREEMENT shall not

render the other provisions unenforceable, invalid, or illegal.

13. Governing Law.

This AGREEMENT shall be interpreted and enforced pursuant to the laws of the State of

California.

14. ModiJications.

This AGREEMENT can only be modified in writing and if executed by both PARTIES.

15. Entire Agreement.

This AGREEMENT contains the entire understanding of the PARTIES related to their interests,

obligations, and rights in connection with the subject matter set forth herein. All prior

communications, negotiations, stipulations, and understandings, whether oral or written, are of

no force or effect, and are superseded, except as referenced herein.

16. No Third Party BeneJiciary.

The PARTIES to this AGREEMENT do not intend to create any third party beneficiaries to this

AGREEMENT, and expressly deny the creation of any third party beneficiary rights hereunder

toward any person or entity.

17. Time.

Time is of the essence in the performance of each and every term of this AGREEMENT.

18. Waiver.

15
Page 287

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



The waiver or failure to declare a breach as a result of the violation of any term of this

AGREEMENT shall not constitute a waiver of that term or condition and shall not provide the

basis for a claim of estoppel, forgiveness or waiver by any PARTY to that term or condition.

19. Attorneys' Fees.

If it shall be necessary for any PARTY hereto to commence legal action or arbitration to enforce

the terms and provisions of this AGREEMENT, each PARTY shall be responsible for its own

attorneys' fees, expenses, and costs incurred therein.

20, Captions.

The section and subsection captions in this AGREEMENT are for convenience only and shall

not be used in construing the AGREEMENT.

2 1. Additional Documents.

Each PARTY agrees to make, execute, and deliver any and all documents and to join in any

application or other action reasonably required to implement this AGREEMENT.

22. Notice.

Any and all communications andlor notices in connection with this AGREEMENT shall be

emailed, or either hand-delivered or sent by United States first class mail, postage prepaid, and

addressed as follows:

To: City of Folsom

Marcus Yasutake
Environmental and Water Resources Director
City of Folsom
Folsom, CA 95630
myasutake@folsom. ca.us

To: State Water Contractors

Eric Chapman
1121L Street, Suite 1050

Sacramento, CA 958 1 4-3944
echapman@swc.org

t6
Page 288

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



To: BUYERS

See Appendix A attached hereto for list of names and addresses of BUYERS. The

PARTIES may change the foregoing addresses by providing written notice in compliance with

this section.

23. BUYERS'Liability.

BUYERS, and each of them, shall be jointly and severally liable for complying with the

obligations, liabilities, terms, and conditions of this AGREEMENT, including, without

limitation, the obligations set forth in Sections 5 and7.

24. Counterparts ; Facsimile Execution.

This AGREEMENT may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original,

but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument. The signature page of any

counterpart may be detached therefrom without impairing the legal effect of the signature(s)

thereon, provided such signature page is attached to any other counterpart identical thereto

except for having an additional signature page executed by any other PARTY. Each PARTY

agrees that each other PARTY may rely upon the facsimile signature of any PARTY on this

AGREEMENT as constituting a duly authorized, inevocable, actual, current delivery of this

AGREEMENT as fully as if this AGREEMENT contained the original ink signature of the

PARTY supplying a facsimile signature.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the PARTIES hereto have executed this AGREEMENT as of

the day and year first written above.

11Page 289

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



CITY OF FOLSOM, A Municipal Corporation

Approved as to form:

Elaine Andersen, City Manager

Attest:

Steven Wang, City Attorney

Approved as to content:

Christa Freemantle, City Clerk

DUDLEY RIDGE WATER DISTRICT

Title:

KERN COUNTY WATER AGENCY

By

Title

COUNTY OF KINGS

By

By

Title:

PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT

By

Title:

ALAMEDA COUNTY WATER AGENCY

By

Title:

TULARE LAKE BASIN WATER STORAGE DISTRICT

Marcus Yasutake
Environmental & Water Resources
Director

Dated

Dated:

Dated:

Dated

Dated

Title:

18

Dated

Page 290

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



Appendix A

BUYER LIST
Buyerst Addresses

To: Dudley Ridge Water District

Rick Besecker
Provost & Pritchard Engineering Group, Inc.
286 W. Cromwell Avenue
Fresno, CA 93711-6162
rbesecker@ppeng.com

To: Kern County Water Agency

Lauren Bauer
P. O. Box 58

Bakersfield, CA 93302
lbauer@kcwa.com

To: County of Kings

To: Tulare Lake Basin Water Storage District

Jacob Westra

To: Palmdale Water District

Peter Thompson

To: Alameda County Water Agency

Thomas Nieser

Page 291

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



ATTACHMENT 4

Page 292

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



Recording Requested By And
When Recorded Mail To:

City of Folsom
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA 95630
Attn: City Clerk

Official Document, exempt from Recording
Fees pursuant to Gov't Code S$ 6103 & 21383 (This Space for Recorder's Use Only)

AGREEMENT CONCERNING 2O2O WATER TRANSFER
BETWEEN THE CITY OF FOLSOM AND CERTAIN

LANDO\.ryNERS IN THE FOLSOM PLAN AREA

This agreement is made effective June 
-, 

2020 among the City of Folsom, a charter
city (the "City"), and the landowners listed in the signature blocks to this Agreement as
"Participating Landowners" (each a "Participating Landowner," and collectively the
"Participating Landowners"). For purposes of this Agreement, the City and the
Participating Landowners are individually called a "Party" and collectively, the "Parties."

RECITALS

This Agreement is based on the following recitals, on which the Parties agree:

A. Effective December lI, 2012, the Parties executed a Water Supply And
Facilities Financing Plan And Agreement Between The City Of Folsom And Certain
Landowners In The Folsom Plan Area (the "Water Supply Agreement").

B. The Water Supply Agreement's section 2 states: "The City will make up to
5,600 acre-feet of FPA Water Supply available to the Participating Landowners by: (a)

shifting from the East Area to the FPA the 5,000 acre-feet of pre-1914 water rights water
supplies assigned to the City under the GSWC Agreement; and (b) making available 600
acre-feet of water made available by the Water Systems Optimization Review Program.
The City hereby represents that the City has the right to assign the use of the 5,000 acre-
feet of pre- 1914 water rights water under the GSWC Agreement from the East Area to the
FPA."

C. The Water Supply Agreement's section 3(d) states, in relevant part: "If the
City selis or leases any portion of the surplus water supply under the GSWC Agreement,
the City will credit the revenues received from such sales or leases against the amount
owing from the Participating Landowners for the costs of such water supplies."

D. Due to the fact that the Folsom Plan Area ("FPA") will build out over many
years, the full FPA Water Supply currently is not being used within the FPA and the
Participating Landowners requested that the City seek to transfer up to 5,000 acre-feet of
the FPA Water Supply rn 2020 to defray the Participating Landowners' financial
obligations under the Water Supply Agreement. The City accordingly is seeking to
implement such a water transfer in 2020.

0G-09 ITPASP Adderdum No.2 LalrlosnelAg:eenreDl Attachment 4 06-09-20 FINAL

-1- 5/28/2020 ,l:46 PN4Page 293

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



E. The City is a party to an Agreement Between The City Of Folsom And
Aerojet-General Corporation With Respect To Water Service, dated as of June 29, 2007 (the
"2007 Aerojet Agreement"). Under the 2007 Aerojet Agreement, Aerojet-General
Corporation ("Aerojet") agreed to accept remediated groundwater pumped from, and treated
on, Aerojet's property as a water supply to substitute for a raw-water supply of 5,000,000
gallons per day that the City previously provided Aerojet from the American River. The
City's deliveries of raw American River water reached a maximum of 3,897 acre-feet in
2008. Pursuant to the 2007 Aercjet Agreement, the City ended delivery of raw American
River to Aerojet in October 2016, so the American River water supplies available to the City
increased significantly at that time. This increment of American River water supplies
made available to the City as a result of the 2007 Aerojet Agreement is referenced in this
Agreement as the "Aerojet Water."

F. In seeking to implement the 202O water transfer requested by the
Participating Landowners, the City has determined that inclusion of Aerojet Water as part
of the water to be transferred is iikely to facilitate the transfer's implementation.

G. The City and the Participating Landowners mutually desire to facilitate a

2020 water transfer by the City and therefore seek to clarify the relationship of the Aerojet
Water to the Water Supply Agreement generally and the FPA Water Supply specifically.

THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows

1. Aerojet Water Not Part Of FPA Water Supply. The City's inclusion of
some or all of the Aerojet Water available to the City in 2020 tn the water the City is
seeking to transfer in 2020 will not result in any portion of the Aerojet Water being
included in the FPA Water Supply under the Water Supply Agreement. tr'ollowing the
completion of any 2020 water transfer that includes any portion of the Aerojet Water, the
City shail retain full and sole discretion to determine how the Aerojet Water, and any part
of it, may be used.

2. Aerojet Water Not Required For FPA Development. The Parties
mutually represent and understand that the inclusion of the Aerojet Water in the water
that the City is seeking to transfer in 2020 does not indicate that any portion of the Aerojet
Water is necessary for the development of the FPA under the City's Measure W or any
other applicable law, regulation or policy.

3. No Arnendment Of Water Supply Agreernent. This Agreement does not
amend or modify the Parties' rights and obligations under the Water Supply Agreement,
but instead only clarifies the relationship of the City's potential 2020 transfer of Aerojet
Water to the FPA, the FPA Water Supply and the Water Supply Agreement. In particular,
under the Water Supply Agreement's Section 19(c), each Participating Landowner's rights
and obligations under the Water Supply Agreement terminate as to completed commercial
developments or residentiai units upon issuance of a final inspection or certificate of
occupancy that permits the sale of one or more residential units or commercial units to the
general public or connection of the residential unit(s) or comrnercial building(s) to the City's
water supply systern (such an issuance is referenced in this Agreement as a "Final
Issuance"). Consistent with the Water Supply Agreement, upon a Final Issuance, this
Agreernent will terminate as to the relevant residential or cornrnercial unit(s) and the

0G-09 rPASP Atldr:nrlunr No. 2 l.andorurer r\grceDreDl .\ttachnrcnl 4 06-09-20 lilN.\I,
-2- 5/28/2020 l:.16 PI\i

Page 294

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



owners and occupants of those units will have the rights and obiigations of customers of the
City's water system within the FPA.

4. Incorporation Of Defined Terms. This Agreement incorporates terms
defined in the Water Supply Agreement and the Water Suppiy Agreement's definitions of
those terms controls their definition in this Agreement.

5. Survival Of Agreement. The Parties' rights and obligations under this
Agreement shall survive the completion of any water transfer by the City in 2020.

6. Successors And Assigns. The conditions and covenants set forth in this
Agreement and incorporated herein will run with the Participating Landowner Properties
against which this Agreement is recorded, and the benefits and burdens shall bind and
inure to the benefit of the Parties. The legal descriptions of the Participating Landowner
Properties are contained in the attached Exhibit A. The Parties acknowledge that the legai
descriptions attached as Exhibit A may not include all parcels controlled by the
Participating Landowners as of the date of this Agreement's execution, but this Agreement
is intended to, and does, bind the Participating Landowners as to each parcel within the
tr'PA owned and controlled by the Participating Landowners until the Water Supply
Agreement terminates as to each of those parcels pursuant to the terms of this Section 6,

and under the Water Supply Agreement's Section 19(c). The Parties further acknowledge
that the covenants herein are made by the Participating Landowners pursuant to a
common plan for the financing of the FPA Water Supply and that these covenants shall
serve as equitable servitudes that benefit and are binding on the Participating Landowner
Properties and all subsequent purchasers and encumbrancers thereof until terminated
pursuant to the terms of this Section 6 and Section 19(c) of the Water Supply Agreement.

7, Entire Agreernent. Other than as to the incorporation of defined terms
from the Water Supply Agreement, this Agreement represents the sole, final, complete,
exclusive and integrated expression and statement of the terms of agreement among the
Parties concerning the subject matter of this Agreement. No modification of this
Agreement wiil be effective unless and until such modification is evidenced by a writing
signed by the Parties. There are no written or oral agreements, conditions, representations,
warranties or promises with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement except those
contained in or referred to in this document.

8. Governing Law and Venue. This Agreement will be governed by and
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California. The state superior or
federal district court located in Sacramento County will be the venue for any litigation
concerning the enforcement or construction of this Agreement.

9. Interpretation. The City and each of the Participating Landowners have
had a full and fair opportunity to consult with their respective legal counsel in the
negotiation and execution of this Agreement. tr'or purposes of interpretation of this
Agreement, no Party will be deemed to have been its drafter.

10. Notices. Any notice, demand, or request made in connection with this
Agreement will be in writing and will be deemed to have been duiy given on the date of
service, if: (a) served personally on the Party to whom notice is to be given; (b) sent by

06-09 FPI\SP Addcudunr No. 2 l,atrrlosuel Agre'emcnl i\llachDrenl 'l 06-09-20 FINAI-
a-r)- 5/28l2020 4:1G PN'l

Page 295

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



electronic mai1, and the recipient acknowledges receipt to the sender; or (c) on the third day
after mailing, if mailed to the Party to whom notice is to be given by first-ciass United
States mail, postage-prepaid and properly addressed to the following designated
representatives of the City and the Participating Landowners.

If to the City

Elaine Andersen, City Manager
City of Folsom
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA 95630
Telephone: (916-461-6010
E-mail: eandersen@folsom.ca.us

If to the Participating Landowners:

See list of designated representatives and addresses for notice to each Participating
Landowner stated with each of their signature blocks.

Any Party may change its designated representative or contact information for receipt of
notice upon delivery of a written notice of such changes to the other Parties in accordance
with this section. No notice sent by the City to a Participating Landowner will be deemed
invalid or be construed as a waiver of any right of the City under this Agreement if: (a) a
change in that Participating Landowner's designated representative or contact information
is received by the City after it has sent a notice under this section; (b) such Participating
Landowner provides incorrect contact information to the City and fails to correct any such
error before the City sends notice under this section; or (c) regardless of any defect in notice
by the City, the Participating Landowner obtains or receives actual notice of any
information or change contained in such defective notice.

11. Reasonable Cooperation. The Parties will reasonably cooperate with each
other, including the execution of all necessary documents required to perform their
respective obligations under this Agreement and to carry out the purpose and intent of this
Agreement.

12. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts and
facsimile or PDF signatures, each of which will be deemed an original, and all of which
taken together will constitute one and the sarne Agreernent.

13. Attorneys' Fees. If any Party initiates legal, adrninistrative or other
proceedings in any way related to this Agreement and the respective rights and duties
thereunder of the Parties, then the prevailing party in any such proceeding (including an
arbitration proceeding, if agreed to by the Parties) will be entitled to recover its attorneys'
fees actually incurred and other costs (including expert and consultant fees and expenses,
and costs and expenses of litigation) recoverable in such proceeding from the other Party in
addition to any other relief that may be awarded. If the City Attorney and any deputy or
assistant City Attorneys participate in any such proceedings, their fees will be calculated at
the prevailing rate for private counsel.

06-09 FPASP Addcndunr No. 2 l,audotrrer';\greeDrent ;\ltachmcDt ,l 06-09-20 FlNr\L
-4- 5/28/2020 4:46 PN{Page 296

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



The foregoing is hereby agreed to by the Parties as of the date first written above

CITY OF FOLSOM:
Approved as to form:

Elaine Andersen, City Manager

Attest:

Steven Wang, City Attorney

Christa Freemantle, City Clerk

[Signatures of Participating Landowners
On Following Pagesl

06-09 FPASP Adrlendum No. 2 Landorurer AgIeeDrerrl. Attachmerl 4-06-09-20 fINAL
-5- 512812020 4;4G PMPage 297

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



PARTI CI PATING LANDOWNERS:
(Insert signature blocks)

06-09 FP;\SP Addeutltur No. 2 l,anclo\rrer Agreeurenl At I flchlrrelrl 4--06-09-20 FINAL
-6- 512812020 4:.1$ PNI

Page 298

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



EXHIBIT A

Legal Description of Participating Landowner Properties

06-09 FI'ASP Addenclunr No. 2 Lanrlorurer Agleenrent Attachirent 4 06-09-20 FlNAl,
-7- l't28l2020 .l:46 Pl,l

Page 299

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



ATTACHMENT 5

Page 300

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



City Council 
New Business – Resolution No. 10465
June 9, 2020 Page 301

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



Background

• Senate Bill x7-7

• System Optimization Review (SOR) Program

• Addendum No. 1 – 12/11/2012

• Resolution No. 9097 – 12/11/2012

• Addendum No. 2

• Proposed Transfer

2Page 302

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



Senate Bill x7-7

• Water Conservation Act of 2009

• 20% statewide water use reduction by 2020

– City Baseline = 440 gallons per capita per day (GPCD)

– City interim target (2015) = 396 GPCD

– City 2020 target = 352 GPCD

– City actual 2019 number = 246 GPCD

• Conserved water is subject to California Water Code 
Section 1011

– Retain right to conserved water

– Approximately 10,000 AF less in diversions in 2019 
compared to 2007 3Page 303

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



System Optimization Review (SOR)

• System improvements and other conservation measures 
to reduce water usage

• City list of actions

– Leak and loss detection and repairs

– Water metering

– Implementing the California Model Water Efficient 
Landscape Ordinance (MWELO)

– Implementing the California Green Building Code 
Standards (Cal Green)

– Implementing Best Management Practices (BMPs) of 
the California Water Efficiency Partnership

4Page 304

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



Addendum No.1 

• Addendum to the Environmental Impact Report for the 

Folsom South of U.S. 50 Specific Plan Project

• Analyzed an alternative water supply for the Folsom Plan 

Area (FPA) – 5,600 acre-feet

• Water Supply included conserved water under SB x7-7

• Approved by City Council under Resolution No. 9096

– Same City Council Meeting included Resolution No. 

9097

5Page 305

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



Resolution No. 9097

• Water Supply and Facilities Financing Plan for the FPA

– Use of 5,000 AF of pre-1914 water previously paid for 

by the East Area

– Previous SOR costs to be paid by FPA landowners 

($2.3 million)

– Agreement allows for sale or lease of surplus water not 

used to meet FPA demands

6Page 306

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



Addendum No.2 

• Proposed one-year transfer of up to 5,000 AF

– Includes reduction in surface water deliveries to Aerojet

• Evaluate releases from Folsom Reservoir

• Evaluate American River flows

• Evaluate Delta flows

• Evaluate pumping at Department of Water Resources 

Banks Pumping Plant

• CONCLUSION – proposed transfer of 5,000 AF would not 

result in any new or more severe impacts discussed in the 

FPA Project EIR/EIS
7Page 307

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



Proposed Transfer

• Up to 5,000 AF or pre-1914 water

• Potential buyer is the State Water Contractors

• $350 per acre-foot

• Water released from Folsom Reservoir

– July 1 through October 8

• Water delivered to DWR pumping facilities

8Page 308

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



QUESTIONS?

9Page 309

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



THIS SLIDE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

1
0

Page 310

06/09/2020; Item No.15.



Folsom City Council
Staff Re ort

MEETING DATE: 61912020

AGENDA SECTION: New Business

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10470 - A Resolution of the City Council
Authorizing Deferral of Certain Development Impact Fees for
the Parkway Apartment Project

FROM: Community Development Department

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

Move to Adopt Resolution No. 10470 - A Resolution of the City Council Authorizing
Deferral of Certain Development Impact Fees for the Parkway Apartments Project.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

On March 20,20I9,the Planning Commission approved an extension of the Parkway

Apartment Community Planned Development Permit (PN 19-013) for a 72-unit 100%

affordable apartment community on a 10.1-acre site located within the Parkway Specific Plan

Area atthe southwest corner of the intersection of Blue Ravine Road and Oak Avenue

Parkway. This extension gave the applicant additional time to obtain the tax credits (from
California Tax Credit Allocation Committee) necessary to finance development of the

proposed project. The project applicant, Pacific West Communities, Inc. is requesting

deferment of 75Yo of City-imposed development impact fees pursuant to Chapter 16.60 of the

Folsom Municipal Code in the amount of $1,001,922 (75% of $1,335,896) which, pursuant

to Section 16.60.040(F), shall be paid in full upon the close of the permanent loan financing
for the project, or 15 months from the date of issuance of a building permit, whichever occurs

earlier.

1

Page 311

06/09/2020; Item No.16.



POLICY / RULE

The City Council shall approve or deny applications for impact fee deferrals. Section

16.60.040(8) of the Folsom Municipal Code.

ANALYSIS

FMC Chapter 16.60 allows City Council to approve deferral or waiver of City-imposed
development impact fees for qualifuing projects with specific considerations and conditions.
Specifically, the Code allows City Council to approve deferral of City-imposed development
impacts fees not to exceed 75Yo of the total amount of the impact fees applicable to low
income andlor very low income units in a "qualified residential project". In order to be a

"qualified residential project" under FMC Chapter 16.60, the residential development project
must have all required discretionary development approvals and entitlements and include at
least l0o/o of its total units affordable to very low income households, and at least 30% of its
units affordable to low income households. As al00Yo affordable housing development, the
Parkway Apartment Community project meets the required criteria for a "qualified
residential project".

Pursuant to Section 16.60.040(8) of the Folsom Municipal Code, the City Council may
consider the following criteria in reviewing the fee defenal application:

1. The effect of an impact fee deferral on public improvements and planned capital
facilities;

2. The extent to which a deferral of fees affects the feasibility of a project; and
3. The demonstrated need for a deferral. Special consideration shall be given to projects

including student housing and to mixed use, and to transit-oriented and in-fill
development.

The Parkway Apartments project is a fixed budget project that has received State and Federal
Low-Income Housing Tax Credits (LIHTC). These credits subsidize the acquisition and
construction of affordable rental housing for low and moderate-income tenants. From the
commencement of construction, these credits are to be sold to investors to fund the project.
Approval of the defenal of certain impact fees allows the applicant to produce the capitol to
fund the project and pay the deferred impact fees without accruing interest during the 15-

month defenal time period. The total amount of City-imposed development impact fees

applicable to the Parkway Apartment Community project is approximately $1,335,896, and
75yo of that amount (equals $1,00I,922) is eligible for deferral.

Pursuant to FMC Sections 16.60.030 and 16.60.040(F), the maximum fee deferral period is
15 months from the date of fee deferral agreement execution, and the defened fees are due
and payable upon the close of permanent loan financing or upon the expiration of the
maximum fee deferral period (i.e., 15 months from the date of issuance of a building permit

2
Page 312

06/09/2020; Item No.16.



for a very low income or low income unit within the qualified residential project for which a
fee deferral was approved), whichever is earlier.

Regarding specific criteria to consider in the review of fee deferral, the deferment of these

impact fees in the amount of $1,001,922 (I7 total separate fees) for a 1S-month period has a

negligible effect on planned capital improvement projects because the total contribution is
relatively minor and the payment delay short term. Additionally, the fee defenal is critical to
the project feasibility in order to effectively manage the timelines, thresholds, and funding
obligations of the tax credits for this affordable housing project. Finally, this project is
located on a site that is deed restricted for affordable housing with site topography and soil
conditions that increase site development costs. Staff supports the proposed fee deferral for
the Parkway Apartment Community project consistent with the Folsom Municipal Code to
allow for construction of the affordable housing project to proceed given site considerations
and complex funding sources and stipulations.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

Deferment of certain impact fees affects only the timing in which fees are collected by the

City. The financial impact of deferral of impact fees is negligible to the City.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

A Mitigated Negative Declaration and Mitigation Monitoring Program were previously

approved for the Parkway Apartment Community project (PN 16-171) on March 15,2017 in
accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Staff has determined

that no new impacts will result from this fee defenal request that were not already considered

with the project approval. In addition, staff has determined that none of the events described

in Public Resources Code Section2Il66 or CEQA Guidelines Section 15162 (e.g. substantial

changes to the project) have occurred. No further environmental review is required.

ATTACHMENT

Resolution No. 10470 - A Resolution of the City Council Authorizing Defenal of Certain
Development Impact Fees for the Parkway Apartment Project

Submitted,

Pam JohnsCommunity Development Director

a
J

Page 313

06/09/2020; Item No.16.



RESOLUTION NO. IO47O

A RESOLUTION OF'THE CITY COUNCIL AUTHORIZING DEFERRAL OF
CERTAIN DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES FOR THE PARKWAY APARTMENT

PROJECT

WHEREAS, the developer of the proposed Parkway Apartment Community project;
located atthe southwest corner of Blue Ravine Road and Oak Avenue Parkway (l105 Blue Ravine
road) is requesting a deferment of City-imposed development impact fees to build a 72-unit
multifamily 100% affordable housing project in which eight units shall be affordable to extremely-
low income households; and

WHEREAS, the developer has requested a deferral of 75Yo of certain residential
development impact fees pursuant to Section 16.60.040(C) of the Folsom Municipal Code; and

WHEREAS' as required by Section 16.60.040(F) of the Folsom Municipal Code, all
deferred fees shall be due and payable upon the close of the permanent loan financing for the
construction of the Parkway Apartments project, or 15 months from the date of issuance of a

building permit for the project, whichever occurs earlier.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom
authorizes defenal of up to 75o/o of city-imposed development impact fees applicable to the
Parkway Apartment Community project until the close of the permanent loan financing for the
construction of the Parkway Apartments project, or 15 months from the date of issuance of a

building permit for the project, whichever occurs earlier, subject to compliance with all
requirements in Chapter 16.60 of the Folsom Municipal Code.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that no Certificate of Occupancy shall be issued for the
Parkway Apartment Community project until all development impact fees deferred by this
Resolution have been paid in full.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 9ft day of June 2020,by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):

Sarah Aquino, MAYOR
ATTEST

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10470
Page I of 1 Page 314

06/09/2020; Item No.16.


	Top
	1.	Approval of the May 26, 2020 Regular Meeting Minutes
	CC MINS 05 26 2020 06-09-2020

	2.	Ordinance No. 1305 - An Uncodified Ordinance Levying Special Taxes for the Fiscal Year 2020-21 and Following Fiscal Years Solely Within and Relating to the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) (Second Reading and Adoption)
	CC ORD 1305 06-09-20

	3.	Resolution No. 10431 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Purchase a 3.03 Acre Parcel (A.P.N. 071-0690-006) in the City of Folsom Made Available Through a Sacramento County Chapter 8 Auction Process
	CC SR 10431 PURCHASE OF 3.03 ACRE PARCEL

	4.	Resolution No. 10460 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement with Tesco Controls for Consulting Services for the Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) System Upgrade and Maintenance Services for Water and Sewer
	CC RES 10460 TESCO CONTROLS FOR SCADA SYSTEM 06-09-2020

	5.	Resolution No. 10461 - A Resolution Supporting Proposed Modifications to State Transportation Fund Allocation Framework Administered by the Sacramento Area Council of Governments
	CC SR 10461 MODIFICATIONS TO FUNDING ALLOCATION - SACOG

	6.	Resolution No. 10462- A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Memorandum of Understanding with the County of Sacramento for Commercial and Industrial Stormwater Inspections and Enforcement Within Folsom to Comply with the City’s National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Permit
	CC SR 10462 MOU FOR COMM AND IND STORMWATER INSPECTIONS RE NPDES

	7.	Resolution No. 10463– A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement with Sacramento Housing and Redevelopment Agency for Continued Participation in the Community Development Block Program from January 1, 2021 to December 31, 2023
	CC RES 10463 CDBG PROGRAM

	8.	Resolution No. 10464 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Seek Grant Funds from the United States Bureau of Reclamation for a WaterSMART Drought Response Program Drought Resiliency Project
	CC RES 10464 GRANT FUNDS WATERSMART DROUGHT RESPONSE 06-09-20

	9.	Resolution No. 10466 - A Resolution Electing the Population and Inflation Factors and Establishing the Fiscal Year 2020-21 Appropriations Limit
	CC SR 10466 POPULATION AND INFLATION FACTORS

	10.	Resolution No. 10467 – A Resolution Approving an Additional Appropriation in FY 2020-21 to be used for Park Renovation
	CC SR 10467 ADDL APPROP - PARK RENOVATION

	11.	Resolution No. 10468 - A Resolution of the City Council Approving an Acquisition and Shortfall Agreement for the Community Facilities District No. 23 Improvement Area No. 1 (Mangini Ranch Phase 2)
	CC SR RES 10468 ACQ AND SHORTFALL AGMT - CFD 23

	12.	Resolution No. 10469 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Communications Site License Agreement with CCTM1 LLC for Mann Park
	CC SR RES 10469 SITE LICENSE AGMT MANN PARK

	13.	Resolution No. 10471 – A Resolution Approving the Folsom Tree Care and Maintenance Standards and Folsom Master Tree List
	CC SR RES 10471 TREE CARE AND MAINTENANCE STANDARDS

	14.	Receive and File the City of Folsom, the Folsom Redevelopment Successor Agency, the Folsom Public Financing Authority, the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority, and the South of 50 Parking Authority Monthly Investment Reports for the Month of March 2020
	CC SR INVESTMENT REPORTS 6-9-20

	15.	Resolution No. 10465 - A Resolution Approving and Certifying Addendum No. 2 to the Environmental Impact Report for the Folsom South of U.S. 50 Specific Plan Project (State Clearinghouse # 2008092051) and Approving Transfer of up to 5,000 Acre-Feet of Water to State Water Contractors
	CC SR 10465 ADDENDUM TO EIR - WATER TRANSF; W ATTAC 1-4
	CC SR 10465 Power Point Pres - Attachment 5_06-09-2020 FINAL

	16.	Resolution No. 10470 – A Resolution of the City Council Authorizing Deferral of Certain Development Impact Fees for the Parkway Apartment Project
	CC RES 10470 DEFERRAL OF IMPACT FEES - PARKWAY APARTMENT PROJECT 06-09-2020

	Bottom

